Nassau County Shared Services,
Office of Purchasing
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3M PAVEMENT MARKING & AUTO DETAILING
Department: Shared Services, Office of Purchasing Vendor Name: 3M COMPANY
Department Head Name: Melissa Gallucci Contract Number: A-06-2023
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Narrative

Purpose: To authorize and award a blanket purchase order for 3M pavement marking and auto detailing
supplies for various Nassau County Departments.

Discussion: This solicitation was advertised in Newsday, New York State Contract Reporter and posted to
the Nassau County Bid Solicitation Board. Minority Affairs was also notified of this solicitation.

14 Vendors viewed the bid

3 Woman owned business 2 Minority (African/American) 3 Small Business
1

Service Disabled (Veteran) owned business 1 Veteran Owned Business

2 Vendors bid on this solicitation

Woman owrned business 0 Minority 0 Small Business

1
0 Service Disabled (Veteran) owned business 0 Veterans

The identified lowest responsible bidder, 3M Company is not listed in any of the above categories.

Impact on Funding/Term: The maximum amount authorized under this blanket purchase order,
including any renewal options that may be exercised by the Commissioner of Shared Services, shall be One
Million Five Hundred Seventy Five Thousand Dollars ($1,575,000) from general and capital funds
PWGEN0290 and PWCAPCAP, The term of this blanket purchase order shall be for a period of one (1) year
from the effective date, with the Commissioner of Shared Services’ option to renew up to an additional four
(4), one (1) year periods and an additional two (2) month period, for a total term of five (3) years, two (2)
months,

-

Recommendation: Department of Shared Services, Office of Purchasing recommerids &
3M Company as the lowest responsible bidder meeting specifications. /‘)
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

INTER — DEPARTMENTAL MEMO

TO: CLERK OF THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE A-06-2023

FROM:  MELISSA GALLUCCI - COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES
DATE: October 13, 2023
SURBJECT: RESOLUTION— VARIOUS NASSAU COUNTY AGENCIES.

THIS RESOLUTION IS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES
TO AUTHORIZE AN AWARD AND TO EXECUTE A BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER IN THE
AMOUNT OF ONE MILLION FIVE HUNDRED SEVENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS
(81,575,000) ON BEHALF OF THE VARIOUS NASSAU COUNTY AGENCIES TO 3M COMPANY,
FOR PAVEMENT MARKING & AUTO DETAILING SUPPLIES.

THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED DOCUMENT ATTACHED HERETO IS FORWARDED FOR YOUR
REVIEW AND APPROVAL AND SUBSEQUENT TRANSMITTAL TO THE RULES COMMITTEE

FOR INCLUSION IN ITS AGENDA.

MELISSA GAKLUCCI
COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES

MC: gb
ENCL: (1) STAFF SUMMARY
(2) DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
(3) RESOLUTION
(4) BID SUMMARY
(5) BID PROPOSAL
(6) CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
(7) RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD
(8} POLITICAL CONTRIBUTION FORM




RULES RESOLUTION 2023

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES
TO AWARD AND EXECUTE A BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER BETWEEN THE
COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF VARIOUS NASSAU COUNTY

AGENCIES, AND 3M COMPANY.

WHEREAS, the NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SHARED SERVICES, OFFICE OF
PURCHASING has received competitive bids under sealed bid solicitation #55072-09292-227 for
Pavement Marking & Auto Detailing Supplies for Various Nassau County Agencies, as more particularly

described in the bid document; and

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of Shared Services is representing to the Rules Committee that
3M Company submitted the lowest responsible bid and meets all specifications for the product and/or

services described in the said bid document as determined by the Commissioner of Shared Services.

RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature authorizes the
Commissioner of Shared Services to award and execute the said Blanket Purchase Order with Comfort

3M company.
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
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DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
05/15/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions cor be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and cohditlons of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Willis Towers Watson Midwest, Inc.
c/o 26 Century Blvd

?.0. Box 305191

ggm?‘m Willis Towars Watson Certificate Center

PHONE FAX _
PHONE . 1-B77-245-7378 FAX Moy 1-888-467-2378

ML 5. certificates@willis.com

Nashville, TN 372305191 USA INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A: ©1d Republic Ingurance Company 24147
INSURED INSURERB :
3M Coempany
3M Insurance Department INSURER € :
Bldg 224-58-29 INSURER D :
gt. Paul, MN 55144
INSURERE :
INSURERF :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER. W28872717

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TG WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUGCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LIR TYPE OF INSURANCE NS ) POLIGY NUMBER (MM/DDAYYYY] | {(MMIDDIYYYY) LIMITS
X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY FACH OCCURRENGE $ 10,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTEL
‘ CLAIMS-MADE - GCCUR PREMISES (Ea ogeyrrance} | § 1,000,000
A MED EXP (Any one person) $
- Y
MWzY 317359 03/01/202303/01/2026 | pepaoNAL & ADY INJURY $ 10,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:! GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 10,000,000
,_X_ POLICY RO Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OF AGG | § 10,000,000
OTHER: $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY GOMBINED SINGLELIMIT 1y 2,000,000
| aNY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Per person) | $
A OWNED SCHEDULED 1 1/202 i
| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS MWTB 317357 03/01/2023|03/01/2026 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY {Per accident)
5
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EAGH OCGURRENGE 3
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE §
DED | | RETENTION 5
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YiN X[ Sfkrore | |24
A | ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT [ 2,000,000
OFFICERMEMBEREXCLUDED? NIA MWC308063-23 03/01/2023|03/01/2024
(Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § 2,000,000
If yes, describe under 2 0G0, 000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § ' ‘

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Ra: Bid/Contract #55072-0929-227, 3M Pavement Marking & Auto Detailing Supplies.
The certificate of liability valid dates are, 6/1/2023 - 5/30/2024.

Nassau County NY is included as an Additicnal Insured as respecls to General Liability.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Nassap County NY
County of Hassau
1 West St

Mineola, NY 11501

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED I[N
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Cerrup, o€ fisecs

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
SR ID: 24144372

® 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and [ogo are registered marks of ACORD

BATCH: 2875512




COUNTY OF NASSAU
POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York State
Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b}, beginning April 1, 2018, the
period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure, to the campaign
committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign committees of any candidates for any of
the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any
County Legislator?

YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, to what campaign committee?

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Maria Paraschou [TBIDGROUP@MMM.COM]

Dated: 04/25/2023 06:31.:14 pm Vendor: 3M Company

Title: Senior Proposal & Contract Manager

\age 10f1 ] Rev. 3-2016

- P PRI L NPT S LS A
e AR T A ORI P BN % 5T e e R



Business History Form
The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into consideration the
reliabitity of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to perform the services required by the County, offers the best value
to the County and who will best promote the public interest.
In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The questionnaire shall
be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authorized representative of the firm, corporation or partnership
submitting the Proposal.
NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is “none” or “not-applicable.” No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 04/25/2023

1) Proposer’s Legal Name: 3M Company

2) Address of Place of Business:  3M Center, Rldg 223-35-33

State/Province/ Zip/Postal
City: St. Paul Territory: MN Code: 55144
Country:  US
2) Mailing Address (if different):
State/Province/ Zip/Pastal
City: Territory: Code:;
Country:
Phone:  (651) 650-1420
| Does the business own or rent its facilities? 0 If other, please provide details:
4) Dun and Bradstreet number: 00-617-3082
5) Federal i.D. Number: 41-0417775
&) The proposer is a: Corporation {Describe)
7) Does this business share office sp:éce, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?
| YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, please provide details: J
8) Does this husiness control one or more other businesses?

Page 1 of 6 Rev. 3-2016



YES [X] NO [ ] If yes, please provide details:

See entity list attachment. Please note that subsidiary companies excluded from the listing attachment, if considered in
the aggregate, would not constitute a significant subsidiary.

1 File{s) uploaded: Business History Form_Final.pdf

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other business?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, please provide details:

10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any other
government entity terminated?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond and reason for such
cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination (if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared Bankrupt?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business, been the
subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or
investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated business been the
subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or
investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities perfermed at, for, or on behalf of an affiliated
business.

YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business been the
subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and local regulatory
agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business been the subject of an
investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and local regulatory agencies, for
matters pertaining to that individual’s position at or relationship to an affiliated business.

YES [X] NO [ ] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

Ree response to 14(e} below

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either before or during
such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges pertained to events that allegedly occurred during
the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the conduct of that business:

a) Any felony charge pending?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

-

b) Any misdemeanor charge pending?

Page 2 of 6 Rev. 3-2016



YES [ 1 NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

I |
¢} In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an element of
which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?

YES [ ] NO [X] If ves, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

| l

d) In the past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
" YES [ ] NO [%] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

| |

e) In the past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?

YES [X] NO [ ] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

In the last five years, 3M Company and some of its subsidiaries are involved in numerous claims and fawsuits, principally
in the United States, and regulatory proceedings worldwide. These claims, lawsuits and proceedings include, but are not
limited to, products liability {involving products that the Company now or formerly manufactured and sold), intellectual
property, commercial, antitrust, federal False Claims Act, securities, and state and federal environmental laws. Unless
otherwise stated, the Company is vigorously defending all such litigation and proceedings. Information on these matters
can be found in the Annual Reports under Legal Proceedings at:
https://investors.2m.com/financials/annual-reports-and-proxy-statements/default.aspx

15)  Inthe past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had any sanction
imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license held?
YES { ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken,

16)  For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal,
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such year, Provide a detailed response to all
questions checked ‘YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

17 Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please expressly state “No
conflict exists.”
(i} Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict of
interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
| No conflict exists

(ii) Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may create a
conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
| No conflict exists

Page 3 of 6 Rev. 3-2016



(iii) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of
interest in acting on hehalf of Nassau County.

l No conflict exists

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a conflict of interest
would not exist for your firm in the future.

3M Company has a Conflict of Interest Policy which is publicly available at:
https://www.3m.com/3M/en_US/ethics-compliance/code/; [Conflict of Interest is addressed under the Be Loyal
category]

Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer’s professional qualifications, demonstrating extensive
experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these experiences, must be identified.

Have you previously uploaded the below information under in the Document Vault?
YES[]NO [X]

Is the proposer an individual?
YES [ ] NO [X] Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

3] Date of formation;

| 06/13/1902

ii) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the company, including shareholders,
members, general or limited partner. If none, explain.

As a publicly traded company, no one person has significant ownership in excess of 10%. See
attachment at end of document

1 File(s} uploaded: 3MOwnershipProfile101222.pdf

i}  Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company. If none, explain.

| Attached at end of document

1 File(s) uploaded: 2022 3M Corporate Officers_101322.pdf

iv) State of incorporation (if applicable);

| DE

v) The number of employees in the firm;

[ 95000

vi) Annual revenue of firm;

[ 35400000000

vil}  Summary of relevant accomplishments

| Please see https://www.3m.com/3M/en_US/company-us/about-3m/ for more information

Page 4 of 6 Rev. 3-2016



B.

viii}  Copies of all state and local licenses and permits,

Indicate number of years in business.

93

Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the Proposer’s capacity and
reliability to perform these services.

Please see www.,3m.com/3M/en_US/company-us/about-3m/

Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer has provided similar services or
who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer’s capability to perform this work.

Company
Contact Person
Address

City

Country
Telephone

Fax #

E-Mail Address

Company
Contact Person
Address

City

Country
Telephone

Fax #

E-Mail Address

Company
Contact Person
Address

City

Country
Telephone

Fax #

E-Mail Address

Page 50f 6

Jefferson County

Karin Dorr

Office of Purchasing Dept, Historic Court House, 195 Arsenal 5t

Watertown State/Province/Territory NY

Us

{315) 785-3077

karind@co.jefferson.ny.us

New York City

Hedra Khalel

Division of Municipal Supply Services, Municipal Bldg, 1 Centre St, 18th Floor
New York State/Province/Territory NY
us

(212) 386-5010

hekhalel@dcas.nyc.gov

hekhale!@dcas.nyc.gov

Julie Butler

1340 State Route 9

Lake George State/Province/Territory NY

Us

(518) 761-6538

{518) 761-6395

butleri@warrencountyny.gov

Rev. 3-2016



l, | Maria Paraschou | , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or any
affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

, | Maria Paraschou | , hereby certify that | have read and understand all the

items contained in this form; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of
this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. | understand that
the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the
submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY CR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY
RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE
BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Name of submitting business: 3M Company

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Maria Paraschou TBIDGROUP@MMM.COM

Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager

Title

05/12/2023

Date
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IM General Offices

3M Center
8t Paul, MN 55144-1000
631 733 1110

Equal Employment Opportunity (EEQ) and Affirmative Action (AA)

Applies To

Introduction &
Background

Policy
Statoment

Additional
Elements

Refated
infermation

For Further
Information

lague Date

W

Altregular full-time and regular part-time U.S. emplayees and applicants for U.8,
amploymeri.

M bslieves that successfully managing divarsity In the work force is essential to the future
competitive position of the company. To help us achieve this objeclive, we have
implemented and now reaffirm - our support for the company's equal emgleyment
upportunity (EEO) and affirmative action {AA) policies and programs,

Overall responsibility for complianog with this document is assigned to the Vice President,
Crganizational Effectiveness and Talent and alt supervisors and hifing managers,

3M prohibits all forms of discrimination or harassment against applicants, employees,
vendors, contractors, or cusiomers on tha basts of race, color, creed, religian, sex,
national origin, age, disability, vetetan status, pragnancy, genetic information, sexual
orientation, marital status, citizenship status, status with regards to public assistance,
gender identity/expression, membership or-activify in a local human rights commission, or
any other reason prohibited by law,

3M's EEO and AA standard and programs include the auditing, reporting, and monitoring
necessary to ensure equal opporiunities forqualified mincrities, women, protected
veterans, and individuale with disabilitias, and also provide reasonable accommadation o
individuals with disebilities, including disabled veterans. Progress reports on affirmative
gotion are regeivedireviewed by the CEO,

These polictes and programs require that employment dedisions be based on valld job
recuirarnents, and extend fo ali lerms and conditions of employment, including, but not
limited to, recruitment, selection, compensation, training, promotion, and benefits, And
with respect te discimingtion and harassment, all 34 employees must know and
underatand that consistent with our peliclas, 3M will not tolerate this behavior, meaning
that any violation will be met with the appropriate company respanse, up to and Including
termination of employment.

3M also prohibits all forms of retatiation ~ Including harassment, intimldation, threats,
coarcion, or discrimination —against any individual because such individual has: 1) filed
& complaint; {2} assisted or parlicipated in an investigation, compliance evaluation,
hearing, or other activity related to the administration of federal EEQ and AA
requirements; (3) opposed any act or practice made unlawfill by these reguirsmenits; or
14 exercised any other right protected by these Fequirernents,

If you believe you have been or are being harassed or discriminated against In violation of
IM's EEO polities, please contacl your supervisor, manager, or 3M Human Resources
Repregentative, Complaints can also be made by contacting the 3M Business Conduct
Helpline at 1-800-243-0857 (operated by EthiosPoint), or by visifing the Business
Canduct & Policy Center,

Code of Conduct Principles - BE GOOD: Compliance, BE RESPECTFUL: Respectiul
Workplace
Invitation to Seifdentiy: Race/Ethnicity, Disability, Veteran

To view the affimafive action program for protected veterans and individuals with
disabilities, please contact the Office of Diversity and Inclusion during normad business
haurs gt 651-737-4872 1o make viewing arrangsments.

Jancary 1; 2020

Michzell[Roman

Chief Executive Offic

?{ ;
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Michael F. Roman
Ghairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

>

* Investor Search
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John P. Banovetz

Executive Vice Prasident, Chief Tachnolegy Officer and Envircnmental Rasponsibijity

Karina Chavez )
Senlor Vice President and Chief Strategy Officer

Zoe Dickson
Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer

Peter Gibhons
Group President, Enterprise Oporations

Eric D, Hammes
Exeautive Vice President, Chief Gountry Governance and Services Officer

Ashish K. Khandpur

Group President, Transportation & Electronics

Jeffray R. Lavers
Group President, Cansumer and Interim Group President, Health Care

Mark Murphy
Executive Vice President, Chief Information and Digltal Officer

Monish Patolawala
Executive Vice Prasidant, Chief Financial and Transformation Officer

Kevin Rhodes
Executive Vice Prasident and Chlef Laga! Afialrs Officer

Michael G. Vale
Group President, Safaty & Industrial

Corporate Officers

Asraf Bhugaloo
Senior Vlce President and General Auditer




Michaet M. Dal
Saeretary

Sarah M. Grauze
Senior Vice President and Treasurer

Mighael A. Duran
Senior Vice Prasident and Chiaf Ethics & Compliance Officer

Theresa E. Reinseth
Senjor Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer

C. Michasl Gelse
Asslstant Secretary

Rodolfe Espinosa
Asslstant Treasurer

Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

Tha information on this websits, including any documants posted herein, somaing a significant amount of information about 3M, They may contain forward-looking information about 3M's
financial results, estimates and business praspects that involve substantial risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to difer materially. Forward-locking statements relate to future
events and typically address 3M’s expected future business and finanaial performance. Words sush as “plar,” “sxpect,” “alin,” “believs,” “project,” “target,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,”
“will,” “should,” “could,” “forecast” and other words and terms of similar meaning, typlcally Identify such forward-looking statements. For detalls of these risks and uncertalntles please see the

documents 3M files with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Compeny assumas no cbligatien 1o update or revise any forward-locking statements,

Investor contact Investor Alerts
‘Phone: 651-737-6501 or 800-3M-HELPS
Your Email SIGN UP
3M Investor Ralations Department
Bldg. 224-1W-02 Prass Raleasa SEC Fif
§t. Paul, MN 55144-1000 . [ st Fiing
Tel: (651) 737-6523 |:| Prasentation D Event
invesiorre|ations@3M.com
I " !:‘ Annual Repart [] End of Day Stock Guote
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Ownership Profile

Top Holders
Institution Name Shares Held % 8/0 Share Change Filing Date

Cmemamsomnme e aw seas sz
State Street Global Advisors (S5gA) 32,685,523 574 94,802 6/30/2022
BlackRack Fund Advisors 29,211,929 513 358,719 B8/30/2022
Charlss Schwab lnvestment Mapagement, Inc. 11,084,884 230 669,187 6/30/2022
Geode Capital Management, LLC 10,428,045 183 -728,997 6/30/2022
Newport Group Consulting, LLC 9,561,315 1.68 -151,364 B8/30/2022
State Farm Investment Management Corporation 9,657,100 1.68 0 8/30/2022
Flossbach von Storch AG 8,042,626 1.57 226,918 6/30/2022
BlackRock Investment Management (UK.}, LTD 8,809,700 1656 -301,139 6/30/2022

Northern Trust Investments, Inc. 8,670,044 117 546 B6/30/2022

Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

The information an this websita, including any decuments posted herain, containg a significant amaunt of information aloul 3M. They may contain forward-locking information about 3M's
financial results, estimates and businass prospacts that involve substantial risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially. Farward-Iooking statemeants ralata to future
events and typically sddress 3M's expected future business and financial performance. Wards such as “plan,” "expect,” “aim,” “believe,” “praject,” “target,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “astimate,”
“will,” “should,” “could,” “foracast” and other words and terms of simifar maaning, typically identify such forward-laoking statements. For details of these rlsks and uncertainiias please see the
decuments 2M filas with the Securities and Exchange Commissicn. Tha Company assumas no shligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements.

Investor contact Investor Alerts
Phone: 651-737-6501 or 800-3M-HELPS
Your Email SIGN UP
3M Investar Relations Department
Bldg. 224-1W-02 P Rel SEC Fili
St. Paul, MN 551441000 (] press Relouse, U g
Tel: (661) T37-6523 [C] Presentation [ gvent

Investorrelations@3M.com
T T E‘ Annual Report I:' End of Day Stock Quote
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Exhibit 21

3M COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES (PARENT AND SUBSIDIARIES)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

Name of Company Organized Under Law of

Delaware
TR

{%Def

Delaware

e R Pt e T et ket

MModal IP LLC ' . - " Delaware

Delaware

California

aryland.:
Minnesota

s

New Jersey

Australia

Belgium

3M Hong Kong Limited I-Iong- Kong



Exhibit 21

Name of Company Organized Under Law of

KL Manufacturmg Unlimited Company Treland

NOTE: Subsidiary companies excluded from the above listing, if considered in the aggregate, would not constitute a significant
subsidiary.



PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent {10%) or
greater ownership interest in the proposer, Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to answer any
question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN
THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND |T WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name; Maria Paraschou
Date of birth: 10/13/1975
Home address: 8 Troon Court
State/Province/ Zip/Postal
City: Dellwood Territory: MN Code: 55110
Country: us
Business Address: 3M Company, 3M Center, Bldg 223-35-33
State/Province/ Zip/Postal
City: St. Paul Territory: MN Code: 55144
Country us

Telephone: 1-800-553-1380

Other present address{es): Not Applicable. No one officer, individual or entity holds an interest greater than 10% in
3M Company.

State/Province/ Zip/Postal
City: St. Paul Territory: MN Code: 55144
Country: Us

Telephone: 8005531380

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each {check all applicable)
President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Parther
Vice President
{Other)
Type Other

Description  Senior Proposal and Contract Manager
Start Date  08/03/2020

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
Page 1of 5 Rev. 3-2016



YES [ 1 NO [X] If Yes, provide details,

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of contribution
made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?

YES [] NO [X] If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization other
than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES [ ] NO [X] If Yes, provide details.

6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past 3 years
while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES [ ] NO [X] If Yes, provide details,

NOTE: An affirmative answer is raquired below whether the sanclion arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a result of
any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". if you need more space,
photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5 in which
you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts cancelled for
cause?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

o Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not limited to,
failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

d. . Beensuspended by any government agancy from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action pending
that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business’s ability to bid or propose on contract?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

8, Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or been the
subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the last 7 year period,
been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 years ago and/or is any such
business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever initiated?

YES [ ] NO [X] If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance, {Provide a detailed response to all questions check "Yes", If
you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the questionnaire.)

Page 2 of 5 Rev, 3-2016



a, Is there any felony charge pending against you?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

b. Isthere any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES [X] NO [] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

| Please see our explanation on p. 4/5 below.

1 File(s) uploaded: 3M - Stock Information - Ownership Profile_123122.pdf

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime, an
element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of businass?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

e, In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES [ ] NO [X] If ves, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?

YES [X] NO [] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

3M Company is a global, Fortune 500 Company with annual sales in 2022 of over $34.2B, approximately 92,000
employees worldwide & affiliates & subsidiaries worldwide. Due to the broad nature of questions 3-13, these
certifications are limited in scope to 3M Company, its officers & directors, & its government procurement
activities within the U.S. In the last three-five years, 3M Company & some of its subsidiaries have been or are
currently involved in numerous claims & lawsuits & regulatory proceedings worldwide. These claims, lawsuits &
proceedings include, hut are not limited to, products liability, intellectual property, commercial, antitrust,
federal False Claims Act, securities, & state & federal environmental laws. Unless otherwise stated, the
Company is vigorously defending all such litigation & proceedings. Information can be found in our corporate
website under Annual Reports, at https://investors.3m.com/financials/annual-reperts-and-proxy-statements/
default.aspx.

10  Inaddition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you bean the
subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or
investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related to activities performed
at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed in response to Question 5?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11 Inaddition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response to

Page 3 0of 5 Rev. 3-2016



Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other type of
investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory agencies while

you were a principal owner or officer?
YES [] NO IX] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12 Inthe past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 had any
sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license held?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13 For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, state or
local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken,

Page 4 of 5 Rev. 3-2016



[, | Maria Paraschou | , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or any
affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

[, | Maria Paraschou , hereby certify that | have read and understand all the

items contalned in this form; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of
this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, | understand that
the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the
submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY

" RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE
BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

3M Company

Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Maria Paraschou MPARASCHOU@MMM.COM

Senior Proposal and Contract Manager

Title

05/15/2023 04:23:06 pm

Date
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT’S, CONTRACTOR’S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: 3M Company

Address: 3M Center, Bldg 223-35-33

City: St. Paul State/Province/Territory: MN Zip/Postal Code: 55144

Country: uUs

2. Entity’s Vendor ldentification Number: 41-0417775

3. Type of Business: Public Corp {specify)

4, List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable body, all
partners and limited partners, all corparate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and officers of limited
tiability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

2 File(s) uploaded: 2022 3M Corporate Officers_101322.pdf, Nassau_SECForm10-K_Officers.pdf

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an individual, list
the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the 10K in lieu of completing
this section.

If none, explain.

1 File{s) uploaded:; 2021-3M-10-K. pdf

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter “None”}. Attac!
a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the performance of this contract. Such
disclesure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not previously disclosed that participate in the
performance of the contract.

None

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter {i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter “None.”
The term “lobbyist” means any and every perscn or organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or
promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or committees,
including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but ar

Page 10f3



not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, procurements.
The term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of
New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES[] NO [X]

{a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):

{b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activitias.

{c} List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New York
State):

&, VERIFICATION: This section must be sighed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a signatory of th:
firm for the purpose of executing Contracts. ‘

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to his/her
knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Maria Paraschou [TBIDGROUP@NMM.COM]

Dated: 05/12/2023 02:31:42 pm

Title: Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager

Page 2 of 3



The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County Legislature, or any
member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resclution; any
determination by the County Executive to support, oppase, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolution, whether or
not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an elected County official or an officer
or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of
contract specifications, including by not limited te the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreament involving
the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of
Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissicns, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Cpen Space and
Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real
property subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or centracting for services for the County; any determination made hy an elected
county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition by the county of
any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect
to a franchise, concession or revacable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of any rule
having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate making proceeding before an agency; the
agenda or any determination of a beard or commission; any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature
oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by
an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or
regulation, including any determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legistation,
rule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has
been formally proposed.
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FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL

STATE OF NEW YORK BID NUMBER
55072-09292-227

COUNTY OF NASSAU | vated: 0970872022

BIDS WILL BE RECEIVED AND OPENED AT+ | - BID OPENING DATE
OFFICE OF PURCHASING, 1 WEST STREET; - . _ SEPTEN_IBER 29, _2022
NORTH ENTRANCE, MINEOLA, NEW YORK 11501 11:00 AM. E.S.T."
OFFICE HOURS 9 AM - NOON & 1 PM - 4:45PM . |- ‘ 1.4
] Cry T ‘.:‘ ”“ { [_ i'} IR T F _,J‘l;.”.

; LA, ] i
BUYER TELEPHONE ' ' REQUISITION NUMBER
VIVIAN C. CROWLEY 516/571/4047 NH}\
. T .,
Yo 2 {J ;;022
PREPARE YOUR BID ON THIS FORM USING BLACK INK OR TYPEWRITER f
BID TITLE: 3M PAVEMENT MARKING & AUTO DETAILING SUPPLIES -
) L Ty -4 + N
T AR el

+ ALL BIDS MUST BE F.O.B, DESTINATION AND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED

THE UNDERSIGNED BIDDER AFFIRMS AND DECLARES THAT HE/SHE HAS CAREFULLY EXAMINED THE ADVERTISED INVITATION FOF- Caeml e
BIDS, THE BID TERMS AND CONDITIONS, AND DETAILED SPECIFICATICNS, AND CERTIFIES THAT THIS BID IS SIGNED WITH FULL -
KNOWLEDGE AND ACCEPTANCE OF ALL THE PROVISIONS THERECF AND OFFERS AND AGREES, IF THIS BID 18 ACCEPTED WITHIN
NINETY (90} DAYS FROM THE BID OFENING DATE TO FURNISH ANY OR ALL THE ITEMS UPON WHICH PRICES ARE HEREINAFTER
QUOTED N THE QUANTITY AND AT THE PRICES BID.

CASH DISCOUNT OF _ () PERCENT WILL BE ALLOWED FOR PROMPT PAYMENT WITHIN 20 BUSINESS DAYS.

THE BIDDER CERTIFIES THAT: (A) THE BID HAS BEEN ARRIVED AT BY THE BIDDER INDEPENDENTLY AND HAS BEEN SUBMITTED
WITHOUT COLLUSION WITH ANY OTHER VENDOR OF MATERIALS, SUFFLIES OR EQUIPMENT OF THE TYPE DESCRIBED IN INVITA-
TION FOR BIDS, AND (B} THE CONTENTS OF THE BID HAVE NOT BEEN COMMUNICATED BY THE BIDDER, NOR, TO ITS BEST
KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, BY ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS, TC ANY PERSON NOT AN EMPLOYEE OR AGENT OF BIDDER
OR ITS SURETY ON ANY BOND FURNISHED HEREWITH PRIOR TO GFFICIAL OPENING OF THE BID.

DELIVERY MADE TO: GUARANTEED DELIVERY DATE
VARIOUS NC AGENCIES

20 -120 DAYS AFTER RECEIPT OF ORDER

EMPLOYERS FEDERAL TAX ID NUMBER 41-0417775

TOLL FREE TELEPHONE NUMBER:
BIDS MUST BE SIGNED BY PROPRIETOR, PARTNER OR OFFICER AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR CORPORATION

NAME OF BIDDER  3M Company
ADDRESS 3M Center, Building 225-4N-14

cITY Sh€ PPL | _ STATE (N 2P CODE 551 44-1000 TELEPHONE 800-553-1380
NN L Maria Paggchou, Sr. Proposal & Coniract Manager
SIGNATUREOF QUTHQRIZED INDIVIDUAL PRINT OR TYPE NAME OF SIGNER AND TITLE

IN EXECUTING THIS BID, THE BIDDER WARRANTS THAT THE PRICES SUBMITTED HEREIN ARE NOT HIGHER THAN THOSE OFFERED
TO ANY GOVERNMENTAL OR COMMERCIAL CONSUMER FOR LIKE BELIVERIES. THE PRICES HEREIN SHOULD NOT INCLUDE ANY
FEDERAL EXCISE TAXES OR SALES TAXES IMPOSE BY ANY STATE OR MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT. SUCH TAXES, IF INCLUDED,

MUST BE DEDUCTED BY THE BIDDER WHEN SUBMITTING BID. BIDDERS ARE REQUESTED TO ALSO READ THE TERMS AND
CONDITIONS,

BID TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Bids on equipment must be on standard new equipment, latest model, 4. PRICES The provisiens of the New York State Fair Trade Law (Fed-
except as otherwise specifically stated in proposal or detailed specifica- Crawford Act) and the federal price discrimination law (Robinsen-Patman
tion. Where any part of nominal appurtenances of equipment is not de- Act) do not apply to purchases made by the County.

seribed, it shall be understood that all equipment and appurtenances which 5. SURETY In the event that an award is made hereunder, The Director of
are usually provided in the manufacturer’s stock model shall be fumished.  Purchase reserves the right to request successful bidders to post, within one

2. Bids on materials and supplies must be for new items except as other- week, security for faithful performance, with the understanding that the whole of
wise specifically stated in bid or detailed specifications. any part thereof may be used by the Countly of Nassau to supply any

3. Bidder declares that the bid is made without any connection with any deficiency that may arise from any default on the part of the Bidder. Such

other Bidder, submitting a bid for the same items, and is in all respects security must meet all the requirements of the County Attorney and be

fair and without collusion or fraud. approved by the County Attorney.




13.

15.

Page 2

6. SAMPLES Samnples, when required, must be submitted strictly in accordance with
instructions; otherwise bid may not be considered. If samples are requested subsequent
ta bid opening they shall be delivered within five {5} days of the request for bid to have
consideration. Samples must be furnished free of charge and must be acoompanied by
descriptive memorandum invoices indicating if the Bidder desires their return; also
specifying the address to which they are to be retumed, provided they have not been
used or mads nseless by tests, Award samples may be held for comparison with
deliveries. Samples will be roturned at the Bidders visk and expense.

Award The Director, Office of Purchasing reserves the right before making award to
make investigations as to whether or not the items, qualifications or facilities offered by
the Bidder meet the requiremenis set forth herein and are sample and sufficiznt to
insure the proper performance in the svent of award, The Bidder must be prepared, if
requested by the Director, to present evidence of experience, ability and financial
standing, as well as a statement as o plant, machinery and capacity of the manufacturer
for the production and distribution of the material on which he is bidding. Upon
request of the Director, successful bidder shall file cerification from the manufaciurer
relative to antliorization, delivery, service and guarantees. If it is found that the
conditions of the bids are not complied with or that articles or equipment propossd to
be furnished do not meet the requirements called for, or that the qualification, financial
standing or facilities are not satisfactory, the Director may reject such bids, [Tt is
distinetly understood, however, that nothing in the forogoing shall mean or imply that it
is obligatery upon the Director to make any examinations before award; and it is further
understood that, if such examination is made, it in no way relieves the Bidder from
fulfilling all requirements and conditions of the bid.

Awards will be made to the lowest responsible Bidder. Cash discounts will net be 2
factor in determining awards, except in tie bids. Consideration will be given to the
reliability of the Bidder, the quantities of the materials, equipment or supplies to be
furnished, their conformity with the specifications, the purpose for which required and
the terms of delivery.

The Director reserves the right to reject and all bids in whole or in part and to waive
technical defects, irregularities and omissions {7 in his judgment the best interests of the
County will be served.

Unless otherwise indicated herein, the Director reserves the right to make award by
ftems, by classes, by group of items, or as a whole.

DELIVERIES Upon faiture of the Vendor to deliver within the time specified, or
within reasonable Hime as interpreted by the Director, or failure to make replacement of
rejected articles, when so requested immediately or as directed by the Director, the
Director may purchase (rom other sources fo take the place of the item rejected or not
delivered. The Director reserves the right to authorize immediate purchase from other
sources against rejections on any erdor when necessary. On all-such purchases the
Vendor agrees to promptly reimburse the County for excess cost eceasioned by such
purchases. Should the cost be less, the Vendor shall have no claim to the difference.
Such purchases will be deducted from order quantity,

An order may be canceled at the Vendors expense upon nonperformance, Failure of
the Vendor to furnish additional surety within ten (10) days from date of requested shall
be sufficient cause for the cancellation of the order.

When in the determination of the Director, the articles or equipinent delivered fail to
meet County specifications or, if in the detenmination of the Director, the Vendor
consistently fails to deliver as ordered, the Director reszrves the right, to cancel the
order and purchase the balance from other sources at Vendor expense.

Delivery must be made as ordered and in accordance with the bid, If delivery
instructions do not appear on order. It will be intorpreted to mean prompi delivery.
The decision of the Director as (o reasonable compliance with delivery terms shall be
final. Burdew of proof of delay in receipt of order shall rest with the Vendor.

The County Agencies will not schedule any deliveries for Saturdays, Sundays or Legal
Holiday, except commodities required for daily consumption or where the delivery is
an emergency, a replacement, or is overdue, in which event the convenience of the
Agency will govern,

Supplics shall be sceurely and properly packed for shipment, aceording to accepted
commercial practice, without extra charge for packing cases, reels, bailing or sacks, the

containers to remain the property of the agency unless definitely stated otherwizse in the
bid.

The Vendor shall be responsible for delivery of supplies in good condition at point of
destination. The Vendor shall file all claims with carrder for breakage, imperfections
and ather losses, which will be deducted from invoices. The receiving Agency will
note for the benefit of Vendor when packages are not received in good conditions.

18. All supplies which are customarily labeled ot identified must have securely aflixed
thereto the original in-mutilated label or marking of the manufacturer.

19. Billings for deliveries must be rendered on County claim forms,

20. Fumiture, machines, and other equipment must be delivered, instzlled and set in place
as directed, ready for use unless otherwise specified.

21, Delivesies are subject to reweighing at destination by the County and payment will bs
made on the basis of materials delivered. Normal shrinkage wilt be allowed in such
instances where shrinkage is possible. Short weight shall be sufficient cause for
cancellation of order at Vendors expense.

22. GUARANTEES BY BIDDER Bidder hereby guarantees: (a) To save the County, its
apsnts and employees harmless from liability of any nature or kind for the use of any
copyrighted or un-copyrighted composition, secret process, patented or unpatented
invention, article or appliance furnished or used in the performance hereof of which the
Bidder is not the Patentee, assignee or licensee, and to defend any action brought against
the County in the name of the County and under the direction of the County Attorney at the
sole cost of the Bidder or in the sole option of the Director to pay the cost af such defense
to the County. (b) His products against defective material or workmanship and to repair
any damages or marring, occasioned in (ransit.

{c) To fumish adequate protection from damage for all work and to repair damages of any
kind, for which he or his workmen are responsibie, to the building or equipment, to this
own work or the work of other Vendors, or in the opinion of the Director to pay for the
same by deductions in payments due under this contract.

(d) To pay for ail permits, licenses and fees aud give all notices and comply with all laws
ordinances, rules and regulations of the city, village or town in which the installation his to
be made, and of the County of Massan and the State of Mew York.

(e) To carry proper insurmnce in the opinion of the Director, and approved by the
County Aftomey to protect the County from loss in case of aceident, fire and theft,

{fi  That he will keep himself fully informed, of all municipal ordinances and
repulations, state and national laws in any manner affecting the work or goods herein
specified, and any extra work contracted for by him, and shell at a1l times cbserve
and comply with said ordinances, laws and regulations, including all provisions of
the Warkmen Compensation and Labor Laws, and shall indemmnify and save
harmless the County of Massau and the Nassau County Legislature from loss and
liability upen any and all Claims on account of any physical injury to persons,
including death, or damage to properly and from all cost and expenses in suits which
may be brought against the same on aceount of such injuries irrespective of the
actual cost of the same and firespective of whether the same shall have been due to
the negligence of the Bidder or his agents.

() Thatthe items firnished shall conform to all the provisions of the bid and this
warranty shall sarvive acceptance, or use of any material so furnished.

{h)  Thatall deliveries will not be inferior to the accepted bid sample.

23. LABOR LAWS and ANTIDISCRIMINATION, Upon the vendor aceeptance
hereof, the vendor agrees to comply with Article IX, Section 2 C of the Constitution
of the State of New York, Section 220 220a, 220b, 2204, 220e and 230 of the Labor
Law, Scction 5 and 12 of the Lien Law, Article 2 of the Uniform Commercial Code,
Sections 108 and 109 as well as Articlo 18 of the General Municipal Law, Section
2218 of the County Governrment Law of Nassau County. Section 224.2 of the
WNassau County Administrative Cods, the provisions of the anti-Discrimination
Order of Nassau County, and he vendor shall keep himself fully infonned of all
additional municipal ordinances and regulations, State and National Laws in any
manner affecting this order and the goods or services delivered or rendered or to be
delivered or rendered there under, and shatl at atl times observe and comply with
said ordinances, laws and regulations at his sele cost and expense.

24,  ASSIGNMENT. The contractor is hereby prohibited from assigned, trausferring,
conveying, subletting or otherwise disposing of this contract or his right, title, or
interest therein, or his power to execute such contract, to any other person or
corporation without the previous consent in writing of the officer, board or agency
awarding the contract.

25,  The County of Nassau will not be responsible nor liable for any shipment or
delivery of any materials, supplies, or equipment without it's express written
instructions or valid Purchase Order.

26, Mo agresments, changes, modifications or alterations shall be deemed effective nor

shall the same be binding upon the County unless in writing and signed by the
Director, Office of Purchasing or his duly/ designated representative,

Dircetar. Office of Furchasing



OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK 55072-09292-227

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

THE NASSAU COUNTY LEGISLATURE REQUIRES THE FCLLOWING INFORMATION PRIOR TO CONSIDERATION FOR AN
AWARD.

Bidders Name: 3M Company

Address: 3M Center, Building 225-4N-14, S$t. Paul, Minnesota 55144-1000
Telephone No: 651-381-2878 Fax No; 800-591-9293

1. State Whether: A Corporation __X

Individual

Partnership

GUIDELINES FOR DISCLOSURE

THE NASSAU COUNTY LEGISLATURE REQUIRES THE NAMES AND HOME™ ADDRESSES OF ALL PRINCIPALS.
DISCLOSURE MUST BE PROVIDED AS INDICATED BY TYPE OF OWNERSHIP. {PLEASE LIST ALL REQUIRED
INFORMATICON ON A SEPARATE SHEET AND ATTACH TO BID.)

1) Sole Proprietorship/Individual. The Name and Home Address of the Sole Proprietorship/Individual.

2) Closely Held Corporation. The Name and Home Addresses of all Shareholders, Officers and Directors.

k) Publicly Traded Corporation. Only the page(s) of the SEC FORM 10-K setting forth the name of all officers and

directors.
4) Not for Profit Corporation. The Names and Home Addresses of all members, Officer and Directors.
5) Partnership. The Names and Home Address of all General and Limited Partners.
6) Limited Liability Company. The Names and Home Addresses of all Members.

7 Limited Liability Partnership. The Name and Home Addresses of all Members.
8) Joint Venture. The Names and Home Addresses of al! Joint Ventures.

NOTE: IF ANY ENTITY IS TIERED, YOU MUST ALSO LiST ALL INDIVIDUAL PRINCIPALS OF THE TIERED ENTITY.

*IN THE CASE OF PUBLICLY TRADED CORPORATIONS THE SEC FORM 16K SUFFICES AND HOME ADDRESSES ARE NOT
NECESSARY.

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.O.B. DESTRNATION AND [ NCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS QTHERWISE SPEC|FIED.
BIDDER SIGN HERE ( N Sr. Propdal & Contract Manager
~ ‘u ~1 BIDDER v TITLE




OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK 55072-09292-227

QUALTFICATION STATEMENT

BIDDER'S NAME: 3M Company

ADDRESS: 3M Center, Building 225-4N-14, St. Paul, MN 55144-1000

1. STATE WHETHER: CORPORATICN X INDIVIDUAL PARTNERSHIP

2. IF A CORPORATION OR PARTNERSHIP LIST NAME{S} AND ADDRESS(S) OF OFFICER(S) CR MEMBER(S)

PRESIDENT
Michael F. Roman, 3M Center, Bldg 220-14W-05, St. Paul, MN 55144

VICE PRESIDENT John P. Bancvetz, Executive VP, Chief Technology Officer & Environmental Responsibility.
3M Center, Bldg 220-07W-02, St. Paul, MN 55144

SECRETARY " Michae! M. Dai, 3M Center, Bldg 220-9E-02, St. Paul, MN 55144

TREASURER
Sarah M. Grauze, 3M Center, Bldg 224-55-26, St. Paul, MN 55144

3. HAVE YOU FILED A QUALIFICATION STATEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF NASSAU? No
IF SO WHEN?

4. HOW MANY YEARS HAS YOUR ORGANIZATION BEEN IN BUSINESS UNDER YOUR PRESENT NAME? _ 93

5. HAVE YOU, OR YOUR FIRM, EVER FAILED TO COMPLETE ANY WORK AWARDED TO YOU? No
IF SO, WHERE AND WHY?

6. IN WHAT OTHER LINES OF BUSINESS ARE YOU OR YOUR FIRM INTERESTED? Manufacturing of reflective

Sign sheeting & Validation sheeting and Pavement Marking Tape

7. WHAT IS THE EXPERIENCE OF THE PRINCIPAL INDIVIDUALS OF YOUR ORGANIZATION RELATING TO THE SUBJECT
OF THIS BID?

INDIVIDUALS PRESENT YEARS OF MAGNITUDE AND IN WHAT
NAME POSITION EXPERIENCE TYPE OF WORK CAPACITY
Robert Gallo Sales Representative 3 Sales Representative
Angel Thao Contract Administrator 3 Contract Administrator

8. IN WHAT MANNER HAVE YOU INSPECTED THIS PRCPOSED WORK? EXPLAIN IN DETAIL

Not applicable

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.0.B. DES ﬁaAﬂ? N AND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

BIDDER SIGN HERE Sr. Propdal & Contract Manager
BIDDER = TITLE




OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BIP PROPQSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK 55072-09292-227

9. THE CONTRACT, IF AWARDED TO YOU OR YOUR FIRM, WILL HAVE THE PERSONAL SUPERVISION OF WHOM? GIVE
NAME AND PRESENT POSITION

Angel Thao, Contract Administrator

Robert Gallo, Sales Representative

10, BIDDERS ARE REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THIS FORM PROVIDING THREE (3) REFERENCES OF PAST PERFORMANCE.
REFERENCES SHOULD INVOLVE PROJECTS AND/OR SERVICE SITUATIONS OF SIMILAR SIZE AND SCOPE TO THIS BID.
REFERENCES MUST HAVE HAD DEALING WITH THE BIDDER WITHIN THE LAST THIRTY-SIX (36) MONTHS, THE
COUNTY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO CONTACT ANY OR ALL OF THE REFERENCES SUPPLIED FOR AN EVALUATION OF
PAST PERFORMANCE IN ORDER TO ESTABLISH THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BIDDER BEFORE THE ACTUAL AWARD OF -
THE BID AND/OR CONTRACT. COMPLETION CF THE REFERENCE FORM IS REQUIRED.

NASSAU COUNTY (AND ANY OF ITS AGENCIES) MAY BE LISTED AS AN ADDITIONAL REFERENCE, BUT MAY NOT BE
SUBSTITUTED FOR ANY OF THE THREE REQUIRED REFERENCES.

1. REFERENCE'S NAME:
Jefferson County, NY

ADDRESS:
Historic Courthouse, 195 Arsenal Street
Watertown, NY 13601-2565
TELEPHONE: 315-785-3077 CONTACT PERSON _Karin Dorr
CONTRACT DATE:

05/01/22 - 04/30/23

2. REFERENCE'S NAME: .
New York City, NY

ADDRESS: . ) o _ . L . )
Dept of Citywide Administrative Services, Division of Municipal Supply Services

Municipal Building, 1 Centre Street, 18th Floor, New York, NY 10007

TELEPHONE: 212-386-5010 CONTACT PERSON Hedra Khalel
CONTRACT DATE:  16/01/21 - 05/31/26

3. REFERENCE'S NAME: 1 vork Thruway Authority

ADDRESS:
Bureau of Purchasing, 200 Southern Boulevard, Post Office Box 189
Albany, NY 12201-0189
TELEPHONE: 518-436-2736 CONTACT PERSON _ Judy Jeffers
CONTRACT DATE:

12/17/18 - 08/31/23

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.0.B. DESEINATION AND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECTFIED.
BIDDER SIGN HERE \J\‘\ A Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager
\'HIDDER TITLE
5




OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK 55072-09292-227

USE SEPARATE PAGE IF ADDITIONAL SPACE IS NEEDED.

I certify that all the statements contained in this document are true, complete and correct to the best of my knowledge
and belief and are made in good faith, including data contained in the Organization’s Relevant Experience. A false
certification or failure to disclose information shall be grounds for disqualification or termination of any award.

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.0.B\ DE 'IAVINA M AND IN{’JﬁDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.
BIDDER SIGN HERE ; !i l\ 1; Ei Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager
N ¥ BIDDER TITLE
6




OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BI D PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK 56072-09292-227

[RAN DIVESTMENT ACT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 103-g, which generally prohibits the County from entering Into contracts with
persons engaged in investment activities In the energy sector of Iran, the Bidder submits the following certification:

PLEASE CHECK ONE:

By submission of this Bid, | certify, and in the case of a |oint Bld each party thereto certifies as
to Its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of my knowledge and bellef,
that the Bidder is not on the list ¢reated pursuant to paragraph (b) of subdivision 3 of Section
165-a of the State Finance Law.

OR

D | am unable to certlfy that the Bidder does not appear on the list created pursuant
ta paragraph (b) of subdivision 3 of Section 165-a of the State Finance Law. | have attached a
signed statement setting forth in detail why | cannot so certify.

Dated: ‘9 7. & | WL \(MI\A

{Signature ofl B|d

Print Name:_Maria Paraschou

Print Title: _Sr. Propdal & Confract Manager

ALLBIDS MUST BE F.O.B. DESTINANION AND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

BIDDER SIGN HERE A , Sr. Propdal & Contract Manager
\ " PIDDER < TITLE




OFF1CE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK B5072-09292-227

Appendix EE

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR MINORITIES AND WOMEN

The provisions of this Appendix EE are hereby made a part of the document to which it is attached.

The Contractor shall comply with all federal, State and local statutory and constitutional anti-discrimination provisions, In
addition, Local Law No. 14-2002, entitled “Participation by Minority Group Members and Women in Nassau County Contracts,”

governs all County Contracts as defined by such title and solicitations for bids or proposals for County Contracts. In accordance with
Local Law 14-2002:

(@) The Contractor shall not discriminate against employees or applicants for employment because of race, creed, color, national
origin, sex, age, disability or marital status in recruitment, employment, job assignments, promotions, upgradings, demotions, transfers,
lay offs, terminations, and rates of pay or other forms of compensation. The Contractor will undertake or continue existing programs
related to recruitment, employment, job assignments, prometions, upgradings, transfers, and rates of pay or other forms of compensation
to ensure that minority group members and women are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination.

(b) Atthe request of the County contracting agency, the Contractor shall request each employment agency, labor union, or
authorized representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining or other agreement or understanding, to furnish a
written statement that such employment agency, union, or representative will not discriminate on the basis of race, creed, color,
national origin, sex, age, disability, or marital status and that such employment agency, labor union, or representative will
affirmatively cooperate in the implementation of the Contractor’s obligations herein.

{c) The Contractor shall state, in all sclicitations or advertisements for employees, that, in the performance of the County
Contract, all qualified applicants will be afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination because of race, creed,
color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status,

{d} The Contractor shall make Best Efforts to solicit active participation by certified minority or women-owned business
enterprises (“Certified M/WBEs™) as defined in Section 101 of Local Law No. 14-2002, including the granting of Subcontracts.

(¢) The Contractor shall, in its advertisements and sclicitations for Subcontractors, indicate its interest in receiving bids from
Certified M/WBEs and the requirement that Subcontractors must be equal opportunity employers,

(f) Contractors must notify and receive approval from the respective Department Head prior to issuing any Subcontracts
and, at the time of requesting such authorization, must submit a signed Best Efforts Checklist,

(g) Coniractors for projects under the supervision of the County’s Department of Public Works shall also submit a utilization
plan listing all proposed Subcontractors so that, to the greatest extent feasible, all Subcontractors will be approved prior to
commencement of work. Any additions or changes to the list of subcontractors under the utilization plan shall be approved by the
Commissioner of the Department of Public Works when made. A copy of the utilization plan any additions or changes thereto shall be
submitted by the Contractor to the Office of Minority Affairs simultaneously with the submission to the Department of Public Works.

(b) At any time after Subcontractor approval has been requested and prior to being granted, the contracting agency may
require the Contractor to submit Documentation Demonstrating Best Efforts to Obtain Certified Minority or Women-owned Business
Enterprises. In addition, the contracting agency may require the Contractor to submit such documentation at any time after
Subcontractor approval when the contracting agency has reasonable cause to believe that the existing Best Efforts Checklist may be
inaccurate. Within ten working days {10) of any such request by the contracting agency, the Contractor must submit Documentation.

(i) Inthe case where a request is made by the contracting agency or a Deputy County Executive acting on behalf of the
contracting agency, the Contractor must, within two (2} working days of such request, submit evidence to demonstrate that it
employed Best Efforts to obtain Certified M/WBE participation through proper documentation.

(i) Award of a County Contract alone shall not be deemed or interpreted as approval of all Contractor’s Subcontracts and
Contractor’s fulfillment of Best Efforts to obtain participation by Certified M/WBEs.

'NCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWI SE SPECIFIED.

Sr. Propdal & Contract Manager
BIDDER TITLE

ot l
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COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK B5072-09292-227

(k) A Contractor shall maintain Documentation Demonstrating Best Efforts to Obtain Certified Minority or Women-owned
Business Enterprises for a period of six {6) years, Failure to maintain such records shall be deemed failure to make Best Efforts to
comply with this Appendix EE, evidence of false certification as M/WBE compliant or considered breach of the County Contract.

() The Contractor shall be bound by the provisions of Section 109 of Local Law No. 14-2002 providing for enforcement of
violations as follows:

a. Upon receipt by the Executive Director of a complaint from a contracting agency that a County Contractor has
failed to comply with the provisions ¢f Local Law No. 14-2002, this Appendix EE or any other coniractual
provisions included in furtherance of Local Law No. 14-2002, the Executive Director will try to resolve the
matter.

b. If efforts to resolve such matter to the satisfaction of all parties are unsuccessful, the Executive Director shall

refer the matter, within thirty days (30) of receipt of the complaint, to the American Arbitration Association for
proceeding thereon.

c. Upon conclusion of the arbitration proceedings, the arbitrator shall submit to the Executive Director his
recommendations regarding the imposition of sanctions, fines or penalties. The Executive Director shall either
(i) adopt the recommendation of the arbitrator (ii) determine that no sanctions, fines or penalties should be
imposed or (iii) modify the recommendation of the arbitrator, provided that such modification shall not expand
upon any sanclion recommended or impose any new sanction, or increass the amount of any recommended fine
or penalty. The Executive Director, within ten days (10) of receipt of the arbitrators award and
recommendations, shall file a determination of such matter and shall cause a copy of such determination to be
served upon the respendent by personal service or by certified mail return receipt requested. The award of the
arbitrator, and the fines and penalties imposed by the Executive Director, shall be final determinations and may
only be vacated or modified as provided in the civil practice law and rules (“CPLR”).

{m) The contractor shall provide contracting agency with information regarding all subcontracts awarded under any County
Contract, including the amount of compensation paid to each Subcontractor and shall complete all forms provided by the Executive
Director or the Department Head relating to subcontractor utilization and efforts to obtain M/WBE participation..

Failure to comply with provisions (a) through (m) above, as ultimately determined by the Executive Director, shall be a
material breach of the contract constituting grounds for immediate termination. Once a final determination of failure tc comply has
been reached by the Executive Director, the determination of whether to terminate a contract shall rest with the Deputy County
Executive with oversight responsibility for the contracting agency,

Provisions (a), (b) and {(c) shall not be binding upon Conlractors or Subcontractors in the performance of work or the
provision of services or any other activity that are uarelated, separate , or distinet from the County Contract as expressed by its terms,

The requirements of the provisions (a), {b) and (c) shail not apply to any employment or application for employment
ouiside of this County or solicitations or advertisements therefore or any existing programs of affirmative action regarding
employment outside of this County and the effect of contract provisions required by these provisions (a), (b) and (c) shall be so
limited.

The Contractor shall include provisions {a), (b) and (c) in every Subcontract in such manner that these provisions shall be
binding upon each Subcontractor as to work in connection with the County Contract.

As used in this Appendix EE the term *Best Efforts Checklist” shall mean a list signed by the Contractor, listing the
procedures it has undertaken to procure Subcontractors in accordance with this Appendix EE.

As used in this Appendix EE the term “County Contract” shall mean (i) a written agreement or purchase order instrument,
providing for a fotal expenditure in excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000}, whereby a County contracting agency is
committed to expend or does expend funds in return for labor, services, supplies, equipment, materials or any combination of the
foregoing, to be performed for, or rendered or furnished to the County; or (ii) a written agreement in excess of one hundred thousand
dollars ($100,000), whereby a County contracting agency is committed to expend or does expend funds for the acquisition,

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.O.B, DESTINATION AND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

BIDDER SIGN HERE N\ Sr. Propagal & Contract Manager
AR Iy BIDDER TITLE
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construction, demolition, replacement, major repair or renovation of real property and improvements thereon. However, the term
“County Contract” does not include agreements or orders for the following services; banking services, insurance policies or contracts,
or contracts with a County contracting agency for the sale of bonds, notes or other securities.

As used in this Appendix EE the term “County Contractor” means an individual, business enterprise, including sole
proprietorship, partnership, corporation, not-for-profit corporation, or any other person or entity other than the County, whether a
contractor, licensor, licensee or any other party, that is () a party to a County Contract, (ji) a bidder in connection with the award ofa
County Contract, or (iii) a proposed party to a County Contract, but shall not include any Subcontractor.

As used in this Appendix EE the term “County Contractor” shall mean a person or firm who will manage and be responsible
for an entire contracted project.

As used in this Appendix EE “Documentation Demonstrating Best Efforts to Obtain Certified Minority or Women -owned
Business Enterprises” shall include, but is not limited to the following:

a. Proof of having advertised for bids, where appropriate, in minority publications, trade newspapers/notices and
magazines, frade and union publications, and publications of general circulation in Nassau County and
surrounding areas or having verbally solicited M/WBEs whom the County Contractor reasonably believed might
have the qualifications to do the work. A copy of the advertisement, if used, shall be included to demonstrate that
it contained language indicating that the County Contractor welcomed bids and quotes from M/WBE
Subcontractors. In addition, proof of the date(s) any such advertisements appeared must be included in the Best
Effort Documentation. If verbal solicitation is used, a County Contractor’s affidavit with a notary’s signature and
stamp shall be required as part of the decumentation.

b. Proof of having provided reasonable time for M/WBE Subcontractors to respond to bid opportunities according
to industry norms and standards. A chart outlining the schedule/time frame used to obtain bids from M/WBEs is
suggested to be included with the Best Effort Documentation

c. Proof or affidavit of follow-up of telephone calls with potential M/WBE subcontractors encouraging their
participation. Telephone logs indicating such action can be included with the Best Effort Documentation

d. Proof or affidavit that M/WBE Subcontractors were allowed to review bid specifications, blue prints and all other
bid/RFP related ifems at no charge to the M/WBEs, other than reasonable documentation costs incurred by the
County Contractor that are passed onto the M/WBE.

€. Proof or affidavit that sufficient time prior to making award was allowed for M/WBESs to participate effectively,
to the extent practicable given the timeframe of the County Contract.

f. Proof or affidavit that negotiations were held in Best Efforts with interested M/WBEs, and that M/WBEs were
not rejected as unqualified or unacceptable without sound business reasons based on (1) a thorough investigation
of M/WBE qualifications and capabilities reviewed against industry custom and standards and (2) cost of
performance The basis for rejecting any M/WBE deemed unqualified by the County Contractor shall be included
in the Best Effort Documentation

2. If an M/WBE is rejected based on cost, the County Contractor must submit a list of all sub-bidders for each item
of work solicited and their bid prices for the work.

h. The conditions of performance expected of Subcentractors by the County Contractor must also be included with
the Best Effort Documentation

i. County Contractors may include any other type of documentation they feel necessary to further demonstrate their
Best Efforts regarding their bid documents.

As used in this Appendix EE the term “Executive Director” shall mean the Executive Director of the Nassau County Office
of Minority Affairs; provided, however, that Executive Director shall include a designee of the Executive Director except in the case
of final determinations issued pursuant to Section (a) through (1) of these rules.

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.O.B DESTINATION AND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWI|SE SPECIFIED.

RIDDER SIGN HERE h\ N/ Sr. Propdal & Contract Manager
M N BioDER TITLE
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As used in this Appendix EE the term “Subcontract” shall mean an agreement consisting of part or parts of the contracted
work of the County Contractor,

As used in this Appendix EE, the term “Subcontractor” shall mean a person or firm who performs part or parts of the
contracted work of a prime contractor providing services, including construction services, to the County pursuant to a county
contract. Subcontractor shall include a person or firm that provides labor, professional or other services, materials or supplics to a
prime contractor that are necessary for the prime contractor to fulfill its obligations to provide services to the County pursuant to a
county contract. Subcontractor shall net include a supplier of materials to a contractor who has contracted to provide goods but no
services to the County, nor a supplier of incidental materials to a contractor, such as office supplies, tools and other items of nominal
cost that are utilized in the performance of a service contract.

Provisions requiring contractors to retain or submit decumentation of best efforts to utilize certified subcontractors and
requiring Department head approval prior to subcontracting shall not apply to inter-governmental agreements. In addition, the

tracking of expenditures of County dollars by not-for-profit corporations, other municipalities, States, or the federal government is not
required.

Prohibition of Gifts. In accordance with County Executive Order 2-2018, the Contractor shall not offer, give, or agree to
give anything of value to any County empioyee, agent, consultant, construction manager, or other person or firm
representing the County (a “County Representative™), including members of a County Representative’s immediate famlly,
in connection with the performance by such County Representative of duties involving transactions with the Contractor on
behalf of the County, whether such duties are related to this Agreement or any other County contract or matter. As used
herein, “anything of value” shall include, but not be limited to, meals, holiday gifts, holiday baskets, gift cards, tickets to
golf outings, tickets to sporting events, currency of any kind, or any other gifts, gratuities, favorable opportunities or
preferences. For purposes of this subsection, an immediate family member shall include a spouse, child, parent, or

sibling. The Contractor shall include the provisions of this subsection in each subcontract entered into under this
Agreement,

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest. In accordance with County Executive Qrder 2-2018, the Contractor has disclosed as

part of its response to the County’s Business History Form, or other disclosure form(s), any and all instances where the
Contractor employs any spouse, child, or parent of a County emplayee of the agency or department that contracted or

procured the goods and/or services described under this Agreement. The Contractor shali have a continuing obligation,
as circumstances arise, to update this disclosure throughout the term of this Agreement.

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.0.BADESTINATIQN AND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.
BIDDER SIGN HERE ﬁf\ /Z"/ Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager
W TV BIDDER TITLE
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INDEMNIFICATION:

Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless County and its agents, officers and employees, from and against any and all losses,
costs, expenses (including attorneys' fees and disbursements), damages and liabilities, arising out of or in connection with any acts or
omissions of Contracter, its officers, agents or employees, provided, however, that Contractor shall not be responsibie for that portion,
if any, of a loss that is caused by the negligence of the County; and provided, further, that Contracter shali not be liable for
_consequential, indirect or special damages. Contractor shall, at County's demand and at County's direction, defend at its own risk and
expense any and all suits, actions or legal proceedings which may be brought against County, its agents, officers or employees in
connection with a loss for which Contractor is responsible under this paragraph.

DEFINITIONS:

eThe term “County” as used herein, shall be deemed as reference to the County of Nassau, State of New York.

oThe term “Contractor” as used herein, shall be deemed as reference to the successful bidder, vendor, proprietor,
partnership, or corporation receiving an award to perform any or all of the services specified herein in accordance with
the terms of this agreement.

eThe term “agency” as used herein, shall be deemed as the department, division, bureau, office, agency or other Nassau
County establishment authorized to receive the service specified herein.

e The term “Director” as used herein, shall be deemed as reference to the Director of the Office of Purchasing.

» The term “Blanket Order” as used herein, shall be deemed as the multiple use pricing agreement as a result of this bid.
o The term "Purchase Order” as used herein, shall be deemed as the single use pricing agreement as a result of this bid.
¢ The term “complete” as written in this bid must inciude all equipment, delivery and installation of same in its entirety,
as listed in the contract documents, and is to include all supervision, labor, materials, plant equipment, transportation,
testing, (if required) incidentals, and other facilities as necessary and/or required to execute all the work as herein
specified, or as incidentally required to provide a complete operating installation.

NOTE: INSERT FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER IN SPACE PROVIDED ON PAGE 1.

M/WBE, SDVOB and DBE Participation: The County encourages the participation of certified Service-Disabled
Veteran-Owned Businesses ("SDVOB”), Minority or Women-Owned Business Enterprises ("M/WBE"), and Disadvantaged
Business Enterprises ("DBE") in the bidding process. A Contractor that is certified by New York State or the County as a
SDVOB, M/WBE, and/or DBE should include this information in their bid. For more information regarding the County's
SDVOB, M/WBE, or DBE programs, please visit the Nassau County Office of Minority Affairs website

IMPORTANT

PRICE MUST BE INSERTED WITH TYPEWRITER OR INK. BIDS MUST BE SIGNED IN INK. TO ASSURE OFFER REACHING
IN TIME, YOU ARE URGED TO MAIL YOUR FORMAL SEALED BID EARLY. THIS FORMAL SEALED BID MUST
REACH GUR OFFICE BY 11:00 A.M. LATE FORMAL SEALED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.O.B. DESTINAKION AN%}’N.GJ: DE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

BIDDER SIGN HERE A Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager
~ BIDDER TITLE
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REQUIRED VENDOR DISCLOSURE FORMS

Prior to the bid opening, the following disclosure forms (the “Disclosure Forms”) must be submitted in the
Nassau County Vendor Portal at

https://apex5.nassaucountyny.gov/ords/f?p=312:LOGIN DESKTOP:3445712403627:

a. A duly completed and verified Business History Form, together with a current certified or verified
financial statement and/cr other commercially reliable written evidence of the bidder’s credit,
financial standing and capacity to perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract.

b. All officers, and any individuals who hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest in the
bidder, shall complete and verify the Principal Questionnaire.

The County of Nassau Censultant's, Contractor's and Vendor's Disclosure Form

d. Additionally, if the bidder utilizes the services of any individual or organization for the purposes of
conducting lobbying activities and is awarded the contract, the successful proposer will be required

to provide a copy of the Lobbyist Registration and Disclosure Form, completed and verified by that
individual/organization,

PLEASE NOTE:

« |f a bidder has previously submitted the Disclosure Forms in the Nassau County Vendor
Portal, the bidder must ensure that the forms on file in the Portal are current, accurate, and
have been recertified within three (3) months prior to the bid opening date. The bidder must
also ensure that their response to question 7, and its subparts, cn the Consultant’s,
Contractor's, and Vendor's Disclosure Form is provided in relation to the specific solicitation
under consideration.

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.0.8. DEST! NATION, AND | NCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.
BIDDER SIGN HERE \NAF; Sr. Propoal & Contract Manager
~ N T T eIDDER = TITLE
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION OR CLARIFICATION

Before bidding, bidders must examine all of the Contract documents, including the specifications, any
drawings, and all instructions. If the bidder finds any inconsistency, ambiguity, omission or error in the
specifications, drawings, instructions or any cther Contract

document, or if the bidder is in doubt as to the meaning of any term or condition of the Contract, the bidder
must promptly so notify the Office of Purchasing in writing prior to the bid opening. The failure of the bidder to
notify the Office of Purchasing, prior to the bid opening of any inconsistency, ambiguity, omission or error that
the bidder actually found, or that should have been discovered by a reasonably prudent bidder, will preclude
and negate acceptance of the bidder's claim.

If the Office of Purchasing receives a notification from a bidder of a differing site condition or an
inconsistency, ambiguity, omission or error in the Contract documents, the Office of Purchasing will, as it
deems necessary or desirable, issue a written interpretation or correction to the Contract documents as an
amendment to the Contract documents. Any such amendment will be made available electronically to each
person that received a copy of the Contract documents as reflected in the records of the Office of Purchasing
, and any such amendment will also be available at the place where the Contract documents are available for
inspection by prospective bidders.

Upon such mailing or delivery, such amendment shall become part of the Contract documents and shall be
binding on all bidders, whether or not they have had actual notice of such addendum.

Please note that all bidder requests for information or clarification must be received by the Authority at
least 72 hours prior to the bid opening. Any bidder requests for information or issues with the contract
documents presented after that time may not be addressed by the Office of Purchasing.

Ordinance # 153-2018

Pursuant to Ordinance # 153-2018, a bidder that is awarded a contract under this bid is required o pay the
County an administrative service charge in accordance with the following schedule;

Value of Contract Administrative Fee
$0-$10,000 $0

Over $10,000-%$50,000 $160

Over $50,000-%100,000 %266

Over $100,000 $533

After an award, the successful bidder(s) will be notified by the Director of Shared Services, or their designee,
when payment of the administrative charge is due. Please nofe, if you are a religious, charitable, nonprofit, or
not-for-profit organization, please include this information in your bid for consideration by the Director of the
Shared Services to waive the fee.

Ordinance # 72-2014

The bidder declares that they are a registered vendor with the County. All registered vendors must pay a Two
Hundred Seventy-Five Dollar ($275.00} per contract fee to register Blanket contracts on the County's
procurement website, as required under Ordinance # 72-2014.

ALL BIDS MUSY BE £.0.8 PESTINATION AND [NCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

BIDDER SIGN HERE \\ A Sr. Propdal & Contract Manager
Vo[ BIDDER - TITLE
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PRPOSE: The purpose of this bid is to establish a price structure on which items and/or services will be made under
Blanket Orders.

SCOPE: IUis the intent of the County of Nassau to properly descrine by these specifications and terms an adequate
method of providing:

3M PAVEMENT MARKING & AUTO DETAILING SUPPLIES

PARTICIPATION BY POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS: The successful vendor agrees that all political subdivisions of New
York State and all other entities autherized by law to make such purchases may participate in any award under this bid.
These Entities shall accapt full responstbillty for any payments due the successful bidder for their purchases hereunder,

AWARD: Award, If any, will be made to the lowest responsible bidder, who in the opinion of the Director of Purchasing,
meets the specificatlons and gualifications stated herein. The Director of Purchasing reserves the right to make an award
be items, groups, or classes of items or as a whole. Awards will be made in accerdance with the terms and conditions
attached hereto and made part hereof,

PERIOD COVERED: Shall be for one {1) year from the effective date. The County of Nassau reserves the right to
extend the Blanket Order up to an additlonal four {4) year(s), at up to one (1) vear optlons. However, the termination of
the Blanket Order may be further extended up to two (2} months beyond the stated termination date. The maximum
period of any Blankat Order as a result of this bid with renewal options applied shall be five (5) year(s), and if the further
extenslon is applled, five (5} years and two (2) months.

ALL EXTENSIONS ARE SUBJECT UPON THE MUTUAL CONSENT OF BOTH PARTIES.
DELIVERY: Bldders are required to state guaranteed delivery date in terms of days after receipt of order in the space
provided below and on page one. Bidders are cautioned to post realistic delivery dates. Guaranteed delivery dates will

be strictly enforced. Must be made within 15 days A/R/O unless stated otherwlse below:

Delivery to be made __ 20 - 120 Days A/R/0O.,

Delivery shall be made ONLY upen receipt of a Purchase Crder, or in the case of a Blanket Order, upon receipt of a
Direct Purchase Order(s) from a using agency authorized to use the Blanket Order which will be issued to the successful
bidder. Purchase Order and Direct Purchase Crcer shall indicate the destination address. Inside delivery is required on
all dellveries.

Bidders agree that all orders shall be effective and binding upcn the contractor when FLACED IN THE MAIL addrassed to

the Contractor at the address shown on the Blanket Crder/Purchase Order PRIOR TO MIDNIGHT OF THE FINAL DAY OF
CONTRACT.

BILLING: Shall be made on County claim forms or Certified fnvoices to the individual using County Agency upon
completion of dellveries made against applicable Purchase Order(s} or Direct Purchase Order(s).

NG PARTIAL PAYMENTS WILL BE PAID.

*****‘k******‘A‘*******VENDOR CLA'M CERT‘FlCATlON********************
IF A CLAIM VOUCHER IS NOT BEING SUBMITTED, THE FOLLOWING CERTIFICATION MUST APPEAR ON THE INVOICE:

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ALL ITEMS OR SERVICES WERE DELIVERED OR RENDERED AS SET FORTH IN THIS CLAIM; THAT THE
PRICES CHARGED ARE [N ACCORDANCE WITH REFERENCED PURCHASE ORDER, DIRECT PURCHASE ORDER OR CONTRACT, THAT
THE CLAIM IS JUST, TRUE AND CORRECT: THAT THE BALANCE STATED HEREIN 1S ACTUALLY DUE AND OWING AND HAS NOT BEEN
PREVIOUSLY CLAIMED; THAT NO TAXES FROM WHICH THE COUNTY IS EXEMPT ARE INCLUDED; AND THAT ANY AMOUNTS CLAIMED
FOR DISBURSEMENTS HAVE ACTUALLY AND NECESSARILY BEEN MADE.

CLAIMANT NAME DATE

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.0.B. DASTI ﬁﬂom AND | NCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.
BIDDER 51 GN HERF / A Z Sr. Propdal & Contfract Manager
MYV eiooer TITLE
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\, Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager
v BY (SIGNATURE) Ma¥ T Par i S dhnoin_ TITLE

*CLAIM YQUCHERS AND CERTIFIED INVOICES NOT PROPERLY COMPLETED WILL BE RETURNED TO YOU UNPAID**

Vendors may download claim form NIFS560 at the following URL:

http: / /www.nassaucountyny.qov/agencies/Comptroiler /Docs /PDF [ ClaimVoucherFormBlank. pdf

INSPECTIOM: Bidders should be aware of Inspection and Delivery requirements as stipulated.

PRICE DISCREPANCY: In the event of a discrepancy between the unit price and the extension price, the unit price will
govern,

RETENTION OF BID: Vendor is required to make a copy of his completed bid document and applicable attachments.
Any purchase orders issued against this bid will refer to the bid and attachments to designate items awarded.

METHOD OF BIDDING: Please submit unit price in the appropriate column,

ADDITIONAL BIDS: The County reserves the right, for any un-contemplated additional requirements of extraordinary
quantities of particular items to call for new bids, therefore, whenever in the opinion of the Director of the Office of
Purchase it is in the best interests of the County of Nassau to do so.

TAX PROVISION: Purchases made by the County of Nassau are not subject to State, Local Sales Taxes or Federal
Excise Taxes. Federal Exemption #A-109538  State Exemption #EX 7213062C. The County of Nassau is not subject to
any Existing “Fair Trade Agreements” and bidders should be governed accordingly.

SPECIFICATIONS: Submit complete specifications and illustrations of products offered with the bid. Acceptance of a
bid and designation of a manufacturer’s catalog description, brand name or number in any Purchase or Blanket Order
resulting there-from shall not be construed as qualification of the specifications of this bid or rellef there-from, except as
specifically stated in the Purchase or Blanket Order,

PRODUCT IDENTIFICATION: If a product(s) is identified by a BRAND NAME, a substitute of equal quality,
construction, finish, composition, size, workmanship and performance characteristics may be acceptable. In submitting a
bid, each bidder warrants that the substitute product being offered is an equal. Bid sheets shall be so noted of the
manufacturer’s name and brand of the product offered as an equal. If as a result of an award, a delivery is made of a
brand or product represented as an equal which is subsequently deemed to be unacceptable, the Contractor shall be

required, at his expense, to pick up the rejected item and replace it with brand(s) listed in this bid, or an acceptable equal
which will have the approval of the Director,

PROTECTION FROM CLAIM AGAINST "OR EQUAL”": In the event of any claim by any unsuccessful bidder
concerning or relating to the issue of “equal or better” or “or equal”, the successful bidder agrees, at his own cost and
expense, to defend such daims or claims and agrees to held the County of Nassau free and harmless from any and all
claims for [oss or damage arising out of this transaction far any reason whatsoever.

EQUIVALENT BIDS: Bidders may offer a product of the same capability, but of different manufacture ang model than
that specified in this bid. The use of the name of a manufacturer, brand, make or ‘catalog designation is specifying items
described herein does not restrict or preclude bidders from offering equivalent or better product bids. Such a designation
is used only to indicate the character, quality and minimum performance desired. Equal or better preduct bids are
permissible. A bidder submitting an equal or better product shall, at his own cost and expense be responsible for su
Mting proof andfor a demonstration of equivaience, compatibility and performance. However, acceptance of an

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.0.B, DESTINATION ANP INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN POORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.
BIDDER SIGN HERE \ Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager
~ "\ BIBDER TITLE
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equivalent product shall be strictly at the discretion of the Director. Any omission of the term “or equal” in any specific
bid item listing should be disregarded by the bidder. Al bidders shall have an absolute right to submit “equivalent” bids
notwithstanding any other provision of the bid specifications.

WARRANTY: The successful bidder warrants the equipment furnished and all associated equipment against any defects
in design, workmanship and materlals against failure to operate satisfactorily for one (1) year from the date of acceptance
by the using department and/or agency of the equipment, other than defects or failure shown by the Contractor that
have arisen solely from accident or abuse occurring after delivery to the Nassau County agency. Contractor agrees to
replace any parts, which in the opinion of the user, shall fail from the above reasons.

IMPORTANT NOTES: If a company policy or trade practice requires a different warranty period, the bidder may so state
without fear of disqualifications. However, the bidder Is cautioned that the length of wartanty may, in some cases, be a
deciding factor in making an award.

Equipment furnished hereunder shall meet the standards set forth in the Occupational Safely and Health Act of 1970,

BIDDER SHALL STATE WARRANTY
PERIOD; ** See 3M's Product Bulletins for Warranty Information

NOTE: All warranties take effect only upon written acceptance of equipment by using agency and shall run full term from
that point.

BIDDER SHALL INDICATE COST AND TERM OF ANY EXTENDED WARRANTY OPTION, IF AVAILABLE:
Not Applicable

NON-ASSIGNMENT: In accordance with Section 138 of the State Finance Law, the contract may not be assigned by
the Contractor or its right, title or Interest thergin assigned, transferred, conveyed, sublet or ctherwise disposed of

without the previous consent, in writing, of Nassau County and any attempts to assign the contract without the County’s
written consent are null and void.

REDUCTION IN PRICES: If an award is made, the Contractor agrees, should prices be reduced to the general trade
during the reguirement period, the County shall receive the benefit of such reduction immediately upon effect. It shall be
incumbent upon the Contractor to notify the Purchasing Department of such price reductions.

FIRM PRICES: Prices will be firm for a period of 365 DAYS from the issuance of the Blanket Order and no changes will
be allowed. If prices are increased or decreased by the manufacturer after 365 days, the vender may apply to the
Director of Purchasing for permission to increase his prices. The request will be considered only if accompanied by
documentary evidence of the necessity for increased prices. If the Director of Purchasing accepts the request, the
Blanket Order will be amended accordingly.

However, if the Director of Purchasing does not consider the new prices as fair and reasonable in the County’s interest,
the Blanket Order may be cancelled after 30 days written notice, and vendor agrees to fill all outstanding orders placed
prior to cancellation. When prices to the trade are decreased, the prices of applicable items in the Blanket Order shall be
decreased accordingly. It shall be incumbent on the vendor to notify the Director of Purchasing of such decreases
immediately after it becomes effective.

APPROXIMATE QUANTITIES: The estimated usage quantities or estimated annual dollar value, when indicated, are
merely estimated quantities based on experience and are given for information purposes only. The County will not be

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.Q.B. DESTINATION AND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED,

BIDDER SIGN HERE A Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager
N Y BIDDER TITLE
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compelled to order the total estimated amount of any item; but the quantity to be ordered will be such as may be actually
required by the respective County Department s during the period specified. Additional quantities of any items or
quantity specified therein may be ordered during the period of the Blanket Order at the prices indicated.

TERMINATION PREROGATIVE: The Director reserves the right to cancel the Blanket Order by giving not less than

thirty (30) days written notice that, on or after a date therein specified, the contract shall be deemed terminated and
cancelled.

DISCLAIMER

Any Blanket Purchase Order issued as a result of this bid will establish terms and conditicns pursuant to which certain
materials and/or services are to be supplied or performead, from time to time, for a specified period upon issuance by the
County of Delivery Orders. The Blanket Purchase Order is non-exclusive and the County is not bound to purchase, and
no materials are to be delivered or services performed without a Pelivery Order, The County shall be under no obligation
whatsoever to issue such Dellvery Qrders. The Blanket Purchase shall not apply in any way to items of material or service

deemed by the County in its sole discretion to be extraordinary cr involve any special conditions, quantities,
circumstances or complexities.

NEW YORK STATE PRICES: Bidders must represent and warrant that if they are under contract with New York State

for items specifled herein, that the price quoted to the County is not higher than the price per unit quoted to New York
State for like quantities.

VENDOR RESPONSIBILITY CRITERIA: The Director of Purchasing reserves the right before making an award to
make investigations as to whether or not the gualifications, services, facllities or items offered by the bidder meet the
requirements set forth herein and are ample and sufficlent to ensure the proper perfarmance in the event of an award.
The bidder must be prepared, If requested by the Director of Purchasing, to present evidence of experience, ability,
financial standing, as well as a statement as to plant, machinery, trained personnel and capacity for the rendition of the
service on which the vendor is bidding. Upon request of the Directer, the successful bidder shall file certification from the
manufacturer relative to authorization, delivery, service and guarantees. If it is found that the conditions of the bid are
not complied with or that the services or equipment proposed to be furnished do not meet the requirements called for, or
that the qualifications, financial standing, or facilities are not satisfactory, the Director may reject such bids, It is
distinctly understood, however, that nothing in the forgoing shall mean or imply that it is obligatory upen the Director to
make any examinations before an award; and it is further understood that, if such examination Is made, it in no way
relieves the bidder from fulfilling all requirements and cenditions of the bid.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS: All hidders must adhere to the following conditions:
As per New York State Municipal Law 103, no exception can be taken to any material term and/or condition of this bid
with the exception of any warranties as presented in this bid for the specific commodity or service required.

Any language in any proposal or documant submitted by a bidder as part of their bid that is accepted by the County of
Nassau cannot be in conflict with any material term and/or condition relevant to this bid with the exception of any
warranties or the specifications of the commodity of service required by this bid. If there is any conflict between the
bidder’s terms and conditions and the terms and conditicns of this bid, the terms and conditions of this bid shall govern,

Bidders must insert FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER in the space provided on page one of this bid.

Late Formal Sealed Bids will NOT be accepted. Bldders are urged to mail bids early to assure delivery on time. Bids must
be received by 11:00 A.M. on the bid opening date.

Prices MUST be inserted with TYPEWRITER OR INK. Entries with WHITE QUT, CROSS-OUTS OR LIFT-OFF TAPE
MUST BE INITIALED or that entry will be disqualified.

Bldders should submit bid with unit price in the appropriate column on bid pages or forms attached hereto. In the event
of a discrepancy between the unit price and the extension, the unit price shall govern. Bidders shall submit one (1)

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.0.B. DESTINATIO ND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED,
BIDDER SIGN HERE A ?1/— Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager
~7 ‘hl‘er‘ER TITLE
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original bid document and all applicable attachments. Any order Issued against this bid will refer to the bid and
attachments to designate items awarded. Bidders agree that all, Direct Purchase Otders and/or Purchase Orders shall be
effective and hinding upon the Contractor when place in the mail, addressed to the Contractor at the address shown on
the Direct Purchase Order or the Purchase Order,

Bidders MUST state manufacturer's name and catalog number of each item bid.

ABSOLUTELY NO MINIMUM ORDERS shal! be applied to this hid.

Purchases made by Nassau County are not subject to State or Local Sales Tax or Federal Excise Taxes.

Federal Exemption Number: A-109538 State Exemption Number: EX7213062C

Inside {receiving dock) delivery is required on all orders,

The rights and obligations of the parties under this agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York.
Bids are hereby solicited for the commaocdities and/or services specified herein which are to be delivered and/or performed
at the locations indicated, and in strict accordance with all specifications, terms and conditions attached hereto and made
part hereof,

Bid document must be signed by proprietor, partner or corporate officer,

The clauses contained in these bid forms set forth the wishes of the County of Nassau in regard to the purchasa andfor
services required. However, the Director reserves the right tc waive irregularities, omissions, or other technical defects if,

in Its judgment, the best interest of the County of Nassau will be served accordingly.

Bidders may take exception {o paragraphs of the bid under a separate cover letter to be attached to this bid, indicating
the spedific bid page, paragraph and the exception(s). In any event, the decision of the Director will be final.

Qualification statement MUST BE COMPLETED and submitted with bid. See page _4 for further details

IMPORTANT NOTE: The Director reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bids, or separable portions of offers,
and walve technicalitles, irregularities, and omissions if the Director determines the best interests of the County of Nassau
will be served. The Director, in his sole discretion, may accept or reject illegible, incomplete or vague bids and his
deciston shall be final. A conditional or revocable bid which clearly communicates the terms or Iimitations of acceptance
may be considered and contract award may be made in compliance with the bidder's conditional or revocable terms in the
offer. Prior to award, the Director reserves the right to seek clarifications, request bid revisions, or to request any
information deemed necessary for proper evaluation of bids from all bidders deemed to be eligible for contract award.
Failure to provide requested information may result in rejection of the bid.

EVALUATION:

The Director of the Office of Purchasing (hereinafter known as the Director) reserves the right before making award to
make investigations as to whether or not the items, qualifications, services or facilities offered by the Bidder meet the
requirements set forth herein and are ample and sufficient to insure the proper performance in the event of an award.
The Bidder must be prepared, if requested by the Director, to present evidence of experience, ability and financial
standing, as well as a statement as to plant, machineary, trained personnel and capacity for the rendition of the service on
which he his bidding.  Upoen request of the Director of Purchasing, successful bidder shall file certification from the
manufacturer relative to autharization, delivery, service and guarantees, If it is found that the conditions of the bids are
not complied with or that the services or equipment proposed to be furnished do not meet the requirements called for, or
that the qualifications, financial standing or facilities are not satisfactory, the Director may reject such bids. It is distinctly
understood, however, that nothing in the foregoing shall mean or imply that it is obligatory upon the Director to make
any examinations before award; and it is further understocd that, if such examination is made, it in no way relieves the
Bidder from fulfilling all requirements and conditions of the bid.

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.Q.B. DESTINATION ﬁND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

BIDDER SIGN HERE A Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager
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PRICE LIST AND CATALOG SERVICE: The successful bidder shall furnish, upon request, price lists and catalogs to
agencies authorized to use the Blanket Order which may be awarded under this bid. Photocopies will be accepted In lieu
of originals. Two (2) copies of the current price list/catalog must be sent to the Nassau County Gffice of Purchasing.

Failure to keep the Nassau County Office of Purchasing advised of price list/catalog changes may delay the processing of
payments.

Governing Law — Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue; Governing Law. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement or
required by Law, exclusive original jurisdiction for all claims or actions with respect to this Agreement shall be in the
Supreme Court in Nassau County in New York State and the parties expressly waive any objections to the same on any
grounds, induding venue and forum ncn conveniens. This Agreement is intended as a contract under, and shall be

governed and construed in accordance with, the Laws of New York State, without regard to the conflict of laws provisions
thereof.

BIDDERS NOTE: PLEASE FOLLOW INSTRUCTIONS ON i’AGE #13 OF THIS BID REGARDING ONLINE
REGISTRATION

YF POSSIBLE, DO NOT “STAPLE" BID DOCUMENTS, “CLIP”

PREVIOUS FIVE YEAR CONTRACT APPROX $1,000,000.00

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.O.B. DESTINATIQN AND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.
BIDDER SIGN HERE ( ;Eiii\ /Z Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager
/W BIDPER TITLE
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OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PRCPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK 55072-09292-227

NON-COLLUSIVE BIDDING CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY SECTION 139-D OF THE STATE FINANCE LAW

BY SUBMISSION OF THIS BID, BIDDER AND EACH PERSON SIGNING ON BEHALF OF BIDDER CERTIFIES, AND 'N THE
CASE OF A JOINT BID, EACH PARTY THERETO CERTIFIES AS TO ITS OWN ORGANIZATION, UNDER PENALTY OR
PERJURY, THAT TO THE BEST OF HIS/HER KNOCWLEDGE AND BELIEF:

[1] The prices of this bid have been arrived at independently, without colluslon, consultation, communication, or
agreement for the purposes of restricting competition, as to any mattier relating to such prices with any other Bidder or
with any competitor;

[2} Unless otherwise required by law, the prices which have been guoted in this bid have not been knowlingly disclosed
by the Bidder and will not knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to opening, directly or indirectly. to any other Bidder
or to any competitor; and

[3] No attempt has been made or will be mads by the Bidder to induce any other person, parthership ar corporation to
submit or not to submit a bid for the purpose of restricting competition.

A BID SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD NOR SHALL ANY AWARD BE MADE WITH [1], [2]. [3] ABOVE HAVE
NOT BEEN COMPLETE WITH; PROYVIDED HOWEVER, THAT IF IN ANY CASE THE BI DDER(S) CANNOT MAKE THE
FOREGOING CERTIFICATION, THE BIDDER SHALL SO STATE AND SHALL FURNISH BELOW A SIGNED STATEMENT
WHICH SETS FCRTH I N DETAIL THE REASONS THEREFORE!

[AFFIX ADDENDUM TO THIS PAGE IF SPACE IS REQUIRED FOR STATEMENT]
Subscribed to under penalty of perjury under the Jaws of the State of New York,

tis____18th cay of _QOctober L2022 as the act and deed of sald Corporation or
Partnership.

Identifying Data:

Potential Contractor:
3M Company

Address: o
3M Center, Building 225-4N-14

Street:

City, Town, etc: St. Paul, MN 55144-1000

Telephone: 651-650-1420 Title: Sr. Proposal & Contract Manager

it applicable, responsinle Corporate Officer

Narme _Maria Paraschou Title Sr. E[ng@ & Contract Manager

Signature: \ W% Sign Here
AT W

ALL BIDS MUST BE F 3.8 DESTINATION AND | NCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

BIDDER SIGN HERE LA Sr. F’romga! & Confract Manager
\/ V/ BIDDER TITLE

21




OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED Bl D PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK 56072-09292-227

SHIPPING CHARGES TO BE INCLUDED N THE PRICING
I TEMS SHIPPED OVERNIGHT WILL HAVE NO MARK-UP AND MUST HAVE PRIOR APPROVAL FROM AGENCY

CLAIM VOUCHERS MUST HAVE FULL DESCRIPTION AND PAGE NUMBER OF ITEMS

STATE CATALOG NAME, DATE AND NUMBER Transportation Safety Division bCom Pricing System

ITEM #1 DISCOUNT FROM CATALOG Varies % ** See comments below

fTEM #2 OVERNIGHT SHIPPING CHARGE $_Varies. Customer Service will provide at the time of order.

+ 3M has structured our pricing as noted below, with the objectives being twofold: 1) provide a discount on all TSD/CSD products
and 2) provide "fixed pricing” for the highest volume items that Nassau orders.

* For 80%+ of what Nassau orders today, we have provided “fixed” pricing. Fixed pricing is defined as pricing that will follow the
price increase guidelines as set out by Nassau County in this bid.

* For the thousands of other SKU's which are availakle for Nassau County to purchase from 3M TSD/CSD, Nassau County will
receive 16% off of the existing list price which is detailed in our online ordering tool BCOM. If this list prices change over time, the
16% will remain, but the ultimate price paid by Nassau County will change accordingly.

* Given the extremely high volume of products involved in this scenario and the adds/discontinuations of products, it is not possible
for 3M to manage a fixed price.

** Please see 3M's Qualifications, Exceptions and Explanations

ALL BIOS MUST BE F.Q.B. DEéTl NATION AND INCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

BIDDER SIGN HERE \\/M\IUA“‘EI/}W? ﬂfm@&%l@mgﬁr

22
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Bruce 8lakeman
COUNTY EXECUTIVE

Melisa Gallucci
Commissioner of Shared
Scrvices

OFFICE OF PURCHASING
ONE WEST STREET
NCRTH ENTRANCE
MINEOLA, NY 11501
Tel # (516)571-4047 Fax # (516)571-4263

AMENDMENT #1

FORMALSEALEDBID #: 5507209292227

FOR: 3M PAVEMENT MARKING & AUTO DETAILING SUPPLIES

ISSUED: 09/08/22
OPENING: 09/22/2022
TO ALL BIDDERS:

1) Prospective Bidders are hereby informed that the above Formal Sealed Bid is hereby

changed as follows:

a} BID OPENING DATE HAS BEEN POSTPONED TO OCTOBER 20, 2022 AT 11;00

am
2) All other terms and conditions of the Formal Sealed Bid to remain unchanged,

3) A copy of this Amendment must be signed by the Bidder and attached to his bid.

OFFICE OF PURCHASING

Claudia Colisurdo
Technical Coordinator

cc/ve
05/19/22



FORMAL BID RECOMMENDATION

BID NUMBER 55072-09292-227

TITLE: 3M PAVEMENT MARKING & AUTO DETAILING SUPPLIES

OPEN DATE: 09/29/22
TO: BUYER —

FROM: ADMINISTRATION

PLEASE REVIEW ATTACHED BID RESULT. NOTE YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR AWARD.
FORWARD THIS TRANSMITTAL SHEET TOGETHER WITH BID FILE. RETAIN REQUISITION.

Date: 01/13/23

To: Supervisor From: Buyer

Bid Results
Item Bidder
1-3 | 3M COMPANY

List of recommended awards in accordance with the at

attached summary is shown in column at right. The
reason for award to other than low bidder is indicated

on the reverse side of this page.

Uussoon S

Buyer q
Date:
To: Director From: Supervisor
1 j RECOMMEND AWARD BE MADE TO THE
. LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BIDDER WHO
Concur Disagree (See Reverse) MEETS THE BID SPECS
]
Date: £/ & [23
To: Buyer, From: Director
m Approvedfey
Hold award pending discussion
NO Subject to Legislature Approval

YES @; Subject to Legislature Approval




Fixed Pricing for highest volume items Nassau County orders.

3M Product Description

% Discount Off
Current List Price

EDA - PM - 270ES SERIES

7000055625 - A271ES 4"X30YD, YLW 41%
7000129501 - A270ES 12"X30YD, WHT 41%
7000129502 - A270ES 16"X30YD, WHT 41%
7000129504 - A270ES 8"X30YD, WHT 41%
7010390136 - SMS-L270ES-RX RR CROSS KIT, WHT, 1/PK 36%
EDF - PM - 380IES SERIES

7000129505 - A380IES 12"X30YD, WHT 41%
7000129507 - A380IES 6"X30YD, WHT 41%
7000148635 - A380IES 4"X30YD, WHT 41%
EDP - PVI - ADHESIVES

7000129547 - SPAGO PREP ADH OPN HED LOW VOC (5 GAL} 36%
MKA - EG - WHITE

7000030819 - 3290 WHITE EG 24 INX 50 YD 59%
7000129341 - 3290 WHT REFL SHTG 30IN X 50YD 59%
MKB - EG - YELLOW

7000030797 - 3271 YELLOW REFL SHTG 24IN X 50YD 59%
7000129266 - 3271 YLW REFL SHTG 30 IN X 50 YD 59%
MKD - EG - BLUE

7000129393 - 3275 BLUE REFL SHTG 30 IN X 50 YD 59%
MKF - EG - BROWN

7010344957 - 3279 BRN REFL SHTG 30INX50YD 59%
MLK - EGP - BROWN EG PRISMATIC

MMD - EG-TTC FLEXIBLE SOLID COLORS

7010417208 - 7310 WHT ADV FLEXIBLE EG 24IN X 50YDS 38%
7010417230 - 7310 WHT ADV FLEXIBLE EG 36IN X 50YDS 38%
MNS - HIP - WHITE HE PRISMATIC GRADE SHTG

7000004871 - 3930 WHITE HI PRISMATIC 24"X50YD 65%
7000004872 - 3930 WHITE HI PRISMATIC 30"X50YD 65%
7000004873 - 3930 WHITE Hi PRISMATIC 36"X50YD 65%
7000004874 - 3930 WHITE HI PRISMATIC 48"X50YD 65%
7000125460 - 3930 WHT HI PRIS 18IN X 50 YD 65%
7000142103 - 3930 WHT HI PRIS SHTG 12INX50YD 65%
7010296724 - 3930 WHT HIP SHTG S8INX50YD 65%
7010350289 - 3930 WHT HIP SHTG 9 IN X 50 YD 65%
MNT - HIP - YELLOW HI PRISMATIC GRADE SHTG

7000004880 - 3931 YELLOW HI PRISMATIC 24"X50YD 65%
7000004881 - 3931 YELLOW HI PRISMATIC 30"X50YD 65%
7000004882 - 3931 YELLOW HI PRISMATIC 36"X50YD 65%

7000004883 - 3931 YELLOW HI PRISMATIC 48"X50YD

65%

MNU - HIP - RED HI PRISMATIC GRADE SHTG

7000030838 - 3932 RED HI PRISM 24 IN X 50 YD

65%

Page 1 of 3

2022 Nassau County

Bid#55072-09292-227_

3M Company



3M Product Description

% Discount Off
Current List Price

7100255727 - 1160i 30 in x 50 yd 1 Roll/Case

55%

7100258877 - 11601 36 in x 50 yd w/ Premaskl Roll/CS

55%

MYB - MISC - ELEC CUTTABLE FILM

70000308089 - 1177C GRN EC FILM NP 48 IN X 50 YD

47%

7000030811 - 1172C RED EC FILM NP 48 IN X 50 YD

A47%

7000030813 - 1171CYLW CLEC FILM NP 24 IN X 50 YD

A7%

7000030821 - 1175C BLUE EC FILM NP 30 IN X 50 YD

47%

7000030823 - 1175C BLUE EC FILM NP 24 IN X 50 YD

47%

7000055484 - 1177C GRN EC FILM NP 30" X 50 YD

47%

7000055485 - 1177C GRN EC FILM NP 36" X 50YD

47%

7000055486 - 1178C BLK EC FILM NP 36" X 50 YD

47%

7000055487 - 1178C BLK EC FILM NP 48" X 50 YD

47%

7000055488 - 1172C RED EC FILM NP 24" X 50 YD

47%

7000055489 - 1172C RED EC FILM NP 30" X 50 YD

47%

7000055490 - 1172C RED EC FILM NP 36" X 50 YD

47%

7000055547 - 1175C BLUE EC FILM NP 36INX50YD

47%

7000055618 - 1170C CLEAR ECFILM 36 IN X 50 YD

20%

7000129286 - TPM5 ECF TRNSFR TAPE 6" X 100YD 1/CTN

44%

7000129287 - TPM5 ECF TAPE 12INX100 YD 1/CTN

44%

7000129288 - TPM5 ECF TRNSFR TAPE 24" X 100YD 1/CTN

44%

7000129292 - TPM5 ECF TRANSFER TAPE 18"X100YD 1/CTN

44%

7000129320 - 1177C GRN EC FILM NP 24" X 50YD

A7%

7000129321 - 1178C BLK EC FILM NP 30" X 50YD

47%

7000129394 - TPM5 ECF TRNSFR 30IN X 100YD 1RL/CTN

44%

7000129486 - 1170C CLEAR EC FILM 30 1IN X 50 YD

20%

7010318276~ 1170C CLEAR EC FILM NP 24 IN X 50 YD

20%

7010388557 - TPM5 ECF TRANSFER TAPE 1 RL/CTN 9"X100YD

44%

7010389995 - 1171C YLW CL EC FILM NP 30"X50YD

A7%

7100011774 - TPM5 ECF CLEAR TRANS TAPE CONFIG ROLL

44%

7100012669 - 1170C CLEAR EC FIiLM NP CONFIG ROLL

20%

7100036491 - 1177C GRN ELEC CUTTABLE FM NP 18INX50YD

A7%

7100064871 - TPM5 ECF TRANSFER TAPE 36INX100YD 1/CTN

44%

7100108852 - 1170C CLEAR EC FILM NP 48 IN X 50 YD

20%

7100113362 - 1172C RED CL EC FILM NP CONFIG ROL

47%

MYG - MISC - 840/880 SERIES PROCESS PASTE

7000004858 - 8821 RED PROCESS COLOR GAL

100%

7000004861 - 8851 BLACK PROCESS COLOR GAL

100%

NVI - 3650 SERIES FILMS

7000005179 - 3650-10 WHITE 48INX50YD

33%

NXJ - 7725 SERIES FILMS

7100248371 - 7725-10 WHITE 48INX50YD

33%

7100248378 - 7725-12 BLACK 30INX50YD

33%

7100248439 - 7725-12 BLACK 24INX50YD

33%

Page 3 of 3

2022 Nassau County
Bid#55072-09292-227 _
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BID NUMBER 55072-09292-227
TITLE: 3M PAVEMENT MARKING & AUTO DETAILING SUPPLIES
OPEN DATE: 00/29/22

ITEM #1 -3. AWARDED TO LOW BIDDER - 3M COMPANY WHO BID
DISCOUNTS OF 20% TO 67% FOR THE ITEMS THAT COMPRISE 80% OF
NASSAU COUNTY'S PURCHASES - 2™ LOW BIDDER - LIGHTLE ENTERPRISES
OF OHIO SUBMITTED PRICING OFFERING 20% DISCOUNT FOR PAVEMENT
MARKING ITEMS. BIDDER DID NOT SUBMIT PRICING FOR AUTO DETAILING
SUPPLIES.

VCC
01/17/23



QFFICE OF PURCHASING
SUMMARY OF BIDS @
OPENED: October 20, 2022 AT 11:00 A M. w 7]
BID NO:  55072-09292.227 &l wEq
REQ. NO: N/A S| 22 % DETAILS DE
TITLE:  3M PAVEMENT MARKING & AUTO DETAILING SUPPLIES m 5 = m AWARD
0 — W
ITEM # ARTICLE UNIT 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 ] 10 11 12 TO NO. | AMOUNT
i DISCOUNT FROM CATALOG % varies 20%
2 OVERNIGHT SHIPPING GHARGE § varies | 1600.00
See Bid
PRPARED BY TERMS | NET NET NET NET NET NET NET NET NET NET NET NET

Claudia Colasurdo hereby certifies that the bids listed above were opened at the time and
place specified thersin and E&m above Is a correct trarfscription from all original bids

received. f \.._\,\n\mﬁh\.\\ \\\A_@ ) mﬂ\r\\\ ﬁmﬁ.\b

PUBLIC BIiD OFFICER

Date Ia



BRUCE A. BLAKEMAN
COUNTY EXECUTIVE

Date:
To:
From:;

Re:

MELISSA GALLUCCI
COMMHSSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES

COUNTY OF NASSAU
SHARED SERVICES
1 WEST STRELT
MINEOLA, NEW YORK 11501-4894

May 3, 2023
Robert Cleary, Chief Procurement Officer
Claudia Colasutdo, Technical Coordinator Purchasing

Adverse information memo
Staff Summary A-06-2023

Adverse information that was uncovered was:

An online search found several news items regarding potential adverse information related to the vendor’s
goods and services. Attached is the vendor’s response to the various articles identified. Upon review
Purchasing has determined that none of the matters raised in the articles are material with respect to the
proposed contract. The issues identified do not relate to services to be procured through this contract, and
all matters have been resolved amicably.

Responses for the environmental items listed by Nassau County.

The attached spreadsheet includes two-line items for the 3M Tonawanda manufacturing plant. In each of
these ocourrences, 3M reported elevated process water discharges to the City of Tonawanda. These
discharges contributed to elevated hydrogen sulfide levels in wastewater. The city issued notices of
violation and penalties, 3M paid the penaltics, and the listed matters were resolved. 3M investigated the
incidents and completed corrective actions,

The county included an MPCA press release related to 3M Cottage Grove. In January 2021, 3M received a
notice of violation and request for information from MPCA related to previously disclosed Cottage Grove
Clean Water Act and Resource Conservation and Recovery Act issues. Related to the January 2021 notice,
3M negotiated and signed a Stipulation Agreement with the MPCA, dated May 11, 2022, that settles the
waste violations cited in the notice. 3M paid a penalty on June 6, 2022, in the amount of $2.85M and
received a letter from the MPCA on July 5, 2022, that the Stipulation Agreement has been terminated. At
the time of the settlement, MPCA noted in the settlement document that 3M had taken all the required
corrective actions. In addition, 3M has terminated waste incineration at this location and is in the process of
conducting a Resource Conservation and Recovery Act closure of the incinerator and related facilities.
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FORM 10-K

Bl ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
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MMM Chicago Stock Exchange, Inc.
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Note: The common stock of the registrant is also traded on the SWX Swiss Exchange.
Securities registered pursuant to section 12(g) of the Act; None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-kncwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes No
Indicate by check marlk if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Aet. Yes 0 No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter peried that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of
Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files).
Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated tiler, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an
emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company™
in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

2

Large accelerated Accelerated Non-accelerated Smaller reporting Emerging growth
filer filer 0 filer [m] company || company O

If an emerging growth cotipany, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected nof to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or
revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13{a} of the Exchange Act. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed a report on and attestation to its management’s assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control
over financial reporting under Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes Oxley Act (15 U.S.C. 7262(b)) by the registered public accounting firm that prepared or issued its
audit report, Yes & No OO

Tndicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes [0 No [

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by nonaffiliates of the registrant, computed by reference to the closing price and shares oulstanding, was
approximately $94.8 billion as of January 31, 2022 (approximately $114.9 billion as of June 30, 2021, the last business day of the registrant’s most recently
completed second quarter).

Shares of common stock outstanding at January 31, 2022; 571.1 million

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Parts of the Company's definitive proxy statement (to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after Registrant’s fiscal year-end of December 31,
2021) for its annual meeting to be held on May 10, 2022, are incorperated by reference in this Form 10-K in response to Part II1, Items 10, 11,12, 13 and 14.
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3M COMPANY
FORM 10-K
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Pursuant to Part IV, Item 16, a summary of Form 10-K content follows, including hyperlinked cross-references (in the EDGAR
filing). This allows users to easily locate the corresponding items in Form 10-K, where the disclosure is fully presented. The
summary does not include certain Part I1I information that will be incorporated by reference from the proxy statement, which
will be filed after this Form 10-K filing.
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3IM COMPANY

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
PART1

Item 1. Business.

3M Company was incorporated in 1929 urder the laws of the State of Delaware to continue operations begun in 1902, The
Company’s ticker symbol is MMM. As used herein, the term “3M” or “Company™ includes 3M Company and its subsidiaries
unless the context indicates otherwise. In this document, for any references to Note 1 through Note 19, refer to the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item §.

Available Information

The SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers,
including the Company, that file electronically with the SEC. The public can obtain any documents that the Company files with
the SEC at http://www.sec.gov, The Company files annual reports, quarterly reports, proxy statements and other documents
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act).

3M also makes available free of charge through its website (http://investors.3M.com) the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-IC, and, if applicable, amendments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company elecironically files such
material with, or furnishes it to, the SEC.



Table of Contents

General

3M is a diversified technology company with a global presence in the following businesses: Safety and Industrial;
Transportation and Electronics; Health Care; and Consumer. 3M is among the leading manufacturers of products for many of
the markets it serves. Most 3M products involve expertise in product development, manufacturing and marketing, and are
subject to competition from products manufactured and soid by other technologically oriented companies,

Business Segments

3M manages its operations in four business segments. The reportable segments are Safety and Industrial, Transportation and
Electronics, Health Care, and Consumer. 3M’s four business segments bring together commeon or related 3M technologies,
enhancing the development of innovative products and services and providing for efficient sharing of business resources. Refer
to segment descriptions summarized below (Financial information and other disclosures relating to 3M’s business segments and
operations in major geographic areas are provided in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements):
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Resources
Human Capital

On December 31, 2021, the Company employed approximately 95,000 people (full-time equivalents), with approximately
38,000 employed in the United States and 37,000 employed internationally. The ability to recruit, retain, develop, protect, and
fairly compensate its global workforce are enablers of 3M’s success. This includes four general categories of focus: Health and
Safety; Development; Diversity, Equity and Inclusion; and Compensation and Benefits,

Health and Safety

3M is committed to the safety, health, and well-being of its employees. The Company continuously evaluates opportunities to
raise safety and health standards, visiting sites to identify and manage environmental health and safety risks; evaluating
compliance with regulatory requirements and 3M policy; and maintaining a global security operation for the protection of
facilities and people on 3M sites. 3M also promotes a culture of health and well-being through disease prevention programs, on-
site clinical services, employee assistance programs, and comprehensive health care benefits,

Development

Developing employees contributes to growing 3M’s business, 3M maintains talent and succession planning processes, including
regular review by the Company's chief executive officer (CEQ) and reperting up through the Board of Directors. The Company
has a suite of high-potential leadership development programs which brings a consistent approach to leadership development.
3M also has devefopment programs for managers and supervisors and provides learning opportunities for all employees, in
addition to regular coaching and support from their supervisor. With the Company’s global online employee learning platform,
employees are able to access unique, just-in-time development resources in over 15 languages to support their career aspirations
and advance their skills.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

A diverse, global workforce and inclusive culture that provides fair and equitable opportunities helps 3M remain competitive,
advance its innovation culture, and serve customers, 3M focuses on attracting and advancing top talent and has publicly
committed to advance global diversity in management across all dimensions, with additional specific goals to continue
advancing pay equity and to increase the Company’s diversity with underrepresented groups. 3M supports these values with an
internal CEO Inclusion Council, a forum led by senior management to advance diversity, equity, and inclusion initiatives. The
Company also plans to invest $50 million over 2020 te 2025 to address racial opportunity gaps through workforce development
initiatives in the communities in which its employees live and 3M business operates.

Compensation and Benefits

3M has a trust-based approach to work that empowers employees to work where and when they can best achieve their goals,
which supports attraction and retention of talent around the globe. In addition to a professional and flexible work environment
that promotes innovation, well-being, and rewards performance, 3M’s total compensation for employees includes a variety of
componenis that support sustainable employment and the ability to build a strong financial future, including competitive
market-based pay and comprehensive benefits. In addition to earning a base salary, eligible employees are compensated for
their contributions to the Company’s goals with both short-term cash incentives and long-term equity-based incentives.
Through its global pay philosophy, principles and consistent implementation, 3M is committed to providing fair and equitable
pay for employees. Eligible full-time employees in the United States also have aceess to medical, dental, and vision plans;
savings and retirement plans; a 3M employee stock purchase plan; and other resources. Some of these benefits can also be
available to regular part-time employees who work at [east 20 hours a week. Programs and benefits differ internationally for a
variety of reasons, such as local legal requirements, market practices, and negetiations with works councils, trade unions, and
other employee representative bodies.

Raw Materials

In 2021, the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic caused imbalances within global supply markets. As markets re-opened and
demand increased following COVID lockdowns, the Company experienced raw material price inflation and constrained supply.
Multiple weather, logistics and other disruptive events worsened global supply chain imbalances and contributed to higher
costs,
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Distribution

3M products are sold through numerous distribution channels, including directly to users and through numerous e-commerce
and traditional wholesalers, retailers, jobbers, distributors and dealers in a wide variety of trades in many countries around the
world, Management believes the confidence of wholesalers, retailers, jobbers, distributors and dealers in 3M and its products —
a confidence developed through long association with skilled marketing and sales representatives — has contributed
significantly to 3M’s position in the marketplace and to its growth.
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The Company continued to deploy productivity projects to minimize the impact of raw material inflation and market supply
challenges, including input management, reformulations, and multi-sourcing activities. Overall, on a consolidated basis, 3M
experienced net raw material price inflation in 2021. To help manage disruption to its manufacturing operations, 3M deploys
careful management of existing raw material inventories, strategic relationships with key suppliers, as well as qualification of
additional supply sources. It is difficult to predict future shortages of raw materials or the impact any such shortages would
have. 3M manages spend category price risks through negotiated supply contracts and price protection agreements. In addition,
3M evaluates suppliers’ conformance with environmental and social compliance requirements.

Patents, Trademarks and Licenses

. The Company’s products are sold around the world under various trademarks. The Company also owns, or holds licenses to
use, numerous U.S. and foreign patents. The Company’s research and development activities generate a steady stream of
inventions that are covered by new patents or trade secrets. Patents applicable to specific products extend for varying periods
according to the date of patent application filing or patent grant and the legal term of patents in the various countries where
patent protection is obtained. The actual protection afforded by a patent, which can vary from country to country, depends upon
the type of patent, the scope of its coverage and the availability of legal remedies in the country.

The Company believes that its trademarks, patents, and trade secrets provide an important competitive advantage in many of its
businesses. In general, no single patent or group of related patents is in itself essential to the Compary as a whole or to any of
the Company’s business segments.

Government Regulation and Environmental Law Compliance

The Company’s business operations are subject to various governmental regulations in the U.S. and internaticnally, including,
among others, those related to product liability, antitrust, intellectual property, environmental, tax, the U.S. Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act and other anti-bribery laws, U.S. trade sanctions, regulations of the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA)
and similar foreign agencies, U.S. federal healthcare program-related laws and regulations, such as the False Claims Act, anti-
kickback laws and the Sunshine Act.

3M’s manufacturing operations are affected by national, state and local environmental laws and regulations around the werld.
The Company places consistent emphasis on environmental responsibility. 3M has made, and plans to continue making,
necessary expenditures for compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 3M is also invelved in remediation actions relating
to environmental matters from past operations at certain sites (refer to “Envirenmental Matters and thlga’uon” in Note 16,
Commitments and Contingencies).

Environmental expenditures relating to existing conditions caused by past operations that do not contribute to current or future
revenues are expensed. Reserves for liabilities for anticipated remediation costs are recorded on an undiscounted basis when
they are probable and reasonably estimable, generally no later than the completion of feasibility studies, the Company’s
commitment to a plan of action, or approval by regulatory agencies. Environmental expenditures for capital projects that
contribute to current or future operations generally are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful fives.

In 2021, 3M expended approximately $157 million on capital projects for environmental purposes as defined below, Capital
projects for envirenmental purposes include waste reduction and pollution control programs such as, water usage reduction and
water quality improvement equipment, scrubbers, containment structures, solvent recovery units and thermal oxidizers. Capital
expenditures for similar projects are presently expected to approach approximately $668 million for 2022 and 2023 in
aggregate.

Although an estimate of certain nearer-term capital expenditures is provided above, 3M cannot predict with certainty whether
fature costs of compliance with government regulations (including environmental regulations) will have a material effect on its
capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position.

Information about our Executive Officers

Following is a list of the executive officers of 3M, and their age, present position, the year elected to their present position and
other positions they have held during the past five years. No family relationships exist among any of the executive officers
named, nor is there any undisclosed arrangement or understanding pursuant fo which any person was selected as an officer.
This information is presented in the table below as of the date of the 10-K filing (February 9, 2022).
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Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May Affect Future Resuits

This Annual Report on Form 10-X, including “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in Item 7, contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. The Company may also make forward-looking statements in other reports filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commmission, in materials delivered to sharecholders and in press releases. In addition, the Company’s representatives may from
time fo time make oral forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements relate to future events and typically address the Company’s expected future business and financial
performance. Words such as “plan,” “expect,” “aim,” “believe,” “project,” “target,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “will,”
“should,” “could,” “forecast” and other words and terms of similar meaning, typically identify such forward-looking
statements. In particular, these include, among others, statements relating to:

. worldwide economic, political, regulatory, international trade, capital markets and other external conditions, such as
interest rates, financial conditions of our suppliers and customers, trade restrictions such as tariffs in addition to
retaliatory counter measures, inflation, and natural and other disasters or climate change affecting the operations of the
Company or our suppliers and customers,

+  risks related to public health crises such as the global pandemic associated with the coronavirus (COVID-19},

+  liabilities related to certain fluorochemicals and the outcome of contingencies,

»  the Company’s strategy for growth, future revenues, earnings, cash flow, uses of cash and other measures of financial
performance, and market position,

+  competitive conditions and customer preferences,

«  foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuations in those rates,

« new business opportunities, product development, and future performance or results of current or anticipated products,

« fluctuations in the costs and availability of purchased components, compounds, raw materials and energy,

+ Information technology systems including ERP system roll-out and implementations,

*  Security breaches and other disruptions to information technelogy infrastructure,

+  the scope, nature or inipact of acquisition, strategic alliance and divestiture activities,

+  operational execution, including inability to generate productivity improvements as estimated,

+  future levels of indebtedness, commen stock repurchases and capital spending,

+  future availability of and access to credit markets,

+  pension and postretirement obligation assumptions and future contributions,

*  asset tmpairments,

»  tax Habilities and effects of changes in tax rates, laws or regulations, and

+ legal and regulatory proceedings, legal compliance risks (including third-party risks) with regards to environmental,
product Hability and other laws and regulations in the United States and other countries in which we operate.

The Company assumes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events and frends that are subject to
risks and uncertainties. Actual future results and trends may differ materially from historical results or those reflected in any
such forward-looking statements depending on a variely of factors. Important information as to these factors can be found in
this document, including, among others, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” under the headings of “Overview,” “Financial Condition and Liquidity,” and annually in “Critical Accounting
Estimates.” Discussion of these factors is incorporated by reference from Part [, Item 14, “Risk Factors,” of this document, and
should be considered an integral part of Part 11, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.” For additional information concerning factoss that may cause actual results to vary materially from
those stated in the forward-looking statements, see cur reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K filed with the SEC from time to
time,

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Provided below is a cautionary discussion of what we believe to be the most important risk factors applicable to the Company.

Discussion of these factors is incorporated by reference into and considered an integral part of Part 1, Item 2, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations.”
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Risks Related to the Global Economy and Public Health Crises

X The Company's results are impacted by the effects of, and changes in, worldwide economic, political, regulatory,
international trade and other external conditions.

The Company operates in more than 70 countries and derives approximately 60 percent of its revenues from outside the United
States, and, accordingly, the Company’s business is subject to global competition and geopolitical risks that are beyond its
control, such as disruptions in financial markets, economic downturns, government actions impacting international tracde
agreements, imposing trade restrictions such as tariffs, and retaliatory counter measures, inflation, government deficit reduction
and other austerity measures in specific countries or regions, or in the various industries in which the Company operates; social,
political or labor conditions in specific countries or regions; or adverse changes in the availability and cost of capital, interest
rates, or exchange control, ability to expatriate earnings and other regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Company
operates. Climate change, as well as related environmentai and social regulations, may negatively impact the Company or its
customers and suppliers, in terms of availability and cost of natural resources, sources and supply of energy, product demand
and manufacturing, and the health and well-being of individuals and communities in which we operate.

* The Company is subject to risks related to public health crises such as the global pandemic associated with the coronavirus
(COVID-19),

3M, as a global company, is impacted by public health crises such as the global pandemic associated with COVID-19. The
outbreak has significantly increased economic and demand uncertainty. In addition, public and private sector policies and
initiatives to reduce the transmission of COVID-19, such as the imposition of travel restrictions, the adoptien of remote
working, and government-ordered vaccine mandates, have impacted and will continue to impact 3M’s operations. In these
challenging and dynamic circumstances, 3M continues to work to protect its employees and the public, maintain business
continuity and sustain its operations, including ensuring the safety and protection of approximately 50,000 people who work in
our plants and distribution centers across the world, many of whom support the manufacturing and delivery of products that are
critical in response to the global pandemic. COVID-19 has impacted 3M’s supply chains telative to global demand for products
like respirators, surgical masks and commercial cieaning solutions. Within individual regions and countries around the world,
3M is working with governments, distributors and others to prioritize supplies to the most critical customer and public health
needs. In addition, trade barriers, export restrictions and other similar measures imposed by national governments also
negatively impact the supplies of personal protection equipment including those made by 3M going into the most needed areas.
COVID-19 has also affected the ability of suppliers and vendors to provide products and services to 3M. Some of these
COVID-related factors have increased demand for certain 3M products, while others have decreased demand from certain end
markets or could make it more difficult for 3M to serve customers. 3M has received reports of price gouging, counterfeiting and
other illegal or fraudulent activities involving its N9$ respirators, has taken legal action in several states and continues to work
with state, federal and international law enforcement to protect the public and 3M against those who seek to exploit 3M’s brand
and reputation and defraud others. Furthermore, COVID-19 has impacted and may further impact the broader economies of
affected countries, including negatively impacting economic growth, the proper functioning of financial and capital markeis,
foreign currency exchange rates, and interest rates. For example, COVID-19 has led to disruption and volatility in the global
capital markets, which increases the cost of capital and could adversely impact access fo capital. With increasing vaccinations
and as economies start to reopen in certain parts of the world, workplace safety, for the Company and others, will increasingly
become a focus of concern. As part of the return to work process at the Company, the Company could face additional privacy
and data security risks in various countries related to the collection of data regarding employees and contractors with respect to
COVID-19 testing, temperature checks, contact tracing, and vaccination status. As the pandemic evolves, demand for personal
protection products such as disposable respirators may decline from prior levels. Due to the speed and scope with which the
COVID situation is developing and evolving and the uncertainty of its duration and the timing of recovery, M is not able at
this time to predict the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic may have a material effect on its consolidated results of
operations or financial condition.

* Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuations in those rates may affect the Company's abilily to realize projected growth
rates in its sales and earnings.

Because the Company’s financial statements are denominated in U.S. dollars and approximately 60 percent ofthe Company’s
revenues are derived from outside the United States, the Company’s results of operations and its ability to realize projected
growth rates in sales and earnings could be adversely affected if the U.S. dollar strengthens significantly against foreign
currencies.
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Risks Related to Legal and Regulatory Proceedings
* The Company faces liabilities related to certain fluorochemicals, which could adversely impact our results.

As previously reported, the Company has been voluntarily cooperating with various local, state, federal (primarily the U.S,
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)), and international agencies in their review of the environmental and health effects of
a broad group of perfiuoroatkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances produced by the Company, collectively known as “PFAS.” The
PFAS group contains several categories and classes of durable chemicals and materials with properties that include oil, water,
temperature, chemical and fire resistance, as well as electrical insulating properties. The strength of the carbon-fluorine bond
also means that these compounds do not easily degrade. These characteristics have made PFAS critical to the manufacture of
electronic devices such as cell phones, tablets and semi-conductors. They are also used to heip prevent infections in products
like surgical gowns and drapes, Commercial aircraft and low-emissions vehicles also rely on PFAS technology, PFAS
compounds are currently manufactured by various companies, including 3M, and are used in everyday products. As science and
technology evolve and advance, and in response to evolving knowledge and the understanding that PFAS compounds had the
potential to build up over time, 3M announced in 2000 that we would voluntarily phase out production of perfluorooctanoate
{PFOA) and perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) globally as a precautionary measure. We phased out of materials used to
produce certain repellants and surfactant products, with most of these activities in the U.S. completed by the end of 2002.
Phased out products included Aquecus Film Forming Foam (AFFF) and coatings for food packaging, for example. 3M
currently is defending lawsuits concerning various PFAS-related products and chemistries, and is subject to unasserted and
asserted claims and governmental regulatory proceedings and inquiries related to the production and use of PFAS in a variety of
jurisdictions, as discussed in Note 16, “Commitments and Contingencies,” within the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, An adverse outcome in any one or mctre of these matters could be material to our financial results. For example, we
recorded a pre-tax charge of $897 million, inclusive of legal fees and other related obligations, in the first quarter of 2018 with
respect to the settlement of a matter brought by the State of Minnesota involving the presence of PFAS in the groundwater,
surface water, fish or other aquatic life, and sediments in the state. Governmental inquiries or lawsuits involving PFAS could
lead to our incurring liability for damages or other costs, civil or criminal proceedings, the imposition of fines and penalties, or
other remedies, as well as restrictions on or added costs for our business operations going forward, including in the form of
restrictions on discharges at cur manufacturing facilities, suspension of their operations, switching costs in seeking alternative
sources of supply, potential customer damage claims due to supply disruptions or otherwise.

* The Company’s future results may be affected by various asserted and unasserted legal and regulatory proceedings and legal
compliance risks, including those involving product liability, antitrust, intellectual property, environmental, tax, the U.S,
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other anti-bribery laws, U.S. trade sanctions compliance, regulations of the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration (FDA) and similar foreign agencies, U.S. federal healthcare program-related lows and regulations
including the False Claims Act, anti-kickback laws, the Sunshine Act, or other matters. Legal compliance risks also inclhude
third-party visks where the Company s suppliers, vendors or channel partners have business practices that are inconsistent
with 3M s Supplier Responsibility Code, 3M performance requirements or with legal requiremenits.

The outcome of these legal proceedings may differ from the Company’s expectations because the outcomes of litigation,
including regulatory matters, are often difficuit to retiably predict. Although the Company maintains general liability insurance,
the amount of liability that may result from certain of these risks may not always be covered by, or could exceed, the applicable
insurance coverage. Various factors or developments can lead the Company to change current estimates of liabilities and related
insurance receivables where applicable, or make such estimates for matters previously not susceptible of reasonable estimates,
such as a significant judicial ruling or judgment, a significant settlement, significant regulatory developments or changes in
applicable law. A future adverse ruling, setflement or unfavorable development could result in future charges that could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or cash flows in any particular period. In addition, negative
publicity related to product liability, environmental, health and safefy or other matters referenced above involving the Company
may negatively impact the Company's reputation, For a more detailed discussion of the legal proceedings involving the
Company and the associated accounting estimates, see the discussion in Note 16, “Commitments and Contingencies,” within
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Risks Related to Our Products and Customer Preferences

* The Company’s results are affecied by competitive conditions and customer preferences.

Demand for the Company’s products, which impacts revenue and profit margins, is affected by (i) the development and timing
of the intreduction of competitive products; (ii) the Company’s response to downward pricing to stay competitive; (iii) changes

in customer order patterns, such as changes in the levels of inventory maintained by customers and the timing of customer
purchases which may be affected by announced price changes, changes in the Company’s incentive programs, or the customer’s
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ability to achieve incentive goals; (iv) changes in customers’ preferences for our products, including the success of products
offered by our competitors, and changes in customer designs for their products that can affect the demand for some of the
Company’s products; and (v) changes in the business environment related to disruptive technologies, such as artificial
intelligence, block-chain, expanded analytics and other enhanced learnings from increasing volume of available data.

* The Company's growth objectives are largely dependent on the timing and market acceptance of its new product offerings,
including its ability to continually renew iis pipeline of new products and to bring those products to market,

This ability is subject to difficulties or delays in product development, such as the inability to identify viable new products,
obfain adequate intellectual property protection, or gain market acceptance of new products, There are no guarantees that new
products will prove to be commereially successful, -

* The Company’s future resulis are subject to vulnerability with respect to materials and fluctuations in the costs and
availability of purchased components, compounds, raw materials, energy, and labor due to shortages, increased demand and
wages, logistics, supply chain interruptions, manufacturing site disruptions, natural disasters and other disruplive factors.

The Company depends on various components, compounds, raw materials, and energy (including oil and natural gas and their
derivatives) supplied by others for the manufacturing of its products. Supplier relationships have been and could be interrupted
in the future due to supplier material shortage, climate impacts, natural and other disasters and other disruptive events, or be
terminated. Any sustained interruption in the Company’s receipt of adequate supplies, supply chain disruptions impacting the
distribution of products, or disruption to key manufacturing sites’ operations due to natural and other disasters or events, such
as government actions relating to discharge ot emission permits or other legal or regulatory requirements, could have a material
adverse effect on the Company. In addition, white the Company has a process to minimize volatility in component and material
pricing, no assurance can be given that the Company will be able to successfully manage price fluctuations or that future price
fluctuations or shortages will not have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Risks Related to Our Business

* The Company employs information technology systems to support its business, including ongoing phased implementation of
an enterprise resource planning (ERP) system as part of business transformation on a worldwide basis over the next several
years. Security breaches and other disruptions to the Company’s information technology infrastructure could interfere with the
Company’s operations, compromise information belonging to the Company or its customers, suppliers, and employees,
exposing the Company to lability which could adversely impact the Company s business and reputation.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company relies on centralized and local information technology networks and systems,
some of which are provided, hosted or managed by vendors and other third parties, to process, transmit and store electronic
information, and to manage or support a variety of businesses. Additionally, the Company collects and stores certain data,
including proprietary business information, and has access to confidential or personal information in certain of our businesses
that is subject to privacy and cybessecurity laws, regulations and customer-imposed controls. Despite our eybersecurity and
business continuity measures {(including employee and third-party training, monitoring of networks and systems, patching,
maintenance, and backup of systems and data), the Company’s information technology networks and infrastructure are still
potentially vulnerable to the security risks of our vendors and third-party service providers, security breaches, damage,
distuptions or shutdowns due to attacks by threat actors including nation-sfate actors, computer viruses, hardware, software, and
system vulnerabilities, ransomware, service or cloud provider disruptions ot security breaches, employee error or malfeasance,
power outages, telecommunication or utifity failures, systems failures, natural disasters or other catastrophic events. The
Company’s adoption of remote working, initially driven by the pandemic, may also introduce additional threats or disruptions
to our information technology networks and infrasiructure. Despite our cybersecurity measures, it is possible for security
vulnerabilities to remain undetected for an extended time period, up to and including several years, While we have experienced,
and expect to continue to expetrience, threats and distuptions to the Company’s information technology infrastructure, none of
them to date has had a material impact to the Company. Any such threats or disruptions could result in legal claims or
proceedings, disclosures to regulators, liability or penalties under privacy laws, interference with the Corpany’s operations,
and damage to the Company’s reputation, which could adversely affect the Company’s business. Although the Company
maintains insurance coverage for various cybersecurity and business continuity risks, there can be no guarantee that all costs or
losses incurred will be fully insured.
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* Acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestitures, and other unusual events resulting from porifolio management actions and
other evolving business strategies, and possible organizational restructuring could affect future results,

The Company monitors its business portfolio and organizational structure and has made and may continue to make acquisitions,
strategic alliances, divestitures and changes to its organizational structure. With respect to acquisitions, including, for example,
the acquisition of Acelity, Inc. and its KCI subsidiaries (a leading global medical technology company), future results will be
affected by the Company’s ability to integrate acquired businesses quickly and obtain the anticipated synergies.

* The Company s future resulls may be affecied by its operational execution, including scenarios where the Company generates
fewer productivity improvements than estimated.

The Company’s financial results depend on the successful execution of its business operating plans. The Company utilizes
various tools, such as Lean Six Sigma, and engages in ongoing global business transformation. Business transformation is
defined as changes in processes and internal/external service delivery across 3M to move to more efficient business models to
improve operational efficiency and productivity, while allowing 3M to serve customers with greater speed and efficiency, This
is enabled by the ongoing multi-year phased implementation of an ERP system. There can be no assurance that all of the
projected productivity improvements will be realized. In addition, the ability to adapt to business model and other changes and
agility to respond to customer needs and service expectations are important, which, if not done successfully, could negatively
impact the Company’s ability to win new business and enhance revenue and 3M’s brand. Operational challenges, including
those related to customer service, pace of change and productivity improvements, could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial conditions and results of operations.

Risks Related to Financial and Capital Markets and Tax Matiers

* The Company's defined benefit pension and postretirement plans are subject to financial market visks that could adversely
impact our resulfs.

The performance of financial markets and discount rates impact the Company's funding obligations under its defined benefit
plans, Significant changes in market interest rates, decreases in the fair value of plan assets and investment losses on plan
assets, and legislative or regulatory changes relating to defined benefit plan funding may increase the Company's funding
obligations and adversely impact its results of operations and cash flows,

* Change in the Company’s credit ratings could increase cost of funding.

The Company’s credit ratings are important to 3M’s cost of capital. The major rating agencies routinely evaluate the
Company’s credit profile and assign debt ratings to 3M. This evaluation is based on a number of factors, which include
financial sirength, business and financial risk, as well as transparency with rating agencies and timeliness of financial reporting.
3M currently has an A1 credit rating with a negative outlook from Moody’s Investors Service and an-A+ credit rating with a
negative outlook from Standard & Poor’s. The Company’s credit ratings have served te lower 3M’s borrowing costs and
facilitate access to a variety of lenders. The addition of further leverage to the Company’s capital structure could impact 3M’s
credit ratings in the future. Failure to maintain strong investment grade ratings would adversely affect the Company’s cost of
funding and could adversely affect liquidity and access to capital markets.

¥ Changes in tax rates, laws or regulations could adversely impact our financial results.

The Company’s business is subject to tax-related external conditions, such as tax rates, tax laws and regulations, changing
political environments in the U.S. and foreign jurisdictions that impact tax examination, assessment and enforcement
approaches. In addition, changes in tax laws including further regulatory developments arising from U.S. tax reform legislation
and/or regulations around the world could result in a tax expense cr benefit recorded to the Company’s Consolidated Statement
of Earnings. In connection with the Base Erosion and Profit Shifting (BEPS) Integrated Framework provided by Organization
for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD), determination of multi-jurisdictional taxation rights and the rate of tax
applicable to certain types of income may be subject to potential change. Due to uncertainty of the regulation changes and other
tax-related factors stated above, it is currently not possible to assess the ultimate impact of these actions on our financial
statements.

Item IB. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
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Item 2. Properties.

Tn the U.S., 3M’s general offices, corporate research laboratories, and certain division laboratories are located in St. Paul,
Minnesota. The Company operates 61 manufacturing facilities in 29 states. Internationally, the Company operates 89
manufacturing and converting facilities in 30 countries.

3M owns the majority of its physical properties. 3M’s physical facilities are highly suitable for the purposes for which they
were designed. Because 3M is a global enterprise characterized by substantial inter-segment cooperation, properties are often
used by multiple business segments.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Discussion of legal matters is incorporated by reference from Part 11, Item 8, Note 16, “Commitments and Contingencies,” of
this document, and should be considered an integral part of Part I, Item 3, “Legal Proceedings.”

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Pursuant to Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Act”), the Company is
required to disclose, in connection with the mines it operates, information concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory

matters in its periodic reports filed with the SEC. For the year 2021, the information concerning mine safety violations or other
regulatory matters required by Section 1503(a) of the Act is included in Exhibit 95 to this annual report.

PART 11

Item 5. Marlkef for Registrant’s Commeon Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Equity compensation plans® information is incorporated by reference from Part III, Item 12, “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters,” of this document, and should be considered an integral
part of Item 5. At January 31, 2022, there were 65,295 shareholders of record. 3M’s stock ticker symbol is MMM and is listed
on the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. (NYSE), the Chicago Stock Exchange, Inc., and the SWX Swiss Exchange. Cash
dividends declared and paid totaled $1.48 and $1.47 per share for each quarter in 2021 and 2020, respectively. 3M typically
declares and pays dividends in the same quarter.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Repurchases of 3M common stock are made to support the Company’s stock-based employee compensation plans and for other
corporate purposes. In November 2018, 3M’s Board of Directors replaced the Company”s February 2016 repurchase program

with a new repurchase program. This new program authorizes the repurchase of up to $10 billion of 3M’s outstanding common
stock, with no pre-established end date.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
(registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act)

Maximum
Approximate
Dollar Value of

Tatal Number of Shares that May
Shares Purchased Yet Be Purchased
Total Nmnber of Average Price as Part of Publicly under the Plans
Shares Purchased Paid per Announced Plans or Programs
Period 1) Share or Programs (2) i

(Miilions}

January 1-31,2021;

56’9',7*54 f'_ﬁ‘ '
16 4

844,500 " 844,500
1,097,327 1,097,327

September 1 -30, 2021

y 1 - September 30, 2021
; 31,2021 o8
November 1 - 30, 2021 2,019,599 2,019,599

2021 580,634 0,63:
October 1 - December 31, 2021 4,977,897 4,977,897
‘ i 111,653,381 20711,651,51

(1) The total number of shares purchased includes: (i} shares purchased under the Board’s authorizations described above, and
(ii) shares purchased in connection with the exercise of stock options.

(2) The total number of shares purchased as part of publicly announced plans or programs includes shares purchased under the
Board’s authorizations described above.

Item 6. [Reserved].
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Anal

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is designed to provide a
reader of 3M’s financial statements with a narrative from the perspective of management. 3M’s MD&A is presented in eight
sections:

+  Overview

+  Results of Operations

+  Performance by Business Segment
+  Performance by Geographic Area
+  Critical Accounting Estimates

+  New Accounting Proncuncements
+  Financial Condition and Liquidity
»  Financial Instruments

Forward-looking statements in Item 7 may involve risks and uncertainties that could cause results to differ materially from
those projected (refer to the section entitled “Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May Affect Future Results” in Ttem 1 .
and the risk factors provided in Item 1A for discussion of these risks and uncertainties).

Additional information about results of operations and financial condition for 2020 and 2019 can be found in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financiat Condition and Resuits of Operations” sections in the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K_ for the year ended December 31, 2020.

OVERVIEW

3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technology innovator and marketer of a wide variety of products and services.
Effective in the first quarter of 2021, 3M made the foflowing changes. Information provided herein reflects the impact of these
changes for all periods presented.
«  Change in accounting principle for net periodic pension and postretirement plan cost. See detailed discussion in Note
1.
+  Change in measure of segment operating performance used by 3M’s chief operating decision maker—impacting IM’s
disclosed measure of segment profit/loss (business segment operating income). See additional information in Note 15.
+  Change in alignment of certain products within 3M’s Consumer business segment—creating the Consumer Health and
Safety Division. See additional information in Note 19.

3M manages its operations in four operating business segments: Safety and Industrial; Transportation and Electronics; Health
Care; and Consumer, From a geographic perspective, any references to EMEA refer to Europe, Middle East and Africaon a
combined basis. References are made to organic sales (which include both organic volume impacts and selling price impacts)
that is defined as the change in net sales, absent the separate impacts on sales from foreign currency translation and
acquisitions, net of divestitures. Acquisition and divestiture sales change impacts, if any, are measured separately for the first
twelve months post-transaction. 3M believes this information is useful to investors and management in understanding ongoing
operations and in analysis of ongoing operating trends. ’

Consideration of COVID-19;

3M is impacted by the global pandemic and related effects associated with the coronavirus (COVID-19). Risk factors with
respect to COVID-19 can be found in ltem 1A “Risk Factors™ in this document. Given the diversity of 3M’s businesses, some
of the factors relative to COVID-19 have increased the demand for 3M products, while others have decreased demand or made
it more difficult for 3M to serve customers.

Overall, 3M experienced broad-based organic growth across business segments and all geographies in 2021 despite global
supply challenges. 3M’s total sales increased 9.9% for the full year 2021 when compared to 2020. Organic sales increased 8.8%
for the full year 2021 when compared to 2020. In 2021, COVID-related respirator sales negatively impacted year-on-year
organic sales growth by approximately 0.2% as they grew at a slower rate than the rest of the Company. Given the diversity of
3M's businesses, the impact of COVID-19 varied across the Company. In 2020, 3M experienced strong sales in personai safety,
as well as in other areas such as home improvement, general cleaning, semiconductor, data center, and biopharma filtration
while businesses aligned to general industrial applications with strength in abrasives and industrial adhesives and tapes. At the
same time, weakness in several end markets, while improving, contributed in part to sales declines in a number of 3M's
businesses such as oral care, automotive and aerospace, advanced materials, commercial solutions, stationery and office,

16



Table of Contents

automotive aftermarket. Refer to the Performance by Business Segment section later in MD&A for additional discussicn of
sales by segment.

3M’s operating income margins decreased 1.5 percentage points year-on-year for the year ending December 31, 2021.
Factoring out the impact on operating income of special items as described in the Certain amounts adfusted for special items -
(non-GAAP meisures) section below, operating income margins decreased 0.5 percentage peints to 20.8 percent for the year
ending December 31, 2021 when compared to 2020, Various COVID-19 implications contributed in part to these resulfs.

Overall, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on 3M’s consolidated results of operations was primarily driven by factors
related to changes in demand for products and disruption in global supply chains. While it is not feasible to identify or quantify
all the other direct and indirect implications on 3M’s results of operations, below are factors that 3M believes have also affected
its 2021 results when compared to 2020:

Factors centributing to charges or other impacts:

»  Tncreased raw materials and logistics costs from ongoing COVID-19 related global supply chain challenges further
magnified by extreme weather events, such as February 2021 winter storm Uti in the United States.

+  Cost management in discretionary spending in areas such as travel, professional services, and advertising/
merchandising resulting in lower spending in 2020,

+  Government-sponsored COVID-response stimulus and relief initiatives in 2020, including certain employes retention
benefits under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security {CARES) Act in the United States.

«  Lower incentive compensation and self-insured medical visit/insurance expense in 2020.

Factors providing benefits or other impacts:

«  Continued productivity efforts, including year-on-year savings from restructuring actions taken in 2020 and 2021,

«  Period expenses of unabsorbed manufacturing costs and increased expected credit losses on customer receivables in
2020.

»  Restructuring actions addressing structural enterprise costs and operations in certain end markets as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic and related economic impact resulting in a 2020 charge of $58 million.

+  Committed financial support in 2020 to various COVID-relief and medical research initiatives.

+  Charge of $22 million in 2020 related to equity securities as discussed in the “Assets and Liabilities that are Measured
at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis” section of Note 13 that use the measurement alternative described therein in
addition to an immaterial pre-tax charge related to impairment of certain indefinite lived tradenames.

Refer to the Financial Condition and Liquidity section below for more information on the Company’s liquidity position.
Due to the speed with which the COVID-19 situation is developing and evolving and the uncertainty of its duration and the

timing of recovery, 3M is not able at this time to predict the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic may have a material
effect on its consolidated results of operations or financial condition.
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Operating income margin and earnings per share attributable to 3SM common shareholders — diluted:

The following table provides the increase {decrease) in operating income margins and diluted earnings per share for 2021
compared to the same period last year, in addition to 2020 compared to 2019. As applicable, certain items in the table reflect
specific income tax rates associated therewith.

Percent of net sales Earnings per diluted share
2021 2020 2021 2020

Year ended December 31,

Sig;?ﬁcapt litigation-related charges/benefits — 24 (0.07) ' 1.01

AT AEIERY,

of b

Divestiture-rclated restructuring actio

The Company refers to various “adjusted” amounts or measures on an “adjusted basis™. These exclude special items. These
non-GAAP measures are further deseribed and reconciled to the most directly comparable GAAP financial measures in the
Certain amounts adjusted for special items - (non-GAAP measures) section below.

A discussion related to the compenents of year-on-year changes in operating income margin and earnings per diluted share
follows:

Organic growth/productivity and other:

+  1n 2021, organic volume growth and cngoing cost management offset by manufacturing headwinds from global supply
chain challenges, increased compensation/benefit costs, and increased litigation-related costs increased operating
income margins and earnings per diluted share year-on-year. The following alse impacted results or provide additional
information:

« 2021 benefit of $91 million pre-tax ($0.12 per share after tax) from a favorable Brazilian Supreme Court
decision that concluded on the impact of state value-added tax when determining Brazil’s federal sales-based
social tax -essentially lowering the social tax that 3M should have paid in prior periods.

«  Certain changes in legal reserve charges year-over-year. 3M regularly reviews and updates its associated
liabilities and is involved in various trials and defense preparation as discussed in Note 16.

+  3M continued prioritization of investments in growth and sustainability.

2021 benefit from restructuring actions taken in 2020 and positive/negative impact of year-over-year change
in non-divestiture-related restructuring charges, net of adjustiments, for respective periods. Note 5 provides
additional information relative to restructuring actions.

«  Lower year-on-year net gains related to certain property sales.

-  COVID-impacts recognized on certain assets in 2020,

«  In 2020, lower organic volume growth as a result of significant COVID-19 related impacts, in addition to COVID-
related net factors described in the preceding Overview-—Consideration of COVID-19 section, decreased both
earnings per diluted share and operating income margin year-on-year. 3M also experienced year-over-year increased
costs as a resul of the regular review of its respirator mask liabilities and certain follow-on accelerated depreciation

18



Table of Contents

following some of the restructuring in 2019 and 2020. Partially offsetting these increased costs were year-on-year net
gains related to certain property sales (in 2020 within Safety and Industrial and in 2019 within Corporate and
Unallocated), lower non divestiture-related restructuring charges year-on-year, in addition to benefits recognized in
2020 related to the restructuring and other actions taken in 2019 (and the adjustments thereto in 2020) along with
continued cost management and productivity effoits.

«  On a combined basis, higher defined benefit pension and postretirement service cost increased expense year-on-year
for both 2021 and 2020,

Selling price and raw material impact:

«  In 2021, 3M experienced higher raw material, logistics, and outsourced manufacturing costs from strong end-market
demand and ongoing COVID-19 and related global supply chain challenges that were further magnified by extreme
weather events, such as February 2021 winter storm Uri in the U.S. These factors were partially offset by higher
selling prices in 2021.

«  In2020, higher selling prices in addition to lower raw materiaf cost impacts benefited operating income margins year-
on=year

Acquisitions/divestitures:

«  Divestiture impacts in 2021 and 2020 are primarily comprised of the lost income from the divestiture of the
Company’s drug delivery business (sale completed in May 2020).

«  Acquisition impacts, which are measured for the first twelve months post-transaction, relate to the acquisitions of
M*Modal (first quarter 2019), and Acelity (fourth quarter 2019). The net impacts related to these acquisitions included
income from operations, more than offset by transaction and integration costs. Financing costs related to these
acquisitions is also included.

Foreign exchange impects:
+  Foreign currency impacts (net of hedging) increased operating income by approximately $103 million and decreased

operating income by approximately $62 million {or an increase in pre-tax earnings of approximately $119 million and
a decrease in pre-tax earnings of approximately $57 million) year-on-year for 2021 and 2020, respectively. These
estimates include: (a) the effects of year-on-year changes in exchange rates on translating current period functional
currency profits into U.S. dollars and on current period non-functional currency denominated purchases or transfers of
goods between 3M operations, and (b) year-on-year changes in transaction gains and losses, including derivative
instruments designed to reduce foreign currency exchange rate risks, Prior to 2021, for {a) 3M used prior year
functional currency profits and non-functional currency purchase/transfer information as the base in determining these
amounts. Comparative prior period amounts have been updated to reflect this updated methodology.

Other expense (income), net;

+  Higher income related to non-service cost components of pension and postretirement expense decreased expense year-
on-year for both 2021 and 2020,

+  Interest expense (net of interest income) decreased in 2021 compared to the same petiods year-on-year. 2021 interest
expense also included an early debt extinguishment pre-tax charge in the first quarter of 2021.

«  Interest expense (net of interest income) increased in 2020, as a result of higher U.S. average debt balances and lower
year-on-year interest income driven by lower average interest rates on cash balances. 2020 interest expense also
included an early debt extinguishment charge in conjunction with the repayment of notes in December 2020.

Income ftax rate: .

- Certain items above reflect specific income tax rates associated therewith. Overall, the effective tax rates for 2021,
2020, and 2019 were 17.8 percent, 19.7 percent, and 19.7 percent, respectively. These reflect a decrease of 1.9
percentage points from 2020 to 2021 and a flat comparisen from 2019 to 2020.

»  On an adjusted basis (as discussed below), the effective tax rates for 2021, 2020, and 2019 were 17.8 percent, 20.3
percent, and 20.2 percent, respectively. These reflect a decrease of 2.5 percentage points from 2020 to 2021 and an
increase of 0.1 percentage points from 2019 to 2020.

+  The primary factors that decreased the Company's effective tax rate in 2021 were geographical income mix and
favorable adjustments in 2021 related to impacts of U.S. international tax provisions. Refer to Note 10 for additional
details.

Shares of common stock ouistanding:

. Higher shares outstanding decreased earnings per share per diluted share for 2021, while lower shares outstanding
increased earnings per share diluted share for 2020,
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Certain amounts adjusted for special items - (non-GAAP measures}):

In addition to reporting financial results in accordance with U.S. GAAP, the Company also provides non-GAAP measures that
adjust for the impacts of special items. For the periods presented, special items include the items desctibed below. Operating
income (measure of segment operating performance), income before taxes, net income, earnings per share, and the effective tax
rate are all measures for which 3M provides the reported GAAP measure and a measure adjusted for special items. The adjusted
measures are not in accordance with, nor are they a substitute for, GAAP measures. The Company considers these non-GAAP
measures in evaluating and managing the Company’s operations. The Company believes that discussion of results adjusted for
these items is meaningfu! to investors as it provides a useful analysis of ongoing underlying operating trends. The determination
of these items may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies. Special items include:

Significamt litigation-related charges/benefits.

«  In 2020, 3M recorded a net pre-tax charge of $17 mitlion ($13 million after tax) related to PFAS (certain
perfluorinated compounds) matters, The charge was more than offset by a reduction in tax expense of $52 million
related to resolution of tax ireatment with authorities regarding the previously disclosed 2018 agreement reached with
the State of Minnesota that resolved the Natural Resources Damages lawsuit, These items, in aggregate, resulted in a
$39 million after tax benefit, ,

s+ In 2019, the Company recorded significant litigation-related charges of $762 million ($590 million after tax) related to
PFAS matters ($449 million pre-tax) and coal mine dust respirator mask lawsuits ($313 million pre-tax). Thesc
charges are further discussed in Note 16,

Gain/loss on sale of businesses:

«  In 2020, 3M recorded a pre-tax gain of $2 million ($1 million loss after tax) related to the sale of its advanced ballistic-
protection business and recognition of certain contingent consideration and a pre-tax gain of $387 million ($304
million after tax) related to the sale of its drug delivery business. Refer to Note 3 for further details.

« In the first quarter of 2019, 3M recorded a gain related to the sale of certain oral care technology comprising a business
in addition to reflecting an earnout on a previous divestiture, which together resulted in a net gain of $8 million (§7
million after tax). In the second quarter of 2019, as a result of a “held for sale” tax benefit related to the legal entities
associated with the pending divestiture of the Company’s gas and flame detection business, 3M recorded an after-tax
gain of $43 million. In the third quarter of 2019, 3M recorded a gain related to the divestiture of the Company’s gas
and flame detection business and an immaterial impact as a result of measuring a disposal group at the lower of its
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, which in aggregate resulted in a pre-tax gain of $106 million ($79
million after tax).

Divestiture-related restructuring actions:

+  In 2020, following the divestiture of substantially all of the drug delivery business (see Note 3) management approved
and committed to undertake certain restructuring actions addressing corporate functional costs and manufacturing
footprint across 3M in relation to the magnitude of amounts previously allocated/burdened to the divested business. As
a result, 3M recorded a pre-tax charge of $55 million ($46 million after tax) and made a subsequent immaterial
adjustment thereto, Refer to Note 5 for further detzils.

Loss on deconsolidation of Venezuelan subsidiary:

«  In 2019, 3M recorded a pre-tax charge of $162 million related to the deconsolidation of the Company’s Venezuelan
subsidiary as further discussed in Note 1.
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Earnings
per
Provision Earnings diluted
Operating  Income for Effective  Net Income Per share
(Dollars in millions, except per share Operating  Income Before Income Tax Attributable  Diluted percent
AMoNNts) Income Margin Taxes Taxes Rate to 3M Shawre change

Year ended Decem't')é; k3 1 , 2019
adjusted amoimts (non-GAAP
measures}

Year ended December 31, 2020
adjusted amounts (non-GAAP
measures)

Adjustments for special items:

Year ended December 31, 2021
adjusted amounts (non-GAAP
measures) $ 7,369 208°% § 7,204 § 1,285 17.8% § 5921 § 10.12 14 %

Year 2021 sales and operating income by business segment:

The following tables contain sales and operating income results by business segment for the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020, Refer to the section entitled Performance by Business Segment later in MD&A for additional discussion concerning
2021 versus 2020 results, including Corporate and Unallocated. Refer to Note 19 for additional information on business
segments, including Elimination of Dual Credit,

2021 vs 2020

2021 2020 % change
Net % of Oper. Net % of Oper, Net Oper.
(Dollars in millions} | Sales Total = Income Sales Total Income Salcs Income

B g}
Safety and Industrial
H d

365% § 2,784 9.8 % 3.3)%

364% $ 2,692 § 11,734

14 2,202
Total Company $ 35,355

9.9 2.9
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Year ended December 31, 2021
Worldwide Sales Change by Business Segment Organic sales Acquisitions Divestitures Translation Total sales change

dus

Year 2021 sales results by geographic area

Percent change information compares the year ended December 31, 2021 with the same period last year, unless otherwise
indicated.
Year ended December 31, 2021

Europe,
Asia Middle East Other

Americas Pacific & Africa Unallocated Worldwide

Total sales change 9.5 % 10.8 % 9.0 % 9.9 %

Additional information beyond what is included in the preceding table is as follows:

+  Inthe Americas geographic area, U.S. total sales increased 8 percent which included increased organic sales of 8
percent. Total sales in Mexico increased 18 percent which included increased organic sales of 16 percent. In Canada,
total sales increased 18 percent which included increased organic sales of 11 percent. In Brazil, total sales increased 18
percent which included increased organic sales of 22 percent.

« Inthe Asia Pacific geographic area, China total sales increased 17 percent which included increased organic sales of
11 percent. In Japan, total sales were flat which included increased organic sales of 2 percent.

Year 2020 sales results by geographic area

Percent change information compares the full year 2020 with the full year 2019, unless otherwise indicated.

Year ended December 31, 2020

Eurogpe,
Asia Middle East Other

Pacific &

Africa Unallocated Worldwide

Total sales change 25 % (2.3)% (1.9)%

Additiona! information beyond what is included in the preceding table is as follows:
«  Inthe Americas geographic area, U.S. total sales increased 6 percent which included increased organic sales of 1
percent. Total sales decreased 14 percent in Mexico which included decreased organic sales of 12 percent. In Canada,
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total sates decreased 1 percent which included decreased organic sales of 4 percent. In Brazil, total sales decreased 17
percent which included increased organic sales of 7 percent.

« Inthe Asia Pacific geographic area, China total sales increased 4 percent which included increased organic sales of 3
percent, In Japan, total sales decreased 3 percent which included decreased organic sales of 7 percent.

Managing currency risks:

The weaker U.S. dollar had a positive impact on sales in full year 2021 compared to the same period last year, Net of the
Company’s hedging strategy, foreign currency positively impacted earnings for full year 2021 compared to the same period last
year. 3M utilizes a number of tools to manage currency risk related to earnings including natural hedges such as pricing,
productivity, hard currency, hard currency-indexed billings, and localizing source of supply. 3M also uses financial hedges to
mitigate currency risk, In the case of more liquid currencies, 3M hedges a portion of its aggregate exposure, using a 12, 24 or
36 month horizon, depending on the currency in question. For less tiquid currencies, financial hedging is frequentiy more
expensive with more Jimitations on tenor. Thus, this risk is largely managed via local operational actions using natural hedging
tools as discussed above, In either case, 3M’s hedging approach is designed to mitigate a portion of foreign currency risk and
reduce volatility, ultimately allowing time for 3M’s businesses to respond to changes in the marketplace,

Financial condition:
Refer to the section entitled “Financial Condition and Liquidity” later in MD&A for a discussion of items impacting cash flows,

In November 2018, 3M’s Board of Directors replaced the Company’s February 2016 repurchase program with a new
repurchase program. This new program authorizes the repurchase of up to $10 billion of 3M’s outstanding common stock, with
no pre-established end date. In 2021, the Company purchased $2.2 billion of its own stock and $0.4 billion in 2020. As of
December 31, 2021, approximately $5.6 billion remained available under the authorization. In February 2022, 3M’s Board of
Directors declared a first-quarter 2022 dividend of $1.49 per share, an increase of 1 percent. This marked the 64th consecutive
year of dividend increases for 3M.

Raw materials:
Refer to the section entitled “Raw matetials” in Item 1 for discussion of 3M's sources and availability of raw materials in 2021.
Pension and postretirement defined benefit/contribution plans:

On a worldwide basis, 3M’s pension end postretirement plans were 93 percent funded af year-end 2021, The primary U.S8.
qualified pension plan, which is appreximately 67 percent of the worldwide pension obligation, was 97 percent funded and the
international pension plans were 101 percent funded. The U.S. non-qualified pension plan is not funded due to tax
considerations and other factors. Asset returns in 2021 for the primary U.8. qualified pension plan were 6,7%, as 3M
strategically invests in both growth assets and fixed income matching assets to manage its finded status, For the primary U.S.
qualified pension plan, the expected long-term rate of return on an annualized basis for 2022 is 6,00%. The primary U.5.
qualified pension plan year-end 2021 discount rafe was 2.89%, up 0.34 percentage points from the year-end 2020 discount rate
0l 2.55%. The increase in U.S, discount rates resulted in an decreased valuation of the projected benefit obligation (PB(O). The
primary U.S. qualified pension plan’s funded status increased 5 percentage point in 2021 due to the lower PBO resulting from
the discount rate increase. Additional detail and discussion of international plan asset returus and discount rates is provided in
Note 13 (Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans).

3M expects to contribute approximately $100 million te $200 million of cash to its global defined benefit pension and
postretirement plans in 2022, The Company does not have a required minimum cash pension contribution obligation for its U.S.
plans in 2022. 3M expects global defined benefit pension and postretirement expense in 2022 to decrease by approximately $20
million pre-tax when compared to 2021. Refer to “Critical Accounting Estimates” within MD&A and Note 13 (Pension and
Postretirement Benefit Plans) for additional information concerning 3M’s pension and post-retirement plans.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Net Sales:

Refer to the preceding “Overview” section and the “Performance by Business Segment” section later in MD&A for additional
discussion of sales change.
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Operating Expenses:

(Percent of net sales) 2021 2020 2021 versus 2020
?(f{ - - — -

Pension and postretirement service cost expense is recorded in cost of sales, SG&A, and R&D. Refer to Note 13 (Pension and
Postretitement Plans) for the service cost components of net periodic benefit costs.

The Company is continuing the ongoing deployment of an enterprise resource planning (ERP) system on a worldwide basis,
with these investments impacting cost of sales, SG&A, and R&D.

Cost of Sales:
Cost of sales includes manufacturing, engineering and freight costs.

Cost of sales, measured as a percent of sales, increased in 2021 when compared to 2020 due to higher raw material, logistics
and outsourced manufacturing costs; manufacturing productivity impacts from global supply chain challenges; increased
compensation and benefit costs; increased adjustments to other environmental liabilities; and increased investments in growth,
productivity and sustainability. Cost of sales was also impacted by year-over-year changes in restructuring charges, net of
restructuring benefits. Year-over-year cost increases were partially offset by lower COVID-related net impacts taken in 2021
versus last year, including period expenses of unabsorbed manufacturing costs taken in 2020

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

SG&A, measured as a percent of sales, decreased in 2021 when compared to 2020, SG&A was impacted by increased
litigation-related costs, compensation and benefit costs, and spending on key growth initiatives. SG&A was also impacted by
year-over-year changes in restructuring charges, net of restructuring benefits, Cost increases were partially offset by the impact
of the favorable decision of the Brazilian Supreme Court in the second quarter of 2021 regarding the calculation of past social
taxes and ongoing general 3M cost management. Prior year also included a number of COVID-related net impacts as deseribed
in the Overview- Consideration of COVID-19 section above,

Research, Development and Related Expenses:

R&D, measured as a percent of sales, decreased in 2021 when compared to 2020. 3M continued to invest in its key initiatives,
including R&D aimed at disruptive innovation programs with the potential to create entirely new markets and disrupt existing
markets.

Gain on Sale of Businesses:

During 2020, the Compauny recorded a pre-tax gain of $2 million ($1 million loss after tax) related to the sale of its advanced
ballistic-protection business and recognition of certain contingent consideration. Additionally, in 2020, the Company recorded a
pre-tax gain of $387 million ($304 after tax) related to the sale of substentially all of its drug delivery business.

Other Expense (Income), Net:
See Note 6 for a detailed breakout of this line item.

Interest expense (net of interest income) decreased during 2021 and increased during 2020. The decrease in 2021 was due to
lower U.S. average debt balances and the impact of interest rate swaps placed during the year. 2021 interest expense also
included an early debt extinguishment pre-tax charge in the first quarter of 2021. The increase in 2020 was due to higher U.S.
average debt balances and lower year-on-year interest income driven by lower average interest rates on cash balances. 2020
interest expense also included an early debt extingnishment charge in conjunction with the repayment of notes in December
2020.
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The non-service pension and postretirement net benefit increased $163 million and $135 million in 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The higher year-on-year benefit in 2021 was primarily due to decreased expense from lower discount rates
applicable to 2021. Refer to Note 13 for additional details.

Provision for Income Taxes:

(Percent of pre-fax income) 2021 2020
{Effective tax rat : 9.7 %

Factors that impacted the tax rates between years are further discussed in the Overview section above and in Note 10.

The tax rate can vary from quarter to quarter due to discrete items, such as the seftlement of income tax audits, changes in tax
laws, and employee share-based payment accounting; as well as recurring factors, such as the geographic mix of income before
taxes.

Refer to Note 10 for further discussion of income taxes.

Income (Loss) from Unconsolidated Subsidiaries, Net of Taxes:

2021 2420

ubsidiaries; hef ¢

Income (loss) from unconsolidated subsidiaries, net of taxes, is attributable to the Company’s accounting under the equity
method for ownership interests in certain entities such as Kindeva following 3M's divestiture of the drug delivery business in
2020.

Net Income (Loss) Atiributable to Noncontrolling Interest.

{Millions}) 2021 2020
Net incorne (16%9) it F——T 7 |

wi 2

Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest represents the elimination of the income or loss attributable to non-3M
ownership interests in 3M consolidated entities. The primary noncontrolling interest relates to 3M India Limited, of which 3M’s
effective ownership is 75 percent.

PERFORMANCE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Ttem 1, Business Segments, provides an overview of 3M’s business segments. In addition, disclosures relating to 3M’s business
segments are provided in Note 19, Effective in the first quarter of 2321, the measure of segment operating performance used by
3M’s chief operating decision maker (CODM) changed and, as a result, 3M’s disclosed measure of segment profit/loss
(business segment operating income) was updated for all comparative periods presented, The change to business segment
operating income aligns with the update to how the CODM assesses performance and allocates resources for the Company’s
business segments (see Note 19 for additional details),

Information provided herein reflects the impact of these changes for ali periods presented. 3M manages its operations in four
business segments. The reportable segments are Safety and Industrial; Transportation and Electronics; Health Care; and
Consumer.

Corporate and Unallocated:

In addition to these four business segiments, 3M assigns certain costs to “Corporate and Unallocated,” which is presented
separately in the preceding business segments table and in Note 19. Corperate and Unallocated operating income includes
“special items” and “other corporate expense-net”. Special items include significant litigation-related charges/benefits, gain/loss
on sale of businesses, and divestiture-related restructuring costs, Other corporate expense-net includes items such as net costs
related to limited unallocated corporate staff and centrally managed material resource centers of expertise costs, certain
litigation and environmental expenses largely related to legacy products/businesses not allocated to business segments,
corporate philanthropic activity, and other net costs that 3M may choose not to allocate directly to its business segments. Other
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corporate expense-net also includes costs and income from contract manufacturing, transition services and other arrangements
with the acquirer of the Communication Markets Division following its 2018 divestiture through 2019 and the acquirer of the
former Drug Delivery business following its 2020 divestiture. Items classified as revenue from this activity are included in
Corporate and Unallocated net sales. Because Corperate and Unallecated includes a variety of miscellaneous items, it is subject
to fluctuation on a quarterly and annual basis.

Corporate and Unallocated net operating loss increased in 2021 when compared to 2020 primarily related to the pre-tax gain of
$387 million included in special items in 2020 as a result of 3M's divestiture of its drug delivery business (see Note 3 for
additional details). '

Spectal ltems

Refer to the Certain amounts adjusted for special items - (non-GAAP measures) section and Note 5 for additional details on the
impact of significant litigation-related charges/benefits, gain/loss on sale of businesses, and divestiture-related restructuring
actions that are reflected in Corporate and Unallocated.

Other Corporate Expense - Net

Other corporate operating expenses decreased in 2021 when compared to 2020. The decrease was primarily due to a $91
million pre-tax benefit from the impact of the favorable decision of the Brazilian Supreme Court in the second quarter of 2021
regarding the calculation of past social taxes, continued lower overall corporate staff spending and first quarter 2020 charges
related to equity securities (as discussed in the “Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis”
section of Note 15), partially offset by increased legal and reserve adjustment costs.

Operating Business Segments:

Information related to 3M’s business segments is presented in the tables that follow with additional context in the
corresponding narrative below the tables.

The following discusses total year results for 2021 compared to 2020 and 2020 compared to 2019 for each business segment.

Safety and Industrial Business (36.4% of consolidated sales):

ang

Percent of sales 20.9 % 23.7 %

Year 2021 results:
Sales in Safety and Industrial were up 9.8 percent in U.S. dollars,
On an organic sales basis:
+  Sales increased in abrasives, industrial adhesives and tapes, automotive aftermarket, electrical markets, roofing
granules, and closure and masking systems and decreased in personal safety year-on-year.

«  Growth was driven by improving general industrial manufacturing activity and other end-market demand partially
offset by prior-year strong pandemic-related respirator mask demand.
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Business segment operating income margins decreased year-on-year due to increases in raw materials, logistics and litigation-
related costs; lower gain on sale of properties; and manufacturing productivity impacts that were partially offset by sales growth
leverage, lower year-on-year respirator mask reserve increases, and benefits from restructuring actions and lower related
charges.
Year 2020 results:
Sales in Safety and Industrial were up 2.1 percent in U.S, dollars,
On an organic sales basis:
+  Sales increased in perscnal safety and roofing granules, while industrial adhesives and tapes, electrical markets,
closure and masking systems, automotive aftermarket, and abrasives sales decreased year-on-year.
+  Strong growth related to unprecedented demand for respirators as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic was partially
offset by sofiness that impacted sales growth across most of the Company’s general industrial-related portfolio.
Divestitures:

» 2019 divestitures that impacted 2020 resulis relate to the August 2019 sale of the gas and flame detection business.

Business segment operating income margins increased 3.0% year-on-year primarily related to strong productivity, continued
cost discipline and benefits from certain property sale, 2019 restructuring and other actions.

Transportation and Electronics Business (27.6% of consolidated sales):

2021 2020

income (millions)

1814
Percent of sales 20.5 %

Year 2021 resulis:
Sales in Transportation and Electronics were up 10.6 percent in U.S. dollars.

On an organic sales basis:

«  Sales increased in advanced materials, commercial solutions, automotive and aerospace, electronics and transportation
safety.

s Sales increased in automotive and aerospace from improving automotive-end market activity and increases in car and
light truck builds, partially offset by impacts from semiconductor supply chain constraints.

= Sales increased in elecironics due to strong demand in data center, semiconductor, interconnect and consumer
electronics markets, partially offset by impacts from semiconductor supply chain constraints.

s Siles increased in commercial solutions, advanced materials and transportation safety due to increased advertising
spend and return to workplace trends.

Business segment operating income margins increased year-on-year due to sales growth leverage, benefits from restructuring

actions and lower related charges, and COVID impacts recognized on certain assets in 2020 that were partially offset by
increases in raw materials and logistic costs, manufacturing productivity impacts, and increased compensation and benefit costs,
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Year 2020 results:
Sales in Transportation and Electronics were down 7.9 percent in U.S. dollars,

On an organic sales basis:
+  Sales increased in electronics, while sales decreased in transportation safety, advanced materials, commercial solutions

and automotive and asrospace.

+  Electronics-related growth was led by demand for semiconductor, data center, and factory automation end-markets,
and was partially offset by softness in the consumer electronics end-market.

+  Automotive and aerospace was primarily impacted by the decline in global car and light truck builds. Commercial
solutions and transportation safety were impacted by soft-end markets such as hospitality, advertising and highway
infrastructure due to social distancing and work-from-home protocols as a result of COVID-19.

Divestitures:
+  InJanuary 2020, 3M completed the sale of its advanced ballistic-protection business. Refer to Note 3 for details,
Business segment operating income margins decreased 1.6%, primarily related to lower sales and reduced productivity in key

end-markets due to COVID-19 related impacts, partially offset by continued cost discipline and benefits-from 2019
restructuring actions.

Health Care Business (25.6% of consolidated sales):

Year 2021 results:
Sales in Health Care were up 8.4 percent in U.S. dollars,

On an organic sales basis:
«  Sales increased in oral care, separation and purification, food safety, health information systems and medical solutions.

«  Sales increased in oral care driven by higher year-on-year dental procedures and in separation and purification from
continued high demand for biopharma filtration solutions for COVID-related vaceine and therapeutic development and

manufacturing.
«  Sales increased in medical solutions from rising elective procedure volumes in the first six months of 2021 and strong

respirator demand in the first quarter of 2021.
o Sales increased in health information systems due to improving hospital information technology investments.
Divestitures:

»  InMay 2020, 3M completed the sale of substantially ail of its drug delivery business.

Business segment operating income margins increased year-on-year due to sales growth leverage and benefits from
restructuring actions and lower related charges that were partially offset by supply chain disruptions, increases in raw materials
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and logistics costs, deal-related costs associated with the announced divestiture of the food safety business (see Note 3),
manufacturing productivity impacts, increased compensation and benefit costs, and increased investments in growth.

Year 2020 resulfs:
Sales in Health Care were up 12.3 percent in U.S, dollars.

On an organic sales basis:

+  Sales increased in medical solutions, separation and purification, and food safety, while sales decreased in health
information systems and oral care.

» Increases in healthcare volumes benefited both medical solutions and oral care after significant disruptions in the
second quarter, with sirong pandemic-related demand for disposable respirators resulting in increased sales for medical
solutions, while cral care sales decreased year-on-year. In addition, health information systems decreased due to
hospitals remaining cautious relative to their information technology investments.

Acquisitions:
+  In February 2019, 3M acquired M*Modal, a leading healthcare technology provider of cloud-based, conversational
artificial intelligence-powered systems that help physicians efficiently capture and improve the patient narrative.
«  In October 2019, 3M completed the acquisition of Acelity Inc. and its KCI subsidiaries, a leading global medical
technology company focused on advanced wound care and specialty surgical applications.

Divestitures:
«  Inthe first quarter of 2019, the Company sold certain oral care technology comprising a business.
+  In May 2020, 3M completed the sale of substantially all of its drug delivery business.

Business segment operating income margins decreased 2.7% year-on-year, driven by impacts related to the Acelity acquisition
in addition to significant sales declines in oral care during the second quarter of 2020, partially offset by continued cost

discipline and benefits from 2019 restructuring and other costs,

Consumer Business (16.6% of consolidated sales):

(Sales (fillio
Sales change analysis

B
Translation

Year 2021 results:
Sales in Consumer wete up 10.3 percent in U.S, dollars.

On an organic sales basis:
»  Sales increased in stationery and office, home improvement, consumer health and safety, and home care.
«  Sales increased in home improvement driven by continned strength in the market with strong demand for Command™
adhesives, Filtrete™ air quality solutions, Meguiars™ auto care and Scotch Blue™ painter’s tape.
»  Sales increased in stationery and office from ongoing strength in demand for packaging and shipping products, Post-
it*-solutions and Scotch® brand office tapes as the business laps last year's COVID-related comparisons.

Business segment operating income margins decreased year-on-year as a result of increases in raw materials, logistics, and

outsourced hardgoods manufacturing costs, manufacturing productivity impacts, and increased compensation and benefit costs
that more than offset leverage from sales growth and benefits from restructuring actions and lower related charges.
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Year 2020 resulfs:
Sales in Consumer were up 3.5 percent in U.S. dollars.

On an organic sales basis:
«  Sales increased in home improvement and home care, while consumer health and safety and stationery and office
decreased.
+  Stationery and office declined year-on-year as a result of many business offices and schools remaining partially or
fully closed due to the pandemic. '
+  Sales showed continued strength in the Company’s Command, Filtrete™, Scotch Blue™, Scotch Brite™, and
Meguiars™ brands.

Business segment operating income margins increased 1.6% year-on-year as a result of strong organic sales growth and
continued cost discipline.

PERFORMANCE BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

While 3M manages its businesses globally and believes its business segment results are the most relevant measure of
performance, the Company also utilizes geographic area data as a secondary performance measure. Export sales are generally
reported within the geographic area where the final sales to 3M customers are made. A portion of the products or components
sold by 3M’s operations to its customers are exported by these customers to different geographic areas. As customers move
their operations from one geographic area to another, 3M’s results will follow. Thus, net sales in a particular geographic area
are not indicative of end-user consumption in that geographic area. Financial information related to 3M operations in various
geographic areas is provided in Note 2 and Note 19.

Refer to the “Overview” section for a summary of net sales by geographic area and business segment.

Geographic Area Supplemental Information

Property, Plant and Equipment -
Employees as of December 31, Capital Spending net as of December 31,

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

10
95,000

95000 $ 1,603 § 1501 §

Employment:

Employment remained consistent in 2021 when compared to 2020. The above table includes the impact of acquisitions, net of
divestitures and other actions.

Capital Spending/Net Property, Plant and Equipment:

Investments in property, plant and equipment enable growth across many diverse markets, helping to meet product demand and
increasing manufacturing efficiency. 3M is increasing its investment in manufacturing and sourcing capability in order to more
closely align its product capability with its sales in major geographic areas in order to best serve its customers throughout the
world with proprietary, automated, efficient, safe and sustainable processes. Capital spending is discussed in more detail later in
MD&A in the section entitled “Cash Flows from Investing Activities.”

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Information regarding significant accounting policies is included in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, As stated in
Note 1, the preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires

management to make certain estimates and assumptions. Such estimates and assumptions are subject to inherent uncertainties
which may result in actual amounts differing from these estimates.
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The Company considers the items below to be eritical accounting estimates. Critical accounting estimates atre those estimates
made in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles that involve a significant level of estimation uncertainty and
have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.
Senior management has discussed the development, selection and disclosure of its critical accounting estimates with the Audit
Committee of 3M’s Board of Directors.

Legal Proceedings:

Assessments of lawsuits and claims can involve a series of complex judgments about future events, the outcomes of which are
inherently uncertain, and can rely heavily on estimates and assumptions, The Company accrues an estimated liability for legal
proceeding claims that are both probable and reasonably estimable in accordance with Accounting Standard Codification (ASC)
450, Contingencies, Please refer to the section entitled “Process for Disclosure and Recording of Liabilities Related to Legal
Proceedings” (contained in “Legal Proceedings” in Note 16) for additional information about such estimates,

Pension and Postretirement Qbligations:

The Company applies certain estimates for the discount rates and expected return on plan assets in determining its defined
benefit pension and postretirement obligations and related net periodic benefit costs. The below further describes these
estimates. Note 13 provides the weighted averages of these assumptions as of applicable dates and for respective periods and
additional information on how the rates were determined.

Discount raie

The defined benefit pension and postretirement obligation represents the present value of the benefits that employees are
entitled to in the future for services already rendered as of the measurement date. The Company measures the present value of
these future benefits by projecting benefit payment cash flows for each future period and discounting these cash flows back to
the December 31 measurement date, using the yields of a portfolio of high quality, fixed-income debt instruments that would
produce cash flows sufficient in timing and amount to settle projected future benefits, Service cost and interest cost are
measured separately using the spot yield curve approach applied to each corresponding obligation. Service costs are determined
based on duration-specific spot rates applied to the service cost cash flows. The interest cost calculation is determined by
applying duration-specific spot rates to the year-by-year projected benefit payments. The spot yield curve approach does not
affect the measurement of the total benefit obligations as the change in service and interest costs offset the actuarial gains and
losses recorded in other comprehensive income. Changes in expected benefit payment and service cost cash flows, as well as
ongoing changes in market activity and yields, cause these rates to be subject to uncertainty.

Using this methodology, the Company determined discount rates for its plans as follow:

International Pension U.S. Postretirement
(weighted average) Medical

.8

Qualified Pension

Expected return on plan assels

The expected return on plan assets for the primary U.S. qualified pension plan is based on strategic asset allocation of the plan,
long-term capital market return expectations, and expected performance from active investment management. For the primary
1.8, qualified pension plan, the expected long-term rate of return on an annualized basis for 2022 is 6.00%, a decrease from
6.50% in 2021. Return on assets assumptions for international pension and other post-retirement benefit plans are calculated on
a plan-by-plan basis using plan asset allocations and expected long-term rate of return assumptions. The weighted average
expected return for the international pension plans is 3.86% for 2022 compared to 4.36% for 2021. Changes in asset allocation
and market performance over time, among other factors, cause these estimates to be subject to uncertainty.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recognized consclidated defined benefit pre-tax pension and
postretirement service cost expense of $303 million and a benefit of $297 million related to all non-service pension and
postretirement net benefit costs (after scttlements, curtailments, special termination benefits and other) for a total consolidated
defined benefit pre-tax pension and pestretirement expense of $206 million, down from $322 million in 2020.
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In 2022, defined benefit pension and postretirement service cost expense is anticipated to total approximately $435 million
while non-service pension and postretirement net benefit costs is anticipated to be a benefit of approximately $250 million, for a
total consolidated defined benefit pre-tax pension and postretirement expense of $185 million, a decrease of approximatety $20
million compared to 2021.

The table below summarizes the impact on 2022 pension expense for the U.S. and international pension plans of a 0.25
percentage point increase/decrease in the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets and discount rate assumptions used to
measure plan liabilities and 2021 net periodic benefit cost. The table assumes all other factors are held constant, including the
slope of the discount rate yield curves.

Tncrease (Decreasc) in Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Expected Return on
Discount Rate Assets

-0.25% +0.25% ~0h25% +0.25%
7. * 3

Goodwill and Certain Long-Lived Assets:

The Company makes certain estimates and judgments in relation to gocdwill and certain long-lived assets. Those include
considerations made in the valuation of certain acquired identifiable definite-lived and indefinite-lived assets as a result of
business combinations as well as considerations in impairment assessments of goodwill.

Acquisition of certain identifiable definite-lived and Indefinite-lived assets

In conjunction with an acquisition of a business, the Company records identifiable definite-lived and indefinite-Hved intangible
assets acquired at their respective fair values as of the date of acquisition. The corresponding fair value estimates for these
assets acquired include projected future cash flows, associated discount rates used to calculate present value, asset life cycles,
royalty rates, and customer retention rates. The fair value calculated for indefinite-lived intangible assets such as certain
tradenames, in addition to intangible assets that are definite-lived such as patents, customer relationships, fradenames and other
technology-based assets may change during the finalization of the purchase price allocation, due to the significant estimates
used in determining their fair value. As a result, the Company may make adjustments to the provisional amounts recorded for
certain items as patt of the purchase price allocation subsequent to the acquisition, not to exceed one year after the acquisition
date, until the purchase accounting allocation is finalized. Changes in factors that may impact projected future cash flows,
discount rates, customer preferences, and other estimates above, as well as underlying market and overall economic conditions,
among other items, cause these estimates to be subject to uncertainty.

Assessments of goodwill

As of December 31, 2021, 3M goodwill totaled approximately $13.5 billion. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually in the
fourth quarter of each year, as further discussed below, and is tested between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances
change that would indicate the carrying amount may be impaired. If future non-cash asset impairment charges are taken, 3M
would expect that only a portion of the goodwill would be impaired.

Impairment testing for goodwill is done at a reporting unit level, with all goodwill assigned to a reporting unit. Reporting units
are one level below the business segment level, but are required to be combined when reporting units within the sare segment
have similar economic characteristics. At 3M, reporting units correspond to a division. 3M did not combine any of its reporting
units for impairment testing. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s net
assets exceeds the estimated fair value of the reporting unit, and the loss would equal that difference. T he estimated fair value of
a reporting unit is determined based on a market approach using comparable company information such as EBITDA (earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) muliiples. 3M also performs a discounted cash flow analysis for certain
reporting units where the market approach indicates additional review is warranted. Where applicable, the discounted cash flow
analysis uses projected cash flows that arc based on sales growth and terminal value assumptions, among other factors. Changes
in reporting unit earnings, comparable company information, and expected future cash flows, as well as underlying market and
overall economic conditions, among other factors, make these estimates subject to uncertainty.

As described in Note 19, effective in the first quarter of 2021, the Company changed its business segment reporting. For
changes that resulted in reporting unit changes, the Compary applied the relative fair value method to determine the impact on
goodwill of the associated reporting units, the results of which were immaterial. In conjunction with the change in segment
reporting, 3M completed an assessment indicating no resulting goodwill impairment existed. The discussion that follows relates
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to the separate Tourth quarter 2021 annual impairment test and is in the context of the reporting unit structure that existed at that
time,

Based on the annual test in the fourth quarter of 2021, no goodwill impairment was indicated for any of the reporting units. As
of October 1, 2021, 3M had 22 primary reporting units, with ten reporting units accounting for approximately 94 percent of the
goodwill. These ten reporting units were comprised of the following divisions: Advanced Materials, Dispiay Materials and
Systems, Electronics Materials Solutions, Health Information Systems, Industrial Adhesives and Tapes, Medical Solutions, Oral
Care, Personal Safety, Separation and Purification Sciences, and Transportation Safety.

3M is a highly integrated enterprise, where businesses share technology and leverage common fundamental strengths and
capabilities, thus many of 3M’s businesses could not easily be sold on a stand-alone basis. 3M’s focus on research and
development has resuited in a portion of 3M’s value being comprised of internally developed businesses.

3M will continue to monitor its reporting units and asset groups in 2022 for any triggering events or other indicators of
impairment.

Uncertainty in Income Tax Positions:

The extent of 3M’s operations involves dealing with uncertainties and judgments in the application of complex tax regulations
in a multitude of jurisdictions. The final taxes paid are dependent upon many factors, including negotiations with taxing
authorities in various jurisdictions and resolution of disputes arising from federal, state, and international tax audits, The
Company recognizes potential liabilities and records tax liabilities for anticipated tax andit issues in the United States and other
tax jurisdictions based on ils estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes will be due. The Company follaws
guidance provided by ASC 740, Income Taxes, a subset of which relates to uncertainty in income taxes, to record these
liabilities (refer to Note 10 for additional information). The Company adjusts these reserves in light of changing facts and
circumstances; however, due to the complexity of some of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result in a payment
that is materially different from the Company’s current estimate of the tax liabilities. If the Company’s estimate of tax liabilities
proves to be less than the vltimate assessment, an additional charge to expense would result. If payment of these amounts
ultimately proves to be less than the recorded amounts, the reversal of the liabilities would result in tax benefits being
recognized in the period when the Company determines the liabilities are no longer necessary.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Information regarding new accounting pronouncements is included in Note 1 to the Consclidated Financial Statements.
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

The strength and stability of 3M’s business model and strong free cash flow capability, together with proven capital markets
access, provides financial flexibility and enables the Company to invest through business cycles. Investing in 3M’s business to
drive organic growth and deliver strong refurns on invested capital remains the first priority for capital deployment, This
includes research and development, capital expenditures, and commercialization capability. The Company also continues to
actively manage its portfolio through acquisitions and divestitures to maximize value for shareholders. 3M expeets to continue
returning cash to shareholders through dividends and share repurchases. To fund cash needs in the United States, the Company
relies on ongoing cash flow from 1.8, operations, access to capital markets and repatriation of the earnings of its foreign
affiliates that are not considered to be permanently reinvested. For those international earnings siill considered to be reinvested
indefinitely, the Company cutrentiy has no plans or intentions to repatriate these funds for U.5. operations. See Note 10 for
further information on earnings considered to be reinvested indefinitely.

3M maintains a strong liguidity profile. The company's primary short-term liquidity needs are met through cash on hand and
U.S. commercial paper issuances, 3M believes it will have continuous access to the commercial paper market. 3M’s
commercial paper program permits the Company to have a maximum of $5 billion outstanding with a maximum maturity of
397 days from date of issuance. At December 31, 2021, there was no commercial paper issued and outstanding.

Total Debi:

The strength of 3M’s credit profile and significant ongoing cash flows provide 3M proven access to capital markets.
Additionally, the Company’s debt maturity profile is staggered to help ensure refinancing needs in any given year are
reasonable in proportion to the total portfolio. 3M currently has an A1 credit rating with a negative outlook from Moody’s
Investors Service and an A+ credit rating with negative outlook from Standard and Poot’s,
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The Company’s total debt was lower at December 31, 2021 when compared to December 31, 2020. Decreases in debt are
further described in Note 12 and were largely due to the March 2021 early redemption via make-whole call offers of $450
million in debt and the November 2021 repayment of 600 million euros aggregate principal amount of Eurobonds that matured.
For discussion of repayments of and proceeds from debt refer to the following “Cash Flows from Financing Activities” section,
As discussed in Note 12, during the second and third quarters of 2021, 3M entered into interest rate swaps that converted part of
the Company’s $1.0 billion and $650 million principal amount of fixed rate notes due 2049 and 2050, respectively, into floating
rate debt for the portion of their terms through mid-2028,

In July 2017, the United Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority announced that it would no longer require banks to submit
rates for the London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) after 2021. In November 2020, the ICE Benchmark Administration
(IBA), LIBOR’s administrator, proposed extending the publication of USD LIBOR through June 2023, Subsequently, in March
of 2021, IBA stated it will cease publication of certain LIBOR rates after December 31, 2021. USD LIBOR rates that do not
cease on December 31, 2021 will continue to be published through June 30, 2023, The Company has reviewed its debt
securities, bank facilities, and derivative inst:uments that utilize LIBOR as the reference rate and these agreements contain
relevant fallback language. The Company’s analysis of its other commercial contracts found that such contracts, as a general
practice, do not reference LIBOR. 3M will continue its assessment and monitor regulatory developments during the iransition
period,

Effective February 10, 2020, the Company updated its “well-known seasoned issuer” (WKST) shelf registration statement,
which registers an indeterminate amount of debt or equity securities for future issuance and sale. This replaced 3M’s previous
shelf registration dated February 24, 2017. In May 2016, in connection with the WKSI shelf, 3M entered into an amended and
restated distribution agreement refating to the future issuance and sale (from time to time) of the Company’s medium-term
notes program (Series F), up to the aggregate principal amount of $18 billion, which was an increase from the previous
aggregate principal amount up to $9 billion of the same Series.

As of December 31, 2021, the total amount of debt issued as part of the medium-term notes program (Series F), inclusive of
debt issued in February 2019 and prior years is approximately $17.6 billion (utilizing the foreign exchange rates applicable at
the time of issuance for the euro denominated debt). Additionally, the August 2019 and March 2020 debt was issued under the
WKSI shelf registration, but not as part of the medium-term notes program (Series F). Information with respect to long-term
debt issuances and maturities for the periods presented and credit facilities is included in Note 12.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities:

At December 31, 2021, 3M had $4.8 biliion of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, of which approximately

$3.1 billion was held by the Company’s foreign subsidiaries and approximately $1.7 billion was held by the United States.
These balances are invested in bank instruments and other high-quality fixed income securities. At December 31, 2020, 3M had
$5.1 billion of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, of which approximately $2.8 billion was held by the
Company’s foreign subsidiaries and approximately $2.3 billion was held by the United States. The decrease from December 31,
2020 resulted from higher share repurchases of treasury stock, the March 2021 early redemption via make-whole call offers of
$450 million in debt, and the November 2021 repayment of 600 million euros aggregate principal amount, partially offset by
strong cash flow from operations.

Net Debt (non-GAAP measure):

Net debt is not defined under U.S. GAAP and may not be computed the same as similarly titled measures used by other
companies. The Company defines net debt as total debt less the totaf of cash, cash equivalents and current and long-term
marketable securities. 3M believes net debt is meaningful to investors as 3M considers net debt and its components to be
important indicators of liquidity and financial position. The foliowing table provides net debt as of December 31, 2021 and
2020,

December 31,

Refer to the preceding “Total Debt” and “Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities™ sections for additional details.
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Balance Sheet:

3M’s strong balance sheet and liquidity provide the Company with significant flexibility to fund its numerous opportunities
going forward. The Company will continue to invest in its operations to drive growth, including continual review of acquisition
opportunities,

The Company uses working capital measures that place emphasis and focus on certain werking capital assets, such as accounts
receivable and inventory activity.

Waorking Capital (non-GAAP measure):

December 31,

(Millions)
{Current assets

Less: Current liabilities

Various assets and liabilities, including cash and short-term debt, can fluctuate significantly from month to month depending on
short-term liquidity needs. Working capital is not defined under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and may not be
computed the same as similarly titled measures used by other companies. The Company defines working capital as current
assets minus current lizbilities, 3M believes working capital is meaningful to investors as a measure of operational efficiency
and short-term financial health.

Worlking capital decreased $0.7 billion compared with December 31, 2020. Balance changes in current assets increased working

capital, driven by increases in inventory, partially offset by decreases in marketable securities-current, Balance changes in

current liabilities decreased working capital, primarily due to increases in short-term borrowing and the current portion of long-
‘term debt and accounts payable.

Inventory increased from Decembet 31, 2020, primarily as a result of increased underlying operating activity related to
increased sales partially offset by foreign currency translation impacts, while marketable securities-current decreased from
lower investments in commercial paper and U.S. treasury securities. Cutrent portion of long-term debt increased based on
underlying debt maturities while accounts payable also increased as a result of increased operating activity from that of late
2020 partially offset by foreign currency translation impacts,

Return on Invested Capital (non-GAAP measure):

Return on Invested Capital (ROIC) is not defined under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Therefore, ROIC should
not be considered a substitute for other measures prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures used by other companies. The Company defines ROIC as adjusted net income (nst income including
non-controlling interest plus after-tax interest expense) divided by average invested capital {equity plus debt). The Coempany
believes ROIC is meaningful to investors as it focuses on shareholder value creation. The calculation is provided in the below
table.

The increase in ROIC was driven by the increased operating income and the higher non-service pension and postretirement net
benefit year-on-year.
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Averagé invested capital $ ’ 3

(1) Effective income tax rate used for interest expense 178 % 19.7 %

i

age equity (includes n_o_n-g_ony'gl!;rig mg-

March31 $ 1388 $ 10214

$ 14497 § 11,507

17,981 $ 20413

Average shor-term and long-term debt $
Cash Flows:

Cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are provided in the tables that follow. Individual amounts in the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows exclude the effects of acquisitions, divestitures and exchange rate impacts on cash and
cash equivalents, which are presented separately in the cash flows. Thus, the amounts presented in the following operating,
investing and financing activities tables reflect changes in balances from period to period adjusted for these effects.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Yl:ars Endcd December 31, {Millions)
& including noncontrollmg interest

il gt R

Depreclatmn and amortization

Net cash prov1ded by opet ating activities $ 7.454 § 8,113

Cash flows from operating activities can fluctuate significantly from period to period, as pension fonding decisions, tax timing
differences and other items can significantly impact cash flows.

In 2021, cash flows provided by operating activities decreased compared to the same period last year, with this decrease
primarily due to working capital changes. The combination of accounts receivable, inventories and accounts payable decreased
operating cash flow by $507 millien in 2021, compared to an operating cash flow improvement of $326 million in 2020.
Additional discussion on working capital changes is provided eazlier in the “Financial Condition and Liquidity™ section.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Years ended Pecember 31, (Millions)

Invesiments in property, plant and equipment enable growth across many diverse markets, helping to meet product demand and
increasing manufacturing efficiency. In 2020, 3M reduced overali spending in light of uncertainty regarding COVID-19, but
continued to invest in expanding the Company’s ability to increase production of respiratory products to meet wortldwide
demand, The Company expects increased capital spending in 2022 ag 3M continues to invest in growth, productivity and
sustainability.

3M records capital-related government grants earned as reductions to the cost of property, plant and equipment; and associated
unpaid liabilities and grant proceeds receivable are considered non-cash changes in such balances fot purposes of preparation of
statement of cash flows.

3M invests in renewal and maintenance programs, which pertain to cost reduction, cycle time, maintaining and renewing
current capacity, eliminating pollution, and compliance. Costs related to maintenance, ordinary tepairs, and certain other items
are expensed. 3M also invests in growth, which adds to capacity, driven by new products, both through expansion of current
facilities and new facilities. Finally, 3M also invests in other initiatives, such as information technology (IT), laboratory
facilities, and a continued focus on investments in sustainability.

Refer to Note 3 for information on acquisitions and divestitures, The Company is actively considering additional acquisitions,
investments and strategic alliances, and from time to time may also divest certain businesses. Acquisitions, net of cash acquired,
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in 2020 primarily relate to the payment made for contingent consideration in regards to the Acelity acquisition, Proceeds from
sale of businesses in 2020 primarily relate to the sales of the Company’s advanced ballistic-protection business and its drug
delivery business.

Purchases of marketable securities and investments and proceeds from maturities and sale of marketable securities and
investments are primarily attributable to certificates of deposit/time deposits, commercial paper, and other securities, which are
classified as available-for-sale. In 2020 these included the maturity of the held-to-maturity debt security that was purchased to
satisfy the redemption of the Third Lien Notes (which matured in May 2020). Refer to Note 11 for more details about 3M’s
diversified marketable securities portfolio.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Years ended December 31, (Millions) 2021 2020

Repayment of debt {maturities greafer than 9C days)

Total cash change in debt (1,145) %

(2,1

Other — net

2021 Debt Activity:

Decreases in debt were largely due to the March 2021 early redemption of $450 million in debt maturing in 2022 via make-
whole call offers and the November 2021 repayment of 600 million euros aggregate principal amount of Eurobonds that
matured, The Company had no commercial paper outstanding at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020. Net commercial
paper issuances in addition to repayments and borrowings by international subsidiaries are largely reflected in “Change in
short-term debt— net” in the preceding table. 3M’s primary short-term liquidity needs are met through cash on hand and U.S.
commercial paper issuances. Refer to Note 12 for more detail regarding debt.

2020 Debt Activity:

Decreases in debt related to the repayment of debt primarily consisting of the aggregate $445 million principal amount of Third
Lien Notes and the 650 million euros and $304 million aggregate principal amount of floating-rate medium-term notes that
matured in May 2020 and August 2020, respectively. During the third quarter of 2020, the Company paid the outstanding
balances on their Japanese yen and euro credit facilities. In addition, $1.0 billion aggregate principal amount of notes maturing
in September 2021 were repaid in December 2020 via make-whole-call offers. Increases in debt were related to the March 2020
issuance of $1.75 billion in registered notes. Ouistanding eommercial paper decreased $150 million from December 31, 2019 to
December 31, 2020,

Repurchases of Common Stock:

Repurchases of common stock are made to support the Company’s stock-based employee compensation plans and for other
corporate purposes. In 2021, the Company purchased $2.2 billion of its own stock. 3M repurchased shares, after having
suspended repurchases (with other repurchase activity Iimited to 3M's stock compensation plans) in the first quarter of 2020.
For more information, refer to the table titled “Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities” in Part IT, Ttem 5. The Company does not
utilize derivative instruments linked to the Compaay’s stock,

Dividends Paid to Shareholders:
3M has paid dividends since 1916. Tn February 2022, 3M’s Board of Directors declared a first-quarter 2022 dividend of $1.49

per share, an increase of 1 percent. This is equivalent to an annual dividend of $5.96 per share and marked the 64th consecutive
year of dividend increases.
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Other cash flows from financing activities may include various other items, such as cash paid associated with certain derivative
instruments, distributions to or sales of noncontrolling interests, changes in cash overdraft balances, and principal payments for
finance leases.

Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure):

Free cash flow and fice cash flow conversion are not defined under U.8. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
Therefore, they should not be considered a substitute for income or cash flow data prepared in accordance with U.S, GAAP and
may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies. The Company defines free cash flow as net cash
provided by operating activities less purchases of property, plant and equipment. It should not be inferred that the entire free
cash flow amount is available for discretionary expenditures. The Company defines free cash flow conversion as free cash flow
divided by net income attributable to 3M. The Company believes free cash flow and free cash flow conversion are meaningfui
to investors as they are useful measures of performance and the Company uses these measures as an indication of the sirength
of the company and its ability to generate cash. Free cash flow and free cash flow conversion vary across quarters throughout
the year. Below find a recap of free cash flow and free cash flow conversion.

Refer to the preceding “Cash Flows from Operating Activities” and “Cash Flows from Investing Activities” sections for
discussion of items that impacted the operating cash flow and purchases of PP&E components of the calculation of free cash
flow. Refer to the preceding “Results of Operations” section for discussion of items that impacted the net income atiributable to
3M component of the calculation of free cash flow conversion.

Free cash flow conversion decreased in 2021 compared to 2020 as net income attributable to 3M increased while free cash flow
decreased.

Years ended December 31, (Millions)
[Major GAAF Cash Flow Categories

L

‘Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities

2021 2020

sax

‘Net cash provided by (used in) ﬁnancingiactivities

Material Cash Regquirement from Known Contractual and Other Obligations:

3M’s material cash requirements from known contractual and other obligations primarily relate to following, for which
information on both a short-term and long-term basis is provided in the indicated notes to the consolidated financial statements:
»  Tax obligations-—Refer to Note 10.
*  Debt—Refer to Note 12. Future cash payments for interest on long~-term debt is approximately $6 billion,
»  Commitments and contingencies—Refer to Note 16.
= Operating and finance leases—Refer to Note 17.

3M purchases the majority of its materials and services as needed, with no unconditional commitments. In limited
circumstances, in the normal course of business, 3M enters into unconditional purchase obligations with various vendors that
may take the form of, for example, take or pay contracts in which 3M guarantees payment to ensure availability to 3M of
certain materials or services or to ensure ongoing efforts on capital projects. The Company expects to receive underlying
materials or services for these purchase obligations. To the extent the limited amount of these purchase obligations fluctuates, it
largely trends with normal-course changes in regular operating activities. Additionally, contractual capital commitments
represent a small part of the Company’s expected capital spending.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts, options and swaps to hedge against the effect of exchange rate
fluctuations on cash flows denominated in foreign currencies and to offset, in part, the impacts of changes in value of various
non-functional currency denominated items including certain intercompany financing balances. The Company manages interest
rate risks using a mix of fixed and floating rate debt. To help manage borrowing costs, the Company may enter into interest rate
swaps. Under these arrangements, the Company agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and
floating interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. The Company manages
commodity price risks through negotiated supply contracts and price protection agreements.

Refer to Item 7A, “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk”, for further discussion of foreign exchange
rates risk, interest rates risk, commodity prices risk and value at risk analysis.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

In the context of Item 7A, 3M is exposed to market risk due to the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. Changes in those factors could impact the Company’s results of operations
and financial condition. Senior management provides oversight for risk management and derivative activities, determines
certain of the Company’s financial risk policies and objectives, and provides guidelines for derivative instrument utilization.
Senior management also establishes certain associated procedures relative to control and valuation, risk analysis, counterparty
credit approval, and ongoing monitoring and reporting.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by counterparties in interest rate swaps, currency swaps,
and forward and option contracts. However, the Company’s risk is limited to the fair value of the instruments. The Company
actively monitors its exposure to credit risk through the use of credit approvals and credit limits, and by selecting major
international banks and financial institutions as counterparties. The Company does not anticipate nonperformance by any of
these counterparties.

Foreign Exchange Rates Risk:

Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuations in those rates may affect the Company’s net investment in foreign subsidiaries
and may cause fluctuations in cash flows related to foreign denominated transactions. 3M is also exposed to the translation of
foreign cutrency earnings to the U.S. dollar. The Company enters into foreign exchange forward and option contracts to hedge
against the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash flows denominated in foreign currencies. These transactions are
designated as cash flow hedges. 3M may de-designate these cash flow hedge relationships in advance of the occurrence of the
forecasted transaction. The maximum length of time over whick 3M hedges its exposure to the variability in future cash flows
of the forecasted transactions is 36 months. In addition, 3M enters into foreign currency contracts that are not designated in
hedging relationships to offset, in part, the impacts of changes in value of various non-functional currency denominated items
including certain intercompany financing balances. As circumstances warrant, the Company also uses foreign currency forward
contracts and foreign currency denominated debt as hedging instruments to hedge portions of the Company’s net investments in
foreign operations. The dollar equivalent gross notional amount of the Company’s foreign exchange forward and option
contracts designated as either cash flow hedges or net investment hedges was $2.6 billion at December 31, 2021. The dollar
equivalent gross notional amount of the Company’s foreign exchange forward and option contracts not designated as hedging
instruments was $3.7 billion at December 31, 2021, In addition, as of December 31, 2021, the Company had €2.9 billion in
principal amount of foreign currency denominated debt designated as non-derivative hedging instruments in certain net
investment hedges as discussed in Note 14 in the “Net Investment Hedges” section.

Interest Rates Risk:

The Company may be impacted by interest rate volatility with respect to existing debt and future debt issuances. 3M manages
interest rate risk and expense using a mix of fixed and floating rate debt. In addition, the Company may entet into interest rate
swaps that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges. Under these arrangements, the Company agrees to exchange, at
specified intervals, the difference between fixed and floating interest amounts calcutated by reference to an agreed-upon
notional principal amount. The dollar equivalent (based on inception date foreign currency exchange rates) gross notional
amount of the Company’s interest rate swaps at December 31, 2021 was $800 million. Additional details about 3M’s long-term
debt can be found in Note 12, including references to information regarding derivatives and/or hedging instruments, further
discussed in Note 14, associated with the Company’s long-term debt.
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Commedity Prices Risk:

The Company manages commodity price risks through negotiated supply contracts and price protection agreements, The related
mark-to-market gain or loss on qualifying hedges was included in other comprehensive income to the extent effective, and
reclassified into cost of sales in the period during which the hedged transaction affected earnings.

Value At Risk:

The value at risk analysis is performed annually to assess the Company’s sensitivity to changes in currency rates, interest rates,
and commodity prices. A Monte Carlo simulation technique was used to test the impact on after-tax earnings related to debt
instruments, interest rate derivatives and underlying foreign exchange and commeodity exposures outstanding at December 31,
2021. The model (third-party bank dataset) used a 95 percent confidence level over a 12-month time horizon. This model does
not purport to represent what actually will be experienced by the Company. In 2021, the model was expanded to cover all of
3M’s currencies and hedging activity versus previously including 3M’s nine primary currencies excluding hedges. Prior period
amounts have been updated to reflect the current period’s revised methodology. The following table summarizes the possible
adverse and positive impacts to after-tax earnings refated to these exposures.

Adverse impacf on after-tax earnings Positive impact on after-tax earnings

2021 2020 2021 2020

An analysis of the global exposures related to purchased components and materials is performed at each year-end. A one
percent price change would result in a pre-tax cost or savings of approximately $90 million per year. The global energy
exposure is such that a ten percent price change would result in a pre-tax cost or savings of approximately $40 million per year.
Global energy exposure includes energy costs used in 3M production and other facilities, primarily electricity and natural gas.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB 1D 238)
Consolidated Financial Statements

Index to Financial Statements

A complete summary of Form 10-K content, including the index to financial statements, is found at the beginning of this
document.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the financial information included in this report. The financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Where necessary, the financial statements reflect estimates based on management’s judgment.

Management has established and maintains a system of internal control over financial repotting for the Company and its
subsidiaries. This system and its established accounting procedures and refated controls are designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, that the books and records properly reflect all transactions, that policies and procedures
are implemented by qualified personnel, and that published financial statements are propetly prepared and fairly presented. The
Company’s system of internal control over financial reporting is supported by widely communicated written policies, including
business conduct policies, which are designed to require all employees to maintain high ethical standards in the conduct of
Company affairs. Internal auditors continually review the accounting and control system.

3M Company
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control over financial reporting.
Management conducted an assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework
established by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013), Based on the assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2021, the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is effective.

The Company’s internal contrel over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein, which expresses an

unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021,

3M Company
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 3M Company
Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of 3M Company and its subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income, of comprehensive income, of changes in
equity and of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, including the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements™). We also have audited the Company's internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2021 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Urited
States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the COSO.

Changes in Accouniing Principles

As discussed in Notes 1 and 8 to the censolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts
for net periodic pension and postretirement plan cost in 2021 and the manner in which it accounts for leases in 2019,
respectively.

Basis for Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management’s Report oi Internal Ceontrel Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting
based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commiission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects.

Our audits of the consclidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatemnent
of the consalidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks,
Such procedures included examining, on a fest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal
conirol over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing.the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk, Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal conirol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (if) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iil} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future petiods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. -

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relates to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate
opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Legal Proceedings

As described in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, management records liabilities for legal proceedings in those
instances where it can reasonably estimate the amount of the loss and when loss is probable. Where the reasonable estimate of
the probable loss is a range, management records as an accrual in its financial statements the most likely estimate of the loss, or
the low end of the range if there is no one best estimate. Management either discloses the amount of a possible loss or range of
loss in excess of established accruals if estimable, or states that such an estimate cannot be made. Management discloses
significant legal proceedings even where liability is not probabie or the amount of the liability is not estimable, or both, if
management believes there is at least a reasonable possibility that a loss may be incurted.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to legal proceedings is a critical audit
matter are the significant judgment by management when assessing the likelihood of a loss being incurred and when estimating
the loss or range of loss for each claim, which in turn led to significant auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing
procedures and evaluating management’s assessment of the liabilities and disclosures associated with legal proceedings.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls relating to
management’s evaluation of the liability related to legal proceedings, including controls over determining the likelihood of a
loss and whether the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated, as well as financial statement disclosures. These procedures
also included, among others, obtaining and evaluating the letters of audit inquiry with internal and external legal counsel,
evaluating the reasonableness of management’s assessment regarding whether an unfavorable outcome is reasonably possible or
probable and reasonably estimable, and evaluating the sufficiency of the Company’s disclosures related to legal proceedings.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota

February 9, 2022

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1975,
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3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Income
Years ended December 31

(Millions, except per share amonnts) 2021

Operating expenses
i

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Years ended December 31

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet
At December 31

{Dol]als in millions, except per share amount) ] 2021 2020

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,

47



Table_of Contents

3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Years ended December 31
3M Company Shareholders

Common
Stock and Accumulated
Additional Other Non-
Paid-in Retained Treasury Comprehensive controlling
(Dollars in mllhons, except per share amounts) Total Capital  Earnings Stock ]ncome {Loss) Interest

«2018_ ' 75,848

5916 42 130

u(:')ther comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Defined benefit pension and post-retirement plans
adjustment 106 106 —

Total other comprehenswe income {loss), net of fax 411

12,951 6171 43,821 (29,404)

366 283 418 368 848 221 367,457 888

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31

i
L

Proceeds from maturities and sale of marketable securities and investments

stock option and b

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTE 1. Significant Accounting Policies

Consolideation: 3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technology innovator and marketer of a wide variety of products. All
applicable subsidiaries are consolidated. All intercompany transactions are eliminated. As used herein, the term “3M” or
“Company” refers to 3M Company and subsidiaries unless the context indicates otherwise.

Basis of presentation: Certain amounts in the prior years’ consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to
the current year presentation,

Effective in the first quarter of 2021, 3M made the following changes. Information provided herein reflects the impact of these
changes for all periods presentad,
»  Change in accounting principle for net periodic pension and postretirement plan cost. See below for additional
information,
+  Change in measure of segment operating performance used by 3M’s chief operating decision maker—impacting 3M’s
disclosed measure of segment profit/loss (business segment operating income). See additional information in Note 19.
»  Change in alignment of certain products within 3M’s Consumer business segment—creating the Consumer Health and
Safety Division: See additional information in Note 19.

Foreign currency translation: Local currencies generally are considered the functional currencies outside the United States with
the exception of 3M’s subsidiaties in Argentina, the economy of which was considered highly inflationary beginning in 2018,
and accordingly, the financial statements of these subsidiaries are remeasured as if their functional currency is that of their
parent. Assets and liabilities for operations in local-currency environments are translated at month-end exchange rates of the
period reported. Income and expense items are translated at average monthly currency exchange rates in eifect during the
period. Cumulative translation adjustments are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in
shargholders’ equity.

3M had a consolidating subsidiary in Venezuela, the financial statements of which were remeasured as if its functional currency
were that of its parent because Venezuela’s econcmic environment is considered highly inflationary. The operating income of
this subsidiary was immaterial as a percent of 3M’s consolidated operating income for the periods presented. In light of
circumstances, including the country’s unstable environment and heightened unrest leading to sustained lack of demand, and
expectation that these circumstances will continue for the foreseeable future, during May 2019, 3M concluded it no longer met
the criteria of control in order to continue consolidating its Venezuelan operations. As a result, as of May 31, 2019, the
Company began reflecting its interest in the Venezuelan subsidiary as an equity investment that does not have a readily
determinable fair value. This resulted in a pre-tax charge of $162 million within other expense (income) in the second quarter of
2019. The charge primarily relates to $144 million of foreign currency translation losses associated with foreign currency
movements before Venezuela was accounted for as a highly inflationary economy and pension elements previously included in
accumulated other comprehensive loss along with write-down of intercompany receivable and investment balances associated
with this subsidiary. Beginning May 31, 2019, 3M’s consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations no longer include
the Venezuelan entity’s operations other than an immaterial equity investment and associated loss or income thercon largely
only to the extent, that 3M provides support or materials and receives funding or dividends. '

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting pericd. The Company considered the coronavirus (COVID-19) related impacts on its estimates,
as appropriate, within its consolidated financial staterments and there may be changes to those estimates in future periods. 3M
believes that the accounting estimates are appropriate after giving consideration to the increased uncertainties surrounding the
severity and duration of the COVID-19 pandemic. Such estimates and assumptions are subject to inherent uncertainties which
may result in actual amounts differing from these estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and temporary investments with maturities of three
months or less when acquired.

Marketable securities: Marketable securities include available-for-sale debt securities and are recorded at fair value, Cost of
securities sold use the first in, first cut (FIFO) method. The classification of marketable securities as current or non-current is
based on the availability for use in current operations. 3M reviews impairments associated with its marketable securities in

accordance with the measurement guidance provided by ASC 320, Investinents-Debt Securities and ASC 326-30, Available-
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for-Sale Debt Securities, when determining whether a decline in fair value below the amortized cost basis has resulted from a
credit loss or other factors. An impairment relating to credit losses is recorded through an allowance for credit losses. The
allowance is limited by the amount that the fair value is less than the amortized cost basis, A change in the allowance for credit
losses is recorded into earnings in the period of the change. Any impairment that has not been recorded through an allowance
for credit losses is recorded through accumulated other comprehensive income as a component of shareholders” equity. The
factors considered in determining whether a credit loss exists can include the extent to which fair value is less than the
ameortized cost basis, changes in the credit quality of the underlying loan obligors, credit ratings actions, as well as other factors.
When a credit loss exists, the Company compares the present value of cash flows expected to be collected from the debt
security with the amortized cost basis of the security to determine what allowance amount, if any, should be recorded. Amounts
are reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income and into earnings upon sale or a change in the porticns of
impairment related to credit losses and not related to credit losses.

Investments: All equity securities that do not result in consolidation and are not accounted for under the equity method are
measured at fair value with changes therein reflected in net income. 3M utilizes the measurement alternative for equity
investments that do not have readily determinable fair values and measures these investments at cost less impairment plus or
minus observable price changes in orderly transactions, The balance of these securities is disclosed in Note 7.

Other assets; Other assets include deferred income taxes, product and other insurance receivables, the cash surrender value of
life insurance policies, medical equipment in rental arrangements utilized primarily by hospitals and other medical clinics,
prepaid pension and postretirement and other long-term assets, Investments in life insurance policies are reported at the amount
that could be realized under contract at the balance sheet date, with any changes in cash surrender value or contract value during
the period accounted for as an adjustment of premiums paid. Cash outflows and inflows associated with life insurance activity
are included in “Purchases of marketable securities and investments” and “Proceeds from maturities and sale of marketable
securities and investments,” respectively,

Invenrories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value (NRV), which is defined as estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and transportation. Cost is
determined on a first-in, first-out basis.

Property, plant and equipment. Propesty, plant and equipment, including capitalized interest and internal direct engineering
costs, are recorded at cost, Depreciation of property, plant and equipment generally is computed using the straight-line method
based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives of buildings and improvements primarily range
from ten to forty years, with the majority in the range of twenty to forty years. The estimated useful lives of machinery and
equipment primarily range from three fo fifteen years, with the majority in the range of five to ten years. Fully depreciated
assets other than capitalized internally developed software are retained in property, plant and equipment and accumulated
depreciation accounts until disposal. Upon disposal, assets and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts
and the net amount, less proceeds from disposal, is charged or credited to operations. Property, plant and equipment amounts
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset (asset
group) may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. The amount
of the impairment loss recorded is calculated by the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its fair value. Fair value is
generally determined using a discounted cash flow analysis. 3M records capital-related government grants earned as reductions
to the cost of property, plant and equipment; and asscciated unpaid liabilitics and grant proceeds receivable are considered non-
cash changes in such balances for purposes of preparation of statement of cash flows.

Conditional assef retirement obligations: A liability is initially recorded at fair value for an asset retirement obligation
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair
value can be made. Conditional asset retirement obligations exist for certain long-term assets of the Company. The obligation is
initially measured at fair value using expected present value techniques. Over time the liabilities are accreted for the change in
their present value and the initial capitalized costs are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related assets. The asset
tetirement obligation liability was §176 million and $145 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Goodwill: Goodwill is the excess of cost of an acquired entity over the amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in a business combination. Goodwill is not amortized, Goodwill is tested for impairment annually in the fourth quarter
of each year, and is tested for impairment between annual tesis if at event ocours or circumstances change that would indicate
the carrying amount may be impaired. Impairment testing for goodwill is done at a reporting unit level, with all goodwill
assigned to a reporting unit. Reporting units are one level below the business segment level, buf are required to be combined
when reporting units within the same segment have similar economic characteristics. 3M did not combine any of its reporting
units for impairment testing. The impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying value of the reporting unit’s
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net assets exceeds its estimated fair value, not to exceed the carrying value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. The estimated fair
value of a reporting unit is determined based on a market approach using comparable company information such as EBITDA
(earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) multiples. Companies have the option to first assess qualitative
factors to determine whether the fair value of a reporting unit is not “more likely than not” less than its carrying amount, which
is commonly referred to as “Step 0”. 3M has chosen not to apply Step 0 for its annual goodwill assessments.

Intangible asseis: Intangible asset types include customer related, patents, other technology-based, tradenames and other
intangible assets acquired from an independent party. Intangible assets with a definite life are amortized over a period ranging
from five years to twenty years on a systematic and rational basis (generally straight line) that is representative of the asset’s
use. The estimated useful lives vary by category, with customer-related largely between ten o twenty years, patents largely
between seven to thirteen years, other technology-based largely between six to twenty years, definite lived tradenames largely
between six and twenty years, and other intangibles largely between five to eight years. Intangible assets are removed from their
respective gross asset and accumulated amortization accounts when they are no longer in use. Refer to Note 4 for additional
details on the gross amount and accumulated amortization of the Company’s intangible assets. Costs related fo internally
developed intangible assets, such as patents, are expensed as incurred, within “Research, development and related expenses.”

Intangible assets with a definite life are tested for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset (asset group) may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount exceeds
the estimated undiscounted cash flows from the asset’s or asset group’s ongoing use and eventual disposition. If an impairment
is identified, the amount of the impairment loss recorded is calculated by the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its fair
value. Fair value is generally determined using a discounted cash flow analysis.

Intangible assets with an indefinite life, namely certain tradenames, are not amortized. Indefinite-lived intangible assets are
tested for impairment annually, and are tested for impairment between annual tests if an event oceurs or circumstances change
that would indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired. An impairment foss would be recognized when the fair value is
less than the carrying value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset.

Resiructuring actions; Restructuring actions generally include significant actions involving employee-related severance
charges, contract termination costs, and impairment or accelerated depreciation/amortization of assets associated with such
actions. Employee-related severance charges are largely based upon distributed employment policies and substantive severance
plans, These charges are reflected in the quarter when the actions are probable and the amounts are estimable, which typically is
when management approves the associated actions. Severance amounts for which affected employees in certain circumstances
are required to render service in order to receive benefits at their termination dates were measured at the date such benefits were
communicated to the applicable employees and recognized as expense over the employees’ remaining service periods. Contract
termination and other charges primarily reflect costs to terminate a contract before the end of its term (measured at fair value at
the time the Company provided notice to the counterparty) or costs that will continue to be incurred under the contract for its
remaining term without economic benefit to the Company.

Revenue (sales) recognition: The Company seils a wide range of products to a diversitied base of customers around the world
and has no material concentration of credit risk or significant payment terms extended to customers. The vast majority of 3M’s
customer arrangements contain a single performance obligation to transfer manufactured goods as the promise to transfer the
individual goods is not separately identifiable from other promises in the contracts and, therefore, not distinct. However, tc a
limited extent 3M also enters into customer arrangements that involve intellectual property out-licensing, multiple performance
obligations (such as equipment, installation and service), software with coterminous post-contract support, services and non-
standard terms and conditions.

The Company recognizes revenue in light of the guidance of Accounting Standards Cedification (ASC) 606, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Revenue is recognized when control of goods has transferred to customers. For the majority of the
Company’s customer arrangenients, control transfers to customers at a point-in-time when goods/services have been delivered
as that is generally when legal title, physical possession and risks and rewards of goods/services transfer to the customer, In
limited arrangements, control transfers over time as the custemer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as 3M
completes the performance obligation(s).

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price which the Company expects to be entitled. When determining the transaction
price, 3M estimates variable consideration applying the portfolio approach practical expedient under ASC 606. The main
soutees of variable consideration for 3M are customer rebates, trade promotion funds, and cash discounts. These sales
incentives are recorded as a reduction to revenue at the time of the initial sale using the most-likely amount estimation method.
The most-likely amount method is based on the single most likely outcome from a range of possible consideration ouicomes.
The range of possible consideration outcomes are primarily derived from the following inputs: sales terms, historical
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experience, frend analysis, and projected market conditions in the varicus markets served. Because 3M serves numerous
markets, the sales incentive programs offered vary across businesses, but the most common incentive relates to amounts paid or
credited to customers for achieving defined volume levels or growth objectives, There are no material instances where variable
consideration i{s constrained and not recerded at the initial time of sale. Free goods are accounted for as an expense and
recorded in cost of sales. Product refurns are recorded as a reduction to revenue based on anticipated sales returns that occur in
the normal course of business. 3M primarily has assurance-type warranties that do not result in separate performance
obligations. Sales, use, value-added, and other excise taxes are not recognized in revenue, The Company has elected to present
revenue net of sales taxes and other similar taxes.

For contracts with multiple performance obligations, the Company allocates the contract’s transaction price to each
performance obligation using 3M’s best estimate of the standalone selling price of each distinct good or service in the contract,

The Company did not recognize any material revenue in the current reporting period for performance obligations that were fully
satisfied in previous periods.

The Company does not have material unfulfilled performance obligation balances for contracts with an original length greater
than one year in any years presented. Additionally, the Company does not have material costs related to obtaining a contract
with amortization periods greater than one vear for any year presented.

3M applies ASC 606 utilizing the following allowable exemptions or practical expedients:

+  Exemption to not disclose the unfulfilled performance obligation balance for contracts with an original length of one
year or less.

+  Practical expedient relative to costs of obtaining a contract by expensing sales commissions when incurred because the
amortization period would have been one year or Iess.

»  Portfolio approach practical expedient relative to estimation of variable consideration.

+  “Right to invoice” practical expedient based on 3M’s right to invoice the customer at an amount that reasonably
represents the value to the customer of 3M’s performance completed to date.

+  Election to present revenue net of sales taxes and other similar taxes.

+  Sales-based royalty exemption permitting future intellectua! property out-licensing royalty payments to be excluded
from the otherwise required remaining performance obligations disclosure

The Company recognizes revenue from the rental of durable medical devices in accordance with the guidance of ASC 842,
Leases. The Company recognizes rental revenue based on the length of time a device is used by the patient/organization, (i) at
the confracted rental rate for contracted customers and (ii) generally, retail price for non-contracted customers. The leases are
short-term in nature, generally providing for daily or monthly pricing, and are all classified as operating leases.

Accounts recetvable and allowances: Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest.
The Company maintains allowances for bad debts, cash discounts, and various other items. The allowances for bad debts and
cash discounts are based on the best estimate of the amount of expected credit losses in existing accounts receivable and
anticipated cash discounts. The Company determines the allowances based on historical write-off experience by industry and
regional economic data, current expectations of future credit losses, and historical cash discounts, The Company reviews the
allowances monthly. The allowances for bad debts as well as the provision for credit losses, write-off activity and recoveries for
the periods presented are not material. The Company does not have any significant off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to
its customers, The Company has long-term customer receivables that do not have significant credit risk, and the origination
dates of which are typically not older than five years. These long-term receivables are subject to an allowance methodology
similar to other receivables.

Advertising and merchandising: These costs are charged to operations in the period incurred, and totaled $327 miliion in 2021,
$278 million in 2020 and $348 million in 2019,

Research, development and related expenses: These costs are charged to operations in the period incurred and are shown on a
separate line of the Consolidated Statement of Income. Research, development and related expenses totaled $1.994 billion in
2021, $1.878 billion in 2020 and $1.911 billion in 2019. Research and development expenses, covering basic scientific research
and the application of scientific advances in the development of new and improved products and their uses, totaled $1.243
billion in 2021, $1.146 billion in 2020 and $1.253 billion in 2019, Related expenses primarily include technical support;
internally developed patent costs, which include costs and fees incurred to prepare, fils, secure and mainfain patents;
amortization of externally acquired patents and externally acquired in-process research and development; and gains/losses
associated with certain corporate approved investments in R&D-related ventures.
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Internal-use software: The Company capitalizes direct costs of services used in the development of, and external software
acquired for use as, internal-use software. Amounts capitalized are amortized over a period of three to seven years, generally on
a straight-line basis, unless another systematic and rational basis is more representative of the software’s use. Amounts are
reported as a component of either machinery and equiproent or finance leases within propetty, plant and equipment, Fully
depreciated internal-use software assets are removed from property, plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation
accounts.

Environmental; Environmental expenditures relating to existing conditions caused by past operations that do not contribute to
current or future revenues are expensed. Reserves for liabilities related to anticipated remediation costs are recorded on an
undiscounted basis when they are probable and reasonably estimable, generally no later than the completion of feasibility
studies, the Company’s commitment to a plan of action, or approval by regulatory agencies. Environmental expenditures for
capital projects that contribute to current or future operations generally are capitalized and depteciated over their estimated
useful lives.

Income taxes: The provision for income taxes is determined using the asset and liability approach, Under this approach,
deferred income taxes represent the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
and tax basis of assets and liabilities. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce its deferred tax assets when
uncertainty regarding their realizability exists. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had valuation allowances of
$142 million and $135 million on its deferred tax assets, respectively. The Company recognizes and measures its uncertain tax
positions based on the rules under ASC 740, fncome Taxes.

Earnings per share: The difference in the weighted average 3M shares outstanding for calculating basic and diluted earnings
per share attributable to 3M common shareholders is the result of the dilution associated with the Company’s stock-based
compensation plans, Certain options outstanding under these stock-based compensation plans during the years 2021, 2020 and
2019 were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share attributable to 3M common shareholders because they
would have had an anti-dilutive effect (7.8 million average options for 2021, 18.1 million average options for 2020, and 8.9
million average options for 2019). The computations for basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31
follow:

Earnings Per Share Computations

oun(s

(Amounts in millions, except per shar

|5

Dilution associated with the Company’s stock-based compensation p
snominator forweighted ayerag mod ing

-Earniﬂgs per share attributable t-.o 3M common shareholders — diluted % 16.12 3 936 § 772

Stock-based compensation: The Company recognizes compensation expense for its stock-based compensation programs, which
include stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units (RSUs), performance shares, and the General Employees® Stock
Purchase Plan (GESPP). Under applicable accounting standards, the fair value of share-based compensation is determined at the
grant date and the recognition of the related expense is recorded over the period in which the share-based compensation vests.
However, with respect to income taxes, the related deduction from taxes payable is based on the award’s inirinsic value at the
time of exercise (for an option) ot cn the fair value upon vesting of the award (for RSUs), which can be either greater (creating
an excess tax benefit) or less {creating a tax deficiency) than the deferred tax benefit recognized as compensation cost is
recognized in the financial statements. These excess tax benefits/deficiencies are recognized as income tax benefit/expense in
the statement of income and, within the statement of cash flows, are classified in operating activities in the same manner as
other cash flows related to income taxes, The extent of excess tax benefits/deficiencies is subject to variation in 3M stock price
and timing/extent of RSU vestings and employee stock aption exercises.

Comprehensive income: Total comprehensive income and the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (Toss)
are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive [ncome and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.
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Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is composed of foreign currency translation effects (including hedges of net
investments in international companies), defined benefit pension and postretirement plan adjustments, unrealized gains and
losses on available-for-sale debt securities, and unrealized gains and losses on cash flow hedging instruments. The Company
uses the portfolio approach for releasing income tax effects from accumulated other comprehensive income.

Derivatives and hedging activities: All derivative instruments within the scope of ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, are
recorded on the balance sheet at fair value, The Company uses interest rate swaps, currency swaps, and forsign currency
forward and option contracts to manage risks generally associated with foreign exchange rate, interest rate and commeodity
market volatility. All hedging instruments that qualify for hedge accounting are designated and cffective as hedpes, in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. If the underlying hedged transaction ceases to exist, all changes
in fair value of the related derivatives that have not been seftled are recognized in current earnings. Instruments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting are marked to market with changes recognized in current earnings. Cash flows from derivative
insiruments are elassified in the statement of cash flows in the same category as the cash flows from the items subject fo
designated hedge or undesignated {economic) hedge relationships. The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes and is not a party to leveraged derivatives,

Credit visk: The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by counterparties in interest rate swaps,
currency swaps, and forward and option contracts. However, the Company’s risk is limited to the fair value of the instruments.
The Company actively monitors its exposure to credit risk through the use of credit approvals and credit limits, and by selecting
major international banks and financial institutions as counterparties. 3M entfers into master nefting arrangements with
counterparties when possible to mitigate credit risk in derivative transactions. A master netting arrangement may allow each
counterparty to net settle amounts owed between a 3M entity and the counterparty as a result of multiple, separate derivative
transactions, The Company does not anticipate nonperformance by any of these counterparties. 3M has elected to present the
fair value of derivative assets and labilities within the Company’s consolidated balance sheet on a gross basis even when
derivative transactions are subject to master netting arrangements and may otherwise qualify for net presentation.

Fair value measurements: 3M follows ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, with respect to assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and nonrecurring basis. Under the standard, fair value is defined as
the exit price, or the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants as of the measurement date. The standard also establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring
fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most
observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs market participants would use in valuing the asset or
liability developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs
that reflect the Company’s assumptions abeut the factors market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability
developed based upon the best information available in the circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs include quoted
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that
are not active, and inputs {other than quoted prices) that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Acquisitions: The Company accounts for business acquisitions in accordance with ASC 8035, Business Combinations. This
standard requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to recognize all (and only) the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in the transaction and establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective for all assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in a business combination. Certain provisions of this standard prescribe, among other things, the
determination of acquisition-date fair value of consideration paid in a business combination (including contingent
consideration) and the exclusion of transaction and acquisition-related restructuring costs from acquisition accounting. In
addition to business combinations, 3M periodically acquires cerfain tangible and/or intangible assets and purchases inferests in
certain enterprises that do not otherwise qualify for accounting as business combinations, These transactions are largely
reflected as additional asset purchase and investment activity.

Leases: 3M determines if an arrangement is a lease upon inception. A contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The right to control the use of
an asset includes the right to obtain substantially al! of the economic benefits of the underlying asset and the right to direct how
and for what purpose the asset is used. 3M determines cerlain service agreements that contain the right to use an underlying
asset are not leases because 3M does not contrel how and for what purpose the identified asset is used. Examples of such
agreements include master supply agreements, product processing agreements, warchouse and distribution services agresments,
power purchase agreements, and transportation purchase agreements.
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Opetating lease right-of-use assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease
payments over the lease term. The discount rate used to calculate present value is 3M’s incremental borrowing rate or, if
available, the rate implicit in the lease, 3M determines the incremental borrowing rate for leases using a portfolio approach
based primarily on the lease term and the economic environment of the applicable country or region.

As a lessee, the Company leases distribution centers, office space, land, and equipment. Certain 3M lease agreements include
rental payments adjusted annually based on changes in an inflation index. 3M’s leases do not contain material residual value
guarantees or material restrictive covenants. Lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cettain leases include one or more options to renew, with terms that can extend the lease term up to five years. 3M includes
options to renew the lease as part of the right of use lease asset and liability when it is reasonably certain the Company will
exercise the option. In addition, certain leases contain fair value purchase and termination options with an associated penalty. In
general, 3M is not reasonably certain to exercise such options.

For the measurement and classification of its lease agreements, 3M groups lease and non-lease components into a single lease
component for all underlying asset classes. Variable lease payments primarily include payments for non-lease components,
such as maintenance costs, payments for leased assets used beyond their noncanceliable lease term as adjusted for contractual
options to terminate or renew, additional payments related to a subsequent adjustment in an inflation index, and payments for
non-components such as sales tax. Certain 3M leases contain immaterial variable lease payments based on number of units
produced.

Change in Accounting Principle for Determining Net Periodic Pension and Postretirement Plan Cost

In the first quarter of 2021, 3M changed the method it uses to calculate the market-related value of fixed income securities
included in its pension and other postretirement pfan assets, The market-related value is used to determine the expected return
on plan assets and the amortization of net unamortized actuarial gains or losses expense components of net periodic benefit
cost. The Company previously used the calculated value approach for all plan assets, deferring over three years the impact on
these amounts of asset gains or losses that differed from expected returns. 3M changed to the fair value approach for calculating
market-related value for the fixed income class of plan assets, which does not involve deferring the impact of excess plan asset
gains or losses in the determination of these two components of net periodic benefit cost. 3M considers the use of the fair value
approach preferable to the calcuiated value approach as it results in a more current reflection of impacts of changes in vatue of
these plan assets in the determination of net petiodic benefit cost. Additionally, given the plans’ liability-driven investment
strategy whereby the changes in value of the fixed income plan assets should offset changes in the value of the plans’ liabilities,
this approach more closely aligns the expected return on plan assets expense component with the value reflected in the plans’
funded status. This change was applied retrospectively to all periods presented within 3M’s financial statements. The change
did not impact consolidated operating income or net cash provided by operating activities but did impact the previously
reported portion of pension and postretirement net periodic benefit cost (benefit) that was included within non-operating other
expense (income) along with related consolidated income items such as net income and earnings per share. Other impacts
included related changes to previously reported consolidated other comprehensive income, retained earnings, accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), and associated line items within the determination of net cash provided by operating activities.
For classes of plan assets other than fixed income investments, the Company continues to use the calculated value approach to
determine their market-related value,
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The adoption of this change impacted previously reported amounts included herein as indicated in the tables below,

Consolidated Statement of Income
Year ended December 31,
2020 2019

Under Prior Under Prior
(Mlllmns, except per shm e amounts) Method As Adjusted Method As Adjusted

Earmﬁgs per share atm utable to 3M common
shareholders — diluted 9.25 9.36 7.81 7.72

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended December 31,

2020 2019
Under Prior Under Prior
(Millions) Method As Adjusted Method As Ad]ustcd

- Eomprehenswe income (loss) attributable to 3M ) - 5,862 5,862 4,150 4,156

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2020

Under Prier
(Mllllons) __ Method As Adjusted
Accumulated oiher comprehenswe income (loss) (7,661} (7,721)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31,

2020 2019
Under Prior Under Prior
(Millions) Method As Adjusted Method As Ad]usted
Net in¢ ding 1ling inte: 3 :
Company pens:on and postretuement expense 406 322 357 426

The cumulative adjustment as of January 1, 2019, the beginning of the earliest period presented in the consolidated financial
statements included herein, was a $5 million reduction to each of retained earnings and accumulated other comprehensive loss.
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Related Party Activity:
3M does not have any material related party activity,
New Accounting Pronouncements

The tables below provide summaries of new accounting pronouncements adopted by 3M during 2021 and of pronouncements
issued, but not yet adopted by the Company.

Standards Adopted During 2021
Standard Relevant Description Effective Date for 3M Impact and Other Matters

! Buod
ASU No. 2020-01, | Clarifies when accounting for certain | January 1,2021 | Adoption of this ASU did not
Clarifying the Interactions |equity securities, a Company should have a material impact on 3M’s
between Topic 321, consider abservable transactions consolidated results of operations
Investments—Equity before applying or upon discontinuing and financial condition.
Securities, Topic 323, the equity method of accounting for
Investments—Equity Method | the purposes of applying the
and Joint Ventures, and measurement alternative.
Topic 8135, Derivatives and
Hedging Indicates when determining the

accounting for certain derivatives, a
Company should not consider if the
underlying securities would be
accounted for under the equity method
or fair value option,
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Standards Issued and Not Yet Adopted

Standard

Relevant Deseription

Effective Date for 3M

Impact and Other Matters

02

applicable to

ASU No. 2021-10,
Government Assistance
{Topic 832): Disclosures by
Business Entities about
Government Adssistance

Issued in November 2021. Requires
disclosures about certain types of
government assistance received. The
disclosures include information about
the pature of the transactions and
related accounting policy used to
account for them, the line items on the
balance sheet and income statement
affected by the transactions and the
amounts applicable to each financial
statement item, and the significant
terms and conditions of the
transaction.

“January 1, 2022

As this ASU relates to
disclosures only, there will be no
impact to 3M’s consolidated
results of operations and
financial condition.

NOTE 2. Revenue

Contract Balances:

Deferred revenue primarily relaies to revenue that is recognized over time for one-year software license contracts. Refer to Note
7 for deferred revenue balances at December 31, 2020 and 2021, Approximately $470 million of the December 31, 2020
balance was recognized as revenue during the year ended December 31, 2021, while approximately $410 million ofthe
December 31, 2019 balance was recognized as revenue during the year ended December 31, 2020,

Operating Lease Revenue:

Net sales includes rental revenue from durable medical devices as part of operating lease arrangements (reported within the
Medical Solutions Division), which was $582 million and $586 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020, respectively. Applicable rental revenue for the year ended December 31, 2019 was not material.

59



Table of Contents

Disaggregated revenue information:
The Company views the following disaggregated disclosures as nseful to understanding the composition of revenue recognized

during the respective reporting periods:

Year ended December 31,
2020 2619

Net Sales (Millions)

2021

Food Safety | 373 341 341

Other Unallocated
-Wo
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Americas included United States net sales to customers of $15.0 billion, $13.9 billion and $13.2 billion in 2021, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Asia Pacific included China/Hong Kong net sales to customers of $4.0 billion, $3.5 billion and $3.3 billion in
2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

NOTE 3. Acquisitions and Divestitures
Acquisitions:

3M makes acquisitions of certain businesses from time to time that are aligned with its strategic intent with respect to, among
other factors, growth markets and adjacent product lines or technologies. Goodwill resulting from business combinations is
largely attributable to the existing workforce of the acquired businesses and synergies expected to arise after 3M’s acquisition
of these businesses.

2021 acquisitions:
There were no acquisitions that closed during the year ended December 31, 2021,
2020 acquisitions:
There were no acquisitions that clesed during the year ended December 31, 2020.
2019 acquisitions:

In February 2019, 3M completed the acquisition of the technelogy business of M*Modal for $0.7 billion of cash, net of cash
acquired, and assumption of $0.3 billion of M*Modal’s debt. Based in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, M*Modal is a leading
healtheare tectmology provider of cloud-based, conversational artificial intelligence-powered systems that help physicians
efficiently capture and improve the patient narrative. The allocation of purchase consideration related to M*Modal was
contpleted in the fourth quarter of 2019. Net sales and operating loss (inclusive of transaction and integration costs) of this
business included in 3M’s consolidated results of operations in 2019 were approximately $300 million and $25 million,
respectively, M*Modal is reported within the Company’s Health Care business.

In October 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the ownership interests of Acelity Inc. and its KCI
subsidiaries. Acelity is a leading global medical technology company focused on advanced wound care and specialty surgical
applications marketed under the KCI brand. In the first quarter of 2020, the Company paid certain considerations previously
acerued under the terms of related agreements. Adjustments in 2020 to the purchase price allocation were approximately $34
million and related to identification and valuation of certain acquired assets and liabilities. The change to provisional amounts
did not result in material impacts to results of operations in 2020 or any portion related to earlier quarters in the measurement
period. The allocation of purchase consideration related to Acelity was completed in the third quarter of 2020, Net sales and
operating loss (inclusive of transaction and integration costs) of this business included in 3M’s consolidated results of
operations in the fourth quarter of 2019 were approximately 3350 million and $45 million, respectively, Acelity is reported
within the Company’s Health Care business.
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Proforma information related to these acquisitions has not been included as the impact on the Company’s consolidated results
of operations was not considered material, The following table shows the impact on the consolidated balance sheet of the
purchase price allocations related to the 2019 acquisitions and assigned finite-lived asset weighted average lives.

2019 Acquisifion Activity

Finite-Lived
Intangible-Asset
Weighted-
Average Lives

M*Modal Total {Years)

Cash paid and consideration payable, net of cash acquired  § 7b4 5

Purchased identifiable finite-lived intangible assets related to acquisitions which closed in 2019 totaled $4.081 billion. The
associated finite-lived intangible assets acquired will be amortized on a systematic and rational basis (generally straight line)
over a weighted-average life of 14 years (iives ranging from & to 19 years).

Divestitnres:

3M may divest certain businesses from time to time based upon review of the Company’s portfolio considering, among other
items, factors relative to the extent of strategic and technological alignment and optimization of capital deployment, in addition
to considering if selling the businesses results in the greatest value creation for the Company and for shareholders. As discussed
in Note 19 (Business Segments), gains/losses on sale of businesses are reflected in Corporate and Unallocated.

2021 divestitures and announced divestitures:

There were no divestitures that closed during the year ended December 31, 2021,

In December 2021, 3M entered into a binding offer to sell its floor products business in Western Europe, part of the Consumer
business. This business has annual sales of less than $30 million. The transaction is expected fo close in the first quarter of
2022, subject to customary closing conditions and regulatory requirements. 3M expects an immaterial pre-tax gain as a result of

this divestiture.

1n December 2021, 3M entered into agreements with NEOGEN Corporation pursuant to which 3M will separate its Food Safety
Division business (part of the Health Care business) and combine it with NEOGEN in a transaction that is intended to be tax-
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efficient to 3M and its sharcholders for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Under the terms of the agreements, which involve a
tax-free Reverse Morris Trust, the Food Safety business will be spun-off or split-off to 3M sharekolders and simultaneously
merged with NEOGEN., Existing NEOGEN shareholders will continue to own approximately 49.9% of the combined company
and 3M shareholders will receive approximately 50.1% of the combined company. In connection with the transaction, the Food
Safety business will incur new debt and fund to 3M consideration valued at approximately $1 billion, subject to ¢losing and
other adjustments. The transaction is expected to close by the end of the third quarter of 2022, subject to approval by NEOGEN
sharcholders, receipt of required regulatory approvals and the satisfaction of other customary closing conditions, Net sales
information relative to the Food Safety Division is included in Note 2. Due to factors such as the potential nature of the
transaction and underlying approvals, the Food Safety business is not considered held for sale as of December 31, 2021,

2020 divestitures:

In January 2020, 3M completed the sale of its advanced ballistic-protection business, formerly part of the Transportation and
Electronics business, to Avon Rubber p.l.c for $86 million in cash and recognized certain contingent consideration from the
outcome of pending tenders. Further contingent consideration of less than $25 million may be recognized depending on
outcomes in the future. The business, with annual sales of approximately $85 million, consists of ballistic helmets, body armor,
flat armor and related helmet-attachment products serving government and law enforcement, 3M reflected immaterial impacts
in the third quarter of 2019 as a result of measuring this disposal group at the lower of its carrying amount or fair value less cost
to sell and in the first quarter 2020 related to completion of the divestiture and recognition of contingent consideration,

In May 2020, 3M completed the sale of substantially all of its drug delivery business, formerly part of the Health Care business,
to an affiliate of Altaris Capital Partners, LLC for $617 million in consideration including $487 million of cash, approximately
$70 million in the form of an interest-bearing security, and approximately $60 million in the form of a 17 percent
noncontrolling interest in the new company, Kindeva Drug Delivery (Kindeva). Non-cash consideration was valued at time of
initial recognition on an income-based approach using relevant estimated future cash flows and applicable market interest rates
while considering impacts of restrictions related to transferability. The divested business had annual sales of approximately
$380 million. 3M retained its transdermal drug delivery components business. 3M reflected a pre-tax gain of $387 million as a
result of the divestiture, The Company reflects its ownership interest in Kindeva using the equity method of accounting
incorporating the recording of 3M’s share of earnings/losses on a lag-basis based on availability of Kindeva financial
statements. As a result, income/loss from this unconsclidated subsidiary began to be reflected in 3M’s financial statements in
the third quarter of 2020, Kindeva and 3M entered into certain limited-term agreements related to post-divestiture transition and
supply services.

In the third quarter of 2020, 3M completed ihe sale of a small dermatology products business, formerly part of the Health Care
business, for immaterial proceeds that approximated the business’s book value.

2019 divestitures:

During the first quarter of 2019, the Company sold certain oral care technology comprising a business and reflected an earnout
on a previous divestiture resulting in an aggregate immaterial gain.

In August 2019, 3M closed on the sale of its gas and flame detection business, a leader in fixed and portable gas and flame
detection, to Teledyne Technologies Incorporated. 3M’s gas and flame business was part of the overall October 2017
acquisition of underlying legal entities and associated assets of Scott Safety, This business has annual sales of approximately
$120 million. The transaction resulted in a pre-tax gain of $112 million.

Operating income and held for sale amounis

The aggregate operating income of these businesses, including the announced divestitures, was approximately $120 million,
$160 million and $160 million in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The amounts of major assets and liabilities associated with
disposal groups classified as held-for-sale as of December 31, 2021 were not material.

NOTE 4. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

There was no goodwill recorded from acquisitions during 2021 and 2020. The acquisition activity in the following table also

includes the net impact of adjustments to the preliminary allocation of purchase price within the one year measurement-period
following prior acquisitions, which decreased goodwill by $34 million during 2020. The amounts in the “Translation and other”
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column in the following table primarily relate to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The goodwill balance by business
segment follows:

Transportation
Safety and and Total

(Millions) Industrial Electronics Health Care Consumer Company

Accounting standards recquire that goodwill be tested for impairment annually and between annual tests in certain circumstances
such as a change in reporting units or the testing of recoverability of a significant asset group within a reporting unit. At 3M,
reporting units cotrespond to a division,

As described in Note 19, effective in the first quarter of 2021, the Company changed its business segment reporting. For any
product changes that resulted in reporting unit changes, the Company applied the relative fair value method to determine the
impact on goodwill of the associated reporting units, the results of which were immaterial. Goodwill balances reported above
reflect these business segment reporting changes in the earliest period presented. The Company also completed its annual
goodwill impairment test in the fourth quarter of 2021 for all reporting units and determined that no impairment existed. In
addition, the Company had no impairments of goodwil! in 2020, 2019 or cumulatively.

Acquired Intangible Assets

The catrying amount and accumulated amortization of acquired finite-lived intangible assets, in addition to the balance of non-
amortizable intangible assets, as of December 31, follow:

mortizatio

5. 658:
5,288 § 5,835

Certain tradenames acquired by 3M are not amortized because they have been in existence for over 60 years, have a history of
leading-markef share positions, have been and are intended to be continuously renewed, and the associated products of which
are expected to generate cash flows for 3M for an indefinite period of time. As discussed in Note 15, 3M reflected an
immaterial charge related to impairment of certain indefinite-lived assets in the first quarter of 2020.
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Amortization expense for the years ended December 31 follows:

(Millions) 2021 2020 2019

Expected amortization expense for acquired amortizable intangible assets recorded as of December 31, 2021 foilows:

(Millions) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 After 2026
{Aiiort " 420 32

The preceding expected amortization expense is an estimate. Actual amounts of amortization expense may differ from
estimated amounts due to additional intangible asset acquisitions, changes in foreign currency exchange rates, impairment of
intangible assets, accelerated amortization of intangible assets and other events. 3M expenses the costs incurred to renew or
extend the term of intatigible assets.

NOTE 5. Restructuring Actions
2021 and 2020 Restructuring Actions:
Operational/Marketing Capability Restructuring

In late 2020, 3M announced it would undertake certain actions to further enhance its operations and marketing capabilities to
take advantage of certain global market trends while de-prioritizing investments in slower-growth end markets. During the
fourth quarter of 2020, management approved and committed to undertake associated restructuring actions impacting
approximately 2,100 positions resulting in a pre-tax charge of $137 million. In 2021, management approved and committed to
undertake additional actions under this initiative resulting in a pre<tax charge of $124 million. Remaining activities related to
the restructuring actions approved and committed under this initiative are expected to be largely completed through the third
quarter of 2022. 3M expects to commit to further actions under this initiative through early 2022. This aggregate initiative,
begun in 2020 and continuing through early 2022, is expected to impact approximately 3,100 positions worldwide with an
expected pre-tax charge approaching $300 million over that period. The related restructuring charges were recorded in the
income statement as follows:

2021 2020

£

* Total operatirig income impact - ' $ 124§ 137

The business segment operating income impact of these restructuring charges is summarized as follows:

2023 2020
Employee Employee Asset-Related
(Millions) Related Reiated and Other Total
e T 5 o by R
IS Indus 3 | 437
Transportation and Electronics 24 16 12 28

2
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Restructuring actions, including cash and non-cash impacts, follow:

Employee- Asset-Related
(Millions) Related and Other Totai

SR

h cha-ngés

124 e 124

Divestiture-Related Restructuring

During the second quarter of 2020, following the divestiture of substantially all of the drug delivery business (see Note 3)
management approved and committed to undertake certain restructuring actions addressing corporate functional costs and
manufacturing footprint actoss 3M in relation to the magnitude of amounts previonsly allocated/burdened to the divested
business. These actions affected approximately 1,300 positions worldwide and resulted in a second quarter 2020 pre-tax charge
of $55 milfion, within Corporate and Unallocated. The divestiture-related restructuring actions were recorded in the income
statement as follows:

2020

Divestiture-related restructuring actions, including cash and non-cash impaets, follow:

Employee- Asset-Related
Related and Other Total

Remaining activities related to this divestiture-related restructuring were largely completed in the third quarter of 2021,

Other Restructuring -

Additionally, in the second quatter of 2020, management approved and commiited to undertake certain restructuring actions
addressing structural enterprise costs and operations in certain end markets as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and related
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economic impacts. These actions affected approximately 400 positions worldwide and resulted in a second quarter 2020 pre-tax
charge of $58 million. The restructuring charges were recorded in the income statement as follows:

| and administrative ex enses
1Res optnent and related expenses -
Total operating income impact

The business segment operating income impact of these restructuring charges is summarized as follows:

2020
Employee- Asset-Related

(Millions) Related and Other Total

Va-rfld Electronics

Employee-

Related Asset-Relafed

Cash Payments
-
1Adju

Accrued restructuring action balances as of M

Ellrch 31,2021

Remaining activities related to this restructuring were largely completed in the second quarter of 2021.
2019 Restructuring Actions:

During the second quarter of 2019, in light of siower than expected 2019 sales, management approved and committed to
undertake certain restructuring actions. These actions impacted approximately 2,000 positions worldwide, including atirition.
The Company recorded second quarter 2019 pre-tax charges of $148 million. Additionally, during the fourth quarter of 2019, to
realign 3M’s organizational structure and operating model to improve growth and operational efficiency, management approved
and committed to undertake certain restructuring actions. These actions impacted approximately 1,500 positions worldwide.
The Company recorded fourth quarter 2019 pre-tax charges of $134 million, These restructuring charges were recorded in the
income statement as follows:

{Millions) 2019

iy

Total operating income impact .— 246
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The second quarter 2019 actions included a voluntary early retirement incentive initial charge (further discussed in Note 13),
the charge for which is included in other expense {(income), net above. '

The operating income impact of these restructuring charges are summarized by business segment as follows:

2019

Employee-
(Millions) Related Asset-Related Total

Employee-
Related Total

* Accrued restructuring action balances as of December 31, 2020 30 — 30

Adjustments in the table above reflect changes in estimates from factors such as additional natural atfrition and redeployment as
COVID-19 delayed the start of plan execution and update of costs associated with the mix of impacted roles. Remaining
activities related to this restructuring were largely completed through early 2021,

NOTE 6. Supplemental Income Statement Information

Other expense (income), net consists of the following:

2021 2020 2019

Interest expense includes early debt extingnishment pre-tax charges of approximately $11 million and $10 million in 2021 and
2020, respectively.

Pension and postretirement net periodic benefit costs described in the table above include all components of defined benefit
plan pet periodic benefit costs except service cost, which is reported in various operating expense lines. Pension and
postretirement net periodic benefit costs for 2019 included a second quarter charge related to the voluntary early retjrement
incentive program announced in May 2019 in addition to U.S. non-qualified pension plan settlement charges of $32 million
recognized in the fourth quarter of 2019, Refer to Note 13 for additional details on the voluntary early retirement incentive
program in addition to the components of pensjon and postretirement net periodic benefit costs.
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In 2019, the Company incurred a charge of $162 million related to the deconsolidation of its Venezuelan subsidiary. Refer to
Note 1 for additional details.

NOTE 7. Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

Additional supplemental balance sheet information is provided in the table that follows.

(Millions) 2021 2020

:Land___. o $ 312§ 338

“Total other liabilities
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NOTE 8. Supplemental Equity and Comprehensive Income Information

Common stock ($.01 par value per share) of 3 billion shares is authorized, with 944,033,056 shares issued as of December 31,
2021, 2020 and 2019. Preferred stock, without par value, of 10 million shares is authorized but unissued.

Cash dividends declared and paid totaled $1.48, $1.47, and $1.44 per share for each quarter in 2021, 2020 and 2015,
respectively, which resulted in total year declared and paid dividends of $5.92, $5.88, and $5.76 per share, respectively.

In connection with 3M’s January 1, 2019 adoption of ASU No. 2018-2, Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, and ASU No. 2016-2, Leases, the Company recorded an increase in retained
earnings of approximately $0.9 billion (with offsetting increase to accumulated other comprehensive loss for the same amount)
and $14 million, respectively.

Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Attribatable to 3M by Component

Defined Benefit Cash Flow Total
Pension and Hedging Accuntulated
Cumulative Postretirement Insiruments, Other
Translation Plans Unrealized Comprehensive
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment in {Loss
Bal £2018, net of fa. 4,88 '
Impact of Adoption of ASU No. 2018-02 (13) (817) (23) (853)

Prenensive-ng

Amounts before reclassifications

Total otﬁer_com rehensive income (loss), net of tax
4 2021, et of i

Income taxes are not provided for foreign translation relating to permanent investments in international subsidiaries, but tax
effects within cumulative translation does include impacts from items such as net investment hedge transactions.
Reclassification adjustments are made to avoid double counting in comprehensive income items that are subsequently recorded
as part of net income.
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Reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Attributable to 3M

Amounts Reclassified from
Acewmulated Other Comprehensive Income

Details about Accumutated Other Comprehensive Income Yeny ended December 31, Location on
Components (Millions) 2021 2020 2019 Income Statement

Gains (losses) associated with defined benefit
pension and postretirement plans amortizaticn

(4 17) §

Fotal ré(;izlssi 1(;ét10fi§ for the penoEl; net of tax (534) % (473)

NOTE 9. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

{Millions) 2021 2020 2019

Cash interest paymreilk’rt; o 472 524 370_“

Cash interest payments include interest paid on debt and finance lease balances. Cash interest payments exclude the cash paid -
for early debt extinguishment costs. Additional details are described in Note 12.

Individual amounts in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows exclude the impacts of acquisitions, divestitures and exchange
rate impacts, which are presented separately.

NOTE 10. Income Taxes

Income Before Income Taxes

(Millions)
¥ ¥

Intern ationra\lr
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Provision for Income Taxes
{Millions) 2021 2020 2019

Currenily payab &
Federal

i

International

Fede-ra‘tl

72 (77) (81)
o AU 5

Internatioﬁal

Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
(Millions) 2021 2020

Accruals not currently deductible
Employee benefit, : : , 237:0h 232
Product and other claims 257 338
Misce{laneous aceri '

The net deferred tax assets are included as compoenents of Other Assets and Other Liabilities within the Consolidated Balance
Sheet. See Note 7 “Supplemental Balance Sheet Information” for further details.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had tax effected operating losses, capital losses, and tax credit carryovers for federal
{approximately $115 million), state (approximately $75 million), and international (approximately $44 million), with all
amounts before limitation impacts and valuation allowances. Federat tax attribute carryovers will expire after one to 10 years,
the state after one to 11 years, and the international after one year to an indefinite catryover period. As of December 31, 2021,
the Company has provided $142 million of valuation allowance against certain of these deferred tax assets based on
management’s determination that it is more-likely-than-not that the tax benefits related to these assets will not be realized.
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Reconciliation of Effective Income Tax Rate

Effective worldwide tax rate 17.8 % 197 %

The effective tax rate for 2021, 2020, and 2019 were 17.8 percent, 19.7 percent, and 19.7 percent, respectively. These reflect a
decrease of 1.9 percentage points from 2020 to 2021 and a flat comparison from 2019 to 2020. The primary factors that
decreased the effective tax rate for 2021 were geographical income mix and favorable adjustments in 2021 related to impacts of
U.S, international tax provisions.

The 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA) involved a transition tax that is payable over eight years beginning in 2018. As of
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, 3M reflected $508 million and $584 million, respectively, in long term income
taxes payable, As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, 3M reflected $68 million and $69 million, respectively,
payable within one year associated with the transition tax.

The IR S has completed its field examination of the Company’s U.5. federal income tax returns through 2018, but the years
2005 through 2017 have not closed as the Company is in the process of resolving issues identified during those examinations.
In addition to the U.S. federal examination, there is also audit activity in several U.S. state and foreign jurisdictions where the
Company is subject to ongoing tax examinations and governmental assessments, which could be impacted by evolving political
environments in those jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2021, ne taxing authority proposed significant adjustments to the
Company’s tax positions for which the Company is not adequately reserved,

It is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits could significantly change within the next 12 months, The
Company has ongoing federal, state and international income tax audits in various jurisdictions and evaluates uncertain tax
positions that may be challenged by local tax authorities and not fully sustained. These uncertain tax positions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis and adjusted in light of facts and circumstances including progression of tax audits, developments in case law
and closing statutes of limitation. At this time, the Company is not able to estimate the range by which these potential events
could impact 3M’s unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months.

The Company recognizes the amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being ultimately realized
upen settlement. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits (UTR) is as follows:

73



Table of Contents

Federal, State and Foreign Tax
(Millions) 2021 2020 2019

4 AR

Reductions for tax positions of prior years

Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute of limitations (38) (53} 24

e
Gross UTB Balance at December 31

L113 § 1,167

Net UTB that would impact the effective tax rate at December 31 $ 1,112 $ 1,145 $ 1,178

The total amount of UTRB, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate by $1,112 million as of December 31, 2021, $1,143
million as of December 31, 2020, and $1,178 million as of December 31, 2019. The ending net UTB results from adjusting the
gross balance for deferred items, interest and penalties, and deductible taxes. The net UTB is included as components of Other
Assets, Acerued Income Taxes, and Other Liabilities within the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in tax expense. The Company
recognized in the consolidated statement of income on a gross basis approximately $14 million of expense, $21 million of
expense, and $33 million of expense in 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively. The amount of interest and penalties recognized
may be an expense or benefit due to new or remeasured unrecognized tax benefit accruals. At December 31, 2021, and
December 31, 2020, accrued interest and penalties in the consolidated balance sheet on a gross basis were $140 million and
$126 million, respectively. Included in these interest and penalty amounts are interest and penalties related to tax positions for
which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility.

As a result of certain employment commiiments and capital investments made by 3M, income from certain foreign operations
in the following countries is subject to reduced tax rates or, in some cases, is exempt from tax for years through the following:
China (2022), Switzerland {2026), Brazil (2029) and Singapore (2032). The income tax benefits atiributable to the tax status of
these subsidiaries are estimated te be $204 million (36 cents per diluted share) in 2021, $163 million (28 cents per diluted
share) in 2020, and $127 million (22 cents per diluted share) in 2019.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has approximately $17.7 billion of undistributed earnings in its foreign subsidiaries.
Approximately $5.5 billion of these earnings are no longer considered permanently reinvested. The incremental tax cost to
repatriate these earnings to the US is immaterial. The Company has not provided deferred taxes on approximately $12.2 billion
of undistributed earnings from non-\.S. subsidiaries as of December 31, 2021 which are indefinitely reinvested in operations.
Because of the multiple avenues by which to repatriate the earnings to minimize tax cost, and because a large portion of these
earnings are not liquid, it is not practical to detetmine the income tax liability that would be payable if such earnings were not
reinvested indefinitely.
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NOTE 11. Marketable Securities

Marketable Securities

The Company invests in asset-backed securities, certificates of deposit/time deposits, commercial paper, and other securities,
The following is a summary of amounts recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for marketable securities (current and non-
current).

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, gross unrealized, gross realized, and net realized gains and/or losses {pre-tax) were not
material.

The balance at December 31, 2021, for marketable securities by contractual maturity are shown below. Actual maturities may
differ from contractual maturities because the issuers of the securities may have the right to prepay obligations without
prepayment penalties, .

(Millions)
{Ife i one year ot Ie
Due after one year through five years
CTIIVE years, gl e yea
Total marketable securities $ 228

2021

NOTE 12. Long-Term Debt and Short-Term Borrowings

The following debt tables reflect effective interest rates, which include the impact of interest rate swaps, as of December 31,
2021. If the debt was issued on a combined basis, the debt has been separated to show the impact of the fixed versus floating
effective interest rates, Carrying value includes the impact of debt issuance costs and fair value hedging activity, Long-~term”
debt and short-term borrowings as of December 31 consisted of the following:
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Long-Term Debt
(Millions) Currency/ Effective Final Carrying Value
Descrlptlon /2021 Prmclpﬂl Amount Fixed vs. Floating  Interest Rate  Maturity Date 2021 2020

USD Fixed

USD Fixed

USD Fixed

USD Fixed

USD Fixed

USD Fixed

USD Fixed
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Post-Swap Borrowing {(Long-Term Debt, Including Current Portion)

2021 2020
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
Value Infercst Rate Value Interest Rate
———— 80% T e —
1.43

(Millions)

et debi
Floating-rate debt

Short-Term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-Term Debt

Effective Carrying Value
(Millions) Interest Rate 2021 2020

Other short-term borrowings primarily consisted of bank borrowings by international subsidiaries.

Future Maturities of Long-term Debt

Maturities of long-term debt in the table below reflect the impact of put provisions associated with certain debt instruments and
are net of the unaccreted debt issue costs such that total maturities equal the carrying value of long-term debt as of

December 31, 2021, The maturities of long-term debt for the periods subsequent to December 31, 2021 are as follows {in
millions):

2022 2023 ‘ 2024 2025 2026 After 2026 ‘Total

As a result of put provisions associated with certain debt instruments, long-term debt payments due in 2022 include floating rate
notes totating $124 million (classified as current portion of long-term debt) and $95 million due in 2023.

Credit Facilities

3M has an amended and restated $3.0 billion five-year revolving credit facility expiring in November 2024. The revolving
credit agreement includes a provision under which 3M may request an increase of up to $1.0 billion (at lender’s discretion),
bringing the tota! facility up to $4.0 billion, In addition, 3M entered into a $1.25 billion 364-day credit facility, which was
renewed in November 2021 with an expiration date of November 2022. The 364-day credit agreement includes a provision
under which 3M may convert any advances outstanding on the maturity date into term loans having a maturity date one year
fater. These credit facilities were undrawn at December 31, 2021, Under both the $3.0 billion and $1.25 billion credit
agreements, the Company is required to maintain its EBITDA 1o Inferest Ratio as of the end of each fiscal quarter at not less
than 3.0 to 1. This is calculated (as defined in the agreement) as the ratio of consolidated total EBITDA for the four consecutive
quarters then ended to total interest expense on all funded debt for the same period. At December 31, 2021, this ratio was
approximately 20 to 1. Debt covenants do not restrict the payment of dividends.

In December 2021, 3M entered into a $1 billion debt financing commitment related fo the intended Food Safety Division spin-
off or split-off transaction discussed in Note 3. This commitment provides potential bridge financing for the Food Safety
business's payment of approximately $1 billion of consideration, subject to closing and other adjustments, to 3M under the
terms of the transaction. Amounts outstanding under this facility have a term of 364 days following the borrowing date and are
required to be repaid when certain conditions are met, including upon completion of permanent financing. This commitment
was undrawn at December 31, 2021. Upon the close of the spin-ofi or split-off transaction, outstanding obligations under the
commitment transfer with the Food Safety business and become those of the separate newly combined company.

Other Credit Facilities

Apart from the committed credit facilities described above, in September 2019, 3M entered into a credit facility initially
expiring in July 2020 that was further extended to August 2021 in the amount of 80 billion Japanese yen. In Nevember 2019,

77



Table of Contents

3M entered into a credit Tacility expiring in November 2020 in the amount of 150 million euros. During the third quarter of
2020, the Company paid the outstanding balances and closed these credit facilities.

The Company also had an additiona! $266 million in stand-alone letters of credit and bank guarantees issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021, These instruments are utilized in connection with normal business activities.

Long-Term Debt Issuances and Fixed-to-Floating Interest Rate Swaps

The principal amounts, interest rates and maturity dates of individual long-term debt issuances can be found in the long-term
debt table found at the beginning of this note.

During the second and third quarters of 2021, 3M entered into interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of

$800 million. These swaps converted $500 million and $300 million of 3M’s $1.0 billion and $650 million principal amount of
fixed rate notes due 2049 and 2050, respectively, into floating rate debt for the portion of their terms through mid-2028 with an
interest rate based on a three-month LIBOR index.

In March 2020, 3M issued $1.75 billion aggregate principal amount of fixed rate registered notes. These were comprised of
$500 million of 5-year nofes due 2025 with a coupon rate of 2.65%, $600 million of 10-year notes due 2030 with a coupon rate
of 3.05%, and $650 million of 30-year notes due 2050 with a coupon rate of 3.70%.

In February 2019, 3M issued $2.25 billion aggregate principal amount of fixed rate medium-term notes. These were comprised
of $450 million of 3-year notes due 2022 with a coupon rate of 2.75%, $500 million of remaining 3-year notes due 2024 with a
coupon rate of 3.25%, $800 million of 10-year notes due 2029 with a coupon rate of 3.375%, and $500 million of remaining
29.5-year notes due 2048 with a coupon rate of 4.00%. Issuances of the 5-year and 29.3-year notes were pursuant to a
reopening of existing securities issued in September 2018. .

In August 2019, 3M issued $3.25 billion aggregate principal amount of fixed rate registercd notes. These were comprised of
$500 million of 3.5-year notes due 2023 with a coupon rate of 1.75%, $750 million of 5.5-year notes due 2025 with a coupon
rate of 2.00%, $1.0 billion of 10-year notes due 2029 with a coupon rate of 2.375%, and $1.0 billion of 30-year notes due 2049
with a coupon rate of 3.25%, :

Eong-Term Debt Maturities and Extinguishments
In November 2021, 3M repaid 600 million euros aggregate principal amount of Eurobonds that matured.

In March 2021, 3M, via a make-whole-call offer, redeemed $450 million principal amount of 2.75% notes due 2022, The
Company recorded an early debt extinguishment pre-tax charge of approximately $11 million within interest expense. This
charge reflected the differential between the carrying value and the amount paid to reacquire the notes and related expenses.

In December 2020, 3M, via make-whole-call offers, repaid $1 billion aggregate principal amount of its outstanding notes. This
included $400 million aggregate principal amount of 3.00% notes and $600 million aggregate principal amount of 1.625%
notes, both of which were due to mature in 2021. The Company recorded an early debt extinguishment pre-tax charge of
approximately $10 million within interest expense. This charge reflected the differential between the carrying value and the
amount paid to reacquire the notes and refated expenses.

In May 2020, 3M repaid 650 million eutos aggregate principal amount of floating-rate medium-term notes that matured, In
August 2020, 3M repaid $500 aggregate principal amount of floating rate medium-term notes that matured.

In June 2019, 3M repaid $625 million aggregate principal amount of fixed-rate medium-term notes that matured.

In 2019, 3M also assumed-approximately $2.6 billion of debt in connection with the acquisitions of Acelity and M*Modal (See
Note 3) of which $2.1 billion was immediately redeemed or paid at close.

In-Substance Defeasance
In conjunction with the October 2019 acquisition of Acelity (see Note 3), 3M assumed outstanding debt of the business, of
which $445 million in principal amount of third lien senior secured notes (Third Lien Notes) maturing in 2021 with a conpon

rate of 12.5% was not immediately redeemed at closing. Instead, at closing, 3M satisfied and discharged the Third Lien Notes
via an in-substance defeasance, whereby 3M transferred cash equivalents and marketable securities to a trust with irrevocable
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instructions to redeem the Third Lien Notes on May 1, 2020, The trust assets were restricted from use in 3M’s operations and
were only used for the redemption of the Third Lien Notes that occurred in May 2020,

Floating Rate Notes

At various times, 3M has issued floating rate notes containing put provisions. 3M would be required to repurchase these
securities at vatious prices ranging from 99 percent to 100 percent of par value according to the reduction schedules for each
security. In December 2004, 3M issued a forty-year $60 millicn floating rate note, with a rate based on a floating LIBOR index.
Under the terms of this floating rate note due in 2044, holders have an annual put feature at 100 percent of par value from 2014
and every anniversary thereafter until final maturity, Under the terms of the floating rate notes due in 2027, 2040 and 2041,
holders have put options that commence ten years from the date of issuance and each third anniversary thereafter until final
maturity at prices ranging from 99 percent to 100 percent of par value. For the periods presented, 3M was required to
repurchase an immaterial amount of principal on the aforementioned floating rate notes.

NOTE 13. Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

As discussed in Note 1, effective in the first quarter of 2021, 3M made a change in accounting principle for net periodic pension
and postretirement plan cost. This impacted the expected return on plan assets and the amortization of net unamortized actuarial
gains or losses expense components of net periodic benefit cost. This change was applied retrospectively to all periods
presented within 3M’s financia! statements.

3M has company-sponsored retirement plans covering substantially all U.8. employees and many employees outside the United
States. In total, 3M has over 75 defined benefit plans in 28 countries. Pension benefits associated with these plans generally are
based on each participant’s years of service, compensation, and age as retirement or termination. The primary U.S. defined-
benefit pension plan was closed to new participants effective January 1, 2009. The Company also provides certain
postretirement health care and life insurance benefits for its U.S. employees who reach retirement age while employed by the
Company and were employed by the Company prior to January 1, 2016. Most international employees and retirees are covered
by government health care programs. The cost of company-provided postretirement health care plans for international
employees is not material and is combined with U.S. amounts in the tables that follow.

The Company has made deposits for its defined benefit plans with independent trustees. Trust funds and deposits with
insurance companies are maintained to provide pension benefits to plan participants and their beneficiaries. There are no plan
assets in the non-qualified plan due to its nature. For its U.S. postretirernent health care and life insurance benefit plans, the
Company has set aside amounts at least equal to annual benefit payments with an independent trustee.

The Company also sponsors employee savings plans under Section 401{k) of the Internal Revenue Code. These plans are
offered to substantially all regular U.S. employees. For eligible employees hired prior to Januvary 1, 2009, employee

401 (k) contributions of up to 5% of eligible compensation matched in cash at rates of 45% or 60%, depending on the plan in
which the employee participates. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2009, receive a cash match of 100% for employee
401(k) confributions of up to 5% of eligible compensation and receive an employer retirement income account cash
contribution of 3% of the participant’s total eligible compensation, All contributions are invested in a number of investment
funds pursuant to the employees’ elections, Employer contributions to the U.S, defined contribution plans were $231 million,
$201 million and $186 million for 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 3M subsidiaries in various international countries also
participate in defined contribution plans. Employer contributions to the international defined contribution plans were $117
million, $103 million and $96 million for 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

In May 2019 (as part of the 2019 restructuring actions discussed in Note 5), the Company began offering a voluntary early
retirement incentive program to certain eligible participants of its U.S. pension plans who met age and years of pension service
requirements. The eligible participants who accepted the offer and retired by July 1, 2019 received an enhanced pension benefit.
Pension benefits were enhanced by adding one additional year of pension service and one additional year of age for certain
benefit calculations. Approximately 800 participants accepted the offer and retired before July 1, 2019. As a result, the
Company incurred a $35 million charge related to these special termination benefits in the second quarter of 2019,

In the fourth quarter of 2019, the Company recognized a non-operating $32 million settlement expense in its 11,8, non-qualified
pension plan. The charge is related to lump sum payments made to employees at retirement. The settlement expense is an

accelerated recognition of past actuarial losses.

In the second quarter of 2020, as a result of the divestiture of the drug delivery business, the Company recognized a curtailment
in its United Kingdom Pension Plan. The resulting re-measurement of the pension plan funded status reduced long-term prepaid
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pension and post retirement assets (located within “other assets™ of the Company’s balance sheet) by approximately $80
million, which was offset within accumulated other comprehensive income (located within the equity section of the Company’s
balance sheet). The expense impact of this re-measurement was immaterial for the second quarter 0f 2020 and subsequent
periods.

The following tables include a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan asscts as well as a summary of the related amounts recognized in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31 of the respective years. 3M also has certain non-qualified unfunded pension and postretirement benefit plans,
inclusive of plans related to supplement/excess benefits for employees impacted by particular relocations and other matters, that
individually and in the aggregate are not significant and which are not included in the tables that follow. The obligations for
these plans are included within othe liabilities in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and aggregated to less than $40
million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

2021 2020

Qualified and Non-Pension Benefits " Postretirement
United States Interpational Benefits
2021 2020 2021 2020

§19376 $ 17,935 $ 8,770 $ 7931 $ 2397 § 2242

(274) (113)

7,127 16,009

(1,330)  (1,104)

$ 16,953 § 17,127 §
(2,240
Qualified and Non-qualified Pension Benefits Postretirement
Amounts recogaized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of United States International Benefits
2020 2021 2020

2021 2020 2021

December 31, (Milliens)
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Qualified and Non-qualified Pension Benefils Postretirement
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive United States Huternational Benefits
income as of December 31, (Millions) 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

N

2alio

Ending balance $ 4911 $ 6053 S 969 § 1577 § 341 § 472

The balance of amounts recognized for international plans in accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31 in
the preceding table are presented based on the foreign currency exchange rate on that date,

The pension accumulated benefit obligation represents the actuarial present value of benefiis based on employee service and
compensation as of the measurement date and does not include an assumption about future compensation levels. The following
table summarizes the total accumulated benefit obligations, the accumulated benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets for
defined benefit pension plans with accumulated benefit cbligations in excess of plan assets, and the projected benefit obligation
and fair value of plan assets for defined benefit pension plans with projected benefit abligation in excess of plan assets as of
December 31:

Qualified and Non-qualified Pension Plans

United States International

2021 2020 2021 2020

(Millions)
Agcumulated benefit obligation

',;:82;442%
17,127

P P! obligation.in exe
Projected benefit obligation $ 18,104 % 19376 § 3,204 § 3,528
3
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Components of net periodic cost and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive income

The service cost component of defined benefit net periodic benefit cost is recorded in cost of sales, selling, general and
administrative expenses, and research, development and related expenses. As discussed in Note 6, the other components of net
periodic benefit cost are reflected in other expense (inceme), net. Components of net petiodic benefit cost and other

supplemental information for the years ended December 31 follow:

Qualified and Non-qualified Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
sz 7 " 2,

QOperating expense

Non-operating expense

@26) (306) (295) (78)  (80)  (78)

Amortization of prior service benefit

Settlements, curtailments, special
termination benefits and o

P
Total net petiodic benefit cost (benefit)

AL

ransition asset

(529)  (491) (398) (104) (121) (89) (56  (47)

Eermination benefits and other (23) _ (16) (35) (1 (1) (8) (3) ()] (5)

Total recognized it net periedic benefit
cost (benefit) and other comprehensive
(income) loss $(1,022) § 474 § 792 $ (566) $ (316) $ 344 § (87) $ 126 § (8)

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as of December 31

Qualified and Nen-qualified Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
2020 20419 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020
Compensation rate increase 321 % 321% 321 % 2.86% 288% 288% N/A N/A N/A
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net cost for years ended December 31

Qualified and Non-qualified Pension Benefits

Postretivement
United States International Benefits

2020 2019

0,

2021 2020 2019 2021 2020
123.% - 1618 995321, % . 3.45.%

n",‘:-’-:;

Compensation rate increase 288 %

The Company provides eligible retirees in the U.S. postretirement health care benefit plans to a savings account benefits-based
plan. The contributions provided by the Company to the health savings accounts increase 3 percent per year for employees who
retired prior to January 1, 2016 and increase 1.5 percent for employees who retire on or after January 1, 2016. Therefore, the
Company no longer has material exposure to health care cost inflation.

The Company determines the discount rate used to measure plan liabilities as of the December 31 measurement date for the
pension and postretirement benefit plans, which is also the date used for the related annual measurement assumptions. The
discount rate reflects the current rate at which the associated liabilities could be effectively settled at the end of the year. The
Company sets its rate to reflect the yield of a porifolio of high quality, fixed-income debt instruments that would produce cash
flows sufficient in timing and amount to settle projected future benefits. Using this methodology, the Company determined a
discount rate of 2.89% for the U.S, pension plans and 2.88% for the postretirement benefit plans as of December 31, 2021,
which is an increase of 0.34 percentage points and 0,38 percentage points, respectively, from the rates used as of December 31,
2020, An increase in the discount rate decreases the Projected Benefit Obligation (PBQ), the increase in the discount rate as of
December 31, 2021 resulted in an approximately $0.9 billion lower benefit obligation for the U.S. pension and postretirement
plans,

The Compaty measures setvice cost and interest cost separately using the spot yield curve approach applied to gach
cortesponding obligation, Service costs are determined based on duration-specific spot rates applied to the service cost cash
flows. The interest cost calculation is determined by applying duration-specific spot rates to the year-by-year projected benefit
payments. The spot yield curve approach does not affect the measurement of the total benefit obligations as the change in
service and interest costs offset in the actuarial gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive income.

For the primary U.S. qualified pension plan, the Company’s assumption for the expected return on plan assets was 6.50% in
2021. Projected returns are based primarily on broad, publicly traded equity and fixed-income indices and forward-looking
estimates of active portfolio and investment management, As of December 31, 2021, the Company’s 2022 expected long-term
rate of return on U.S, plan assets is 6.00%. The expected returts assumption is based on the strategic asset allocation of the plan,
long term capital market return expectations and expected performance from active investment management. The 2021
expected long-term rate of return is based on an asset allocation assumption of 22% global equities, 12% private equities, 50%
fixed-income securities, and 16% absolute return investments independent of traditional performance benchmarks, along with
positive returns from active investment management, The actual net rate of refurn on plan assets in 2021 was 6,7%. In 2020 the
plan earned a rate of refurn of 13.6% and in 2019 earned a return of 16.3%. The average annual actual return on the plan assets
over the past 10 and 25 years has been 8.6% and 8.7%, respectively. Return on assets assumptions for international pension and
other post-retirement benefit plans are calculated on a plan-by-plan basis using plan asset allocations and expected long-term
rate of return assumptions,

As of December 31, 2019, the Company converted to the “Pri-2012 Aggregate Mortality Table™. In 2021 the Company updated
the mortality improvement scales to the Society of Actuaries Scale MP- 2021, The December 31, 2021 update resulted in an
immaterial increase to the U.S. pension PBO and U.S. accumulated postretirement benefit obligations.

During 2021, the Company contributed $177 million to its U.S. and international pension plans and §3 million to its
postretirement plans. During 2020, the Company contributed $153 million to its U.S. and international pension plans and §3
million to its postretirement plans. In 2022, the Company expects to contribute an amount in the range of $100 million to $200
million of cash to its U.S. and international retirement plans. The Company does not have a required minimum cash pension
contribution obligation for its U.S, plans in 2022, Future contributions will depend on market conditions, interest rates and other
factors.
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Future Pension and Postretirement Benefit Payments

The following table provides the estimated pension and postretirement benefit payments that are payable from the plans to
participants.

Qualified and Non-qualificd

Pension Benefits Postrefirement

United States International Benefits

Next five years - 5,461 1,724 79

Plan Asset Management

3M’s investment sfrategy for its pension and postretirement plans is to manage the funds on a going-concern basis, The primary
goal of the trust funds is to meet the obligations as required. The secondary goal is to earn the highest rate of return possible,
without jeopardizing its primary goal, and without subjecting the Company to an undue amount of contribution risk. Fund
returns are used to help finance present and future obligations to the extent possible within actuariafly determined funding limits
and tax-determined asset limits, thus reducing the potential need for additional contributions from 3M. The investment sirategy
has used long duration cash bonds and derivative instruments to offset a significant portion of the interest rate sensitivity of
1J.S. pension liabilities.

Normally, 3M does not buy ot sell any of its cwn securities as a direct investment for its pension and other postretirement
benefit funds. However, due to external investment management of the funds, the plans may indirectly buy, sell or hold 3M
securities. The aggregate amount of 3M sccurities are not considered to be material relative to the aggregate fund percentages.

The discussion that follows references the fair value measurements of certain assets in terms of levels 1, 2 and 3. See Note 15
for descriptions of these levels. While the company believes the valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other
market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

U.S. Pension Plans and Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets

Tn order to achjeve the investment objectives in the U.S, pension plans and U.S. postretirement benefit plans, the investment
policies include a target strategic asset allocation. The investment policies allow some tolerance around the target in recognition
{hat market fluctuations and illiquidity of some investments may cause the allocation to a specific asset class to vary from the
target allocation, potentially for long petiods of time. Acceptable ranges have been designed to allow for deviation from
strategic targets and to allow for the opportunity for tactical over- and under-weights. The portfolios will normally be
rebalanced when the quarter-end asset allocation deviates from acceptable ranges. The allocation is reviewed regularly by the
named fiduciary of the plans, Approximately 63% of the postretirement benefit plan assets are in a 401(h) account, The 49 1{h)
account assets are in the same trust as the primary U.S. pension plan and invested with the same investment objectives as the

primary 1.8, pension plan.
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The fair values of the assets held by the U.S. pension plans by asset class are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using Inputs Considered as TFair Value at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 December 31,
Asset Class (Millions) 20621 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Growth equity
Pa hip in

Partnership investments* 617 567

Repurchase'agréé‘ﬂl'g;fsﬁ and derivative .
margin activity — — — (6) — — — (6)

s

Other iteins to reconcile to fair value of plan assets
AT T e

! SRELEER

* In accordance with ASC 820-10, certain investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value (NAV) per share
(or its equivalent) as a practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The NAV is based on the fair
value of the underlying assets owned by the fund, minus its liabilities then divided by the number of units outstanding and is
determined by the investment manager ot custodian of the fund. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended to
permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the fair value of plan assets.
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The fair values of the assets held by the postretirement benefit plans by asset class are as follows:

FEatr Value Measurements Using Inputs Considercd as Fair Value at

Level ¥ Levei 2 Level 3 December 31,
Asset Class (Millions) 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 - 2020
U.8. equities $ 292 $ 347 8 — $ — § — § — § 292 § 347

Non-U.S. corporate bonds 7 — — 159 52 — — 59 52
Der ments

Hedgerfuﬁa/%aﬁc-i'of fﬁnds* o i -

Total Absolute Return . — 9 7 — 143 135

assets

*In accordance with ASC 820-10, certain investments that are measured at fair value using the NAV per share (or its
equivalent) as a practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The NAYV is based on the fair value of
the underlying assets owned by the fund, minus its liabilities then divided by the number of units outstanding and is determined
by the investment manager or custodian of the fund. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit
reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the fair value of plan assets.

Publicly traded equities are valued at the closing price reported in the active market in which the individual securities are
traded.

Fixed income includes derivative instruments such as credit default swaps, interest rate swaps and firtures contracts. Corporate
debt includes bonds and notes, asset backed securities, collateralized mortgage obligations and private placements, Swaps and
derivative instruments are valued by the custodian using closing market swap curves and market derived inputs. U.S.
government and government agency bonds and notes are valued at the closing price reported in the active market in which the
individual security is traded. Corporate bonds and notes, asset backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations are
valued af either the yields currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings or valued under a
discounted cash flow approach that utilizes observable inputs, such as current yields of similar instruments, but includes
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adjustments for certain risks that may not be observable such as credit and liquidity risks. Private placements are valued by the
custodian using recognized pricing services and sources.

The private equity portfolio is a diversified mix of derivative instruments, growth equity and partnership interests. Growth
equity investments are valued at the closing price reported in the active market in which the individual securities are traded.

Absolute return consists primarily of partnership interests in hedge funds, hedge fund of funds or other private fund vehicles,
Corporate debt instruments are valued at either the yields currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar
credit ratings or valued under a discounted cash flow approach that utilizes observable inputs, such as current yields of similar
instruments, but includes adjustments for certain risks that may not be observable such as credit and liquidity risk ratings.

Other items to reconcile to fair value of plan assets include, interest receivables, amounts due for securities sold, amounts
payable for securities purchased and interest payable.

There were no level 3 assets in the fair values of the U.S. pension and postretirement plans assets for the periods ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020,

International Pension Plans Assets

Outside the U.8., pension plan assets are typically managed by decentralized fiduciary committees. The disclosure below of
asset categories is presented in aggregate for over 70 defined benefit plans in 25 countries; however, there is significant
variation in asset allocation policy from country to country. Local regulations, local funding rules, and local financial and tax
considerations are part of the funding and investment allocation process in each country. The Company provides standard

funding and investment guidance to all international plans with more focused guidance to the larger plans.

Each plan has its own strategic asset allocation. The asset allocations are reviewed periodically and rebalanced when necessary.
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The fair values of the assets held by the international pension plans by asset class are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using Inputs Considered as Fair Value at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 December 31,
Asset Class (Millions) : 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

[Equit
Growth equities

181 $ 209 §

Total Equities B 750 1,252 743 704 5 4 1,500 2,034 7
iFixed Incon

Partnersﬁip investments* q 226 116

Tnsurance — — — — 504 555 504 555

w1
(157)
5,104

(122)

*In accordance with ASC 820-10, certain investments that ate measured at fair value using the NAV per share (or its
equivalent) as a practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The NAV is based on the fair value of
the underlying assets owned by the fund, minus its liabilities then divided by the number of units outstanding and is determined
by the investment manager or custodian of the fund. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended o permit
reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the fair value of plan assets.

Equities consist primarily of maudates in public equity securities managed to various public equity indices. Publicly traded
equities are valued at the closing price reported in the active market in which the individual securities are traded.

Fixed Income investments include domestic and foreign government, and corporate, (including mortgage backed and other

debt) securities. Governments, corporate bonds and notes and mortgage backed securities are valued at the closing price
reported if traded on an active market or at yields currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit
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ratings ot valued under a discounted cash flow approach that utilizes observable inputs, such as current yields of similar
instruments, but includes adjustments for certain risks that may not be observable such as credit and liquidity risks.

Private equity funds consist of partnership interests in a variety of funds. Real estate consists of property funds and REITS
(Real Estate Investment Trusts), REITS are valued at the closing price reported in the active market in which it is traded.

Absolute return consists of private partnership interests in hedge funds, insurance confracts, derivative instruments, hedge fund
of funds, and other alternative investments, Insurance consists of insurance contracts, which are valued using cash surrender
values which is the amount the plan would receive if the contract was cashed out at year end. Derivative instruments consist of
various swaps and bond futures that are used to help manage risks.

Other jtems to reconcile to fair value of plan assets include the net of interest receivables, amounts due for securities sold,
amounts payable for securities purchased and interest payable.

The balances of and changes in the fair values of the internationa! pension plans’ level 3 assets consist primarily of insurance
contracts under the absolute return asset class, In 2021 the aggregate of net purchases and net unrealized gains and losses
decreased this balance by $7 million and the change in currency exchange rates decreased this balance by $44 million for a net
decrease of $51 million. In 2020 the aggregate net purchases and net unrealized gains decreased this balance by $1 million and
the change in currency exchange rates increased the balance by $44 million for a net increase to this balance of $43 million.

NOTE 14, Derivatives

The Company uses interest rate swaps, cwrrency swaps, and forward and option contracts to manage risks generally associated
with foreign exchangs rate, interest rate and commodity price fluctuations. The information that follows explains the various
types of derivatives and financial instruments used by 3M, how and why 3M uses such instruments, how such instruments are
accounted for, and how such instruments impact 3M’s financial position and performance,

Additional information with respect to derivatives is included elsewhere as follows:
+  Impact on other comprehensive income of nonderivative hedging and derivative instruments is included in Note 8,
= TFair value of derivative instruments is included in Note 15,
= Derivatives and/or hedging insttuments associated with the Company’s long-term debt are also deseribed in Note 12,

Refer to the section below titled Statement of Income Location and Impoct of Cash Flow and Fair Value Derivative Instruments
and Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments for details on the Jocation within the consolidated statements of
income for amounts of gains and losses refated to derivative instruments designated as cash flow or fair value hedges (along
with similar information relative to the hedged items) and derivatives not designated as hedging instruments. Additional
information relative to cash flow hedges, fair value hedges, net investment hedges and derivatives not designated as hedging
instrumenits is included below as applicable.

Cash Flow Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a
component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period during which the hedged
transaction affects earnings. Gains and losses on the derivative representing hedge components excluded from the assessment of
effectiveness are recognized in current earnings.

Cash Flow Hedging - Foreign Currency Forward and Option Contracts: The Company enters into foreign exchange forward
and optjon contracts to hedge against the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash flows denominated in foreign currencies.
These transactions are designated as cash flow hedges. The settlement or extension of these derivatives will result in
reclassifications (from accumulated other comprehensive income) to earnings in the period during which the hedged
transactions affect earnings. 3M may de-designate these cash flow hedge relationships in advance of the occurrence of the
forecasted transaction. The portion of gains or losses on the derivative instrument previously included in acoumulated other
comprehensive income for de-designated hedges remains in accumulated other comprehensive income until the forecasted
transaction occurs ot becomes probable of not occurring. Changes in the value of derivative instruments after de-designation are
recorded in earnings and are included in the Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments section below. The maximum
length of time over which 3M hedges its exposure to the variability in foture cash flows of the forecasted transactions {5 36
months, '
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Cash Flow Hedging — Interest Rate Contracts: The Company may use forward starting interest rate contracts and treasury rate
lock contracts to hedge exposure to variability in cash flows from interest payments on forecasted debt issuances.

During 2019, the Company entered into additional forward starting interest rate swaps with a notional amount of $743 million.
These swaps, as well as $700 million of notional amount in existing outstanding swaps had been designated as hedges against
interest rate volatility associated with forecasted issuances of fixed rate debt. Concurrent with the issuance of the medium-term
notes in February 2019 and the additional issuance of registered notes in August 2019, 3M terminated all outstanding interest
rate swaps related to forecasted issuances of debt. These terminations resulted in a net loss of $143 million within accumulated
other comprehensive income that will be amortized over the respective lives of the debt.

In March 2020, the Company entered into treasury rate lock contracts with a notional amount of $500 million that were
terminated concurrently with the March 2020 issuance of registered notes as discussed in Note 12. The termination resulted in
an immaterial net Toss within accumulated other comprehensive income that will be amortized for the respective lives of the
debt.

The amortization of gains and losses on forward starting interest rate swaps is included in the tables below as part of the gain/
(loss) reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income into income.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had a balance of $54 million associated with the after-tax net unrealized loss
associated with cash flow hedging instruments recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income. This includes a
remaining balance of $100 million (after-tax loss) related to the forward starting interest rate swap and treasury rate lock
contacts, which will be amortized over the respective lives of the notes. Based on exchange rates as of December 31, 2021, of
the total after-tax net unrealized balance as of December 31, 2021, 3M expects to reclassify approximately $22 million after-tax
net unrealized gain over the next 12 months (with the impact offset by earnings/losses from underlying hedged items).

The amount of pretax gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income related to derivative instruments designated as cash
flow hedges is provided in the following table,

Prefax Gain (Loss) Recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income on Derivative

(Millions) 2021 2020 2019

{Fore X

interest rate contracts _
FI 108

(22
6)

Fair Value Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges, the gain or loss on the derivatives as well as the
offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in current earnings.

Fair Value Hedging - Inferest Rate Swaps: The Company manages interest expense using a mix of fixed and floating rate debt.
To help manage borrowing costs, the Company may enter into interest rate swaps. Under these arrangements, the Company
agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and floating interest amounts calculated by reference to
an agreed-upon notional principal amount. The mark-to-market of these fair value hedges is recorded as gains or losses in
interest expense and is offset by the gain or loss of the underlying debt instrument, which also is recorded in interest expense.

In November 2013, 3M issued a Eurobond which was due in 2021 for a face amount of 600 million euros. Upen debt issuance,
3M completed a fixed-to-floating interest rate swap on a notioral amount of 300 million euros as a fair value hedge of a portion
of the fixed interest rate Eurobond obligation, This interest rate swap matured in conjunction with the repayment of the
Eurobond in November 2021,

In June 2014, 3M issued $950 million aggregate principal amount of medium-term notes. Upon debt issuance, the Company
entered into an interest rate swap to convert $600 million of a $625 million note that was due in 2019, included in this issuance,
to an interest rate based on a floating three-month LIBOR index as a fair value hedge of a portion of the fixed interest rate
medium-term note obligation. This interest rate swap matured in conjunction with the repayment of the $625 million aggregate
principal amount of fixed-rate medium notes that matured in June 2019.
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In August 2015, 3M issued $1.5 billion aggregate principat amount of medium-term notes, Upon debt issuance, the Company
entered into two interest rate swaps as fair value hedges of a portion of the fixed interest rate medium-term note obligation. The
first converted a $450 million three-year fixed rate note that matured in August 2018 at which time the associated interest rate
swap also matured, and the second converted $300 million of a five-year fixed rate note that matured in August 2020 at which
time the associated interest rate swap also matured.

In the fourth quatter of 2017, the Company entered into an interest rate swap as a fair value hedge with a noticnal amount of
$200 million that converted the company’s fixed-rate medium-term note that matured in August 2020 at which time the
associated interest rate swap also matured.

In September 2018, the Company entered into an interest rate swap with a notional amount of $200 million that converted a
portion of the Company’s $400 million aggregate principal amount of fixed rate medium-term notes due 2021 into a floating
rate note with an interest rate based on a three-month LIBOR index as a hedge of its exposure to changes in fair value that are
attributable to interest rate risk. The Company terminated this interest rate swap in conjunction with the early debt repayment in
December 2020 of $400 millicn aggregate principal amount of fixed-rate medium notes further described in Note 12.

During the second and third quarters of 2021, 3M entered into interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of

$800 million. These swaps converted $500 million and $300 millicn of 3M’s $1.0 billion and $650 million principal amount of
fixed rate notes due 2049 and 2030, respectively, into floating rate debt for the portion of their terms through mid-2028 with an
interest rate based on a three-month LIBOR index.

The following amounts were recorded on the consolidated balance sheet related to cumulative basis adjustments for fair value
hedges:

Cumulative Amount of Fair Value
Hedging Adjustment Included in

Carrying Value of the the Carrying Value of the Hedged
Hedged Liabilities Liabilities

Location on the Consolidated Balance Sheet (Millions}) 2021 2020 2021 2020

Long-term debt - S ) 997

Net Investinent Hedges:

The Company may use non-derivative (foreign currency denominated debt) and derivative (foreign exchange forward contracts)
instruments to hedge portions of the Company’s investment in foreign subsidiaries and manage foreign exchange risk. For
instruments that are designated and qualify as hedges of net investments in foreign operations and that meet the effectiveness
requirements, the net gains or losses attributable o changes in spot exchange rates are recorded in cumulative translation within
other comprehensive income. The remainder of the change in value of such instruments is recorded in earnings. Recognition in
earnings of amounts previously recorded in cumulative translation is limited to circumstances such as complete or substantially
complete liquidation of the net investment in the hedged foreign operation. To the extent foreign cutrency denominated debt is
not designated in or is de-designated from a net investment hedge relationship, changes in value of that portion of foreign
currency denominated debt due to exchange rate changes are recorded in earnings through their maturity date.

3M’s use of foreign exchange forward contracts designated in hedges of the Company’s net investment in foreign subsidiaries
can vary by time period depending on when foreign currency denominated debt balances designated in such relationships are
de-designated, matured, or are newly issued and designated. Additionally, variation can occur in connection with the extent of
the Company’s desired foreign exchange risk coverage.

At December 31, 2021, the fotal notional amount of foreign exchange forward contracts desighated in net investinent hedges
was approximately 150 million euros, along with a principal amount of long-term debt instruments designated in net investment
hedges totaling 2.9 billion euros. The maturity dates of these derivative and nonderivative instruments designated in net
investment hedges range from 2022 to 2031, :
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The amount of gain (loss) excluded from effectiveness testing recognized in income relative to instruments designated in net
investment hedge relationships is not material. The amount of pretax gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income
related to derivative and nonderivative instruments designated as net investment hedges are as follows.

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized as
Cumnulative Translation within Other
Comprehensive Income

(Millions) ' 2021 2020 2019

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments include de-designated foreign currency forward and option contracts that
formerly were designated in cash flow hedging relationships (as referenced in the Cash Flow Hedges section above). In
addition, 3M enters into foreign currency contracts that are not designated in hedging relationships to offset, in part, the impacts
of changes in value of various non-functional cutrency denominated items including certain intercompany financing balances.
These detivative instruments are not designated in hedging relationships; therefore, fair value gains and losses on these
contracts are recorded in earnings, The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Statement of Income Location and Impact of Cash Flow and Fair Value Derivative Instruments and Derivatives Not Designated
as Hedging Instruments

The location in the consolidated statement of income and pre-tax amounts recognized in income related to derivative

instruments designated in a cash flow or fair value hedging relationship and for derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments are as follows:

Location and Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income

Cost of sales Other expense (fucomce}, net
(Millions) 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019

Total arhounts of income and expense line items presented in
the consolidated statement of income in which the effects of
cash flow or falr value hedges are recorded $18,795 $16,605 $17,136 165 366 531
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Location, Fair Value and Gross Netional Amounts of Derivative Instruments:

The following tables summarize the fair value of 3M’s derivative instruments, excluding nonderivative instruments used as
hedging instruments, and their location in the consolidated balance sheet. Notional amounts below are presented at period end
foreign exchange rates, except for certain interest rate swaps, which are presented using the inception date’s foreign exchange
rate. '

Assets Liabilities
Gross Notional
Amount TFair Value Amount Fair Value Amount
(Millions) 2021 2020 Location 2021 2020 Location

2021 2020

eriyatives designated as
‘hedging instrument

Foreign currency forward/ 1,768 1,630 Other current § 54 $ 14 Othercurrent $ 19 5§ 67
option confracts assets liabilities

QOther current Other current

assets liabilities
erivatives designated
as hedging instruments

Total derivatives not
designated as hedging
instruments

Total derivative instruments .'$ 119 $ 44 $ 33 3§ 1(56

Credit Risk and Offsetting of Assets and Liabilities of Derivative Instruments.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by counterparties in interest rate swaps, currency swaps,
and forward and option contracts. However, the Company’s risk is limited to the fair value of the instruments. The Company
actively monitors its exposure to credit risk through the use of credit approvals and credit limits, and by selecting major
international banks and financial institutions as counterparties. 3M enters into master netting arrangements with counterparties
when possible to mitigate credit risk in derivative transactions. A master netting arrangement may allow each counterparty to
net settle amounts owed between a 3M entity and the counterparty as a result of multiple, separate derivative transactions. The
Company does not anticipate nonperformance by any of these counterparties.

3M has elected to present the fair value of derivative assets and liabilities within the Company’s consolidated balance sheet on a
gross basis even when derivative transactions are subject to master netting arrangements and may otherwise qualify for net
presentation. However, the following tables provide information as if the Company had elected to offset the asset and liability
balances of derivative instruments, netted in accordance with various criteria in the event of default or termination as stipulated
by the terms of netting arrangements with each of the counterparties. For each counterparty, if netted, the Company would
offset the asset and liability balances of all derivatives at the end of the reporting period based on the 3M entity that is a party to
the transactions. Derivatives not subject to master netting agreements are not eligible for net presentation.
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Offsetting of Financial Assets under Master Netting Agreements with Derivative Counterparties

Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject

Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements

Derivative Assets Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Net Amount of
Balance Sheet Derivative Linbilities Cash Collateral Received Derivative Assels
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

, {Millions)
oo

Derjvatives not subject to
master netting agreements — — — —

Offsetting of Financial Liabilities under Master Neiting Agreements with Derivative Counterparties

Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject

Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements

Derivative Liahbilities Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting :
Consolidated Recoguized Net Amount of
Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Cash Collateral Received Derivative Liabilitics
(Millions) 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

X
Derivatives not subject to
m

Foreign Currency Effects

3M estimates that year-on-year foreign currency transaction effects, including hedging impacts, decreased pre-tax income by
approximately $105 million in 2021, decreased pre-tax income by approximately $21 million in 2020, and increased pre-tax
income by approximately $201 million in 2019. These estimates inchude transaction gains and losses, including derivative
instruments designed to reduce foreign currency exchange rate risks.

NOTE 15. Fair Yalue Measurements
Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Recurving Basis:

For 3M, assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis primarily relate to available-for-sale
marketable securities and certain derivative instruments. Derivatives include cash flow hedges, interest rate swaps and net
investment hedges. The information in the following paragraphs and tables primarily addresses matters relative to these
financial assets and liabilities. Separately, there were no material fair value measurements with respect to nonfinancial assets or
liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the Company’s financial statements on a recurring basis for 2021 and
2020.

3M uses various valuation techniques, which are primarily based upon the market and income approaches, with respect to
financial assets and labilitics. Foflowing is a description of the valuatiocn methodologies used for the respective financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value.

Avaflable-for-sale marketable securities — except certain U.S. municipal securities:
Marketable securities, except certain U.S. municipal securities, are valued utilizing multiple sources. A weighted average price
is used for these securities. Market prices are obtained for these securities from a variety of industry standard data providers,

security master files from large financial institutions, and other third-party sources. These multiple prices are used as inputs into
a distribution-curve-based algorithm to determine the daily fair value to be used. 3M classifies U.8. treasury securities as level
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1, while all other marketable securities (excluding certain U.S, municipal securities) are classified as Ievel 2. Marketable
securities are discussed further in Note 11.

Available-for-sale marketable securities —certain U.S, municipal securities only:

3M holds municipal securities with several cities in the United States as of December 31, 2021. Due to the nature of these
securities, the valuation method references the carrying value of the corresponding finance lease obligation, and as such, will be
classified as level 3 securities separately,

Derivative instruments:

The Company’s derivative assets and liabilities within the scope of ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, are required to be
recorded at fair value. The Company’s derivafives that are recorded at fair value include foreign currency forward and option
confracts, interest rate swaps, and net investment hedges where the hedging instrument is recorded at fair value. Net investment
hedges that use foreign currency denominated debt to hedge 3M’s net investment are not impacted by the fair value
measurement standard under ASC 820, as the debt used as the hedging instrument is marked to a value with respect to changes
in spot foreign currency exchange rates and not with respect to other factors that may impact fair value.

3M has determined that foreign currency forwards, currency swaps, foreign currency options, interest rate swaps and cross-
currency swaps will be considered level 2 measurements. 3M uses inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset. These inputs include foreign currency exchange rates, volatilities, and interest rates. Derivative positions are primarily
valued using standard calculations/models that use as their basis readily observable market parameters. Industry standard data
providers are 3M’s primary source for forward and spot rate information for both interest rates and currency rates, with
resulting valuations periodically validated through third-party or counterparty quotes and a net present value sfream of cash
flows model.

The following tables provide information by level for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Fair YValue Measurements Using Inpnts Considered as
Description Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

At December 31, (Millions) 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 201 2020

jAvailable-for-sale'
¢ Marketabl

IR e o e e

Corporate debt securities $ — % 7% — % — 3% — 3% T8 — § —

. rr.Foreign currency forward/option contracts 119 37 — — 119 37 — —

i
Derivative instruments — liabilities;
|4 e

LI

Interest rate contracts 9 —_ — — 9 — — .
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of items measured at fair value on a
recurring basis in the table above that used significant unobservable inputs (level 3).

Marketable secarities — certain U.S. municipal securities only
(Millions) 2021 2020 2019

iB
T

In addition, the plan assets of 3M’s pension and postretirement benefit plans are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at
least annually). Refer fo Note 13.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis.

Disclosures are required for certain assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, but are recognized and disclosed at fair
value on a nonrecurring basis in periods subsequent to initial recognition. For 3M, such measurements of fair value primarily
relate to indefinite-lived and long-lived asset impairments, goodwill impairments, and adjustment in carrying value of equity
securities for which the measurement a{ternative of cost less impairment plus or minus observable price changes is used. There
were no material long-lived asset impairments for 2019 and 2021, There were no material adjustments to equity securities using
the measurement alternative for 2019 and 2021. 3M reflected an immaterial charge related to impairment of certain indefinite-
lived assets and a net charge of $22 million related to adjustment to the carrying value of equity securities using the
measurement alternative during the first quarter of 2020,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, held-to-maturity debt securities,
accounts receivable, cerfain investments, accounts payable, borrowings, and derivative contracts. The fair values of cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, held-to-maturity debt securities, accounts payable, and short-term borrowings and current
portion of long-term debt approximated carrying values because of the short-term nature of these instruments. Available-for-
sale marketable securities, in addition to certain derivative instruments, are recorded at fair values as indicated in the preceding
disclosures. To estimate fair values (classified as level 2) for its long-term debt, the Company utilized third-party quotes, which
are derived all or in part from model prices, external sources, market prices, or the third-party’s internal records, Information
with respect fo the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of these financial instruments follow:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Carrying Value Fair Val Carrying Val

Fair Value

The fair values reflected above consider the terms of the related debt absent the impacts of derivative/hedging activity. The
carrying amount of long-term debt referenced above is impacted by certain fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps that are
designated as fair value hedges and by the designation of certain fixed rate Eurobond secutities issued by the Company as
hedging instruments of the Company’s net investment in its European subsidiaries. A number of 3M’s fixed-rate bonds were
trading at a premium at December 31, 2021 and 2020 due to the lower interest rates and tighter credit spreads compared to
issuance levels.
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NOTE 16. Commitments and Contingencies
Warranties/Guaraniees.

3M’s accrued product warranty liabilities, recorded on the Consclidated Balance Sheet as part of current and long-termn
liabilities, are estimated at approximately $48 million at December 31, 2021, and $46 million at December 31, 2020, Further
information on product warranties is not disclosed, as the Company considers the balance immaterial to its consolidated results
of operations and financial conditicn. 3M guarantees of loans with third parties and other guarantee arrangements are not
material.

Legal Proceedings:

The Company and some of its subsidiaries are involved in numerous claims and lawsuits, principally in the United States, and
regulatory proceedings worldwide. These claims, lawsuits and proceedings include, but are not limited to, products liability
(involving products that the Company now or formerly manufactured and sold), intellectval property, commercial, antitrust,
federal healthcare program related laws and regulations, such as the False Claims Act and anti-kickback laws, securities, and
environmental laws in the United States and other jurisdictions. Unless otherwise stated, the Company is vigorously defending
all such litigation and proceedings. From time to time, the Company also receives subpoenas, investigative demands or requests
for information from various government agencies, The Company generally responds in a cooperative, thorough and timely
manner. These responses sometimes require time and effort and can result in considerable costs being incurred by the
Company. Such requests can also lead to the assertion of claims or the commencement of administrative, civil or criminal legal
proceedings against the Company and others, as well as to settlements. The outcomes of legal proceedings and regulatory
matters are often difficult to predict. Any determination that the Company’s operations or activities are not, or were not, in
compliance with applicable laws or regulations could result in the imposition of fines, civil or criminal penalties, and equitable
remedies, including disgorgement, suspension or debarment or injunctive relief,

Process for Disclosure and Recording of Liabilities Related to Legal Proceedings

Many lawsuits and claims involve highly complex issues relating to causation, scientific evidence, and alleged actual damages,
all of which are otherwise subject to substantial uncertainties, Assessments of lawsuits and claims can involve a series of
complex judgments about future events and can rely heavily on estimates and assumptions. When making determinations about
recording liabilitics related to legal proceedings, the Company complies with the requirements of ASC 450, Contingencies, and
related guidance, and records liabilities in those instances where it can reasonably estimate the amount of the loss and when the
loss is probable. Where the reasonable estimate of the probable foss is a range, the Company records as an accrual in its
financial statements the most likely estimate of the loss, or the low end of the range if there is no one best estimate. The
Company either discloses the amount of a possible loss or range of loss in excess of established accruals if estimable, or states
that such an estimate cannot be made. The Company discloses significant legal proceedings even where liability is not probable
or the amount of the liability is not estimable, or both, if the Company believes there is at least a reasonable possibility thata
loss may be incurted.

Because litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and unfavorable rulings or developments could occur, there can be no
certainty that the Company may not ultimately incur charges in excess of presently recorded liabilities. Many of the matters
described are at preliminary stages or seek an indeterminate amount of damages. It is not uncommon for claims to be resolved
over many years. A future adverse ruling, settlement, unfavorable development, or increase in accruals for one or more of these
matters could result in future charges that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or cash
flows in the period in which they are recorded. Based on experience and developments, the Company reexamines its estimates
of probable liabilities and associated expenses and receivables each period, and whether it is able to estimate a liability
previously determined to be not estimable and/or not probable, Where appropriate, the Company makes additions to or
adjustments of its estimated liabilities. As a result, the current estimates of the potential impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the legal proceedings and claims pending against the Company could
change in the future.

Process for Disclosure and Recording of Insurance Receivables Related to Legal Proceedings

The Company estimates insurance receivables based on an analysis of the terms of its numerous policies, including their
exclusions, pertinent case law interpreting comparable policies, its expetience with similar claims, and assessment of the nature
of the claim and remaining coverage, and records an amount it has concluded is recognizable and expects to receive in light of
the loss recovery and/or gain contingency models under ASC 450, ASC 610-30, and related guidance. For those insured legal
proceedings where the Company has recorded an accrued Hability in its financial statements, the Company also records
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receivables for the amount of insurance that it concludes as recognizabie from the Company’s insurance program. For those
insured matters where the Company has not recorded an accrued liability because the liability is not probable or the amount of
the liability is not estimable, or both, but where the Company has incurred an expense in defending itself, the Company recards
receivables for the amount of insurance that it concludes as recognizable for the expense incurred.

The following sections first describe the significant legal proceedings in which the Company is involved, and then describe the
Habilities and associated insurance receivables the Company has accrued relating to its significant legal proceedings.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation

As of December 31, 2021, the Company is a named defendant, with multiple co-defendants, in numerous lawsuits in various
courts that purport to represent approximately 3,876 individual claimants, compared to approximately 2,075 individual
claimants with actions pending on December 31, 2020,

The vast majority of the lawsuits and claims resolved by and currently pending against the Company allege use of some of the
Company’s mask and respirator products and seek damages from the Company and other defendants for alleged personal injury
from workplace exposures to asbestos, silica, coal mine dust or other occupational dusts found in products manufactured by
other defendants or generaily in the workplace. A minority of the Jawsuits and claims resolved by and currently pending against
the Company generally allege personal injury from occupational exposure to asbestos from products previously manufactured
by the Company, which are often unspecified, as well as products manufactured by other defendants, or occasionally at
Company premises.

The Company’s current volume of new and pending matters is substantially lower than it experienced at the peak of filings in
2003, The Company expects that filing of claims by unimpaired claimants in the future will continue to be at much lower levels
than in the past. Accordingly, the number of claims alleging more serious injuries, including mesothelioma, other malignancies,
and black lung disease, will represent a greater percentage of total claims than in the past. Over the past twenty plus years, the
Company has prevailed in fifteen of the sixteen cases tried to a jury (including the lawsuits in 2018 described below). In 2018,
3M received a jury verdict in its favor in two lawsuits — one in California state court in February and the other in Massachusetts
state court in December — both involving allegations that 3M respirators were defective and failed to protect the plaintiffs
against ashestos fibers. In April 2018, a jury in state court in Kentucky found 3M’s 8710 respirators failed to protect two coal
miners from coal mine dust and awarded compensatory damages of approximately $2 million and punitive damages totaling
$63 million, In August 2018, the trial court entered judgment and the Company appealed. During March and April 2019, the
Company agreed in principle ta settle a substantial majority of the then-pending coal mine dust lawsuits in Kentucky and West
Virginia for $340 million, including the jury verdict in April 2018 in the Kentucky case mentioned above. That settlement was
completed in 2019, and the appeal has been dismissed. In October 2020, 3M defended a respirator case before a jury in King
County, Washington, involving a former shipyard worker who alleged 3M’s 8710 respirator was defective and that 3M acted
negligently in failing to protect him against asbestos fibers. The jury delivered a complete defense verdict in favor of 3M,
concluding that the 8710 respirator was not defective in design or warnings and any conduct by 3M was not a cause of
plaintiff’s mesothelioma. The plaintiff’s appeal is pending. A ruling is expected during the first quarter of 2022.

The Company has demonstrated in these past trial proceedings that its respiratory protection products are effective as claimed
when used in the intended manner and in the intended circumstances. Consequently, the Company believes that claimants are
unable to establish that their medical conditions, even if significant, are attributable to the Company’s respiratory protection
products. Nonetheless, the Company’s litigation experience indicates that claims of persons alleging more serious injuries,
including mesothelioma, other malignancies, and black lung disease, are costlier to resolve than the claims of unimpaired
persons, and it therefore believes the average cost of resolving pending and future claims on a per-claim basis will continue to
be higher than it experienced in priot periods when the vast majority of claims were asserted by medically unimpaired
claimants. Since the second half of 2020, the Company has expetienced an increase in the number of cases filed that allege
injuries from exposures to coal mine dust; that increase represents the substantial majority of the growth in case numbers
referred to above.

As previously reported, the State of West Virginia, through its Attorney General, filed a complaint in 2003 against the
Company and two other manufacturers of respiratory protection products in the Circuit Court of Lincoln County, West
Virginia, and amended its complaint in 2005. The amended complaint secks substantial, but unspecified, compensatory
damages primarily for reimbursement of the costs allegedly incurred by the State for worker’s compensation and healthcare
benefits provided to all workers with occupational pneumoconiosis and unspecified punitive damages. In October 2019, the
court granted the State’s motion to sever its unfair trade practices claim. In January 2020, the manufacturers filed a petition with
the West Virginia Supreme Court, challenging the trial court’s rulings; that petition was denied in November 2020. Trial for the
unfair trade practices claims has been set for August 2022. No liability has been recorded for this matter because the Company
believes that liability is not probable and reasonably estimable at this time. In addition, the Company is not able to estimate a
possible loss or range of loss given the lack of any meaningful discovery responses by the State of West Virginia, the otherwise
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minimal activity in this case, and the assertions of claims against two other manufacturers where a defendant’s share of liability
may turn on the law of joint and several liability and by the amount of fault, if any, a jury may allocate to each defendant if the
case were ultimately tried.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Liabilities and Insurance Receivables

The Company regularly conducts a comprehensive legal review of its respirator mask/asbestos liabilities. The Company

reviews recent and historical claims data, including without limitation, (i) the number of pending claims filed against the
Company, (ii) the nature and mix of those claims (i.e., the proportion of claims asserting usage of the Company’s mask or
respirator products and alleging exposure to each of asbestos, silica, coal or other occupational dusts, and claims pleading use of
asbestos-containing products allegedly manufactured by the Company), (iii) the costs to defend and resolve pending claims, and
(iv) trends in filing rates and in costs to defend and resolve claims, (coltectively, the “Claims Data™). As part of its
comprehensive [egal review, the Company regularly provides the Claims Data to a third party with expertise in determining the
impact of Claims Data on future filing trends and costs, The third party assists the Company in estimating the costs to defend
and resolve pending and future claims, The Company uses these estimates to develop its best estimate of probable Hability,

Developments may occur that could affect the Company’s estimate of its liabilities. These developments include, but are not
limited to, significant changes in (i) the key assumptions underlying the Company’s accrual, including the number of future
claims, the nature and mix of those claims, the average cost of defending and regolving claims, and in maintaining trial
readiness, (ii) trial and appellate outcones, (iii) the law and procedure applicable to these claims, and (iv} the financial viability
of other co-defendants and insurers..

As aresult of its review of its respirator mask/asbestos liabilities, of pending and expected lawsuits and of the cost of resolving
claims of persons who claim more serious injuries, including mesothelioma, other malignancies, and biack lung disease, the
Company increased its accruals in 2021 for respirator mask/asbestos liabilities by $74 million. In 2021, the Company made
payments for legal defense costs and settlements of $96 million related to the respirator mask/asbestos litigation. As previously
disclosed, during the first quarter of 2019, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge of $313 million in conjunction with an
increase in the accrual as a result of the March and April 2019 settlements-in-principle of the coal mine dust lawsuits mentioned
above and the Company’s assessment of other then current and expected coal mine dust lawsuits (including the costs to resolve
all then current and expecied coal mine dust lawsuits in Kentucky and West Virginia at the time of the charge). As of December
31, 2021, the Company had an accrual for respirator mask/asbestos liabilities (excluding Aearo accruals) of $640 million. This
accrual represents the Company’s best estimate of probable loss and reflects an estimation period for future claims that may be
filed against the Company approaching the year 2050. The Company cannot estimate the amount or upper end of the range of
amounts by which the liability may exceed the accrual the Company has established because of the (i) inherent difficulty in
projecting the number of claims that have not yet been asserted or the time period in which future claims may be asserted, (ii)
the complainis nearly always assert claims against multiple defendants where the damages alleged are typically not attributed to
individual defendants so that a defendant’s share of liability may turn on the law of joint and several liability, which can vary
by state, (iii) the multiple factors described above that the Company considers in estimating its liabilities, and (iv) the several
possible developments deseribed above that may occur that could affect the Company’s estimate of liabilities.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company’s receivable for insurance recoveries related to the respirator mask/asbestos litigation
was $4 million. The Company continues to seek coverage under the policies of certain insolvent and other insurers. Once those
claims for coverage are resolved, the Company will have collected substantially all of its remaining insurance coverage for
respirator mask/asbestos claims.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation — Aearc Technologies

On April 1, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company acquired the stock of Aearo Holding Corp., the parent of Aearo Technologies
(“Aearo”™). Aearo manufactured and sold various products, including personal protection equipment, such as eye, ear, head,
face, fall and certain respiratory protection products,

As of December 31, 2021, Aearo and/or other companies that previously owned and operated Aearo’s respirator business
(American Optical Corporation, Warner-Lambert LL.C, AO Corp. and Cabot Corporation (“Cabot”)) are named defendants,
with multiple co-defendants, including the Company, in numerous lawsuits in various courts in which plaintiffs allege use of
mask and respirator products and seek damages from Aearo and other defendants for alleged personal injury from workplace
exposures to ashestos, silica-related, coal mine dust, or other occupational dusts found in products manufactured by other
defendants or generally in the workplace.
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As of December 31, 2021, the Company, through its Aearo subsidiary, bad accruals of $46 million for product liabilities and
defense costs related to current and future Aearo-related asbestos, silica-related and coal mine dust claims. This accrual
tepresents the Company’s best estimate of Acaro’s probable loss and reflects an estimation period for future claims that may be
filed against Aearo approaching the year 2050. The accrual reflects the Company’s assessment of pending and expected
lawsuits, its review of its respirator mask/asbestos liabilities, and the cost of resolving claims of persons who claim more
serlous injuries, Responsibility for legal costs, as well as for settlements and judgments, is currently shared in an informal
arrangement among Aearo, Cabot, American Optical Corporation ard a subsidiary of Warner Lambert and their respective
insurers (the “Payor Group”). Liability is allocated among the parties based on the number of years each company sold
respiratory products under the “A0 Safety” brand and/or owned the AO Safety Division of American Optical Corporation and
the alleged years of exposure of the individual plaintiff. :

Aearo’s share of the contingent liability is further limited by an agreement entered into between Aearo and Cabot on J uly 11,
1995, This agreement provides that, so long as Aearo pays to Cabot a quarterly fee of $100,000, Cabot will retain responsibility
and liability for, and indemnify Aearo against, any product Hability claims involving exposure to asbestos, silica, or silica
products for respirators sold prior to July 11, 1995. Because of the difficulty in determining how long a particular respirator
remains in the stream of commerce after being sold, Aearo and Cabot have applied the agreement to claims arising out of the
alleged use of respirators involving exposure to asbestos, silica or silica products prior to January 1, 1997, With these
arrangements in place, Aearo’s potential liability s limited to exposures alleged to have arisen from the use of respirators
involving exposure to asbestos, silica, or silica products on or after January 1, 1997. To date, Aearo has elected to pay the
quarterly fee. Aearo could potentially be exposed to additional claims for some part of the pre-July 11, 1995 period covered by
its agreement with Cabot if Aearo elects to discontinue its participation in this arrangement, or if Cabot is no longer able o
meet its obligations in these matters.

Developments may occur that could affect the estimate cf Aearo’s liabilities. These developments include, but are not limited
to: (i) significant changes in the number of future claims, (ii) significant changes in the average cost of resolving claims, (iii)
significant changes in the legal costs of defending these claims, (iv) significant changes in the mix and nature of claims
received, (v) trial and appellate outcomes, (vi) significant changes in the law and procedure applicable to these claims, (vif)
significant changes in the liability allocation among the co-defendants, (viii) the financial viability of members of the Payor
Group including exhaustion of available insurance coverage limits, and/or (ix) a determination that the interpretation of the
contractual obligations on which Aearo has estimated its share of lability is inaccurate. The Company cannot determine the
impact of these potential developments on its current estimate of Aearo’s share of liability for these existing and future claims.
If any of the developments described above were to occur, the actual amount of these liabilities for existing and future claims
could be significantly larger than the amount accrued.

Because of the inherent difficulty in projecting the number of claims that have not yet been asserted, the complexity of
allocating responsibility for future claims among the Payor Group, and the several possible developments that may occur that
could affect the estimate of Aearo’s liabilities, the Company cannot estimate the amount or range of amounts by which Acaro’s
liability may exceed the accrual the Company has established.

Environmental Matters and Litigation

The Company’s operations are subject to environmental laws and regulations including those pertaining to air emissions,
wastewater discharges, toxic substances, and the handling and disposal of solid and hazardous wastes enforceable by national,
state, and local authorities around the world, and private parties in the United States and abroad. These laws and regulations
provide, under certain circumstances, a basis for the remediation of contamination, for capital investment in pollution control
equipment, for restoration of or compensaticn for damages to natural resources, and for personal injury and property damage
claims. The Company has incurred, and will continue to incur, costs and capital expenditures in complying with these laws and
regulations, defending personal injury and property damage claims, and modifying its business operations in light of its
environmental responsibilities. In its effort to satisfy its environmental responsibilities and comply with environmental laws and
regulations, the Company has established, and periodically updates, policies relating to environmental standards of performance
for its operations worldwide.

Under certain environmental laws, including the United States Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA) and similar state laws, the Company may be joinily and severally liable, typically with other
companies, for the costs of remediation of environmental contamination at current or former facilities and at off-site locations.
The Compauy has identified numerous locations, most of which are in the United States, at which it may have some liability,
Please refer to the section entitled “Environmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivables” that follows for information on the
amount of the accrual for such liabilities,
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Emvironmenial Matters

As previously reported, the Company has been voluntarily cooperating with ongoing reviews by local, state, federal (primarily
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)), and international agencies of possible environmental and health effects of
various perfluorinated compounds, including perfluorcoctancate (PFOA), perfluorcoctane sulfonate (PFOS), perflucrohexane
sulfonate (PFHxS), or other per- and polyfluoroalky! substances (collectively PFAS). As a result of its phase-out decision in
May 2000, the Company no longer manufactures certain PFAS compounds including PFOA, PFOS, PFHxS, and their pre-
cursor compounds. The Company ceased manufacturing and using the vast majority of these compounds within approximately
two years of the phase-out announcensent and ceased all manufacturing and the last significant use of this chemistry by the end
of 2008, The Company confinues to manufacture a variety of shorter chain length PFAS compounds, including, but not limited
to, pre-cursor compounds to perfluorcbutane sulfonate (PFBS). These compounds are used as input materials to a variety of
products, including engineered flucrinated fluids, fluoropolymers and fluorelastomers, as well as surfactants, additives, and
coatings. Through its ongoing life cycle managenient and its raw material composition identification processes associated with
the Company’s policies covering the use of all persistent and bio-accumulative materials, the Company continues to review,
control or eliminate the presence of certain PFAS in purchased materials or as byproducts in some of 3M’s current
fluorochemical manufacturing processes, products, and waste streams,

PFAS Regulatory Activity

Regulatory activities concerning PFAS continue in the United States, Europe and elsewhere, and before certain international
bodies. These activities include gathering of exposure and use information, risk assessment, and consideration of regulatory
approaches. In the European Union, where 3M has manufacturing facilities in countries such as Germany and Belgium, recent
regulatory activities have included both preliminary and on-going work on various restrictions under the Regulation concerning
the Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals (REACH), including the restriction of PFAS in certain
usages and a broader restriction of PFAS as a class. As of the second half of 2020, PFOA is subject to broad restrictions under
the EU’s Persistent Organic Pollutants (POPs) Regulation. Dyneon, a 3M subsidiary that operates a facility at Gendorf,
Germany, has a recycling process for a critical emulsifier from which small amounts of PFOA are present after recycling, as an
unintended and unavoidable byproduct of certain earlier process steps. The recycling process removes and concentrates the
PFOA for incineration in accordance with applicable waste law. With respect to the applicability of the recently enacted POPs,
Dyneon proactively consulted with the relevant German regulatory authority regarding process improvements underway that
are designed to ensure compliance with the PFOA limits in the recycled material. In October 2021, Dyneon also discussed with
the authority technical complexities it had recently discovered in achieving PFOA reductions. The engagement is ongoing.

In addition, as previously disclosed, 3M Belgium, a subsidiary of the Company, has been working with the Public Flemish
Waste Agency (OVAM) for several years to investigate and remediate historical FPFOA. contaminations at and near the 3M
Belgium facility in Zwijndrecht, Antwerp, Belgium. In connection with a ring road construction project (the Oosterweel
Project) in Antwerp that has involved extensive soil work, an investigative committee with judicial investigatory powers was
formed in June 2021 by the Flemish Parliament to investigate PFAS found in the soil and groundwater near the Zwijndrecht
facility. The Company testified at Flemish parliamentary cominittee hearings in June and September 2021 on PFAS-related
matters, The Flemish Parliament, the Minister of the Environment, and regulatory authorities have initiated investigations and
demands for information related to the release of PFAS from the Zwijndrecht facility, The Company is cooperating with the
authorities in the investigations and information requests. Separately, as previously disclosed, the Company is aware that certain
residents of Zwijndrecht have filed a crimina! complaint with an Antwerp investigaiory judge against 3M Belgium, alleging it
had unlawfully abandoned waste in violation of its environmental care obligations. 3M Belgium has not been served with any
such complaint,

Safety measures — wastewater discharge. In August 2021, the Flemish Government served 3M Belgium with a notice of intent
to impose a safety measure (wastewater discharge stoppage) and issued an infraction report alleging permit and/or legal
violations in connection with the discharge of certain specific PFAS compounds for alleged lack of specific authorization.
Following discussions with the government officials, 3M Belgium implemented a focused safety measure that would allow
continued production activities and plans to contest through appeal the underlying legal and factual basis for the safety measure.
Separately, the permitting authority has initiated a process to tighten the wastewater discharge limits immediately. In October
2021, the Province of Antwerp adopted lower discharge limits for the nine PFAS compounds specifically identified in the water
discharge permit and added a special condition that essentially prehibits discharge of any PFAS chemistry without a specific
limit in the permit. The action by the Province was timely appealed and a hearing on the appeal was held in January 2022, The
Flemish Regional Environmental Permit Commission subsequently issued a recommendation that the appeal be denied and that
lower limits on PFAS compounds be imposed immediately. A decision on the appeal is pending. An adverse ruling on the
appeal would restrict the discharge of wastewater under the special condition noted above, which would materially and
adversely impact the facility’s operations including the possibility of causing the facility to cease operations. While the
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Company is exploring multiple options to mitigate the impact of an adverse ruling, a prolonged suspension or interruption of
the facility's operations could have a significant adverse impact on the Company's businesses that receive products and other
materials from the facility, some of which may not be available in similar quantities from other 3M facilities.

Safety measure — emissions. As previously disclosed, in October 2021, the Flemish environmental agency issued a new safety
measure that prohibits all emissions of all forms of PFAS from the facility unless and until specifically approved on a process-
by-process basis. 3M Belgium thereupon commenced an immediate appeal process to the Council of States, seeking, among
other things, urgent suspension of the safety measure during the pendency of the appeal process. At the same time, 3M Belgium
initiated efforts to comply with the safety measure by temporarily idling the affected production at the facility. The Council of
States declined to grant urgent suspension of the safety measure. An unsuccessful appeal of the safety measure would extend
the period the affected production is idled and could have a material negative impact on the Zwijndrecht facility’s operations.
3M Belgium has established a regular cadence of meetings with the relevant authorities in connection with the requests to
restart specific production processes that may result in emissions to air. The authorities have accepted the third-party experts
proposed by 3M Belgium who are required by the safety measure to review and opine on proposals necessary for process
restart. Although some limited requests have been approved for testing purposes, and the facility is taking actions to remedy
emission issues, a prolonged suspension and idling of the facility's operations could have a significant adverse impact on the
Company's businesses that receive products and other materials from the facility, some of which may not be available in similar
quantities from other 3M facilities, which could in turn impact these businesses’ ability to fulfill supply obligations to their
customers.

Administrative measure — soil piles. In September 2021, the Flemish Government served 3M Belgium with a notice of intent to
impose an administrative measure related to the removal and potential remediation of soil piles on the Zwijndrecht site, 3M
Belgium continues to have discussions with the relevant authorities to explain the timing consiraints for certain actions.

Notice of default - environmental law compliance. Also in September 2021, the Flemish Region issued a notice of default
alleging violations of environmental laws and seeking PFAS-related information, indemnity and a remediation plan for soil and
water impacts due to PFAS originating from the Zwijndrecht facility. In September 2021, 3M responded to the notice of default
and announced a plan to invest up to 125 miflion euros in the next three years in actions related to the Zwijndrecht community,
including support for local commercial farmers impacted by restrictions on sale of agricultural products, and enhancements to
site discharge control technologies. 3M is also committed to payment for ongoing off-site descriptive soil investigation and
appropriate soil remediation.

In the United States, the EPA has developed human health effects documents summarizing the available data studies of both
PFOA and PFOS. In May 2016, the EPA announced lifetime health advisory levels for PFOA and PFOS at 70 parts per trillion
{ppt) (superseding the provisional levels established by the EPA in 2009 of 400 ppt for PFOA and 200 ppt for PFOS). Where
PFOA and PFOS are found together, EPA’s lifetime health advisory for PFOA and PFOS combined is also 70 ppt. Lifetime
health advisories, which are non-enforceable and non-regulatory, provide information about concentrations of drinking water
contaminants at which adverse health effects are not expected to occur over the specified exposure duration.

The U.S. Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR} within the Department of Health and Human Services
released a draft Toxicological Profile for PFAS for public review and comment in June 2018. In the draft report, ATSDR
proposed draft minimal risk levels (MRLs) for PFOS, PFOA and several other PFAS. An MRL is an estimate of the daily
human exposure to a hazardous substance that is likely to be without appreciable risk of adverse non-cancer health effects over
a specified duration of exposure. MRLs establish a screening level and are not intended to define cleanup or action levels for
ATSDR or other agencies. In May 2021, ATSDR released a final toxicological profile for certain PFAS that preserved the draft
MRLs. Earlier, in April 2021, EPA released a final toxicity assessment for PFBS.

As periodically required under the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA), the EPA pubiished in May 2012 a list of unregulated
substances, including six PFAS chemicals, required to be monitored during the period 2013-2015 by public water system
suppliers to determine the extent of their oceurrence. Through January 2017, the EPA reported results for 4,920 public water
supplies nationwide. Based on the 2016 lifetime health advisory, 13 public water supplies exceeded the level for PFOA and 46
exceeded the level for PFOS (unchanged from the July 2016 EPA summary). These results are based on one or more samples
collected during the period 2012-2015 and do not necessarily reflect current conditions of these public water supplies. EPA
reporting does not identify the sources of the PROA and PFOS in the public water supplies. In December 2021, EPA published
the fifth version of the unregulated contaminant monitoring rule, which requires monitoring for 29 PFAS compounds between
2023 and 2025.

With respect to PFOA and PFOS in groundwater, EPA. issued interim recommendations in December 2019, providing guidance

for screening levels and preliminary remediation goals for groundwater that is a current or potential drinking water source, to
inform final clean-up levels of contaminated sites.
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In October 2021, EPA released its “PFAS Sirategic Roadmap: EPA's Commitments to Action 2021-2024,” which presents
EPA’s approach to PFAS, including investing in research to increase an understanding of PFAS, pursuing a comprehensive
approach to proactively control PFAS exposures to humans and the environment, and broadening and accelerating the scope of
clean-up of PFAS in the environment. The 2021-2024 Roadmap sets timelines by which EPA plans to take specific actions,
including, among other items, publishing a national PFAS testing strategy, proposing to designate PFOA and PFOS as
CERCLA hazardous substances, restricting PFAS discharges from industrial sources through Effluent Limitations Guidelines,
publishing the final toxicity assessment for five additional PFAS compounds, requiring water systems to test for 29 PFAS
compounds under the SDWA, and publishing improved analytical metheds in eight different environmenta! matrices to monitor
40 PFAS compounds present in wastewater and stormwater discharges.

EPA previously published its intention to initiate a process to develop a national primary drinking water regulation for PFOA
and PFOS; the process is expected to take several years and will include further analyses, scientific review and opportunities for
public comment. EPA initiated the first step in the process in November 2021 by referring its proposed approach to developing
a Maximum Contaminant Level Goal to the Science Advisory Board and soliciting public comment. The Company submitted
initial comments in December 2021, In October 2021, in response to a petition by New Mexico, EPA announced it will initiate
a rulemaking to designate four PFAS compounds as hazardous constituents under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
(RCRA). Further, in January 2022, EPA formally submitted to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) its plan to
designate PFOA and PFOS as hazardous substances under CERCLA,

EPA has also taken several actions to increase reporting and restrictions regarding PFAS under the Toxic Substances Control
Act (TSCA) and the Toxics Release Inventory {TRI), which is a part of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-
Know Act. EPA has added more than 170 PFAS compounds to the list of substances that must be included in TRI repotts as of
July 2021, In June 2021, EPA published a proposed rule under TSCA that, if adopted, would require certain persons that
manufacture {including import) or have manufactured PFAS in any year since 2011 to report information regarding PFAS uses,
production volumes, disposal, exposures, and hazards. The Company submitted comments on the proposed rule during the
public comment period, which ended in September 2021.

Several state legislatures and state agencies have been evaluating or have taken actions related to cleanup standards,
groundwater values or drinking water values for PFOS, PFOA, and other PFAS, and 3M has submitted various responsive
comments. Those states include the following:

»  Minnesota Department of Health in May 2017 stated that Health Based Values (HBVs) “are designed to reduce long-
term health risks across the population and are based on multiple safety factors to protect the most vulnerable citizens,
which makes them overprotective for most of the residents in cur state.” As of 2021, the current HBVs are 35 ppt for
PFOA, 15 ppt for PFOS, 47 ppt for PFHxS and 2 ppb for PFBS. In February 2018, the MDH published reports finding
no unusual rates of certain cancers or adverse birth cutcomes (low birth rates or premature births) among residents of
Washington and Dakota Counties in Minnesota.

*  Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) and three other state agencies published “Minnesota’s PFAS Blueprint”
in February 2021, The Blueprint outlines the State’s plans to manage, investigate, monitor, research and regulate PFAS
discharges or releases in Minnesota. In November 2021, MPCA published for public notice its *Draft PFAS
Monitoring Plan,” which proposes a system for voluntary PFAS monitoring at solid waste, wastewater and stormwater
facilities, facilities with air emissions, and sites in the Superfund or the state’s Brownfield programs.

= California finalized drinking water response levels for PFOA and PFOS in February 2020,

»  Vermont finalized drinking water standards for a combination of PFOA, PFOS and three other PFAS compounds in
March 2020.

= New Jersey finalized drinking water standards and designated PFOA and PFOS as hazardous substances in June 2020.

+  New York established drinking water standards for PFOA and PFOS in July 2020,

+  New Hampshire established drinking water standards by legislation for certain PFAS compounds, including PFOS and
PFOA, in July 2020.

*  Michigan implemented final drinking water standards for certain PFAS compounds, including PFOS and PFOA, in
August 2020. ’

»  Massachuseits published final regulations establishing a drinking water standard relating to six combined PFAS
compounds in October 2020,

Some other states have also been evaluating or have taken actions relating to PFOA, PFOS and other PFAS compounds in
products such as food packaging, carpets and other products. For example, in October 2021, two bills were signed into law in
California that prohibit the use of PFAS in children’s products and in food packaging. Additionally, in December 2021,
California finalized its listing of PFOS as a carcinogen, and PFNA as a reproductive toxicant under its Proposition 65 law,
California has alsc proposed listing PFQA as a carcinogen and PFDA, PFHxS, and PFUNDA as reproductive toxicants under
Proposition 65. In August 2021, Maine became the first state to ban all PFAS compounds in all products, except where use is
unavoidable, The ban becomes effective in 2030.
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In October 2020, 3M and several other parties filed notices of appeal in the appellate division of the Superior Court of New
Jersey to challenge the validity of the New Jersey PFOS and PFOA regulations. In January 2021, the appellate division of the
court denied the group’s motion to stay the regulations. The parties completed briefing on the merits in October 2021. In March
2021, 3M filed a lawsuit against the New York State Department of Health, on the grounds that drinking water levels set by the
agency for PFOS and PFOA should be vacated because they are arbitrary and did not comply with statutorily required
processes. An oral argument on the merits was held in December 2021, In April 2021, 3M also filed a lawsuit against the
Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) to invalidate the drinking water standards EGLE
promulgated under an accelerated timeline. EGLE moved to dismiss that lawsuit. In September 2021, the court denied EGLE’s
motion in part, and the parties are proceeding to litigation on the merits of the remaining claims.

The Company cannot predict what additional regulatory actions in the United States, Europe and elsewhere arising from the
foregoing or other proceedings and activities, if any, may be taken regarding such compounds or the consequences of any such
actions to the Company.

Litigation Related to Historical PFAS Manufacturing Operations in Alabama

As previously reported, a former employee filed a putative class action lawsuit against 3M, BFT Waste Management Systems of
Alabama, and others in the Circuit Court of Morgan County, Alabama (the “St. John” case), secking property damage from
exposure fo certain perfluorochemicals at or near the Company’s Decatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility. The parties have
agreed to repeated stays of the St. John case, to permit ongoing mediation between the parties involved in this case and another
case discussed below. Two additional putative class actions filed in the same court by certain residents in the vicinity of the
Decatur plant seeking relief on similar grounds (the Chandler case and the Stover case, respectively) are stayed pending the
resolution of class certification issues in the St, John case.

In June 2016, the Tennessee Riverkeeper, Inc. (Riverkeeper), a non-profit corporation, filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Court
for the Northern District of Alabama against 3M; BFI Waste Systems of Alabama; the City of Decatur, Alabama; and the
Municipal Utilities Board of Decatur, Morgan County, Alabama. The complaint alleges that the defendants violated the
Resource Conservation and Recavery Act in connection with the disposal of certain PFAS compounds through their ownership
and operation of their respective sites. The complaint further alleges such practices may present an imminent and substantial
endangerment to health and/or the envirenment and that Riverkeeper has suffered and will continue to suffer irreparable harm
caused by defendants’ failure to abate the endangerment unless the court grants the requested relief, including declaratory and
injunctive relief. This case was also stayed pending ongoing mediation and discussions between the parties in conjunction with
the St. John case.

In October 2021, 3M reached agreements in principle to resolve litigation with the Tennessee Riverkeeper organization, as well
as the plaintiffs in the S. John (including Stover, Owens and Chandler) matters. The agreements, if finalized and approved by
the court, wilt complement the Interim Consent Order that 3M entered with the Alabama Department of Environmental
Management (ADEM) in 2020, as described below, Key provisions of these agreements include 3M’s continued envirenmental
characterization, including sampling of environmental media, such as soil, ground water, and sediment, regarding the potential
presence of PFAS at the 3M Decatur facility and legacy disposal sites, as well as supporting the execution of appropriate
remedial actions, In December 2021, the court in the St. John action granted preliminary approval of the class settlement, and a
hearing for final approval is scheduled for April 2022. Also in December 2021, the court handling the Tennessee Rivetkeeper
action administratively closed that case in light of the settlement befween the parties.

In October 2015, West Morgan-East Lawrence Water & Sewer Authority (Water Authority) filed a complaint against 3M
Company, Dynean, L.L.C, and Daikin Ametica, [ne., in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Alabama. The
complaint also includes representative plaintiffs who brought the complaint on behalf of themselves, and a class of all owners
and possessors of property who use water provided by the Water Authority and five local water works to which the Water
Authority supplies water, The complaint seeks compensatory and punitive damages and injunctive relief based on allegations
that the defendants’ chemicals, inciuding PFOA and PFOS from their manufacturing processes in Decatut, have contaminated
the water in the Tennessee River at the water intake, and that the chemicals cannot be removed by the water treatment processes
utilized by the Water Authority. In April 2019, 3M and the Water Authority settled the lawsuit for $35 million, which will fund
a new watet filtration system, with 3M indemnifying the Water Authority from liability resulting from the resolution of the
currently pending and future lawsuits against the Water Authority alleging liability or damages related to 3M PFAS. In Cctober
2021, with respect to the putative class claims brought by the representative plaintiffs who were supplied drinking water by the
Water Authority (the “Lindsey” case), the parties reached an agreement in principle, subject to court approval, to resclve the
claims for an immaterial amount. In November 2021, the court entered an order of preliminary approval of the class settlement.
A hearing on final approval of the settlement is scheduled for March 2022.

In August 2016, a group of over 200 plaintiffs filed a putative class action against West Morgan-East Lawrence Water and
Sewer Authority (Water Authority), 3M, Dyneon, Daikin, BFI, and the City of Decatur in state court in Lawrence County,
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Alabama (the “Billings” case). Plaintiffs are residents of Lawrence, Morgan and other counties who are or have been customers
of the Water Authority. They contend defendants have released PFAS that contaminate the Tennessee River and, in turn, their
drinking water, causing damage 1o their health and properties. In January 2017, the court in the St. John case, discussed above,
stayed this litigation pending resolution of the St. John case. Plaintiffs in the Billings case have amended their complaint
numerous times to add additional plaintiffs. There are now approximately 4,500 named plaintiffs. The parties have reached an
agreement in principle to resolve the litigation.

In January 2017, several hundred plaintiffs sued 3M, Dyneon and Daikin America in Lawrence and Morgan Counties, Alabama
{the “Owens” case). The plaintiffs are owners of property, residents, and holders of property interests who receive their water
from the West Morgan-East Lawrence Water and Sewer Authority (Water Authority). They assert common law claims for
negligence, nuisance, trespass, wantonness, and battery, and they seck injunctive relief and punitive damages. The plaintiffs
contend that the defendants own and operate manufacturing and disposal facilities in Decatur that have released and continue to
release PFOA, PFOS and related chemicals into the groundwater and surface water of their sites, resulting in discharges into the
Tennessee River. The plaintiffs contend that, as a result of the alleged discharges, the water supplied by the Water Authority to
the plaintiffs was, and is, contaminated with PFOA, PFOS and related chemicals at a level dangerous to humans, The court
denied a motion by co-defendant Daikin to stay this case pending resolution of the St. John case. The parties have reached an
agreement in principle to resolve the litigation. :

In November 2017, a pufative class action (the “King” case) was filed against 3M, Dyneon, Daikin America and the West
Morgan-East Lawrence Water and Sewer Authority (Water Authority) in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of
Alabama. The plaintiffs are residents of Lawrence and Morgan County, Alabama who receive their water from the Water
Authority and seek injunctive relief, attorneys® fees, compensatory and punitive damages for their alleged personal injuries. The
plaintiffs contend that the defendants own and operate manufacturing and disposal facilities in Decatur, Alabama that have
releagsed and continue to release PFOA, PFOS and related chemicals into the groundwater and surface water of their sites,
resulting in discharges into the Tennessee River, The plaintiffs contend that, as a result of the alleged discharges, the water
supplied by the Water Authority to the plaintiffs was, and is, contaminated with PFOA, PFOS and related chemicals at a level
dangerous to humans. [n November 2019, the King plaintiffs amended their complaint to withdraw all class allegations. Since
then, the complaint has been amended several times to add or dismiss plaintiffs, and the case currently involves 42 plaintiffs.
The case is scheduled for trial in July 2023, Discovery in this case is proceeding.

In July 2019, 3M announced that it had initiated an investigation into the possible presence of PFAS in three closed municipal
fandfills in Decatur that accepted waste from 3M’*s Decatur plant and other companies in the 1960s through the 1980s, 3M has
worked with the City of Decatur and other local and state entities such as Morgan County and Decatur Utilities as it conducted
its investigation. In November 2021, 3M and the City of Decatur, Decatur Utilities and Morgan County executed a
collaborative agreement under which the Company agreed to contribute approximately $99 million and also to continue to
address certain PFAS-related matters in the area. The coniribution relates to initiatives to improve the quality of 1ife and overall
environment in Decatur, including community redevelopment and recreation projects by the City, County and Decatur Utilities.
It also includes addressing PFAS matters at the Morgan County landfill and reimbursement of costs previously incurred related
to PFAS remediation, In addition to the contribution, 3M will continue to address PFAS at certain other closed municipal sites
at which the Company historically disposed waste and continue environmental characterization in the area. This work will
complement the Interim Consent Order that 3M entered with ADEM in 2020 and includes sampling of environmental media,
such as ground water, regarding the potential presence of PFAS at the 3M Decatur facility and legacy disposal sites, as well as
supporting the execution of any appropriate remedial actions.

3M is also defending or has received notice of potential lawsuits in state and federal court brought by individual property
owners who c¢laim damages related to historical PFAS disposal at former area landfills near their Decatur-area properties. 3M
continues to negotiate with property owners and has resolved for an immaterial amount some of the claims brought by them.

In September 2020, the City of Guin Water Works and Sewer Board (Guin WWSB) brought a lawsuil against 3M in Alabama
state court alleging that PFAS contamination in the Guin water systemm stems from manufacturing operations at 3M’s Guin
facility and disposal activity at a nearby landfill. In this same month, Guin WWSB dismissed its lawsuit without prejudice and
has been working with 3M to further investigate the presence of chemicals in the area. In December 2021, the parties reached a
seitlement under which 3M agreed to contribute $30 million that will be used on a new treatment system for Guin’s drinking
water and a new wastewater treatment facility,

Litigation Related to Historical PFAS Manufacturing Operations in Minnesota
In July 2016, the City of Lake Elmo filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the District of Minnesota against 3M alleging

that the City suffered damages from drinking water supplies contaminated with PFAS, including costs to construct alternative
sources of drinking water, In April 2019, 3M and the City of Lake Elmo agreed to settle the lawsuit for less than $5 million.
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State Attorneys General Litigation related to PFAS

Minnesota, In December 2010, the State of Minnesota, by its Attorney General, filed a lawsuit in Hennepin County District
Court against 3M seeking damages and injunctive relief with respect to the presence of PFAS in the groundwater, surface
water, fish or other aquatic life, and sediments in the state of Minnesota (the “NRD Lawsuit”). In February 2018, 3M and the
State of Minnesota reached a resolution of the NRD Lawsuit. Under the terms of the settlement, 3M agreed to provide an $850
million grant to the State for a special “3M Water Quality and Sustainability Fund.” This Fund, which is administered by the
State, will enable projects that support water sustainability in the Twin Cities East Metro region, such as continued delivery of
water to residents and enhancing groundwater recharge to support sustainable growth. Other purposes of the grant include
habitat and recreation improvements, such as fishing piers, trails, and open space preservation. 3M recorded a pre-tax charge of
$897 million, inclusive of legal fees and other related obligations, in the first quarter of 2018 associated with the resolution of
this matter.

In connection with the above referenced settlement, the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency and the Department of Natural
Resources, as co-irustees of the Fund, released in September 2020 a conceptual drinking water supply plan for the communities
in the East Metro area, seeking public comment on three recommended options for utilizing the Fund. In December 2020, 3M
submitted preliminary comments on the co-trustees’ draft conceptual drinking water supply plan to address legal and technical
aspects of the draft plan, The Company and the State continue to discuss those aspects of the draft plan.

New York. The State of New York, by its Attorney General, has filed four lawsuits (in June 2018, February 2019, July 2019,
and November 2019) against 3M and other defendants seeking to recover the costs incurred in responding to PFAS
contamination allegedly caused by Aqueous Film Forming Foam (AFFF) manufactured by 3M and others, Each of the four
suits was filed in Albany County Supreme Court before being removed to federal court, and each has been transferred to the
multi-district litigation (MDL) proceeding for AFFF cases, which is discussed further below. The state is seeking compensatory
and punitive damages, and injunctive and equitable relief in the form of a monetary fund for the State’s reasonably expected
future damages, and/or requiring defendants to perform investigative and remedial work.

Ohio. In December 2018, the State of Ohio, by its Attorney General, filed a lawsuit in the Common Pleas Court of Lucas
County, Ohio against 3M, Tyco Fire Products LP, Chemguard, Inc., Buckeye Fire Equipment Co., National Foam, Inc., and
Angus Fire Armour Corp., seeking injunctive relief and compensatory and punitive damages for remediation costs and alleged
injury to Ohio natural resources from AFFF manufacturers. This case was removed to federal court and transferred to the MDL.

New Jersey. In March 2019, the New Jersey Attorney General filed two actions against 3M, DuPont, and Chemours on behalf
of the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEF), the NJDEP’s coimmissioner, and the New Jersey Spill
Compensation Fund regarding alleged discharges at two DuPont facilities in Pennsville, New Jersey (Salem County) and Parlin,
New Jersey (Middlesex County). 3M is included as a defendant in both cases because it allegedly supplied PFOA to DuPont for
use at the facilities at issue. Both cases expressly seek to have the defendants pay all costs necessary to investigate, remediate,
assess, and restore the affected natural resources of New Jersey. DuPont removed these cases to federal court. In June 2020, the
court consolidated the two actions, along with two others brought by the NJDEP relating to the DuPont facilities, for case
management and pretrial purposes. In December 2021, the court denied various motions to dismiss that the defendants had
filed, including 3M's motions. The parties are conducting discovery.

In May 2019, the New Jersey Attorney General and NJIDEP filed a tawsuit against 3M, DuPont, and six other companies,
alleging natural resource damages from AFFF products and seeking damages, including punitive damages, and associaied fees.
This case was removed to federal court and transferred to the AFFF MDL.

New Hampshire. Tn May 2019, the New Hampshire Attorney General filed two lawsuits alleging confamination of the state’s
drinking water supplies and other natural resources by PFAS chemicals. The first lawsuit was filed against 3M and seven co-
defendants, alleging PFAS contamination resulting from the use of AFFF products at several sites around the state. This case
was removed to federal court and transferred to the AFFF MDL. The second suit asserts PFAS contamination from non-AFFF
sources and names 3M, DuPont, and Chermours as defendants. In its June 2020 ruling on defendants® motions to dismiss, the
court dismissed the state’s trespass claim, but allowed several claims to proceed. In October 2020, the state amended its
complaint to add a state commission as plaintiff and make a claim related to the state’s drinking water and groundwater trust
fund statute. In July 2021, the court granted defendants’ motions to dismiss these amendments. In September 2021 the state
filed its second amended complaint, which 3M answered in October 2021. A hearing on case scheduling has been set for March
2022, and the case remains in early stages of litigation.

Vermont, In June 2019, the Yermont Attorney General filed two lawsuits alleging contamination of the state’s drinking water

supplies and other natural resources by PFAS chemicals. The first lawsuit was filed against 3M and ten co-defendants, alleging
PFAS contamination resulting from the use of AFFF products at several sites around the state. This case was removed to federal
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court and transferred to the AFFF MDL. The second suit asserts PFAS contamination from non-AFFF sources and names 3M
and several entities related to DuPont and Chemours as defendants. This suit is proceeding in state court. In May 2020, the
court denied the defendants’ motion to dismiss, but dismissed the state’s trespass claim as to property the state does not own,
The parties are now engaged in discovery and the court has set a trial-ready date in October 2023,

Michigan. In January 2020, the Michigan Attorney General filed a lawsuit in state court against 3M, Dyneen, DuPont,
Chemours and others seeking injunctive and equitable relief and damages for alleged injury to Michigan public natural
resources and its residents related to PFAS, excluding AFFF, The case was removed to federal court in March 2021 and
subsequently transferred to the AFFF MDL. The state has filed a motion to remand the case to state court. In addition, in
August 2020, the Michigan Attorney General filed two lawsuits against numerous AFFF manufacturers and distributors, and
suppliers of PFAS to AFFF manufacturers. 3M is named a defendant in one of the lawsuits, filed in federal court, and the case
has been transferred to the AFFF MDL, where it remains in early stages of litigation.

Guam. In September 2019, the Attorney General of Guam filed a lawsuit against 3M and other defendants relating to
contamination of the territory’s drinking water supplies and other natural resources by PFAS, allegedly resulting from the use
of AFFF products at several sites around the island, This lawsuit has been removed to federal court and transferred to the AFFF
MDL.

Commonwealth of Northern Mariana Jslands. In December 2019, the Attorney General of the Commonwealth of Northern
Mariana Islands, a U.8, territory, filed a lawsuit against 3M and other defendants relating to contamination of the ferritory’s
drinking water supplies and other natural resources by PFAS, allegedly resulting from the use of AFFF products. This lawsuit
has been removed to federal court and transferred to the AFFF MDL.,

Mississippi. In December 2020, the Mississippi Attorney General filed an AFFF-related PFAS lawsuit against 3M and other
defendants directly with the AFFF MDL court in South Carolina. The lawsuit alleges injuries to the State’s property and natural
resources purportedly caused by PFAS contamination from AFFF use and seeks both compensatory and punitive damages.

Alaska. ITn April 2021, the State of Alaska filed a lawsuit against 3M and other defendants, alleging damages from the release of
PFAS into the environment from a variety of products, including AFFF. This lawsuit was removed tc federal court and
transferred to the AFFF MDL in August 2021.In addition, in July 2021, the State of Alaska named 3M as a third-party
defendant in two cases originally brought against the state by plaintiffs alleging property damage from AFFF use. Both of these
cases were also remaoved to federal court and transferred to the AFFF MDL.

North Caroling, Tn November 2021, the State of North Carolina filed four lawsuits against 3M and other defendants, alleging
damages from the release of PFAS into the environment from AFFF use at certain air force bases and a fire training academy,
These cases have been removed to federal court and have been transferred to the AFFF MDL.

In addition to the above state atlorneys general actions, several other states and the District of Columbia, through their attorneys
general, have announced selection processes to retain outside law firms to bring PFAS-related lawsuits against certain
manufacturers including the Company, In addition, the Company is in discussions with several state attorneys general and
agencies, responding to information and other requests relating to PFAS matters and exploring potential resolution of some of
the matters raised.

Aqueous Film Forming Foam (AFFF) Environmental Litigation

IM manufactured and marketed AFFF for use in firefighting at airports and military bases from approximately 1963 to 2002,
As of December 31, 2021, 2,043 lawsuits (including 32 putative class actions) alleging injuries or damages by AFFF use have
been filed against 3M (along with other defendants) in various state and federal courts. As further described below, a vast
majority of these pending cases are in a federat Multi-District Litigation (MDL) court in Scuth Carolina. Additional AFFF
cases continue to be filed in or transferred to the MDL, The Company also continues to defend certain AFFF cases that remain
in state court and is in discussions with pre-suit claimants for possible resolutions where appropriate,

In December 2018, the U.S. Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation (JPML) granted motions to transfer and consolidate afl
AFFF cases pending in federal courts to the U.S. District Court for the District of South Carolina to be managed in an MDL
proceeding to centralize pre-trial proceedings. The parties in the MDL are currently in the process of conducting discovery. An
initial pool of ten water supplier cases was selected in February 2021 for case-specific fact discovery as potential bellwether
cases. In October 2021, the parties and the MDL court selected three of these cases for additional fact and expert discovery and
for potential trial as bellwether cases. The MDL court in August 2021 issued a scheduling order and set the first bellwether
cases to begin trial on or afier January 1, 2023. The MDL court has encouraged the parties to negotiate to resolve cases in the
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MDL. In November 2021, the defendants filed an omnibus motion regarding their government contractor defense. In December
2021, the plaintiffs filed a response.

In June 2019, several subsidiaries of Valero Energy Corporation, an independent petroleum refiner, filed eight AFFF cases
against 3M and other defendants, including DuPont/Chemours, National Foam, Buckeye Fire Equipment, and Kidde-Fenwal, in
various state courts. Plaintiffs seek damages that allegedly have been or will be incurred in investigating and remediating PFAS
contamination at their properties and replacing or disposing of AFFF products containing long-chain PFAS compounds. Two of
these cases have been removed to federal court and transferred to the AFFF MDL. Five cases remain pending in state courts
where they are in early stages of litigation, after Valero dismissed its Ohio state court action without prejudice in October 2019.
The parties in the state court cases have agreed to stay all five cases until March 2022.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company is aware of 15 other AFFF suits originally filed in various state courts in which the
Company has been named a defendant. Seven of these cases have been removed to federal court, where defendants have sought
transfer to the AFFF MDL. :

Two subsidiaries of Husky Energy filed suit in April 2020 against 3M and other AFFF manufacturers in Wisconsin state court
relating to alleged PFAS contamination from AFFF use at Husky facilities in Superior, Wisconsin and Linia, Ohio. The parties
have entered into a tolling agreement deferring further action on the plaintiffs’ claims. The plaintiffs filed a notice of dismissal
without prejudice in September 2020,

Separately, the Company is aware of pre-suit claims or demands by other parties related to the use and disposal of AFFF, one of
which purports to represent a large group of firefighters. The Company had discussions with certain potential pre-suit claimants

and, as a result of such discussions, reached a negotiated resolution for an immaterial amount with the City of Bemidji in March
2021,

Other PFAS-related Product and Environmental Litigation

3M manufactured and sold various products containing PFOA and PFOS, including Scotchgard, for several decades. Starting in
2017, 3M has been served with individual and putative class action complaints in various state and federal courts alleging,
among other things, that 3M’s customers’ improper disposal of PFOA and PFOS resulted in the contamination of groundwater
or surface water. The plaintiffs in these cases generally allege that 3M failed to warn its customers about the hazards of
improper disposal of the product. They also generally aflege that contaminated groundwater has caused various injuries,
including personal injury, loss of use and enjoyment of their properties, diminished property values, investigation costs, and
remediation costs. Several companies have been sued along with 3M, including Saint-Gobain Performance Plastics Corp.,
Honeywell International Inc. f/k/a Allied-Signal Inc. and/er AlliedSignal Laminate Systems, Inc., Wolverine World Wide Inc.,
Geargia-Pacific LLC, E.I. DuPont De Nemours and Co., Chemours Co., and various carpet manufacturers.

In New York, 3M is defending 40 individual cases and one putative class action filed in the U.S. District Court for the Northern
District of New York and four additicnal individual cases filed in New York state court against 3M, Saint-Gobain Performance
Plastics Corp. (Saint-Gobain), Honeywell International Inc, and E.I. DuPont De Nemours and Co. (DuPont), Tonaga, Inc.
(Taconic) is also a defendant in the state court actions. Plaintiffs allege that PFOA discharged from fabric coating facilities
operated by non-3M entities (that allegedly had used PFOA-containing matetials from 3M, among others) contaminated the
drinking water in the Village of Hoosick Falls, the Town of Hoosick and Petersburg, New York. They assert various tort claims
for personal injury and property damage and in some cases request medical monitoring. 3M has answered the complaints in
these individual cases, which are now proceeding through discovery. In the federal court individual cases, the parties selected
24 claimants in May 2021 for a pool from which eight plaintiffs will be chosen for expert discovery and dispositive motions. At
the conclusion of these motions, the court will determine which case(s) will continue toward trial. In the putative class action,
certain parties, including 3M, reached an agreement to resolve litigation among the seftling parties. In February 2022, the
district court issued an order granting final approval of the settiement. Under the agreement, 3M, Saint-Gobain and Honeywell
will collectively contribute to a fixed total amount of approximately $65 million to resolve the plaintiffs’ claims and those of
the proposed classes. 3M’s contribution is not considered material. 3M is also defending 13 cases in the U.S. District Court for
the Eastern District of New York filed by various drinking water providers, The plaintiffs in these cases allege that produots
manufactured by 3M, DuPont, and additional unnamed defendants contaminated plaintiffs’ water supply sources with various
PFAS compounds. DuPont’s motion to transfer these cases to the AFFF MDL was denied in March 2020. 3M has filed answers
in these casss and discovery is ongoing.

In Michigan, one consolidated putative class action is pending in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Michigan
against 3M and Wolverine World Wide (Wolverine). The action arises from Wolverine’s allegedly improper disposal of
materials and wastes, including 3M Scotchgard, related to Wolverine’s shoe manufacturing operations. Plaintiffs allege
Wolverine used 3M Scotchgard in its manufacturing process and that chemicals from 3M’s product contaminated the
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environment and drinking water sources after disposal. In June 2021, the court partially denied the defendants' motions to
dismiss, by granting the motions to dismiss the negligence claim only insofar as the plaintiffs seek damages for personal
injuries, as opposed to property damage. In September 2021, the plaintiffs filed a motion to amend the complaint, including to
add four new named plaintiffs and putative class representatives. 3M and Wolverine filed a motion to strike the plaintiffs’
motion for class certification and opposed plaintiffs’ motion to amend the complaint. The parties also filed several dispositive
and expert witness-related Daubert motions in November 2021, and the parties have had ongoing mediation discussions. The
court has set a trial date in June 2022. In addition to the consolidated federal court putative class action, as of December 31,
2021, 3M is a defendant in approximately 275 private individual actions in Michigan state court based on similar allegations.
These cases are coordinated for pre-trial purposes. Five of these cases were selected over time for bellwether trials. In January
2020, the court issued the first round of dispositive motion rulings related to the first two bellwether cases, including dismissing
the second bellwether case entirely and dismissing certain plaintiffs’ medical monitoring and risk of future disease claims, and
granting summary judgment to the defendants on one plaintiff’s cholesterol injury ¢laims. The parties seftled the first bellwether
case in early 2020 for an immaterial amount. In June 2020, the court denied the plaintiffs’ motion to reconsider the dismissal of
the second bellwether case, and the plaintiffs have appealed the decision to the state appellate court. In January 2021, the court
granted summary judgment in favor of the defendants in one of three remaining bellwether cases. The plaintiffs in this
dismissed bellwether case have also appealed the dismissal to the state appellate court. The Company settled both remaining
bellwether cases for an immaterial amount. Following mediation, in October 2021, 3M and Wolverine reached a settlement in
principle with counsel representing all but three of the remaining private individual actions. At a further mediation in December
2021, 3M and Wolverine reached a settlement in principle to resolve two more of the remaining cases (on behalf of seven
plaintiff families). Upon completion of these seitlements, only one private individual action will remain pending in Michigan
state courf.

3M was also a defendant, together with Georgia-Pacific as co-defendant, in a putative class action in federal court in Michigan
brought by residents of Parchment, who altege that the municipal drinking water was contaminated from waste generated by a
paper mill owned by Georgia-Pacific’s corporate predecessor. The defendants® motion to dismiss certain claims in the
complaint was denied in January 2021. The parties engaged in mediation and in April 2021 reached a preliminary settlement
agreement, subject to court approval, under which 3M and Georgia-Pacific would jointly pay an amount and be released from
plaintiffs’ putative class action claims. 3M’s portion is not considered material. The court approved the settlement in September
2021.

In Alabama and Georgia, 3M, together with multiple co-defendants, is defending three state court cases brought by municipal
water utilities, relating to 3M’s sale of PFAS-containing products to carpet manufacturers in Georgia. The plaintiffs in these
cases allege that the carpet manufacturers improperly discharged PFAS into the surface water and groundwater, contaminating
drinking water supplies of cities located downstream along the Coosa River, including Rome, Georgia and Centre and Gadsden,
Alabama. The three water utility cases are proceeding through discovery. Another case originally filed in Georgia state court
was brought by individuals asserting PFAS contamination by the Georgia carpet manufacturers and secking economic damages
and injunctive relief on behalf of a putative class of Rome and Floyd County water subscribers. This case has been removed to
federal court, where 3M {iled a motion to dismiss a series of amended complaints, resulting in the dismissal of plaintiffs’
negligence claim against 3M. This case is proceeding through discovery. 3M, together with co-defendants, is also defending
another putative class action in federal court in Georgia, in which plaintiffs seek relief on behalf of a class of individual
ratepayers in Summerville, Georgia who allege their water supply was contaminated by PFAS discharged from a textile mill. In
May 2021, the City of Summerville filed a motion to intervene in the lawsuit, which remains pending. 3M has moved to dismiss
this case. This case remains in carly stages of litigation,

In Californiza, 3M and other defendants were named as defendants in an action brought in federal court by Golden State Water
Company, alleging PFAS contamination of certain wells located in its water systems. 3M filed a motion to dismiss in
Novembet 2020 and in January 2021, the court granted defendants’ motion to dismiss the case for lack of personal jurisdiction,
In February 2021, the plaintiffs volunfarily dismissed their action without prejudice and filed a new case in the AFFF MDL
court. Separately, in December 2020, the Orange County Water District and ten additional local water providers sued 3M,
Decra Roofing and certain DuPont-related entities in California state court, alleging PFAS contamination of the plaintiffs’ water
sources and also referring to 3M's industrial minerals facility in Corena, California as a potential source of contamination. The
plaintiffs filed an amended complaint, and 3M filed a demurrer to the amended complaint in March 2021. In April 2021, the
court denied 3M’s demutrer, and the case remains in early stages of litigation. In May 2021, the Orange County plaintiffs filed
a second amended complaint. In June 2021, the case was removed to the U.S. District Court for the Central District of
California where the plaintiffs moved fo remand the case back to state court. The court granted plaintiffs” motion to remand.
3M has appealed the remand decision to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, which is hearing the appeal on an
expedited basis, with oral argument scheduled in February 2022. Pending that appeal, in September 2021, the state court
ordered that discovery can proceed against 3M. In February 2021, the City of Corona and a local utility authority filed a lawsuit
in California state court against 3M and other defendants, alleging PFAS contamination from 3M products generally as well as
from 3M’s Corona facility and roofing granules products. Plaintiffs filed an amended complaint in June 2021. In July 2021, the
case was removed to the U.S. District Court for the Central District of California. The federal court granted plaintiffs’ motion to
remand the action to state court, In October 2021, 3M filed a demurrer to the amended complaint in state court. In October
2021, a lawsuit was filed against 3M in California state court in San Luis Obispo County by the Atascadero Mutual Water
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Company, a local water supplier. The complaint alleges PFAS contamination from 3M products generally. In November 2021,
the case was removed to the U,S, District Court for the Central District of California. The plaintiffs have indicated they intend
to amend their complaint,

In Delaware, 3M, together with several co-defendants, is defending one putative class action brought by individuals alleging
PFAS contamination of their water supply resulting from the operations of local metal plating facilities. Plaintiffs allege that
3M supplied PFAS to the metal plating facilities. DuPont, Chemours, and the metal platers have also been named as defendants.
This case has been removed from state court to federal court, and plaintiffs have withdrawn its motion to remand to state court
and filed an amended complaint. 3M has filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint, In February 2021, the court raised
the question whether subject matter jurisdiction under the Class Action Fairness Act was proper, issued an order requiring the
parties to brief the issue and denied defendants® motions to dismiss with leave to renew pending the court’s ruling on
jurisdiction. An oral argument was held in September 2021, In December 2021, the court issued an order retaining jurisdiction
over the case and 3M renewed its previous motion to dismiss.

In New Jersey, 3M is a defendant in an action brought in federal court by Middlesex Water Company, alleging PFAS
contamination of its water wells. 3M’s motion to transfer the case to the AFFF MDL was denfed. 3M has moved to dismiss the
complaint, and discovery closed in September 2021. The parties are engaged in mediation. In September 2020, 3M was named
a defendant in & similar lawsuit brought by the Borough of Hopateong, In December 2020, 3M filed a motion to dismiss the
Hopatcong matter. In January 2021, 3M was named a defendant in another similar lawsuit brought by the Pequannock
Township. In March 2021, 3M filed a motion to dismiss the Pequannock matter. Discovery is ongoing in both Hopatcong and
Pequannock matters. 3M, together with several co-defendants, is also defending fourteen cases in New Jersey federal court
brought by individuals with private drinking water wells near cettain DuPont and Solvay facilities that were allegedly supplied
with PEAS by 3M. These cases have all been coordinated for discovery, which is ongoing. Plaintiffs in eight of these cases seck
medical monitoring and property damages. 3M’s motion to dismiss the earliest filed of these cases was largely denied in
February 2021, and 3M has since filed answers in all eight cases. Plaintiffs in the six remaining individual cases in federal court
allege personal injuries to themselves or their disabled adult children, 3M has moved to dismiss five of these cases, and it has
not yet been served in the sixth. In February 2022, 3M's motion to dismiss was largely denied. In December 2021, plaintiffs
filed four additional cases in New Jersey state court similar to the personal injury actions filed in federal court. 3M has not yet
been served in these cases. Finally, 3M is also defending a putative class action filed in New Jersey federal court in November
2021 by individuals who received drinking water from Middlesex Water Company that was allegedly contaminated with PFAS
in excess of state regulatory levels. Middlesex Water Company is also named as a defendant in this action. With respect to 3M,
the suit asserts claims for negligence, nuisance, and (respass. Plaintiffs seek an injunction to include boitled water and home
treatment systems and alleged damages for diminution-in-property value, among other relief. 3M plans to respond to the
complaints. This case remains in early stages of litigation.

Tn Octobet 2018, 3M and other defendants, including DuPont and Chemours, were named in a putative class action in the U.S.
District Court for the Southern District of Ohio brought by the named plaintiff, a firefighter allegedly exposed to PFAS
chemicals through his use of firefighting foam, putporting to represent a putative class of all U.S. individuals with detectable
levels of PFAS in their blood. The plaintiff brings claims for negligence, battery, and conspiracy and secks injunctive relief,
including an order “establishing an independent panel of scientists™ to evaluate PFAS. 3M and other entities jointly filed a
motion to dismiss in February 2019. In September 2019, the court denied the defendants’ motion to dismiss. In February 2020,
the court denied 3M’s motion to transfer the case to the AFEF MDL. Briefing on plaintiff’s class certification motion is
complete, and the court’s ruling on class certification is pending.

Other PEAS-related Matters

In July 2019, the Company received a written request from the Subcommittee on Environment of the Committee on Oversight
and Reform, U.S. House of Representatives, seeking certain documents and information relating to the Company’s
manufacturing and distribution of PFAS products. In September 2019, a 3M representative testified before and responded to
questions from the Subcommittee on Environment with respect to PEAS and the Company’s environmental stewardship
initiatives. The Company continues to cooperate with the Subcommittee,

The Company continues to make progress in its work, under the supervision of state regulators, to remediate historic disposal of
PFAS-containing waste associated with manufacturing operations at its Decatur, Alabama; Cottage Grove, Minnesota; and
Cordova, llinois plants,

As previously reported, the Illinois EPA in August 2014 approved a request by the Company to establish a groundwater

management zone at its manufacturing facility in Cordova, Illinois, which includes ongoing pumping of impacted site
groundwater, groundwater monitoring and routine reporting of results.
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In Minnesota, the Company continues to work with the Minnesota Pollution Confrol Agency (MPCA) pursuant to the terms of
the previously disclosed May 2007 Settlement Agreement and Consent Order to address the presence of certain PFAS
compounds in the soil and groundwater at former disposal sites in Washington County, Minnesota (Oakdale and Wocdbury)
and at the Company’s manufacturing facility at Cottage Grove, Minnesota. Under this agreement, the Company’s principal
obligations include (i) evaluating releases of certain PFAS compounds from these sites and proposing response actions; (ii)
providing treatment or alternative drinking water upon identifying any level exceeding a HBV or Health Risk Limit (HRL) (i.e.,
the amount of a chemical in drinking water determined by the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) to be safe for human
consumption over a lifetime) for certain PFAS compounds for which a HBV and/or HRL exists as a resuit of contamination
from these sites; (iii) remediating identified sources of other PFAS compounds at these sites that are not controlled by actions to
remediate PFOA and PFOS; and (iv) sharing information with the MPCA about certain perfluorinated compounds. During
2008, the MPCA issued formal decisions adopting remedial options for the former disposal sites in Washington County,
Minnesota {(Oakdale and Woodbury). In August 2009, the MPCA issued a formal decision adopting remedial options for the
Company’s Cottage Grove manufacturing facility. During the spring and summer of 2010, 3M began implementing the agreed
upon remedial options at the Cottage Grove and Woodbury sites. 3M commenced the remedial option at the Cakdale site in late
2010. At each location the remedial options were recommended by the Company and approved by the MPCA. The Company
has completed remediation work and continues with operational and maintenance activities at the Oakdale and Woodbury sites.
Remediation work has been substantially completed at the Cottage Grove site, with operational and maintenance activities
ongoing,

In Alabama, as previously reported, the Company entered into a voluntary remedial action agreement with ADEM to remediate
the presence of PFAS in the soil and groundwater at the Company’s manufacturing facility in Decatur, Alabama associated with
the historic (1978-1998) incorporation of wastewater treatment plant sludge. With ADEM’s agreement, 3M substantially
completed installation of a multilayer cap on the former sludge incorporation areas. Further remediation activities, including
certain on-site and off-site investigations and studies, will be conducted in accordance with the July 2020 Interim Consent
Order described below.

The Company operates under a 2009 consent order issued under the federal Toxic Substances Control Act {TSCA) (the “200%
TSCA consent order™) for the manufacture and use of two perfluorinated materials (FBSA and FBSEE) at its Decatur, Alabama
site that does not permit release of these materials into “the waters of the United States.” In March 2019, the Company halted
the manufacture, processing, and use of these materials at the site upon learning that these materials may have been released
from certain specified processes at the Decatur site into the Tennessee River. In April 2019, the Company voluntarily disclosed
the releases to the U,S. EPA and ADEM, During June and July 2019, the Company took steps to fully control the
aforementioned processes by capturing all wastewater produced by the processes and by treating all air emissicns. These
processes have been back on-line and in operation since July 2019. The Company continues fo cooperate with the EPA and
ADEM in their investigations and will work with the regulatory authorities to demonstrate compliance with the release
restrictions.

The Company is authorized to discharge wastewater from its Decatur plant pursuant to the terms of a Clean Water Act National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued by ADEM. The NPDES permit requires the Company to report
on a monthly and guarterly basis the quality and quantity of pollutants discharged to the Tennessee River. In June 2019, as
previously reported, the Company voluntarily disclosed to the EPA and ADEM that it had included incorrect values in certain
of its monthly and quarterly reports. The Company has submitted the corrected values to both the EPA and ADEM.

As previously reported, as part of ongoing work with the EPA and ADEM to address compliance matters at the Decatur facility,
the Company discovered it had not fully characterized its PFAS discharge in its NPDES permit. In September 2019, the
Company disclosed the maiter 1o the EPA and ADEM and announced that it had elected to temporarily idle certain other
manufacturing processes at 3M Decatur. The Company is reviewing its operations af the plant, has instalted wastewater
treatment controls and has restarted idled processes.

As aresult of the Company’s discussions with ADEM to address these and other related matters in the state of Alabama, as
previously reported, 3M and ADEM agreed to the terms of an interim Consent Order in July 2020 to cover all PFAS-related
wastewater discharges and air emissions from the Company’s Decatur facility. Under the interim Consent Order, the
Company’s principal obligations include commitments related to (i} future ongoing site operations such as (a) providing certain
notices or reports and performing various analytical and characterization studies and (b) future capital improvements; and (ii)
remediation activities, including certain on-site and off-site investigations and studies. Obligations related to ongoing future site
operations under the Consent Order will involve additional operating costs and capital expenditures over multiple yvears, As
offsite investigation activities continue, additional remediation amounts may become probable and reasonably estimable in the -
future.
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As previously reported, in December 2019, the Company received a grand jury subpoena from the U.S. Attorney’s Office for
the Northern District of Alabama for documents related to, among other matters, the Company’s compliance with the 2009
TSCA consent order and unpermitted discharges to the Tennessee River. The Company is cooperating with this and other
inquiries and requests regarding its manufacturing facilities and is producing documents in response o the inquiries.

In addition, as previously reported, as part of ifs engoing evaluation of regulatory compliance at its Cordova, 1llinois facility,
the Company discovered it had not fully characterized its PFAS discharge in its NPDES permit for the Cordova facility. In
November 2019, the Company disclosed this matter to the EPA, and in January 2020 disclosed this mater to the Illinois
Environmental Protection Agercy (IEPA). The Company continues to work with the EPA and IEPA to address these issues
from the Cordova facility, including a draft EPA SDWA Administrative Consent Order received in December 2021 proposing
that the Company survey and sample proposed private and public drinking water wells within the vicinity of the Cordova
facility.

The Company is also reviewing operations at its other plants with similar manufacturing processes, such as the plant in Cottage
Grove, Minnesota, to ensure those operations are in compliance with applicable environmental regulatory requirements and
Company policies and procedures. As a result of these reviews, as previously reported, the Company discovered it had not fully
characterized its PFAS discharge in its NPDES permit for the Cottage Grove facility. In March 2020, the Company disclosed
this matter to the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency {MPCA) and the EPA. In July 2020, the Company received an '
information request from MPCA. for documents and information related to, among other matters, the Company’s compliance
with the Clean Water Act at its Cottage Grove facility. The Company is cooperating with this inquiry and is producing
documents and information in response to the request for information. The Company continues to work with the MPCA and
EPA to address the discharges from the Cottage Grove facility.

Separately, as previously reported, in June 2020, the Company reported to EPA and MPCA that it had not fully complied with
elements of the inspection, characterization and waste stream profile verification process of the Waste and Feedstream Analysis
Plan {WAP/FAP) of its Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) permit for its Cottage Grove incinerator. In July
2020, the Company received an information request from MPCA related to the June 2020 disclosure, to which the Company
responded in September 2020. The Company continues to work with the MPCA to address WAP/FAP implementation issues
disclosed in June 2020, In January 2021, the Company received a notice of violation (NOV) from MPCA related to, among
other matters, the above-described Clean Water Act and RCRA issues. The Company is cooperating with MPCA. to address the
issues that are the subject of the NOV and is in discussions with MPCA regarding an assessed penalty. In October 2021, the
Company received information requests from MPCA seeking additional toxicological and other information related to certain
PFAS compounds. The Company is cooperating with these inquires and is producing documents and information in response to
the requests.

In February 2020, as previously reported, the Company received an information request from EPA for documents and
information related to, among other maiters, the Company’s compliance with the Clean Water Act at its facilities that
manufacture, process and use PFAS, including the Decatur, Cordova and Cottage Grove facilities. The Company is cooperating
with this inquiry and is producing documents and information in response to the request for information.

The Company continues to work with relevant federal and state agencies (including EPA, the U.S. Department of Justice, state
environmental agencies and state attorneys general) as it conducts these reviews and responds to information, inspection and
other requests from the agencies. The Company cannot predict at this time the outcomes of resolving these compliance matters,
what actions may be taken by the regulatory agencies or the potential consequences to the Company.

Other Environmental Lifigation

In July 2018, the Company, along with more than 120 other companies, was served with a complaint seeking cost recovery and
contribution towards the cleaning up of approximately eight miles of the Lower Passaic River in New Jersey. The plaintiff,
Occidental Chemical Corporation, alleges that it agreed to design and pay the estimated $165 million cost to remove and cap
sediment containing eight chemicals of concern, including PCBs and dioxins. The complaint secks to spread those costs among
the defendants, including the Company. The Company’s involvement in the case relates to its past use of two commercial drum
conditioning facilities in New Jersey. Whether, and to what extent, the Company may be required to contribute to the costs at
issue in the case remains to be determined.

For environmental matters and litigation described above, uniess otherwise described below, no liability has been recorded as
the Company believes liability in those matters is not probable and reasonably estimable and the Company is not able to
estimate a possible loss or range of possible loss at this time. The Company’s environmental liabilities and insurance
receivables are described below,

112



Table of Contents

Environmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivables

The Company periodically examines whether the contingent liabilities related to the environmental matters and litigation
described above are probable and reasonably estimable based on experience and ongoing developments in those matters,
including discussions regarding negotiated resolutions. During 2021, as a result of recent developments in ongoing
environmental matiers and litigation, the Company increased its accrual for PFAS-related other environmental liabilities by
$138 million since Decermber 31, 2020 and made related payments of $142 million. As previously disclosed, in the first and
fourth quarters of 2019, in conjunction with other adjustments as a result of developments in then ongoing environmental
matters and litigation, 3M recorded pre-tax charges aggregating to $449 million. These pre-tax charges were in light of the EPA
issuance of its PFAS Action Plan; the Company’s settlement of litigation with the Water Authority; updates to evaluation of
certain customer-related litigation based on continued, productive settlement discussions with multiple parties; completion of
and then ongoing updates to a comprehensive review with the assistance of environmental consultants and other experts
regarding environmental matters and litigation related to historical PFAS manufacturing operations; and expanded evaluation of
other 3M sites that may have used certain PFA S-containing materials and locations at which they were disposed. As of
December 31, 2021, the Company had recorded liabilities of $412 million for “other environmental liabilities.” The accruals
represent the Company’s best estimate of the probable loss in connection with the environmental matters and PFAS-related
litigation described above, The Company is not able to estimate a possible loss or range of possible loss in excess of the
established accruals at this time. '

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had recorded liabilities of $29 million for estimated non-PFAS related “environmental
remediation” costs to clean up, treat, or remove hazardous substances at current or former 3M manufacturing or third-party
sites. The Company evaluates available facts with respect 1o each individual site each quarter and records liabilities for
remediation costs on an undiscounted basis when they are probable and reasonably estimable, generally no later than the
completion of feasibility studies or the Company’s commitment to a plan of action. Liabilities for estimated costs of
environmental remediation, depending on the site, are based primarily upon internal or third-party environmental studies, and
estimates as to the number, participation level and financial viability of any other potentially responsible parties, the extent of
the contamination and the nature of required remedial actions. The Company adjusts recorded liabilities as further information
develops or circumstances change. The Company expects that it will pay the amounts recorded over the periods of remediation
for the applicable sites, currently ranging up to 20 years.

It is difficult to estimate the cost of environmental compliance and remediation given the uncertainties regarding the
interpretation and enforcement of applicable environmental laws and regulations, the extent of environmental contamination
and the existence of alternative cleanup methods, Developments may occur that could affect the Company’s current assessment,
including, but not limited to: (i) changes in the information available regarding the environmental impact of the Company’s
operations and products; (if) changes in environmental regulations, changes in permissible levels of specific compounds in
drinking water sources, or changes in enforcement theories and policies, including efforts to recover natural resource damages;
(iii) new and evolving analytical and remediation techniques; (iv) success in atlocating liability to other potentially responsible
parties; and (v) the financial viability of other potentially responsible parties and third-party indemnitors. For sites included in
both “environmental remediation liabilities” and “other environmental liabilities,” at which remediation activity is largely
complete and remaining activity relates primarily to operation and maintenance of the remedy, including required post-
remediation menitoring, the Company believes the exposure to loss in excess of the amount accrued would not be material to
the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition. However, for locations at which remediation activity is
largely ongoing, the Company cannot estimate a possible loss or range of possible loss in excess of the associated established
accruals for the reasons deseribed above.

The Company has both pre-1986 general and product liability occurrence coverage and post-1985 occurrence reported product
liability and other environmental coverage for environmental matters and litigation. As of December 31, 2021, the Company’s
receivable for insurance recoveries related to the environmental matters and litigation was $8 million, Various factors could
affect the timing and amount of recovery of this and future expected increases in the receivable, including (i) delays in or
avoidance of payment by insurers; (ii) the extent to which insurers may become insolvent in the future, (iif) the outcome of
negotiations with insurers, and (iv) the scope of the insurers’ purported defenses and exclusions to avoid coverage.

Product Liability Litigation

Aearo Technologies sold Dual-Ended Cembat Arms — Version 2 earplugs starting in about 2003. 3M acquired Aearo
Technologies in 2008 and sold these carplugs from 2008 through 2015, when the product was discontinued. In December 2018,
a military veteran filed an individual lawsuit against 3M in the San Bernardino Superior Court in California alleging that he
sustained personal injuries while serving in the military caused by 3M’s Dual-Ended Combat Arms earplugs — Version 2. The
plaintiff asserts claims of product liability and fraudulent misrepresentation and concealment. The plaintiff seeks various
damages, including medical and related expenses, loss of income, and punitive damages.
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As of December 31, 2021, the Company is a named defendant in approximately 3,616 lawsuits {including 14 putative class
actions) in various state and federal courts that purport to represent approximately 13,531 individual claimants making similar
allegations. In April 2019, the U.S, Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation granted motions to transfer and consolidate all
cases pending in federal courts to the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Florida to be managed in a multi-district
litigation (MDL) proceeding to centralize pre-trial proceedings. The plaintiffs and 3M filed preliminary sumimary judgment
motions on the government contractor defense, In July 2020, the MDL court granted the plaintiffs’ summary judgment motion
and denied the defendants’ summary judgment motion, ruling that plaintiffs’ claims are not barred by the government
contractor defense. The court denied the Company’s request to immediately certify the summary judgment ruling for appeal to
the U.8. Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit. In December 2020, the court granted the plaintiffs’ motion to consolidate
three plaintiffs for the first bellwether trial, which began in March 2021,

In April 2021, 3M received an adverse jury verdict in the first bellwether trial. The jury awarded the three plaintiffs less than $1
million in compensatory damages and $6 million in punitive damages for a total of $7 million. 3M has appealed the verdicts,
challenging, among other rulings, the MDL court's denial of 3M’s motion to assert the government contractor defense. The next
two bellwether trials occurred in May and June of 2021. In May 2021, 3M received a verdict in its favor in the second
beliwether trial, in which a jury rejected claims that 3M knowingly sold earplugs with design defects. In June 2021, 3M
received an adverse verdict in the third bellwether trial. The jury found 3M liable for strict liability failure to warn, but found
3M not liable for design defect or fraud, The jury apportioned fault 62 percent to 3M and 38 percent to the plaintiff for a total
damage award of approximately $1 million. 3M has appealed the verdict. In October 2021, 3M received an adverse verdict in
the fourth bellwether trial, in which a jury awarded $8 million to the plaintiff. 3M plans to appeal the verdict. 3M received
verdicts in its favor in the fifth and sixth bellwether trials. 3M received an adverse verdict in the seventh and eighth beflwether
trials, in which the juries awarded the plaintiffs $13 million and $23 million, respectively. 3M plans to appeal these verdicts.
3M prevailed in the ninth and tenth bellwether cases but received adverse verdicts in the eloventh bellwether case in which the
jury awarded each of the two plaintiffs $15 million in compensatory and $40 million in punitive damages. 3M plans to appeal
these verdicts. The next five ballwether cases are scheduled for trial in March, April and May 2022, These trials will not include
several bellwether cases that plaintiffs’ counsel dismissed with prejudice ejther during discovery or after being set for trial. An
administrative docket of approximately 240,000 unfiled and unverified claims (after factoring in approximately 50,000 claims
in a transitional process as described below) has also been maintained at the MDL court. The MDL court in August 2021
provided notice of an intent to issue forthcoming transition orders requiring all claims be moved off the administrative docket to
the active docket on a rolling basis over 12 months. The orders will provide that any case not moved to the active docket will be
dismissed without prejudice, and the administrative docket will then be closed. To date approximately 50,000 claims are in the
process of being transitioned to the active docket or dismissed. The MDL court also ordered the parties to prepare for trial 1,500
cases in three waves of 500 cases over the next 14 months. After the preparation of these cases is completed, the cases will be
remanded to the federal district courts where the cases were originally filed. In November 2021, the judge issued the first wave
order of the first 500 cases over the next eight months,

3M is also defending lawsuits bronght primarily by non-military plaintiffs in state court in Hennepin County, Minnesota. 3M
removed these actions to federal court, and the federal court remanded them to state court in March 2020, On appeal, the U.S.
Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit ruled in October 2021 that the cases brought by non-military plaintiffs were properly
remanded to state court, whereas the cases brought by military contractor plaintiffs who had received the Combat Arms
Earplugs from the military should have remained in federal court. In November 2021, the Eighth Circuit granted 3M's
unopposed motion to vacate the remand orders in the remaining appeals of military service member cases. The military service
member cases are expected to be remanded to federal court and transferred fo the MDL. There are approximately 65 lawsuits
involving approximately 1,100 plaintiffs pending in the state court, but the number of plaintiffs is expected to decline as cases
are remanded to federal court. The cases remaining in state court are subject to a bellwether case selection process. The first
trial in Hennepin County is scheduled for no earlier than April 2022,

No liability has been recorded for these matters because the Company believes that any such liability is not probable and
reasonably estimable at this time.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company was a named defendant in approximately 5,266 lawsuits in the United States and one
Canadian putative class action with a single named plaintiff, alleging that the Bair Hugger™ patient warming system caused a
surgical site infection.

As previously disclosed, 3M is a named defendant in lawsuits in federal courts involving over 5,000 plaintiffs alleging that they
underwent various joint arthroplasty, cardiovascular, and other surgeries and later developed surgical site infections due to the
use of the Bair Hugger™ patient warming system. The plaintiffs seck damages and other reliel based on theories of strict
liability, negligence, breach of express and implied warranties, failure to warn, design and manufacturing defect, fraudulent
and/or negligent misrepresentation/concealment, unjust entichment, and violations of various state consumer fraud, deceptive or
unlawful trade practices and/or false advertising acts.
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The U.S. Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation (JPML) consolidated all cases pending in federal courts to the U8, District
Court for the District of Minnesota to be managed in a multi-district litigation (MDL) proceeding. In July 2019, the court
excluded several of the plaintiffs’ causation experts, and granted summary judgment for 3M in all cases pending at that time in
the MDL. Plaintiffs appealed that decision to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit. Plaintiffs also appealed a 2018
Jjury verdict in favor of 3M in the first bellwether trial in the MDL and appealed the dismissal of another bellwether case, The
Eighth Circuit court heard oral argument on all pending appeals in March 2021. A panel of the appellate court in August 2021
reversed the district court’s exclusion of the plaintiffs’ causation experts and the grant of summary judgment for 3M. The
Company sought further appellate en banc review by the full Eighth Circuit court. In November 2021, the Eighth Circuit court
denied 3M’s petition for rehearing en banc. In February 2022, the Company filed a petition for a writ of certiorari in the U.S,
Supreme Court. The MDL court has not yet issued a new case management order. In February 2022, the MDL court ordered the
parties to engage in any mediation sessions that a court-appointed mediator deems appropriate. Also, in August 2021, the
Eighth Circuit court separately affirmed the 2018 jury verdict in 3M’s favor in the only bellwether trial in the MDL.

In addition to the federal cases, there are four state court cases. Three are pending in Missouri state court and combine Bair
Hugger product liability claims with medical malpractice claims. Two of the Missouri cases are set for trial; one in September
2022 and one in April 2023, There is also one case in Hidalgo County, Texas that combines Bair Hugger preduct liability
claims with medical malpractice claims. In August 2019, the MDL court enjoined the individual plaintiff from pursuing his
claims in Texas state court because he had previously filed and dismissed a claim in the MDL. That plaintiff has appealed the
order to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit, which heard oral argument on this appeal in March 2021, In May
2021, the Court of Appeals lifted the MDL coust’s injunction that barred plaintiff from litigating the Texas state court case. The
court has set a trial date in December 2022,

As previously disclosed, 3M had been named a defendant in 61 cases in Minnesota state court. In January 2018, the Minnesota
state court excluded plaintiffs’ experts and granted 3M’s motion for summary judgment on general causation. The Minnesota
Court of Appeals affirmed the state court orders in their entirety and the Minnesota Supreme Court denied plaintiffs® petition
for review and entered the finial dismissal in 2019, effectively ending the Minnesota state court cases.

In June 2016, the Company was served with a putative class action filed in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice for all
Canadian residents who underwent various joint arthroplasty, cardiovascular, and other surgeries and later developed surgical
site infections that the representative plaintiff claims was due to the use of the Bair Hugger™ patient warming system. The
representative. plaintiff seeks relief (including punitive damages) under Canadian law based on theories similar to those asserted
in the MDL,

No liability has been recorded for the Bair Hugger™ litigation because the Company believes that any such liability is not
probable and reasonably estimable at this time.

For product liability litigation matters described in this section for which a liability has been recorded, the amount recorded is
not material to the Company’s consclidated results of operations or financial condition. In addition, the Company is not able to
estimate a possible loss or range of possible [oss in excess of the established accruals at this time.

Securities and Shareholder Litigation

In July 2019, Heavy & General Laborers’ Locals 472 & 172 Welfare Fund filed a putative securities class action against 3M
Company, its former Chairman and CEQ, current Chairman and CEQ, and former CFO in the U.S, District Court for the
District of New Jersey. In August 2019, an individual plaintiff filed a similar putative securities class action in the same district.
Plaintiffs allege that defendants made false and misleading statements regarding 3M's exposure to liability associated with
PFAS and bring claims for damages under Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and SEC Rule 10b-5 against
all defendants, and under Section 20{a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 against the individual defendants. In
October 2019, the court consolidated the securities class actions and appointed a group of lead plaintiffs. In January 2020, the
defendants filed a motion to transfer venus to the U.S. District Court for the District of Minnesota. In August 2020, the court
denied the motion to transfer venue, and in September 2020, the defendants filed a petition for writ of mandamus to the U.S,
Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit. In November 2020, the federal Court of Appeals granted 3M’s petition for a writ of
mandamus and directed the New fersey federal court to transfer the action to the Minnesota federal court, The defendants filed
a motion to dismiss the action in January 2021, and in September 2021, the Minnesota federal court granted 3M’s motion to
dismiss the securities class action, which judgment is now final,

In October 2019, a stockholder derivative lawsuit was filed in the U.S. District Court for the District of New Jersey against 3M
and several of its current and former executives and directors. [n November and December 2019, two additional derivative
lawsuits were filed in a Minnesota state court. The derivative lawsuits rely on similar factual allegations as the putative
securities class action discussed abave. The state court cases were consolidated and stayed pending a decision on the motion to
dismiss in the secutities class action, and the Minnesota state plaintiffs are likely to have until March 2022 to file an amended
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complaint. In October 2020, the derivative action pending in the U.S, District Court for the District of New Jersey was
dismissed, without prejudice, for failure to serve the complaint within the required time period.

In August 2020, a stockholder who had previously submitted a books and records demand filed an additional follow-on
derivative lawsuit in the 1J.S. District Court for the District of New Jersey against 3M and several of its current and former
executives and directors. This derivative lawsuit, having been transferred to Minnesota federal court, also relies on similar
factual allegations as the putative securities class action discussed above. In February 2021, an additional stockholder derivative
lawsuit was filed in the District of Minnesota, making similar factual allegations as the putative securities class action discussed
above. The Minnesota federal court consolidated these federal derivative suits and stayed them pending and through any appeal
of the securities class action dismissal. The Minnesota federal plaintiffs have until February 16, 2022 to file an amended
complaint.

Federal False Claims Act/ Qui Tam Litigation

In October 2019, 3M acquired Acelity, Inc. and its KCI subsidiaries, including Kinetic Concepts, Inc. and KCIUSA, Inc. As
previously disclosed in the SEC filings by the KCI entities, in 2009, Kinetic Concepts, Inc. received a subpoena from the U.S,
Department of Health and Human Services Office of Inspector General. In 2011, following the completion of the government’s
review and its decision declining to intervene in two qui tam actions described further below, the qui tam relator-plaintiffs’
pleadings were unsealed.

The government inquiry followed two qui tam actions filed in 2008 by two former employees against Kinetic Concepts, Inc.
and K.CI USA, Inc. (collectively, the “KCI defendants™) under seal in the U.S. District Court for the Central District of
California. The complaints contain allegations that the KCI Defendants violated the federal False Claims Act by submitting
false or fraudulent claims to federal healthcare programs by billing for V.A.C.® Therapy in a manner that was not consistent
with the Local Coverage Determinations issued by the Durable Medical Equipment Medicare Administrative Contractors and
seck monetary damages. One complaint (the “Godecke case”) also contains allegations that the KCI Defendants retaliated

against the relator-plaintiff for alleged whistle-blowing behavior.

In October 2016, the XCI Defendants filed counterclaims in the Godecke case, asserting breach of contract and conversion. In
August 2017, the relator-plaintiff’s fraud claim in the Godecke case was dismissed in favor of the KCI defendants. In Janvary
2018, the district court stayed the retaliation claim and the KCI Defendants' counterclaims pending the relator-plaintiff’s appeal.
In September 2019, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit reversed and remanded the case to the district court for
further proceedings. In August 2021, the district court entered a discovery and pretrial schedule with an April 2022 trial date.
Relator-plaintiff Godecke and the KCI Defendants reached a settlement, which includes a settlement payment by the KCI
Defendants to relator-plaintiff of an agreed amount and a complete dismissal of all claims with prejudice by both parties and
without prejudice to the United States. In January 2022, the district court entered an order dismissing the case with prejudice as
to the relator-plaintiff and the KCI Defendants and without prejudice to the United States.

Separately, in June 2019, the district court in the second case (the “Hartpence case™) entered summary judgment in the KCI
Defendants’ favor on all of the relator-plaintiff’s claims. The relator-plaintiff then filed an appeal in the U.S. Court of Appeals
for the Ninth Circuit. Oral argument in the Hartpence case was held in July 2020. The appellate court’s opinion remains
pending.

Far the matters described in this section for which a liability has been recorded, the amount recorded is not material to the
Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

Compliance Matter

The Company, through its internal processes, discovered certain travel activities and related funding and record keeping issues
raising concerns, arising from marketing efforts by certain business groups based in China. The Company initiated an internal
investigation to determine whether the expenditures may have violated the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) or other
potentially applicable anti-corruption laws. The Company has refained outside counsel and a forensic accounting firm to assist
with the investigation. In July 2019, the Company voluntarily disclosed this investigation to both the Department of Justice and
Securitics and Exchange Commission and is cooperating with both agencies. The Company cannot predict at this time the
outcome of its investigation or what potential actions may be taken by the Department of Justice or Securities and Exchange
Commission.
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NOTE 17, Leases

The components of lease expense are as follows:

(Millions) 2021 2020 2019
brep T p B 4 - g 5 T A b —

L 4
Finance lease cost:
sAdorization ol asse

Interest on lease liabilities

able 127
Total net lease cost $ 463 3
Short-termn lease cost and income related to sub-lease activity is immaterial for the Company.
Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases is as follows:

(Millions unless noted) Location on face of Balance Sheet 2021 2020
0 \g leages: :
Operating lease right of use assets Operating lease right of use assets 3 858 $ 864

Current operating lease liabilities

Operating lease liabilities - current 263 256

bilities *

lant and equipment

Pr-(;phé;zy, pﬁmt and equipment (accumulated
depreciation) (117 (106)

7 'Opeffatmg leé:v,es 7 7 ' ' ' 1.8 %
Finghoe lease
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Supplemental cash flow and other information related to leases is as follows:

(Millions) 2021 2020 2019

S SR

Operating cash flows from operating feases B 5 - 317 $ 326 % 309
ting cash flows froni fifatice Iéase ; o
Financing cash flows from finance leases 19 58 18

Right of use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities;

By

perating
Finance leases 3 18 61

Sale leased-back activity in 2021 was not material. In the first quarter of 2020, 3M sold and leased-back cettain recently
constructed machinery and equipment in return for municipal securities, which in aggregate, were recorded as a finance [ease
asset and obligation of approximately $10 million. In the first quarter of 2019, 3M sold and leased-back certain recently
constructed machinery and equipment in return for municipal securities, which in aggregate, were recorded as a finance lease
asset and obligation of approximately $2 million. During 2019, the Company sold and leased-back an office location and a
manufacturing site resulting in a combined gain of $82 million.

Maturities of lease liabilities were as follows:

December 31, 2021

Operating
(Millions) Finance Leases Leases

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has additicnal operating lease commitments that have not yet commenced of
approximately $18 million. These commitments pertain to 3M’s right of use of certain buildings.

NOTE 18, Stock-Based Compensation

At the May 2021 Annual Meeting, the shareholders approved the Amended and Restated 3M Company 2016 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP), which included an increase of 26,633,508 in the number of shares available for issuance. Awards may be
issued in the form of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted
stock units, other stock awards, and performance units and performance shares. As of December 31, 2021, the remaining shares
available for grant under the LTIP Program are 37 million and there were approximately 8,100 patticipants with outstanding
options, restricted stock, or restricted stock units.

The Company’s annual stock option and restricted stock unit grant is made in February to provide a strong and immediate link
between the performance of individuals during the preceding year and the size of their annual stock compensation grants. The
grant to eligible employees uses the closing stock price on the grant date. Accounting rules require recognition of expense under
a non- substantive vesting period approach, requiring compensation expense recognition when an employee is eligible to retire.
Employees are considered eligible to retire at age 55 and after having completed ten years of service. This retiree-cligible
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population represents 35 percent of the annual grant’s stock-based compensation expense; therefore, higher stock-based
compensation expense is recognized in the first quarter,

In addition to the annual grants, the Company makes other minor grants of stock options, restricted stock units and other stock-
based grants. The Company issues cash settled restricted stock units and stock appreciation rights in certain countries. These
grants do not result in the issuance of common stock and are considered immaterial by the Company,

Amounts recognized in the financial statements with respect to stock-based compensation programs, which include stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares and the General Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan (GESPP),

are provided in the following table. Capitalized stock-based compensation amounts were not material,

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

(Millions) 2021 2020 2019

eneral and administrative expenses
irch; d

-:étocl;-based compensation expenses {benefits), net of tax 3 174 § 180 % 137 V

Stock Option Program

The following table summarizes stock option activity for the years ended December 31:

2021 2020 2019
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average Number of Average
{Options in thousands) Option Exercise Price i Lxercise Price Options 'cise Price

¥

Tndér optio

34,569 § 138.98

89.89

Exercised (4,163) 110.20 (2,759) 93.23 (4,193)
: (135)2
33,675

December 31 26956 §  161.25 27537 §  149.67 26,487 $  136.75

Stock options generally vest over a period from one to three years with the expiration date at 10 years from date of grant. As of
December 31, 2021, there was $48 million of compensation expense that has yet to be recognized related to non-vested stock
option based awards, This expense is expected to be recognized over the remaining weighted-average vesting period of 20
months. For options outstanding at December 31, 2021, the weighted-average remaining contractual life was 61 months and the
aggregate intrinsic value was $733 million. For options exetcisable at December 31, 2021, the weighted-average remaining
contractual life was 50 months and the aggregate intrinsic value was $662 million.

The total intrinsic values of stock options exercised during 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $3235 million, $206 million and $433
million, respectively. Cash received from options exercised during 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $457 million, $256 million and
$375 million, respectively. The Company’s actual tax benefits realized for the tax deductions related to the exercise of
employee stock options for 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $69 million, $44 million and $91 million, respectively.

For the primary annual stock option grant, the weighted average fair value at the date of grant was calculated using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model and the assumptions that follow,
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Stock Option Assumptions

Annual

.
;D nd EAL M .
Expected volatility : 22,6 % 197 % 204 %

{
Black-Scholes fajr value $ 2533 $ 2138 $ 34,19

Expected volatility is a statistical measure of the amount by which a stock price is expected to fluctuate during a period. For the
2021 annual grant date, the Company estimated the expected volatility based upon the following three volatilities of 3M stock:
the median of the term of the expected life rolling volatility; the median of the most recent term of the expected life volatility;
and the imiplied volatility on the grant date. The expected term assumption is based on the weighted average of historical grants.

Resiricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The following table summarizes restricted stock and restricted stock unit activity for the years ended December 31:

2021 2020 2019
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date
(Shares in thousands) Shares Fair Value Shar Fair Value Share Fair Value

) As of January 1 1,722 § 189.78 1,573 § 201.11 1,789 $ 180.02

Vested (462) 228.94
(93) E Lid s
As of December 31 1,987 175.96 1,722 189.78 1,573 201.11

" As of December 31, 2021, there was $94 million of compensation expense that has yet to be recognized related to non-vested
restricted stock and restricted stock units. This expense is expected to be recognized over the remaining weighted-average
vesting period of 24 months. The total fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock units that vested during December 31,
2021, 2020 and 2019 was $83 million, $91 million and $144 million, respectively. The Company’s actual tax benefits realized
for the tax deductions related to the vesting of restricted stock and restricted stock units for 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $16
million, $17 miflion and $28 million, respectively.

Restricted stock units granted generally vest three years following the grant date assuming continued employment. Dividend
equivalents equal to the dividends payable on the same number of shares of 3M common stock accrue on these restricted stock
units during the vesting period, although no dividend equivalents are paid on any of these restricted stock units that are forfeited
prior to the vesting date. Dividends are paid out in cash at the vest date on restricted stock units. Since the rights to dividends
are forfeitable, there is no impact on basic earnings per share calculations. Weighted average restricted stock unit shares
outstanding are included in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Performance Shares

Instead of restricted stock units, the Company makes annual graats of performance shares to members of its executive
management, The 2021 performance criteria for these performance shares (organic volume growth, return on invested capital,
free cash flow conversion, and earnings per share growth) were selected because the Company believes that they are important
drivers of long-term stockholder value. The number of shares of 3M commion stock that could actually be delivered at the end
of the three year performance period may be anywhere from 0% to 200% of each performance share granted, depending on the
performance of the Company during such performance period. When granted, these performance shares are awarded at 100% of
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the estimated number of shares at the end of the three-year performance period and are reflected undet “Granted” in the table
below, Non-substantive vesting requires that expense for the performance shares be recognized over one or three years
depending on when each individual became a 3M executive, The performance shave grants accrue dividends; therefore, the
grant date fair value is equal to the closing stock price on the date of grant. Since the rights to dividends are forfeitable, there is
no impact on basic earnings per share calculations. Weighted average performance shares whose performance period is
complete are included in computation of dituted earnings per share.

The following table summarizes performance share activity for the years ended December 31:

2021 2020 2019
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date
Shares Fair Val Shares Fai Shares

Fair Yalue

188.61 444 $ 188.96

205.58 562§

228.80 (206) 190,84 T (210) 162.16

As of December 31, 2021, there was $15 miilion of compensation expense that has yet to be recognized related to performance

shares, This expense is expected to be recognized over the remaining weighted-average earnings period of 20 months. The total
fair value of performance shares that were distributed were $22 million, $35 million, and $45 millien for 2021, 2020 and 2019,

respectively. The Company’s actual tax benefits realized for the tax deductions related to the distribution of performance shares
were $4 million, $7 million, and $9 million per year for 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively,

General Employees® Stock Purchasé Plan (GESPP):

As of December 31, 2021, shareholders have approved 60 million shares for issuance under the Company’s GESPP.
Substantially all employees are eligible to participate in the plan. Participants are granted options at 85% of market value at the
date of grant. There are no GESPP shares under option at the beginning or end of each year because options are granted on the
first business day and exercised on the last business day of the same month.

The weighted-average fair value per eption granted during 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $27.80, $23.47 and $27.14, respectively.
The fair value of GESPP options was based on the 15% purchase price discount. The Company recognized compensation
expense for GESSP options of $32 million in 2021, $31 million in 2020, and $30 million in 2019,

NOTE 19, Business Segments and Geographic Information

3M’s businesses are organized, managed and internally grouped into segments based on differences in markets, products,
technologies and services. 3M manages its operations in four business segments: Safety and Industrial; Transportation and
Electronics; Health Care; and Consumer. 3M’s four business segments bring together common or related 3M technologies,
enhancing the development of innovative preducts and services and providing for efficient sharing of business resoutces.
Transactions among reportable segments are recorded at cost. 3M is an integrated enterprise characterized by substantial
intersegment cooperation, cost allocations and inventory transfers. Therefore, management does not represent that these
segments, if operated independenily, would report the operating income information shown.

3M discloses business segment operating income as its measure of segment profit/ioss, reconciled to hoth total 3M aperating
income and income before taxes. Business segment operating income includes dual credit for certain related operating income
(as described below in “Elimination of Dual Credit”). Business segment operating income excludes certain expenses and
income that are not allocated to business segmentis (as described below in “Corporate and Unallocated™). Additionally, the
following special items are excluded from business segment operating income and, instead, are included within Corporate and
Unallocated: significant litigation-related charges/benefits, gain/loss on sale of businesses (see Note 3), and divestiture-related
restructuring actions (see Note 5).
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Effective in the first quarter of 2021, the measure of segment operating performance used by 3M’s CODM changed and, as a
result, 3M’s disclosed measure of segment profit/loss (business segment operating income) was updated. The change to
business segment operating income aligns with the update to how the CODM assesses performance and allocates resources for
the Company’s business segments. The change included the following:

Changes in cost atiribution

The extent of allocation and method of attribution of certain net costs were updated to result in fewer items remaining in
Corporate and Unallocated and, instead, including them in 3M’s business segments’ operating performance. See the
updated description of Corporate and Unallocated below. Previously, a larger portion of ongoing corporate staff costs and
costs associated with centrally managed material resource centers was retained in Corporate and Unallocated. In addition,
portions of pension costs and costs associated with certain centrally managed but ongeing business-related legal matters,
along with certain insurance-related costs, were retained in Corporate and Unatlocated.

Continued alignment of customer account activity

As part of 3M’s regular customer-focus initiatives, the Company realigned certain customer account activity (“sales
district™) to correlate with the primary divisional product offerings in various countries and reduce complexity for
customers when interacting with multiple 3M businesses. This impacted the amount of dual credit certain business
segments receive as aresult of sales district attribution,

Also effective in the first quarter of 2021, within 3M’s Consumer business segment, certain safety products formerly within the
Construction and Home Improvement Division and the Stationery and Office Division were moved to the newly named
Consumer Health and Safety Division (formerly the Consumer Health Care Division).

The financial information presented herein reflects the impact of the preceding business segment reporting changes for all
periods presented.

Business Segment Products

H

"T_rans\portatlon and
Electronics

o Advanced ceramic solutions

o Attachment tapes, films, sound and temperature management for transportation vehicles
o Premium large format graphic films for advertising and fleet signage

o Light management films and electronics assembly solutions

o Packaging and intercoanection solutions
[a)
CEIET

Reflective signage for highway, and vehicle safety

s

i
Consumer o Consumer bandages, braces, supports and consumer respirators
o  Cleaning products for the home
o Retail abrasives, paint accessories, car care DIY products, picture hanging and consumer air
quality solutions

o  Stationery products
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Business Segment Information

Net Sales (Millions) 2021 2020

2.202) (2,037) (1;6iéj'

Safety and Indqstrlal h 2,692 % 2,784 § 2,373
iTransportatlon and Eléc clronics

(553) (21) (399)

Slgmﬁcant litigation-related {charges)/benefits — {17 (762)

Income before income taxes $ 7204 % 6,795 § 5,643.

Assets Depreciation & Amortization Capital Expenditures
2021 2020 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019

699 6997 419

“Total Company S 47072 S 47344 S 1915 $ 1911 $ 1593 § 1,603 § 1501 § 1699

Assets subject to attribution to business segments largely include accounts receivable; inventories; property, plant and
equipment; goodwill; intangible assets; and certain limited other assets. All other items are reflected in Corporate and
Unallocated. Accounts receivable and inventory are atiributed based on underlying sales or activity. Property, plant and
equipment are attributed to a particular business segment based on that item’s primary user while certain items such as
corporate-shared headquarters/administrative centers, {aboratories, distribution centers and enterprise software systems are
reflected in Corporate and Unallocated. Intangible assets and goodwill are largely directly associated with a particular reporting
unit and attributed on that basis. Business segment depreciation reflected above is based on the underlying usage of assets
(while the particular asset itself may be entirely reflected within a different business seginent’s asset balance as its primary
user). This depreciation also includes allocated depreciation associated with a number of the assets reflected in Corporate and
Unallocated as described above.
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Corporate and Unallocated

Corporate and Unallocated operating income includes “special items”™ and “other corporate expense-net”. Special items include
significant litipation-related charges/benefits, gain/loss on sale of businesses, and divestiture-related restructuring costs. Other
corporate expense-net includes items such as net costs related to limited unallocated corporate staff and centrally managed
material resource centers of expertise costs, certain litigation and environmental expenses largely related to legacy products
businesses not allocated to business segments, corporate philanthropic activity, and other net costs that 3M may choose not to
allocate directly to its business segments, Other corporate expense-net also includes costs and income from contract
manufacturing, transition services and other arrangements with the acquirer of the Communication Markets Division following
its 2018 divestiture through 2019 and the acquirer of the former Drug Delivery business following its 2020 divestiture. Items
classified as revenue from this activity are included in Corporate and Unallocated nef sales. Because Corporate and Unallocated
includes a variety of miscellaneous items, it is subject to fluctuation on a quarterly and annual basis.

Elimination of Dual Credit

3M business segment reporting measures include dual credit to business segments for certain sales and related operating
income. Management evaluates each of its four business segments based on net sales and operating income performance,
including dual credit reporting to further incentivize sales growth. As a result, 3M reflects additional (“dual”) credit to another
business segment when the customer account activity (“sales district”) with respect to the particular product sold to the external
customer is provided by a different business segment. This additional dual credit {s largely reflected at the division level. For
example, privacy screen protection products are primarily sold by the Display Materials and Systems Division within the
Transportation and Electronics business segment; however, certain sales districts within the Consumer business segment
provide the customer account activity for sales of the product to particular customers. In this example, the non-primary seliing
segment (Consumer) would also receive credit for the associated net sales initiated through its sales district and the related
approximate operating income. The assigned operating income related to dual credit activity may differ from operating income
that would result from actual costs associated with such sales. The offset to the dual credit business segment reporting is
reflected as a reconciling item entitled “Elimination of Dual Credit,” such that sales and operating income in total are
unchanged.

Geographie Information

Geographic area information is used by the Company as a secondary performance measure to manage its businesses. Export
sales and certain income and expense items are generally reported within the geographic area where the final sales to 3M
customers are made, Refer to Note 2 for geographic net sales.

Property, Plant and
Equipment - net

(Millions) 2021 2020

; ,98
5 : L i
Total Company b 9,429 § 9,421

United States net propetty, plant and equipment (PP&E) was $5,484 million and $5,358 million at December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively. China/Hong Kong net property, plant and equipment (PP&E) was $578 million and $583 million at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

124



Table of Contents

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None,

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

a, The Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, including
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s
“disclosure confrols and procedures” {as defined in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by
this report, Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

b. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control
over financial reporting, as defined in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management conducted an assessment of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework established by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013). Based on the assessment,
management concluded that, as of December 31, 2021, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective, The
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,2021 has been audited by PricewaterhonseCoopers
LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein, which expresses an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021.

c. There was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s
most recently completed fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

The Company is implementing an enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system on a worldwide basis, which is expected to
improve the efficiency of certain financial and related transaction processes. The gradual implementation is expected to oceur in
phases over the next several years. The implementation of a worldwide ERP system will likely affect the processes that
constitute our internal controf over financial reporting and will require testing for effectiveness,

The Company completed implementation with respect to various processes/sub-processes in certain subsidiaries/locations,
including aspects relative to the United States, and will continue to roll out the ERP system over the next several years. As with
any new information technology application we implement, this application, along with the internal controls over financial
reporting included in this process, was appropriately considered within the testing for effectiveness with respect to the
implementation in these instances. We concluded, as part of its evaluation described in the above paragraphs, that the
implementation of the ERP system in these circumstances has not materially affected our internal control over financial
reporting,.

Item 9B. Other Information,

Disclosure Under Iran Threat Reduction and Syria Human Rights Act of 2012

The Company is making the following disclosure under Section 13(r) of the Exchange Act:

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights in Iran Pursuant to Specific License

As part of its intellectual property (“IP”) protection efforts, 3M has obtained and maintains patents and trademarks in Iran.
Periodically, 3M pays renewal fees, through IP service providers/counset located in Germany, Dubai and Iran, to the Iran
Intellectual Property Office (“IIPO™) for these patents and trademarks and has sought to prosecute and defend such trademarks,
On January 15, 2020, QFAC granted 3M a specific license to make payments to TTPO at its account in Bank Melli, which was
designated on November 5, 2018 by OFAC under its counter terrorism authority pursuant to Executive Order 13224, As

authorized by OFAC’s specific license, in the period ended December 31, 2021, 3M paid $307 to 1IPO as part of'its inteliectual
property protection efforts in Iran. 3M plans to continue thess activities, as authorized under the specific license.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections

Not applicable
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PART III

Documents Incorporated by Reference

In response to Part IT1, Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14, parts of the Company’s definitive proxy statement (to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after Registrant’s fiscal year-end of December 31, 2021) for its annual meeting to be held on
May 10, 2022, are incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information relating to directors and nominees of 3M is set forth under the caption “Proposal No. 1” in 3M’s proxy
statement for its annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 10, 2022 (“3M Proxy Statement”) and is incorporated by
reference herein. Information about executive officers is included in Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
information required by Items 405, 407(c)(3), {d)(4) and (d)(5) of Regulation S-K is contained under the captions “Corporate
Governance At 3M — Board Membership Criteria — Identification, Evaluation, and Selection of Nominees,” “—Shareholder
Nominations,” “~-Shareholder Nominations — Advance Notice Bylaw”, and “—Proxy Access Nominations™ and “Corporate
Governance At 3M -- Board Committees — Audit Committee” of the 3M Proxy Statement and such information is incorporated
by reference herein.

Code of Ethics. All of our employees, including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting
Officer and Controller, are required to abide by 3M’s long-standing business conduct policies to ensure that our business is
conducted in a consistently legal and ethical manner. 3M has posted the text of such code of ethics on its website (hitps://
www.3M.com/3M/en_US/ethics-compliance). At the same website, any future amendments to the code of ethics will also be
posted. Any person may request a copy of the code of ethics, at no cost, by writing to us at the following address:

3M Company

3M Center, Building 220-11W-09

St. Paul, MN 55144-1000

Attention: Senior Vice President, 3M. Ethics &
Compliance

Item 11, Executive Compensation,

The information required by Item 402 of Regulation 8-X is contained under the captions “Executive Compensation” (excluding
the information under the caption “— Compensation Committee Report™ and “Director Compensation™ and “Stock Retention
Requirement” of the 3M Proxy Statement. Such information is incorporated by reference.

The information required by Items 407(e)(4) and (2)(5) of Regulation 8-K is contained in the “Executive Compensation”
gection under the captions “Compensation Committes Report” and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation” of the 3M Proxy Statement. Such information (other than the Compensation Committee Report, which shall not
be deemed to be “filed”) is incorporated by reference.

Fem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matiers,
The information relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is set forth under the designation

“Security Ownership of Management” and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners” in the 3M Proxy Statement and
such infermation is incorporated by reference herein,
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Equity compensation plans information as of December 31, 2021 follows:

Equity Compensation Plans Information (1)

A B C
Nurnber
of secnrities
remaining available
Number of Weighted- for future issuance
securities to be average exercise under equity
issued npon price of compensation
exercise of outstanding plans (exeluding
outstanding options, securities
) options, warrants warrants and reflected in
Plan Category (options and shares in thousands) and rights rights column (A))

JEqui

n-emiployee director deferred stock uni
Total

Subtotal
B

(1) In column B, the weighted-average exercise price is only applicable to stock options. In column C, the number of securities
remaining available for future issuance for stock options, restricted stock units, and sfock awards for non-emplovee
directors is approved in total and not individually with respect fo these items,

Ttem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

With respect to certain relationships and related transactions as set forth in Item 404 of Regulation S-K, no matters require
disclosure with respect to transactions with related persons. The information required by Item 404(b) and Item 407(a) of
Regulation S-K is contained under the section “Corporate Governance at 3M™ under the captions “Director Independence™ and
“Related Person Transaction Policy and Procedures™ of the 3M Proxy Statement and such information is incorporated by
reference herein,

Item 14, Principal Accounting Fees and Services,

The information relating to principal accounting fees and services is set forth in the section entitled “Audit Committee Matters™
under the designation “Audit Committee Policy on Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of the
Independent Accounting Firm” and “Fees of the Independent Accounting Firm” in the 3M Proxy Statement and such
information is incorporated by reference herein.
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PART EV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) (1) Financial Statements. The consolidated financial statements filed as part of this report are listed in the index to financial
statements at the beginning of this document.

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules. Financial statement schedules are omitted because of the absence of the conditions under
which they are required or because the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the notes
thereto. The financial statements of unconsolidated subsidiaries are omitted because, considered in the aggregate, they would
not constitute a significant subsidiary.

(a} (3) Exhibits. The exhibits are either filed with this report or incorporated by reference info this report. See (b) Exhibits,
which follow.

(b) Exhibits,

(3) Articles of Incorporation and bylaws

(3.1)  Certificate of incorporation, as amended as of December 4, 2017, is incorporated by reference from our Form 8-
K dated December 7, 2017, :

(3.2) Amended and Restated Bylaws, as adopted as of February 2, 2021, are incorporated by reference from our
Form §-K dated February 3. 2021,

{4) Instruments defining the rights of security holders, including indentures

(4.1)  Indenture, dated as of November 17, 2000, between 3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company.,
N.A., 28 successor trustee. with respect to 3M’s senior debt securities, is incorporated by reference from our
Form 8-K dated December 7. 2000,

(4.2)  First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 29, 2011, to Indenture dated as of November 17, 2000, between

3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company. N.A., as successor frustee, with respect to 3M’s senior
debt securities, is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011.

(43) Description of Securities is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2019.

(10) Material contracts and management compensation plans and arrangements:

(10.1)* 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective May 11, 2021, is incorporated
by reference from our Form 8-K dated May 13, 2021, i

{10.2)* Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated May 12, 2016.

(10.3)*  Form of Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement under the 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated May 12, 2016,

(10.4¥*  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated May 12, 2016,

(10.5* Form of Performance Share Award Agreement for performance share awards granted under the 3M Company
2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan on or after February 3, 2018 is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2017,

(10.6)* Form of Performance Share Award Agreement for performance share awards granted under the 3M Company
2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan on or after Februarv 1, 2021 is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2020,

(10.7y* Form of Stock Issuance Award Agreement for stock issuances on or after January 1. 2019 to Non-Employee

Directors under the 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is incorporated by reference from our Form
10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2018,

(10.8)* Form of Deferred Stock Unit Award Agreement for deferred stock units granted on or after January 1. 2019 to
Nen-Employes Directors under the 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is incorporated by reference
from our Form 10-J for the vear ended December 31, 2018,
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(10.9y*

(10.10)*

(10.11)*
(10.12)*
(10.13)*
(10.14)%
(10.15)*
(10.16)*
(10.17)*
(10.18)*
(10.19)*
(10.20)*
(10.21)*
(10.22)*
(10.23)*
(10.24)*
(10.25)*
(10.26)*
(1027)*
(10.28)*
(10.29)
(10.30)

(10.31)

3M 2008 Tong-Term Incentive Plan (including amendments through February 2, 2016) is incorporated by
reference from our Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2015,

Form of Stock Option Agreement for options granted to Executive Officers under the 3M 2008 Long-Term
Incentive Plan. commencing February 9, 2010, is ingcorporated by reference from our Form 10-X for the year
ended December 31, 2009,

Form of Stock Option Agreement for U.S. Emplovees under 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan is incorporated
by reference firom our Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2008.

Amended and Restated 3M VIP Excess Plan, as amended and restated effective December 1, 2021, is filed
herewith.

Amended and Restated 3M VIP (Voluntary Investment Plan) Plus Plan is incorporated by reference from our
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Amended and Restated 3M Deferred Compensation Excess Plan, as amended and restated effective December 1,

2021, is filed herewith,

3M Performance Awards Deferred Compensation Plan is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K for the
vear ended December 31, 2009,

3M Annual Incentive Plan (including amendments through February 3, 2020) is incorporated by reference from
our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019.

3M Annual Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective January 1, 2022, is incorporated by reference from
our Form 8-K dated November 12, 2021.

3M Executive Severance Plan is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,

2019. :

3M Compensation Plan for Non-Emplovee Directors, as amended, through November 8, 2004, is incorporated
by reference from our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004,

Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Non-Emplovee Directors is incorporated by reference from our Form
8-K dated November 14, 2008,

Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors as of August 12, 2013, is incorporated by
reference from our Form 10-0Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2013,

Amendment and Restatement of 3M Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors as of January 1, 2019, is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2018.

3M Executive Life [nsurance Plan, as amended, is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K for the vear
ended December 31, 2017,

Policy on Reimbursement of Incentive Payments is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-Q for the
guarter ended June 30, 2018.

Amended and Restated 3M Nengualified Pension Plan [ is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K for th

year ended December 31, 2016, :

Amended and Restated 3M Nengualified Pension Plan 1T is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2016.

Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified Pension Plan 111 is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 20186,

Offer letter of Employment of Monish Patolawala, dated May 19, 2020 is incorporated by reference from our
Form 8-K dated June 3, 2020,

Amended and restated five-year credit agreement as of November 15, 2019, is incorporated by reference from
our Form 8-K dated November 19, 2019,

364-day credit agreement as of November 12, 2021, is incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated
November 15, 2021,

Registration Rights Agreement as of August 4. 2009, between 3M Company and State Street Bank and Trust
Company_as Independent Fiduciary of the 3M Employee Retirement Income Plan, is incorporated by reference
from our Form 8-K dated August 5, 2009,
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Filed herewith, in addition to items, if any, specifically identified above:

(213 Subsidiaries of the Registrant,
(23} Consent of independent registered public accounting firm.

(24}  Power of attorney.

(3L.1) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18
1L.S.C. Section 1350.

(31.2)  Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18
11.S.C. Section 1350.

(32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursnant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18
U.S.C. Section 1350,

(32.2)  Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18
11.8.C. Section 1350,

{(95) Mige Safety Disclosures,

(101.INS) nline XBRL Instance Document (the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its
XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

(101.5CH) [nline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

(101.CAL) Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
(101.DEF) Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
(101.LAB) Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labef Linkbase Document

(101.PRE) Inline XBRL Taxonomy Exiension Presentation Linkbase Document
(104) Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to Item 15 of Form 10-
K.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary.
A Form 10-K summary is provided at the beginning of this document, with hyperlinked cross-references. This allows users to

easily locate the corresponding items in Form 10-K, where the disclosure is fully presented. The summary does not include
certain Part ITY information that is incorporated by reference from a future proxy statement filing.

130



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

3M COMPANY

By /s/ Monish Patolawala
Monish Patolawala,

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial and
Transformation Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
February 9, 2022

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behall of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 9, 2022.

Signature

Title

/s/ Michael F. Roman

/s/ Theresa E. Reinseth

Thomas K. Brown
Pamela I, Craig
David B. Dillon
Michael L. Eskew
James R. Fitterling
Herbert L. Henkel

Amy E. Hood

Muhtar Kent
Dambisa F. Moyo

Gregory R. Page
Patricia A, Woertz

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer and Director)

Senior Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Diirector
Director

Director
Director

Director
Director

Monish Patolawala, by signing his name hereto, does hereby sign this document pursuant to powers of attorney duly executed
by the other persons named, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on behalf of such other persons, all in the
capacities and on the date stated, such persons constituting a majority of the directors of the Company.

By /s/ Monish Patolawala

Monish Patolawala, Attorney-in-Fact
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EXHIBIT 10.12
3M VIP Excess Plan

INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE

The purpose of this Plan is to attract and incent eligible highly compensated employees to remain with
3M by offering them the opportunity to carn additional retirement benefits by deferring the receipt of a
portion of their compensation on a tax-favored basis, with the belief that such opportunity will permit
these employees to increase their long-term financial security. The Plan does this by supplementing the
before-tax deferral provisicns of the 3M Voluntary Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(VIP), which are limited by the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code._

The Plan was originally effective as of January 1, 2009 and is hereby amended and restated effective as of
December 1, 2021,

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Plan, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings indicated, unless
the context clearly indicates otherwise:

1.1 ACCOUNT. “Account” or “Accounts” means the record of the amounts credited fo a Participant
under the Plan pursuant to Article 4.

1.2 BENEFICIARY. “Beneficiary” means the person, persons or entity designated by the
Participant, or as provided in Article 6, to receive any unpaid balance in such Participant’s
Accounts following his or her death.

1.3 CODE. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

14 COMMITTEE. “Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of
IM.

1.5 COMPANY. “Company” means 3M Company (“3M”), its U.S. affiliates and subsidiaries and
any successor to the business thereof.

1.6 ELIGIBLE COMPENSATION, “Eligible Compensation™ of a Participant for any Plan Year
means base pay pius any variable pay (including annual incentive (AIP), sales commissions and
management objective, but excluding any portion of such variable pay that is payable in the form
of restricted stock units, performance units, performance shares and any other long-term incentive
compensation unless expressly included by the Committee) earned by the Participant during such
Plan Year (whether paid during or following such Plan Year). Eligible Compensation does not
include incentives, awards, foreign service premiums and allowances, income arising from stock
options, separation pay, employer contributions to employee benefit plans, reimbursements or
payments in lieu thereof, or lump sum payouts of a Participant’s unused vacation benefits.

1.7 EMPLOYEE, “Employee” means any persen employed by the Company as an active regular
common-law employee who is recognized as such on 3M’s human resoutces/payroll systems;
including such persons who are United States citizens but on assignment outside of the United
States and resident aliens employed in the United States; but excluding any person covetred by a
collective bargaining agreement to which the Company is a party.

1.8 INDEXED COMPENSATION LIMIT. “Indexed Compensation Limit” means the annual
amount of compensation that may be recognized by a qualified retirement plan under section
401(a)17) of the Code (as adjusted annually for increases in the cost of living).



1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

L.16

1.17

1.18
1.19

MEASUREMENT DATE. “Measurement Date” means November 1¥ or, if the Plan
Administrator approves an election period pursuant to Section 2.2 for one or more Employees
who otherwise would not have been eligible based on a Measurement Date of November 1, the
first day of such election period.

PARTICIPANT. “Participant” means any Employee who has elected to make contributions to
this Plan after satisfying the eligibility requirements of Section 2.1.

PLAN. “Plan” means the plan described in this document, as it may be amended from time to
time. The official name of the Plan shall be the 3M VIP Excess Plan.

PLAN ADMINISTRATOR. “Plan Administrator” means the person to whom the Committee
has delegated the authority and responsibility for administering the Plan. Unless and uniil
changed by the Committee, the Plan Administrator shall be 3M’s Senior Vice President, Total
Rewards and Setvices or his or her successor.

PLAN YEAR. “Plan Year” means the 12-month period from January 1 through December 31 in
respect of which a Participant may contribute to the Plan. The first Plan Year beganon
January 1, 2009,

PORTYOLIO IIE VIP. “Portfolio III VIP” means the provisions of the 3M Voluntary
Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan applicable to cligible employees who were
hired or rehired by the Company after December 31, 2008 or are otherwise classified thereunder
as Portfolio III Participants.

RETIRE or RETIREMENT. “Retire” or “Retirement” means an Employee’s Separation from
Service with the Company after aftaining age 55 with at least five years of employment service or
after attaining age 65.

SEPARATION FROM SERVICE. “Separation from Service” means a “separation from
service” as defined in Treas. Reg. section 1.409A-1(h)(1) or such other regulation or guidance
issued under section 409A of the Code. Whether a Separation from Service has occurred depends
on whether the facts and circumstances indicate that 3M and the Participant reasonably
anticipated that no further services would be performed after a certain date or that the level of
bona fide services the Participant would perform after such date (whether as an employee or
independent contractor) would permanently decrease to no more than twenty percent (20%) of the
average level of bona fide services performed (whether as an employee or an independent
contractor) over the immediately preceding thirty-six (36) month period). A Separation from
Service shall not be deemed to occur while the Participant is on military leave, sick leave or other
bona fide leave of absence if the period does not exceed six (6) months or, if longet, so long as
the Participant retains a right to reemployment with 3M or an affiliate under an applicable statute
or by contract. For this purpose, a leave is bona fide only if, and so long as, there is a reasonable
expectation that the Participant will return to perform services for 3M or an affiliate.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a 29-month period of absence will be substituted for such six (6)
month period if the leave is due to any medically determinable physical or mental impairment that
can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous period of no less
than six (6) months and that causes the Participant to be unable to perform the duties of his or her
position of employment.

SPECIFIED EMPLOYEE. “Specified Employee” means a “specified employee” as defined in
Treas. Reg. section 1.409-1(1) or such other regulation or guidance issued under section 409A. of
the Code.

3M. “3M” means 3M Company, a Delaware corporation.
UNFORESEFABLE FINANCIAL EMERGENCY. “Unforeseeable Financial Emergency™

means an “unforeseeable emergency™ (as defined in Treas. Reg, section 1.409A-3(1)(3) or such
other regulation or guidance issued under section 409A of the Code.,
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1.20

1.21

2.1

22

23

24

3.1

VALUATION DATE. “Valuation Date” shall have the same meaning as that term is defined for

purposes of the VIP.

VIP. “VIP” means the 3M Voluntary Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan, as it
may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE 2
ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION

Eligibility. An Employee shall be eligible to participate in the Plan by making contributions for a
Plan Year if as of the Measurement Date immediately preceding such Plan Year:

(=) such Employee is employed by the Company;
(b) such Employee is eligible to make contributions under the VIP; and

(c) such Employee had estimated annual planned total cash compensation (base pay plus
variable pay, including annual incentive, sales commissions and management objective)
that exceeds the Indexed Compensation Limit in effect for the calendar year including
such Measurement Date.

The eligibility of Employees to participate in this Plan by making contributions shall be
determined each Plan Year, and no Employee shall have any right to make contributions in any
Plan Year by virtue of having an Account as a result of making contributions in any prior Plan
Year. '

Election to Contribute. In order to make contributions under the Plan for any Plan Year, an
Employee who meets the eligibility requirements of Section 2.1 must enroll via the Plan’s
Internet site. To be effective, an Employee’s election to participate must elect the amount of his
or her contributions, authorize the reduction of his or her Eligible Compensation as needed to
make such contributions, select the time and form of payment of such contributions and the
earnings thereon, specify the investment fund or funds in which such contributions are to be
treated as being invested, and provide such other pertinent information as the Plan Administrator
may require. The time petiod during which elections to participate will be accepted each Plan
Year will be established by the Plan Administrator and may vary by Employee, but in no event
will any election be accepted after the beginning of the Plan Year to which such election relates.

Duration of Contribution Election. Fach eligible Employee’s election to make contributions to
the Plan made in accordance with the requirements of Section 2,2 shall expire as of the end of the
Plan Year o which it relates, although it shall apply to any Eligible Compensation paid after the
end of such Plan Year if such Eligible Compensation was earned during such Plan Year.
Participants may not change or revoke their contribution elections for a Plan Year after the
election period for the Plan Year has ended.

Duration of Participation. A Participant’s participation in the Plan shall continue until all
amounts credited to his or her Accounss have been distributed, or until the Participant’s death, if
garlier.

ARTICLE 3
CONTRIBUTIONS

Participant Contributions. A Participant may contribute (defer) from two percent (2%) to ten
percent (10%) (but only a whole percentage) of his or her Eligible Compensation earned during
the Plan Year to which such Participant’s election relates, subject to the following:
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3.3

4.1

4.2

(a) the percentage of Eligible Compensation that a Participant elects to contribute to the Plan
for a Plan Year must be the same as the Participant’s Elective Deferral percentage under
the VIP during such Plan Year; and

{b) the percentage the Participant elects to contribute (defer) shall be deducted from each
payment of such Participant’s Eligible Compensation earried during the Plan Year
(whether paid during or following such Plan Year), but only if such compensation would
have been paid (but for the deferral election) to the Participant after (i) such Participant’s
before-tax deferrals to the Participant’s Before-Tax 401(k) Account under the VIP during
the Plan Year in which payment would have occurred have reached the applicable dollar
limit on such deferrals imposed by section 402(g) of the Code (regardless of whether or
not the Participant is eligible to make or is actually making catch-up deferrals as
authorized by section 414(v) of the Code), or (ii) such Participant has reached the
Indexed Compensation Limit under the VIP for the Plan Year in which payment would
have occurred.

Company Matching Contributions. As soon as administratively feasible following each payroll
payment from which Participant contributions are withheld, the Company shall make a matching
contribution on behalf of each Participant whao has made contributions to the Plan equal to the
Required Matching Percentage (as such term is defined in the VIP) of that portion of such
Participant’s contributions made pursuant to Section 3.1 which does not exceed five percent (5%)
of such Participant’s Eligible Compensation for the payroll period corresponding to such
payment.

Company Nonelective Contributions. Only for those Employees covered by the Portfolio ITI
VIP, the Company shall make additional contributions to the Plan on behalf of each Employee
eligible to participate in this Plan for a Plan Year equal to three percent of such Employee’s
Eligible Compensation earned during such Plan Year. These additional Company contributions
shall be made to the Plan as soon as administratively feasible following each payroll payment
during or following the Plan Year corresponding to the payroll period during which such Eligible
Compensation was earned.

ARTICLE 4
ACCOUNTS

Creation of Accounts. The Plan shall establish a separate Account or Accounts for each
Participant who elects to make contributions hereunder. A separate Account shall be maintained
for each Participant for each Plan Year that such Participant makes contributions to the Plan. The
amount of a Participant’s contributions hereunder shall be credited to such Participant’s Account
at the same time as or as soon as reasonably possible following the dates on which the Company
paid the Eligible Compensation from which such contributions were deferred. Company
matching and nonelective contributions shall be credited to separate Accounts of those
Participants eligible to receive such contributions pursuant to Sections 3.2 and 3.3 at the same
time as or as soon as reasonably possible following the dates on which the Company makes such
contributions to the Plan.

Earnings on Accounts. Each Participant’s Accounts shall be credited with investment earnings
or losses based on the performance of the investment funds selected by such Participant. The
investment funds available to the Participants in this Plan shall be the same as the investment
funds available to the participants in the VIP, excluding the 3M Stock Fund and the VIP's
brokerage window, but shall also include a fund based on the return of the Growth Factor as
defined for purposes of the 3M Deferred Compensation Plan. Participants may allocate the
amounts credited to their Accounts among such investment funds in whole percentages of from
one percent to one hundred percent. The deemed investment earnings or losses on such VIP
funds for purposes of this Plan shall equal the actual rate of return on such funds in the VIP net of
any fees or expenses chargeable thereto, including but not limited to management fees, trustee
fees, recordkeeping fees and other administrative expenses. In the event that a Participant fails to
select the investment fund or funds in which his or her Accounts are deemed to be invested, such
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

52

53

Participant will be deemed to have allocated the entire amount credited to his or her Accounts to
the LifePath Portfolio fund with the target retirement year closest to the year in which such
Participant will attain age sixty-five (65).

Changes in Investment Fund Allocations. Participants may change the investment funds
among which their Account balances or future contributions are allocated at any time, subject to
such rules as may be established by the Plan Administrator. Allocation changes may only be
made using the Plan’s Internet site or by speaking with a representative of the Plan’s
recordkeeper.

Valuation of Accounts. The Accounts of all Participants shall be revalued as of each Valuation
Date. As of each Valuation Date, the value of a Participant’s Account shall consist of the balance
of such Account as of the immediately preceding Valuation Date, increased by the amount of any
contributions made and credited thereto since the immediately preceding Valuation Date,
increased or decreased (as the case may be) by the amount of deemed investment earnings or
losses credited to the investment funds selected by the Participant since the immediately
preceding Valuation Date, and decreased by the amount of any distributions made from such
Account since the immediately preceding Valuation Date. :

Vesting of Accounts. A Participant shall always be 100% vested in the value of his or her
Accounts (including any earnings thereon).

Statement of Account. As soon as administratively feasible following the end of each Plan
Year, the Plan shall deliver to each Participant a statement of his or her Accounts in the Plan.

ARTICLE §
DISTRIBUTION OF ACCOUNTS

General Rules. Except as provided in Sections 5.5, 8.2 and 9.1, no distribution of a Participant’s
Accounts hereunder shall be made prior to such Participant’s death, retirement or Separation from
Service with the Company. All distributions of a Participant’s Accounts shall be made in cash.
When the Plan makes a distribution of less than the entire balance of a Participant’s Account, the
distribution shall be charged pro rata against each of the investment funds to which the Account is
then allocated.

Distribution Following Separation From Service. If a Participant incurs a Separation from
Service with the Company for any reason other than death or Retiremient, the entire balance of
such Participant’s Accounts shall be paid to the Participant in a single lump sum distribution in
the month of July in the Plan Year following the Plan Year in which such Participant’s Separation
from Service occurred (or in the month of January in the Plan Year following the Plan Year in
which such Participant’s Separation from Service occurred if such Separation from Service
occurred prior 1o July 1 of such Plan Year).

Distribution Following Retirement. If a Participant Retires from employment with the
Company, the balance of such Participant’s Account shall be paid commencing at the time and in
one of the following methods of payment selected by such Participant at the time such Participant
elected to make contributions to the Plan for such Plan Year pursuant to Section 2.2 (for this
purpose, the election made by a Participant with respect to the distribution of amounts contributed
by such Participant for a Plan Year shall be deemed to apply to the amounts contributed to the
Plan by the Company on behalf of such Participant for such Plan Year):

{a) A sinple lump sum distribution; or

(b) Ten or fewer annual installments, with the amount of each installment payment being
determined by multiplying the balance in the Participant’s Account on the payment date
by a fraction having a numerator of one and a denominator equal to the remaining
number of scheduled installment payments.
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All lump sum and installment payments shall be made in the month of January or July in the Plan
Year or Years selected by the Participant; provided, however, that no payments shall be made
before the month of July in the Plan Year following the Plan Year in which such Participant
incurs a Separation from Service with the Company (or in the month of January in the Plan Year
following the Plan Year in which such Participant’s Separation from Service occurred if such
Separation from Service occurred prior to July 1 of such Plan Year), and provided further that no
method of payment and commencement date selected by a Participant shall require the Plan to
make any payment more than 10 years after the end of the Plan Year in which such Participant
Retires. Upon the Retirement of a Participant on whose behalf the Company made nonelective
contributions pursuant to Section 3.3 for one or more Plan Years for which such Participant has
not made an effective election concerning the time and method of payment of the Account(s)
attributable to such nonelective confributions, the balance of such Participant’s Account(s)
aftributable to such nonelective contributions shall be paid to the Participant in a single lump sum
distribution in the month of July in the Plan Year following the Plan Year in which such
Participant’s Separation from Service occurred (or in the month of January in the Plan Year
following the Plan Year-in which such Participant’s Separation from Service occurred if such
Separation from Service occurred prior to July 1 of such Plan Year).

Distribution Following Death. If a Participant dies before distribution of one or more of his or
her Accounts has begun, the entire balance of such Accounts shall be paid to the Participant’s
Beneficiary ir a single lump sum distribution in the month of July in the Plan Year following the
Plan Year in which such Participant died (or in the month of January in the Plan Year following
the Plan Year in which the Participant died if the Participant died before July 1 of such Plan
Year). If a Participant dies after distribution of one or more of his or her Accounts has begun, the
remaining balance of such Accounts (if any) shall be paid to the Participant’s Beneficiary in
accordance with the method of payment chosen by the Participant.

Unforeseeable Financial Emergency Distribution. Upon finding that a Participant has suffered
an Unforeseeable Financial Emergency, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, permit the
Participant to withdraw an amount from his or her Account sufficient to alleviate the emergency.

Withholding; Payroll Taxes. To the extent required by the laws in effect at the time any
payment is made, the Plan shall withhold from any payment made hereunder any taxes required
to be withheld for federal, state or local government purposes.

ARTICLE 6
DESIGNATION OF BENEFICIARIES

Beneficiary Designation. Lach Participant shall have the right at any time to designate any
person, persons, or entity, as Beneficiary or Beneficiaries to whom payment of the Participant’s
Account shall be made in the event of the Participant’s death. Any designation made under the
Plan may be revoked or changed by a new designation made prior to the Participant’s death. Any
such designation or revocation must be made in accordance with the rules established by the Plan
Administrator, and will not be effective until received by the Plan.

Beneficiary Predeceases Participant. If a Participant designates more than one Beneficiary to
receive such Participant’s Account and any Beneficiary shall predecease the Participant, the Plan
shall distribute the deceased Beneficiary’s share to the surviving Beneficiaries proportionately, as
the portion designated by the Participant for each bears to the total portion designated for all
surviving Beneficiaries.

Absence of Effective Designation. If a Participant makes no designation or revokes a
designation previously made without making a new designation, or if all persons designated shall
predecease the Participant, the Plan shall distribute the balance of the deceased Participant’s
Account in the manner determined in accordance with the Participant’s designation in effect
under the VIP. In the event such Participant has no effective designation under the VIP, the Plan
shall distribute the balance of the deceased Participant’s Account to the first of the following
survivors:
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(a) The Participant’s spouse;

(b) Equally to the Participant’s children;

(c) Equally to the Participant’s parents;

{d) Equally to the Participant’s brothers and sisters; or

(e) The executor or administrator of the Participant’s estate.

Death of Beneficiary, Ifa Beneficiary to whom payments hereunder are to be made pursuant to
the foregoing provisions of this Article 6 survives the Participant but dies prior to complete
distribution fo the Beneficiary of the Beneficiary’s share:

{a) unless the Participant has otherwise specified in his or her desigpation, the Plan shall
distribute the undistributed portion of such Beneficiary’s share to such person or persons,
including such Beneficiary’s estate, as such Beneficiary shall have designated in a
designation made with the Plan prior to such Beneficiary’s death (which designation shall
be subject to change or revocation by such Beneficiary at any time); or

(b) if the Participant’s designation specifies that such Beneficiary does not have the power to
designate a successor Beneficiary or if such Beneficiary is granted such power but fails to
designate a successor Beneficiary prior to such Beneficiary’s death, the Plan shall
distribute the undistributed portiont of such Beneficiary’s share to such Beneficiary’s
estate. :

Beneficiary Disclaimer. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Article 6, in the event
a Beneficiary, to whom payments hereunder would otherwise be made, disclaims all or any
portion of that Beneficiary’s interest in such payments, such disclaimed portion of such
Beneficiary’s interest in such payments shall pass to the person or persons specified by the
Participant to take such disclaimed interest. In the event the Participant did not specify a person
or persons to take disclaimed interests, such disclaimed portion of such Beneficiary’s interest in
such payments shall pass to the person or persons who would be entitled thereto pursuant to the
Participant’s designation or the designation made with respect to the VIP referenced above,
whichever is applicable pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this Article 6, if such Beneficiary
had died immediately preceding the death of the Participant.

ARTICLE 7
UNFUNDED PLAN

No Trust. This Plan is intended to be an “unfunded” plan of deferred compensation for the
Participants. As such, the benefits payable under this Plan will be paid solely from the general
assets of the Company. The Company does not intend to create any trust in connection with this
Plan. The Company shall not have any obligation to set aside funds or make investments in the
investment funds referred to in Article 4. The Company’s obligations under this Plan shall be
merely that of an unfunded and unsecured promise to pay money in the future.

Unsecured General Creditor. No Participant or Beneficiary shall have any right to receive any
benefit payments from this Plan except as provided in Articles 5 and 6. Until such payments are
received, the rights of each Participant and Beneficiary under this Plan shall be no greater than the
rights of a general unsecured creditor of the Company.

ARTICLE 8
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF PLAN
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Right to Amend. 3M may at any time amend or modify the Plan in whole or in part; provided,
however, that no amendment or modification shali adversely affect the rights of any Participant or
Beneficiary acquired under the terms of the Plan as in effect prior to such action. The consent of
any Participant, Bencficiary, employer or other person shall not be a requisite to such amendment
or modification of the Plan,

Termination. While it expects to continue this Plan indefinitely, 3M reserves the right to
terminate the Plan at any time and for any reason. Upon the termination of the Plan and to the
extent permitted by section 409A of the Code, all elections to contribute to the Plan shall be
revoked and the Plan shall immediately distribute in cash to the respective Participants and
Beneficiaries the entire remaining balances of the Accounts,

ARTICLE 9
CHANGE IN CONTROL

Termination Upon Change in Control. This Plan shall terminate and the Plan shall
immediately distribute in cash to the respective Participants the amounts eredited to all Accounts
upon the occurrence of a Change in Control of 3M.

Definition of Change in Control. For purposes of this Article 9, a Change in Control of 3M
shall be deemed to have occurred if there is a “change in the ownership of 3M”, “change in
effective control of 3M”, and/or a “change in the ownership of a substantial portion of 3M’s
assets” as defined in Treas. Reg. section 1.409A-3(i)(5) or such other regulation or guidance
issued under section 409A of the Code.

Reimbursement of Fees and Expenses. The Company shall pay to each Participant the amount
of all reasonable legal and accounting fees and expenses incurred by such Participant in seeking
to obtain or enforce his or her rights under this Article 9, unless a lawsuit commenced by the
Participant for such purposes is dismissed by the court as being spurious or frivolous. The
Company shall also pay to each Participant the amount of all reasonable tax and financial
planning fees and expenses incurred by such Participant in connection with such Participant’s
receipt of payments pursuant to this Article 9. Payment of these legal and accounting fees, as
well as these tax and financial planning fees and expenses, shall be made as soon as
administratively feasible, but no later than two and one-half months following the end of the
Participant’s taxable year in which the Participant incurs these fees and expenses. If a Participant
is a Specified Employee and such payment is made on account of the Participant’s Separation
from Service, payment shall not be made prior to the first day of the seventh month following the
Participant’s Separation from Service.

ARTICLE 10
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Administration of the Plan and Discretion. This Plan shall be administered by the Plan
Administrator, under the supervision and direction of the Committee. Both the Plan
Administrator and the Committee shall have full power and authority to interpret the Plan, to
establish, amend and rescind any rules, forms and procedures as they deem necessary for the
proper administration of the Plan, and to take any other action as they deem necessary or
advisable in carrying out their duties under the Plan. Any decisions, actions or interpretations of
any provision of the Plan made by the Plan Administrator or the Committee shall be made in their
respective sole discretion, need not be uniformly applied to similarly situated individuals and
shall be final, binding and conclusive on all persons interested in the Plan.

Nonassignability. Neither a Participant nor any other person shall have any right to commute,
sell, assign, transfer, pledge, anticipate, mortgage or otherwise encumber, transfer, hypothecate or
convey in advance of actual receipt the amounts, if any, payable hereunder. All payments and the
rights to all payments are expressly declared to be nonassignable and nontransferable. No pa,rt of
the amounts payable hereunder shall, prior to actual payment, be subject to seizure or
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sequestration for the payment of any debts, judgments or decrees, or transferred by operation of
law in the event of a Participant’s or any Beneficiary’s bankruptcy or insolvency. No part of any
Participant’s Account may be assigned or paid to such Participant’s spouse in the event of divorce
pursuant to a domestic relations order.

Not a Contract of Employment. The terms and conditions of this Plan shall not be deemed to
constitute a contract of employment between the Company and any Participant, and the
Participants (or their Beneficiaries) shall have no rights against the Company except as may
otherwise be specifically provided herein. Moreover, nothing in this Plan shall be deemed to give
any Participant the right to be retained in the employment of the Company or to interfere with the
right of the Company to discipline or discharge such Participant at any time for any reason
whatsoever.

Terms. Wherever any words are used herein in the singular or in the plural, they shall be
construed as though they were used in the plural or in the singular, as the case may be, in all cases
where they would so apply. :

Captions. The captions of the ariicles and sections of this Plan are for convenience only and
shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of its provisions.

Governing Law. The provisions of this Plan shall be construed and interpreted according to the
laws of the State of Minnesota, except to the extent preempted by federal law.

Validity. In case any provision of this Plan shall be ruled or declared invalid for any reason, said
illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts hereof, but this Plan shall be construed
and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had never been inserted herein.

Claims Procedure. Any Participant or Beneficiary who disagrees with any decision regarding
his or her benefits under this Plan shall submit a written request for review to the Plan
Administrator. The Plan Administrator shall respond in writing to such a request within sixty
(60 days of his or her receipt of the request. The Plan Administrator may, however, extend the
reply period for an additional sixty (60) days for reasonable cause. The Plan Administrator’s
response shall be written in a manner calculated to be understood by the Participant or
Beneficiary, and shall set forth:

(2) the specific reason or reasons for any denial of benefits;

((9)] specific references to the provision or provisions of this Plan on which the denial is
based;

{(c) a description of any additional information or material necessary for the Participant or

Beneficiary to improve his or her claim, and an explanation of which such information or
material is necessary; and

(d) an explanation of the Plan’s claims review procedure and other appropriate information
as to the steps to be taken if the Participant or Beneficiary wishes to appeal the Plan
Administrator’s decision.

If the Participant or Beneficiary disagrees with the decision of the Plan Administrator, he or she
shall file a written appeal with the Committee within 120 days after receiving the Plan
Administrator’s response. The Committee shall respond in writing to such an appeal within
ninety (90) days of its receipt of the appeal. The Committee may, however, extend the reply
period for an additional ninety (90) days for reasonable cause. The Committee’s response shall
be written in a manner calculated to be understood by the Participant or Beneficiary, and shall
both set forth the specific reasons for its decision and refer to the specific provision or provisions
of'the Plan on which its decision is based.

Suceessors. The provisions of this Plan shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Company and
its successors and assigns. The term successors as used herein shall include any corporation or
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other business entity which shall, whether by merger, consolidation, purchase or otherwise,
acquire substantially all of the business and assets of the Company, and successors of any such
corporation or other business entity.

Incompetent. In the event that it shall be found upon evidence satisfactory to the Plan
Administrator that any Participant or Beneficiary to whom a benefit is payable under this Plan is
unable to care for his or her own affairs because of illness or accident, any payment due (unless
prior claim therefore shali have been made by a duly authorized guardian or other legal
representative) may be paid, upon appropriate indemnification of the Plan, to the spouse or other
person desmed by the Plan Administrator to have accepted responsibility for such Participant or
Beneficiary. Any such payment made pursuant to this Section 10.10 shall be in complete
discharge of any liability therefore under this Plan.

Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Company shall indemnify the Plan
Administrator and the members of the Committee against any and all claims, losses, damages,
expenses and liability arising from their responsibilities or the performance of their duties in
connection with the Plan which is not covered by insurance paid for by the Company, unless the
same is determined to be due to gross negligence or intentional misconduct.
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EXHIBIT 10.14

3M Deferred Compensation Excess Plan

ARTICLE 1
Purpose

The purpose of this Plan is to atiract and incent eligible highly compensated employees to remain
with 3M by offering them an opportunity to earn additional retirement benefits by deferring the
receipt of a portion of their compensation, with the belief that such opportunity will permit those
employees to increase their long-term financial security.

ARTICLE 2
Definitions

For the purposes of this Plan, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings indicated,
unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

2.1

2.2

23

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

ACCOUNT. “Account” or “Accounts” means the record of the amounts credited to a
Participant under the Plan pursuant to Article 6.

BENEFICIARY. “Beneficiary” means the person, persons or entity designated by the
Participant, or as provided in Article 8, to receive any unpaid balance in such
Participant’s Accounts following his or her death.

CLASS YEAR. “Class Year” means the calendar year in respect of which Eligible
Compensation is deferred under this Plan. The first Class Year began on January 1,
2010.

CODE. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

COMMITTEE. *“Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors of 3M.

COMPANY. “Company” means 3M Company (“3M”), its U.S. affiliates and
subsidiaries and any successor to the business thereof.

FFFECTIVE DATE. “Effective Date” means January 1, 2010, the effective date of this
Plan.

ELIGIBLE COMPENSATION, “Eligible Compensation” of a Participant for any Class
Year means base pay plus any variable pay (including annual incentive (AIP), sales
commissions and management objective, but excluding any portion of such variable pay
that is payable in the form of restricted stock units, performance units, performance
shares and any other long-term incentive compensation unless expressly included by the
Committee) earned by the Participant during such Class Year that exceeds the Indexed
Compensation Limit for such Class Year (whether paid during or following such Class
Year). Eligible Compensation does not include incentives, awards, foreign service
premiums and allowances, income arising from stock options, separation pay, employer
contributions to employee benefit plans, reimbursements or payments in lieu thereof, or
lump sum payouts of a Participant’s unused vacation benefits.



2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

EMPLOYEE. “Employee” means any person employed by the Company as an active
regular common-law employee who is recognized as such on 3M’s human resources/
payroll systems; including such persons who are United States citizens but on assignment
outside of the United States and resident aliens employed in the United States; but
excluding any person covered by a collective bargaining agreement to which the
Company is a party.

GROWTH FACTOR. For those Participants who allocate all or a portion of their
Accounts to the investment fund based on the return of the Growth Factor, unless and
until changed by the Committee, the “Growth Factor” applied during each Class Year
will be the average Citigroup 10 Year AAA Industrial Corporate Bond Rating for New
Issues for the four-week period ending with the last week ending in October of the
previous year,

INDEXED COMPENSATION LIMIT. “Indexed Compensation Limit” means the
annual amount of compensation that may be recognized by a qualified retirement plan
under section 401(a)(17) of the Code (as adjusted annually for increases in the cost of
living).

MEASUREMENT DATE. “Measurement Date” means November 1% or, if the Plan
Administrator approves an election period pursuant to Section 4.2 for one or more
Employees who otherwise would not have been eligible based on a Measurement Date of
November 1, the first day of such election period.

PARTICIPANT. “Participant” means any Employee who has elected to make
contributions to this Plan after satisfying the eligibility requirements of Section 4.1,

PLAN. “Plan” means the plan described in this document, as it may be amended from
time to time. The official name of the Plan shall be the 3M Deferred Compensation
Excess Plan.

PLAN ADMINISTRATOR. “Plan Administrator” means the person to whom the
Committee has delegated the authority and responsibility for administering the Plan,
Unless and until changed by the Committee, the Plan Administrator shall be 3M’s Senior
Vice President, Total Rewards and Services or his ot her successor.

RETIRE or RETIREMENT. “Retire” or “Retirement” means an Employee’s Separation
from Service with the Company after attaining age 55 with at least five years of
employment service or after attaining age 65.

SEPARATION FROM SERVICE. “Separation from Service” means a “separation from
service” as defined in Treas. Reg. section 1.409A-1(h)(1) or such other regulation or
guidance issued under section 409A of the Code. Whether a Separation from Service has
occurred depends on whether the facts and circumstances indicate that 3M and the
Participant reasonably anticipated that no further services would be performed after a
certain date or that the level of bona fide services the Participant would perform after
such date (whether as an employee or independent contractor) would permanently
decrease to no more than twenty percent (20%) of the average level of bona fide services
performed (whether as an employee or an independent contractor) over the immediately
preceding thirty-six (36) month period). A Separation from Service shall not be deemed
to occur while the Participant is on military leave, sick leave or other bona fide leave of
absence if the period does not exceed six (6) months or, if fonger, so long as the
Participant retains a right to reemployment with 3M or an affiliate under an applicable
statute or by contract. For this purpose, a leave is bona fide only if, and so long as, there
is a reasonable expectation that the Participant will return to perform services for 3M or
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2.18

2.19
2.20

2,21

2.22

an affiliate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a 29-month period of absence will be
substituted for such 6-month period if the leave is due to any medically determinable
physical or mental impairment that can be expected to result in death or can be expected
to last for a continuous period of no less than 6 months and that causes the Participant to
be unable to perform the duties of his or her position of employment.

SPECIFIED EMPLOYEE. “Specified Employee” means a “specified employee” as
defined in Treas. Reg, section 1.409-1(i) or such other regulation or guidance issued
under section 409A of the Code.

3M. “3M” means 3M Company, a Delaware corporatiott.

UNFORESEEABLE FINANCIAL EMERGENCY. “Unforeseeable Financial
Emergency” means an “unforeseeable emergency” (as defined in Treas, Reg. section
1.409A-3(1)(3) or such other regulation or guidance issued under section 409A of the
Code).

VALUATION DATE. “Valuation Date” means each day that all or substantially all of
the U.S. and international financial markets in which the VIP’s assets are invested are
open for trading.

VIP. “VIP” means the 3M Voluntary Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership
Plan, as it may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE 3
Fffective Date

The Plan initially became effective on January 1, 2010, and most recently was amended and
restated effective December 1, 2021, This Plan shall continue in operation and effect until 3M
terminates it in accordance with the provisions of Section 10.2.

4.1

ARTICLE 4
Eligibility and Participation

ELIGIBILITY. An Employee subject to U.S. income taxation shall be eligible to
participate in the Plan for a Class Year if as of the Measurement Date immediately prior
to such Class Year:

(a) such Employee is employed by the Company;

(b) such Employee is eligible for and covered by one or more of the sales
commission, management objective or annual incentive plans of 3M; and

{c) such Employee had estimated annual planned total cash compensation (base pay
plus variable pay, including annual incentive, sales commission and management
objective) that exceeds the Indexed Compensation Limit in effect for the calendar
year including such Measurement Date.

The eligibility of Employees to participate in this Plan shall be determined each Class

Year, and no Employee shall have any right to make contributions for any Class Year by
virtue of having an Account as a result of making contributions for any prior Class Year,
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ELECTION TO CONTRIBUTE. In order to make contributions under the Plan for any
Class Year, an Employee who meets the eligibility requirements of Section 4.1 must elect
to participate via the Plan’s Internet site or via such other method as shall be established
by the Plan Administrator. To be effective, an Employee’s election to participate for a
Class Year must specify the percentage of his or her Eligible Compensation to be
deferred, select the time and form of payment of the amount deferred and the earnings
thereon, specify the investment fund or funds in which such deferred amounts are to be
treated as being invested, and provide such other information as the Plan Administrator
may require. The time period during which elections to participate will be accepted for
each Class Year will be established by the Plan Administrator and may vary by
Employee, but in no event will any election be accepted after the beginning of the Class
Year to which such election relates.

DURATION OF CONTRIBUTION ELECTION. Each eligible Employee’s election to
make contributions to the Plan made in accordance with the requirements of Section 4.2
shall expire as of the end of the Class Year to which it relates, although it shall apply to
any Eligible Compensation paid after the end of such Class Year if such Eligible
Compensation was earned during such Class Year. Participants may not change or
revoke their contribution elections for a Class Year after the election period for the Class
Year has ended,

DURATION OF PARTICIPATION. A Participant’s participation in the Plan shall
continue until all amounts credited to his or her Accounts have been distributed, or until
the Participant’s death, if earlier.

WAIVER OF ELECTION, The Committee may, in its sole discretion, grant a waiver or
suspension of a Participant’s election to make contributions for a Class Year, for such
time as the Committee may deem necessary, upon a finding that the Participant has
suffered an Unforeseeable Financial Emergency.

ARTICLE 5
Conftributions

PARTICIPANT CONTRIBUTIONS. A Participant may contribute (defer) any whole
percentage (but no more than 50 percent of base salary and no more than 90 percent of
variable pay) of his or her Eligible Compensation earned during the Class Year to which
such Participant’s election relates; provided, however, that the maximum amount of any
Eligible Compensation payment that may be deferred by a Participant shall be limited to
the amount otherwise payable to such Participant after the deduction of the appropriate
withholding taxes. The percentage the Participant elects to contribute (defer) shall be
deducted from each payment of such Participant’s Eligible Compensation earned during
such Class Year, whether paid during or following such Class Year.

AMOUNTS CREDITED TO ACCOUNT. For each Participant and each Class Year that
the Participant elects to defer Eligible Compensation hereunder the Company shall
establish on its books an Account, to which the amounts deferred in accordance with
Section 5.1 shall be credited al such times as are in accordance with the standard payroll
procedures of the Company. The amount credited to a Participant’s Account shall equal
the amount deferred, except that the amount credited may be reduced, at the discretion of
the Committee, to the extent that the Company is required to withhold any taxes or other
amounts from the Participant’s deferred compensation pursuant to any federal, state or
local law.
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6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

ARTICLE 6
Accounts

EARNINGS ON ACCOUNTS. Each Participant’s Accounts shall be credited with
investment earnings or losses based on the performance of the investment funds selected
by such Participant. The investment funds available to the Participants in this Plan shall
be the same as the investment funds available to the participants in the VIP, excluding the
3M Stock Fund and the VIP’s brokerage window, but shall also include a fund based on
the return of the Growth Factor, Participants may allocate the amounts credited to their
Accounts among such investment funds in whole percentages of from one percent to one
hundred percent. The deemed investment earnings or losses on such VIP funds for
purposes of this Plan shall equal the actual rate of return on such funds in the VIP net of
any fees or expenses chargeable thereto, including but not limited to management fees,
trustee fees, recordkeeping fees and other administrative expenses. In the event that a
Participant fails to select the investment fund or funds in which his or her Accounts are
deemed to be invested, such Participant will be deemed to have allocated the entire
amount credited to his or her Accounts to the LifePath Portfolio fund with the target
retirement year closest to the year in which such Participant will aftain age 65.

CHANGES IN INVESTMENT FUND ALLOCATIONS. Participants may change the
investment funds among which their Account balances or future contributions are
allocated at any time, subject to such rules as may be established by the Plan
Administrator. Aliocation changes may only be made using the Plan’s Internet site or by
speaking with a representative of the Plan’s recordkeeper.

VALUATION OF ACCOUNTS. The Accounts of all Participants shall be revalued as of
each Valuation Date following the Effective Date of this Plan. As of each Valuation
Date, the value of a Participant’s Account shall consist of the balance of such Account as
of the immediately preceding Valuation Date, increased by the amount of any
contributions made and credited thereto since the immediately preceding Valuation Date,
increased or decreased (as the case may be) by the amount of deemed invesiment
earnings or losses credited to the investment funds selected by the Participant since the
immediately preceding Valuation Date, and decreased by the amount of any distributions
made from such Account since the immediately preceding Valuation Date.

VESTING OF ACCOUNTS. A Participant shall always be 100% vested in the value of
his or her Accounts (inctuding any earnings thereon).

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT. As soon as administratively feasible following the end
of each Class Year, the Plan shall deliver to each Participant a statement of his or her
Accounts in the Plan,

ARTICLE 7
Distribution of Accounts

DISTRIBUTION DATE AND METHOD. As part of the election to participate herein
for each Class Year, the Participant shall specify the date (hereinafter referred to as the
“Distribution Date”) upon which the Company will commence payment of the amounts
credited to the respective Account and the method of paying such amounts. A Participant
must select one of the following Distribution Dates:

(a) During the month of January of any calendar year following the end of the year

following the Class Year to which such Participant’s election to defer Eligible
Compensation relates;
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7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

)] During the month of January of any one of the first through the tenth calendar
years following the Participant’s Retirement from service with the Company.

A participant must also select one of the following methods of payment in each election
to participate herein:

(8) A single lump sum distribution.

()] Ten or fewer annual installments (the amount of such installment payments shall
be computed by multiplying the balance in the Account on each date of payment
by a fraction, the numerator of which is one and the denominator of which equals
the remaining number of scheduled annual installment payments).

No Participant’s election to participate for any Class Year shall require the Plan to make
any payment more than 10 years after the month of January of the calendar year
following the Participant’s Retirement from service with the Company. Each payment
from a Participant’s Account shall be made in cash, and shall be charged against the
balance in such Account. When the Plan makes a distribution of less than the entire
balance of a Participant’s Account, the distribution shall be charged pro rata against each
of the investment funds to which the Account is then allocated.

DISTRIBUTION WHILE STILL AN EMPLOYEE. If a Participant is still employed by
the Company at the Distribution Date specified in Section 7.1(a) for any Account, the
entire balance of such Account at the Distribution Date (plus any deemed investment
earnings or losses credited to such Account thereafter) shall be paid to the Participant
commencing on such date and in accordance with the method of payment chosen by the
Participant.

DISTRIBUTION FOLLOWING SEPARATION FROM SERVICE. If a Participant
incurs a Separation from Service with the Company for any reason other than death or
Retirement, the value of such Participant’s Accounts shall be paid to the Participant in a
single lump sum distribution in the month of July in the calendar year following the
calendar year in which such Participant’s Separation from Service occurred (or in the
month of January in the calendar yvear following the calendar year in which such
Participant’s Separation from Service occurred if such Separation from Service occurred
prior to July 1 of such calendar year).

DISTRIBUTION FOLLOWING RETIREMENT. If a Participant Retires from service
with the Company prior to the Distribution Date for any Account, the entire balance of
such Account at the Distribution Date (plus any deemed investment earnings or losses
credited to such Account thereafter) shall be paid to the Participant (or Beneficiary)
commencing on such Distribution Dete and in accordance with the method of payment
chosen by the Participant; provided, however, that, in the event such Distribution Date
would be less than six months following the date of the Participant’s Retirement from
service with the Company, such Participant’s Distribution Date shall be and payment of
such Account shall begin during the month of July of the calendar year following the year
in which such Participant Retires from service with the Company.

DISTRIBUTION FOLLOWING DEATH. If a Participant dies before distribution of one
or more of his or her Accounts has begun, the entire balance of such Accounts shall be
paid to the Participant’s Beneficiary in a single lump sum distribution in the month of
July in the calendar year following, the calendar year in which such Participant died (or in
the month of January in the calendar year following the calendar year in which the
Participant died if the Participant died before July 1 of such calendar year). Ifa
Participant dies afler distribution of one or more of his or her Accounts has begun, the
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7.6

7.7

8.1

32

83

8.4

remaining balance of such Accounts (if any) shall be paid to the Participant’s Beneficiary
in accordance with the method of payment chosen by the Participant.

UNFORESEEABLE FINANCIAL EMERGENCY DISTRIBUTION. Upon finding that
a Participant has suffered an Unforeseeable Financial Emergency, the Committee may, in
its sole discretion, permit the Participant to withdraw an amount from his or her
Account(s) sufficient to alleviate the emergency.

WITHHOLDING; PAYROLL TAXES. To the extent required by the laws in effect at
the time any payment is made, the Plan shall withhold from any payment made hereunder
any taxes required to be withheld for federal, state or local government purposes.

ARTICLE 8
Designation of Beneficiaries

BENEFICIARY DESIGNATION, Each Participant shall have the right at any time to
designate any person, persons, or entity, as Beneficiary or Beneficiaries to whom
payment of the Participant’s Accounts shall be made in the event of the Participant’s
death. Any designation made under the Plan may be revoked or changed by a new
designation made prior to the Participant’s death. Any such designation or revocation
must be made in accordance with the rules established by the Plan Administrator, and
will not be effective until received by the Plan.

BENEFICIARY PREDECEASES PARTICIPANT. If a Participant designates more than
one Beneficiary to receive such Participant’s Accounts and any Beneficiary shall
predecease the Participant, the Pian shall distribute the deceased Beneficiary’s share to
the surviving Beneficiaries proportionately, as the portion designated by the Participant
for each bears to the total portion designated for all surviving Beneficiaries,

ABSENCE OF EFFECTIVE DESIGNATION. If a Participant makes no designation or
revokes a designation previously made without making a new designation, or if all
persons designated shall predecease the Participant, the Plan shall distribute the balance
of the deceased Participant’s Account in the manner determined in accordance with the
Participant’s designation in effect under the VIP. In the event such Participant has no
effective designation under the VIP, the Plan shall distribute the balance of the deceased
Participant’s Account to the first of the following survivors:

(a) The Participant’s spouse;

(h) Equally to the Participant’s children;

{c) Equally to the Participant’s parents;

(d) Equally to the Participant’s brothers and sisters; or

(e) The Participant’s estate executors or administrators.

DEATH OF BENEFICIARY. If a Beneficiary to whom payments hereunder are to be
made pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this Article 8 survives the Participant but
dies prior to complete disiribution to the Beneficiary of the Beneficiary’s share:

(a) unless the Participant has otherwise specified in his or her designation, the Plan

shall distribute the undistributed portion of such Beneficiary’s share to such
person ot persons, including such Beneficiary’s estate, as such Beneficiary shall
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8.5

9.1

9.2

10.1

10.2

have designated in a designation made with the Plan prior to such Beneficiary’s
death (which designation shall be subject to change or revocation by such
Beneficiary at any time); or

(b) if the Participant’s designation specifies that such Beneficiary does not have the
power to designate a successor Beneficiary or if such Beneficiary is granted such
power but fails to designate a successor Beneficiary prior to such Beneficiary’s
death, the Plan shall distribute the undistributed portion of such Beneficiary’s
share to such Beneficiary’s estate.

BENEFICIARY DISCLAIMER. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this
Article 8, in the event a Beneficiary, to whom payments hereunder would otherwise be
made, disclaims all or any portion of that Beneficiary’s interest in such payments, such
disclaimed portion of such Beneficiary’s interest in such payments shall pass to the
person or persons specified by the Participant to take such disclaimed interest. In the
event the Participant did not specify a person or persons to take disclaimed interests, such
disclaimed portion of such Beneficiary’s interest in such payments shall pass to the
person or persons who would be entitled thereto pursuant to the Participant’s designation
ot the designation made with respect to the VIP referenced above, whichever is
applicable pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this Article 8, if such Beneficiary had
died immediately preceding the death of the Participant.

ARTICLE 9
Unfunded Plan

NO TRUST. This Plan is intended to be an “unfunded” plan of deferred compensation
for the Participants. As such, the benefits payable under this Plan will be paid solely
from the general assets of the Company. The Company does not intend to create any
frust in connection with this Plan. The Company shall not have any obligation to set
aside funds or make investments in the investment funds referred to in Article 6. The
Company’s obligations under this Plan shall be merely that of an unfunded and unsecured
promise to pay money in the future,

UNSECURED GENERAL CREDITOR. No Participant or Beneficiary shall have any
right to receive any benefit payments from this Plan except as provided in Articles 7 and
8. Until such payments are received, the rights of each Participant and Beneficiary under
this Plan shall be no greater than the rights of a general unsecured creditor of the
Comparny.

ARTICLE 10
Amendment and Termination of the Plan

RIGHT TO AMEND. 3M may at any time anmend or modify the Plan in whole or in part;
provided, however, that no amendment or modification shall adversely affect the rights of
any Participant or Beneficiary acquired under the terms of the Plan as in effect prior to
such action. The consent of any Participant, Beneficiary, employer or other person shall
not be a requisite to such amendment or modification of the Plan.

TERMINATION. While it expects to continue this Plan indefinitely, 3M reserves the
right to terminate the Plan at any time and for any reason. Upon the termination of the
Plan and to the extent permitted by section 409A of the Code, all elections to contribute
to the Plan shall be revoked and the Plan shall immediately distribute in cash to the
respective Participants and Beneficiaries the entire remaining balances of the Accounts.
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11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

ARTICLE 11
General Provisions

NONASSIGNABILITY. Neither a Participant nor any other person shall have any right
to commute, sell, assign, transfer, pledge, anticipate, mortgage or otherwise encumber,
transfer, hypothecate or convey in advance of actual receipt the amounts, if any, payable
hereunder. All payments and the rights to all payments are expressly declared to be
nonassignable and nontransferable. No part of the amounts payable hereunder shall, prior
to actual payment, be subject to seizure or sequestration for the payment of any debts,
judgments or decrees, or transfetred by operation of law in the event of a Participant’s or
any Beneficiary’s bankruptcy or insolvency. No part of any Participant’s Account may
be assigned or paid to such Participant’s spouse in the event of divorce pursuant to a
domestic relations order.

NOT A CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT. The terms and conditions of this Plan shall
not be deemed to constitute a coniract of employment between the Company and any
Participant, and the Participants (or their Beneficiaries) shall have no rights against the
Company except as may otherwise be specifically provided herein. Moreover, nothing in
this Plan shall be deemed to give any Participant the right to be retained in the
employment of the Company or to interfere with the right of the Company to discipline
or discharge such Participant at any time for any reason whatsoever.

TERMS, Wherever any words are used herein in the singular or in the plural, they shall
be construed as though they were used in the plural or in the singular, as the case may be,
in all cases where they would so apply.

CAPTIONS. The captions of the articles and sections of this Plan are for convenience
only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of its provisions.

GOVERNING LAW. The provisions of this Plan shall be construed and interp'retcd
according to the laws of the State of Minnesota.

VALIDITY. Incase any provision of this Plan shall be ruled or declared invalid for any
reason, said illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts hereof, but this
Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had never been
inserted herein,

CLAIMS PROCEDURE. Any Participant or Beneficiary who disagrees with any
decision regarding his or her benefits under this Plan shall submit a written request for
review to the Plan Administrator, The Plan Administrator shall respond in writing to
such a request within 60 days of his or her receipt of the request. The Plan Administrator
may, however, extend the reply period for an additional 60 days for reasonable cause.
The Plan Adminisirator’s response shall be written in a manner calculated to be
understood by the Participant or Beneficiary, and shall set forth:

(a) the specific reason or reasons for any denial of benefits;

)] specific references to the provision or provisions of this Plan on which the denial
is based;

(c) a description of any additional information or material necessary for the

Participant or Beneficiary to improve his or her claim, and an explanation of why
such information or material is necessary; and
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11.9

11.10

12,1

12.2

12.3

(d) an explanation of the Plan’s claims review procedure and other appropriate
information as to the steps to be taken if the Participant ot Beneficiary wishes to
appeal the Plan Administrator’s decision.

If the Participant or Beneficiary disagrees with the decision of the Plan Administrator, he
or she shall file a written appeal with the Committee within 120 days after receiving the
Plan Administrator’s response. The Committee shall respond in writing to such an appeal
within 90 days of its receipt of the appeal. The Committee may, however, extend the
reply period for an additional 90 days for reasonable cause. The Committee’s response
shall be written in a manner calculated to be understood by the Participant or Beneficiary,
and shall both set forth the specific reasons for its decision and refer to the specific
provision or provisions of the Plan on which its decision is based.

SUCCESSORS. The provisions of this Plan shall bind and inure to the benefit of the
Company and its successors and assigns. The term successors as used herein shall
include any corporation or other business entity which shall, whether by merger,
consolidation, purchase or otherwise, acquire substantially all of the business and assets
of the Company, and successors of any such corporation or other business entity.

INCOMPETENT. In the event that it shall be found upon evidence satisfactory to the
Plan Administrator that any Participant or Beneficiary to whom a benefit is payable under
this Plan is unable to care for his or her own affairs because of illness or accident, any
payment due (unless prior claim therefore shall have been made by a duly authorized
guardian or other legal representative) may be paid, upon appropriate indemnification of
the Plan, to the spouse or other person deemed by the Plan Administrator to have
accepted responsibility for such Participant or Beneficiary. Any such payment made
pursuant to this Section 11.9 shall be in complete discharge of any liability therefore
under this Plan.

INDEMNIFICATION. To the extent permitted by law, the Company shall indemnify the
Plan Administrator and the members of the Committee against any and all claims, losses,
damages, expenses and liability arising from their responsibilities or the performance of
their duties in connection with the Plan which is not covered by insurance paid for by the
Company, unless the same is determined to be due fo gross negligence or intentional
misconduct.

ARTICLE 12
Change in Control

TERMINATION UPON CHANGE IN CONTROL. This Plan shall terminate and the
Plan shall immediately distribute in cash to the respective Participants the amounts
credited to all Accounts upon the occurrence of a Change in Conirol of 3M.

DEFINITION OF CHANGE IN CONTROL. For purposes of this Article 12, a Change
in Control of 3M shall be deemed to have occurred if there is a “change in the ownership
of 3M”, “change in effective control of 3M”, and/or a “change in the ownership of a
substantial portion of 3M’s assets” as defined in Treas. Reg. section 1.409A-3(i)(5) or
such other regulation or guidance issued under section 409A of the Code.

REIMBURSEMENT OF FEES AND EXPENSES. The Company shall pay to each
Participant the amount of all reasonable legal and accounting fees and expenses incurred
by such Participant in seeking to obtain or enforce his or her rights under this Article 12
or in connection with any income tax andit or proceeding o the extent attributable to the
application of section 4999 of the Code to the payments made pursuant to this Article 12,
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unless a lawsuit commenced by the Participant for such purposes is dismissed by the
court as being spurious ot frivolous. The Company shall also pay to each Participant the
amount of all reasonable tax and financial planning fees and expenses incurred by such
Participant in connection with such Participant’s receipt of payments pursuant to this
Article 12. Payment of these legal and accounting fees, as well as these tax and financial
planning fees and expenses, shall be made as soon as administratively feasible, but no
later than two and one-half months following the end of the Participant’s taxable year in
which the Participant incurs these fees and expenses. If a Participant is a Specified
Employee and such payment is made on account of the Participant’s Separation from
Setvice, payment shall not be made prior to the first day of the seventh month following
the Participant’s Separation from Service.
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Exhibit 21

3M COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES (PARENT AND SUBSIDIARIES)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

Name of Company Organized Under Law of

Deiavﬁare

Delaware

T e

Delaware

ity

Delaware

B

Dclaware

3M Real Estate Gmbl & Co KG

S

Germany

3M Hong Kong Limited

Hong Kong



Exhibit 21

Name of Compsny Organized Under Law of

kel

3M Japan Lumted

Scott Health & Safety Limited

NOTE: Subsidiary companies excluded from the above listing, if considered in the aggregate, would not constitute a significant
subsidiary.



EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8
(Nos. 333-30689, 333-30691, 333-44760, 333-73192, 333-101727, 333-109282, 333-128251,
333-130150, 333-151039, 333-156626, 333-156627, 333-166908, 333-181269, 333-181270, and
333-211431) and Form S-3 (Nos. 333-236344, 333-42660, and 333-109211) of 3M Company of
our report dated February 9, 2022 relating to the financial statements and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 9, 2022



EX-24 5 mmm-2021123 1xex24.htm EX-24
EXHIBIT 24

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned Directors and the Principal Executive, Principal Financial and Principal Accounting
Officers of 3M COMPANY, a Delaware corporation (the “Company™), hereby constitute and appoint Michael F,
Roman, Monish Patolawala, Theresa E. Reinseth, Kevin H. Rhodes, and Sarah M. Grauze, and each of them, his or
her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full and several power of substitution and resubstitution, for
him or her and in his or her name, place and stead in any and all capacities, to sign one or more Annual Reports for
the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, on Form 10-K under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, any amendmenis thereto, and all additional amendments thereto, each in such form as they or any one of
them may approve, and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full
powet and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done so that such
Annual Report or Annual Reports shall comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the
applicable Rules and Regulations adepted or issued pursuant thereto, as fully and to all intents and purposes as he or
she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of
them or their substitute or resubstitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

The undersigned have signed this Power of Attorney this 8th day of February 2022,

fs/ Michael F. Roman /s/ Monish Patolawala

Michael F. Roman, Chairman of the Board and Monish Patolawala, Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Chief Financial and Transformation Officer
Officer and Director) (Principal Financial Officer)

{3/ Theresa E, Reinseth /s/ Herbert L, Henkel

Theresa E. Reinseth, Senior Vice President, Herbert L. Henkel, Dircctor

Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
{Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Thomas K. Brown /s/ Amy E. Hood

Thomas K. Brown, Director Amy E. Hood, Director

/sf Pamela J. Craig /s/ Muhtar Kent

Pamela J. Craig, Director Muhtar Kent, Director

/s/ David B, Dillon /sf Dambisa F. Moyo

David B. Dillon, Director Dambisa F. Moyo, Director
/s/ Michael L. Eskew /s/ Gregory R. Page
Michael L. Eskew, Director Gregory R. Page, Director
fsf James R, Fitterling /s/ Patricia A, Woertz

James R. Fitterling, Director Patricia A, Woertz, Director



EXHIBIT 31.1

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

[, Michael F. Roman, certify that;

1.

2.

5.

[ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of 3M Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrani’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, fo the Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant>s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)

(b

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

/s/ Michael F. Roman

Michael F. Roman
Chief Executive Officer

February 9, 2022



EXHIBIT 31.2

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Monish Patolawala, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of 3M Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial conditicn, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal conirol over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

(a)

(b)

(e)

CY

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in

" which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial teporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasenable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
repott) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporiing; and

5, The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors {or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(®)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Monish Patolawala

Monish Patolawala

Chief Financial and Transformation Officer

February 9, 2022



EXHIBIT 32.1
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of 3M Company (the “Company*) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31,
2021 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissicn on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Michael F. Roman, Chief

Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/sf Michael F. Roman
Michael F. Roman
Chief Executive Officer

February 9, 2022



EXHIBIT 32.2

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In copnection with the Annual Report of 3M Company (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31,
2021 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Monish Patolawala, Chief

Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.8.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Monish Patolawala
Monish Patolawala
Chief Financial and Transformation Officer

February 9, 2022
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COUNTY OF NASSAU
POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York
State Election Law in {a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning
April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this
disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator? *Corporate officer contribution information was
unavailable at the time of disclosure signing. Political

, , contribution vetification was limited to 3M Company and
YES NO X If yes, to what campaign committee?  pac, pany

2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to
hisfher knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersianed further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) fo the campaign committees identified above were

made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or
remuneration.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: . M f/}b’—
Maria Paraschou
¥

Dated; October 18, 2022 Vendor: 3MCompany

Title: Senior Proposal & Contract Manager
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3M Company Government Contracts
Power of Attorney

By the authority granted the undersigned by the Corporate Secretary, the individuals listed below are hereby
appointed as 3M's or its designated subsidiaries, true and lawful attorneys-in-fact for it, and its name, for
commercially available products and services and government unique products and services for which 3M or
its designated subsidiaries will be a prime contractor, subcontractor or higher tier subcontractor to any federal,

state or municipal governmental agency in the United States (“Government Contracts”), to perform acts
specified on behalf of this Corporation.

Except as provided below, authority is granted to submit or execute proposals, bids, binding purchase orders,
contracts and subcontracts, certifications, representations and warranties, and documents related thereto for
Government Contracts; however, this authority does not include (a) research and development services?; (b)
executing country of origin certifications®; or (¢) any other authority that is not expressly granted in this
document. 3M executives (President, General Manager, etc.) ¢, have authority to sign on behalf of their
respective Business Unit/staff function, through 3M’s Vice President of Government Contract Compliance sub
delegation authority. Authority for the individuals below is limited to the specific Business Unit or staff function

indicated and such authority may not be subdelegated.

3M Unitek Corporation
Gregg, Shawn
McCloskey, Molly

Advanced Materials Division
Davis, Scott

Hanson, Scott

Jensen, Avery

Lockhart, Bruce

Marshall, Peter (Technical Ceramics only)
Morin, Eric

Utley, Elizabeth

Ward, Charles

Aearo Technologies LLC.
Hinko, David

Automotive and Aerospace
Solutions Division
see Government Marketing-Sales

Display Materials & Systems
Division

Summers, Micki

Electrical Markets Division

Blair, Jeremiah
Irwin, Mike

Electronics Materials Solutions
Division

Anderson, Kevin

Food Safety Department

see Govermment Marketing-Sales
{Federal Only)

Government R&D Contracts

Department?
Kays, Steven?®
Martinez, Rita

3M Heatlth Information Systems
Aiello, Kimberlee

Garrison, Garri

Guyion, Elizabeth

Heng-Larsen, Sally

Mathison, John

Peddicord, Kyle

Smith, Andrea

Stadther, Joseph

Stanley, Michael

Industrial Adhesives & Tapes Division

see Government Marketing-Sales
(FSS Contracts Only)

Industrial Minera| Products Division
Erickson, Scott

Medical Solutions Division
McDonald, Michael
Dickson, Diana

Oral Care Solutions Division
Gregg, Shawn

McCloskey, Molly

McDenald, Michael

Personal Safety Division
see Government Marketing-Sales

Separation & Purification
Towne, Richard

Stationery & Office Supplies
Division

see Government Marketing-Sales
(FSS Contracts Only)

Transportation Safety Division
Batchelor, Brent”
Del Solar, Carolina’
Do, Thanh-Huong*
Frampton, Steven
Lindberg, Jennifer’
Macklin, John?
Paraschou, Maria
Schray, Katring®
Seputis, Julie’
Trag, Phu?
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Authority Applies to any Business Unit or Staff Function

Global Channel Services Government Marketing-Sales Government Contract Compliance
Constantine, Lauri Audette-Willlams, Michelle Bordas, Rich

Borja, Ralph Carr, Terrance
U.S. Pacific Branches Hang, Yee Horwitz, Charles
Mathers, Stephanie Welier, Greg Robinette, Thomas
Kawasaki, Heidi Williams, Tabatha

Hang, Yee

Authority to Make Country of Origin Certifications®

Trade Compliance Department
Bottomns, Paul®  Schultz, Anne® LaMere, Pierre®  Schmitz, Jamie®

For all appointments, authority may be withdrawn or modified at any time, including upon an individual's
change in responsibility.

This Power of Attorney revokes all prior Powers of Attorney with respect to the same matters and shall remain
in effect untit terminated by the undersigned or any other person authorized to grant powers of attorney on
hehalf of 3M.

By: Chastes %wﬁj

Charles Horwitz Date 9/19/2022
Vice President, Government Contract Compliance
3M Company

130 executives may assign attorney-In-fact authority te their respective business personnel, upon successful completion of Government Contract
Compliance Power of Attorney training.

2Authorily is delegated by 2M's Executive VP R&D and Chief Technology Officer, to the Senior Vice President, Research and Deveiopment, for their
respective 3M Business Groups, and to certaln specified employees In Government Research & Development Contracts, to execute proposals,
contracts, subcontracts, and modifications (inciuding cerfifications, representations, and warranties to comply with certain laws and reguiations) for
government R&D services.

3Authu:)rity includes AFRL TIA and Phase 2 activities for N95 lines for contract modifications.
4 authority expressly limited to executing Certificates of Cenformance.

5Aulhority limited to include anly Country of Origin Certifications.

6Autﬁority limited to include only Vouchers and Invoices.

7authority limited to include only Premium Warranties
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